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Welcome from
the Chairman

Welcome to The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust’s
Annual Report and Accounts for 2019/20. This document
sets out how the Trust performed over the year,
including some key achievements, as well as some
reflections about the ongoing challenges we face.

As aTrust, quality remains our top priority. Patient safety, clinical
effectivenessandpatientexperienceareattheheartofeverythingwe
do,aswecontinuetoimplementourQualitylmprovementPlanunder
our ‘Safe and Sound’ campaign.

InOctober,wewerepleasedthattheCareQualityCommission(CQC)
raisedtheratingofourUrgentand Emergency Care Centre (UECC)
followinganunannouncedre-inspection.Wearealsooneof14Trusts
nationallytotakepartinafield-testpilotofnewA&Eaccessstandards.

The annual winter pressures in the NHS remain a considerable
operational challenge for us, in line with the rest of the NHS. It
emphasisestheneedforall-yearplanningtoensureconsistencyandto
safeguardqualityatalltimes.WehaveimplementedourOperational
Planbutourfinancial positiondeterioratedinthelastquarterofthe
financial year and has been a significant concern.

A key area of focus for us is collaboration. As a key partner in the
Rotherham Place Plan, we work effectively with colleagues at the
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), Mental Health Trust and
RotherhamMetropolitanBoroughCouncil(MBC)onsharedpriorities.
WorkalsocontinuesindevelopingtheSouthYorkshireandBassetlaw
IntegratedCareSystem(ICS),particularlyinresponsetotheNHSLong-
Term Plan.

Peopleareourgreatestassetandourteamshavecontinuedtoperform
strongly,winningmanynationalawardsandaccoladesalongtheway.
[thasbeenparticularlypleasingtoseeourmidwiferyteamnominated
as Team of the Year'in the prestigious Royal College of Midwives
annualawards2020,andoneofourmidwiveshasbeenshortlisted
as ‘Midwives’ Midwife of the Year. This resulted in a visit to our
maternityservicesinFebruarybyHerRoyalHighness, ThePrincess
Royal, who is patron of the Royal College of Midwives.

Meanwhile,ourIntegratedDischargeTeamwonthe'AcuteService
Redesign Award’in the annual Health Service Journal Awards for
theirpioneeringworkinstrengtheningourapproachtodischarge
management,workinginpartnershipwithcolleaguesatRotherham
MBC.

WealsohaveanewChiefExecutivetotakeusforward,followingthe
departureofLouiseBarnett,whoservedasourChiefExecutivefrom
2013untilFebruarythisyear.lamdelightedthatDrRichardJenkins
hasbeenappointedasourinterimChiefExecutive,combiningitwith
hisexistingroleasChiefExecutiveofBarnsleyHospitalNHSFoundation
Trust.Richardisahighly-experienced NHS leaderand a practising
clinician who is well known to us.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

lamsurehewillleadtheseniormanagementteameffectivelyonour
improvement journey over the next year.

Lookingforward,ourchallengeremainstodeliverourVision:Tobe
an outstanding Trust, delivering excellent healthcare at home,

in our community and in hospital’ Quality will remain our priority
butwemustresolveourfinancialchallengeandensurewesustainably
deliverourfinancial plan.We are committed to playing our partin
ensuring that the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care
System is a success.

Theendofthisyearhasbeenextremelychallengingforallofusdueto
theCOVID-19pandemicandNHScolleaguesacrossthecountryhave
beendoingamagnificentjobandlwanttocongratulateourExecutive
Team for their excellent leadershipin preparing ourTrustand our
colleaguestocopewiththisunprecedentedsituation.Wehavevalued
theexcellentjointworkingwithourpartnersinRotherhamandacross
the ICS.

Our colleagues at the Trust working in the community and in the
hospitalhavebeenremarkableinthewaytheyhavebeencaringforour
patientsandasaBoardwevaluethemgreatlyandaresoveryproud
ofthem.Thankyouforallthedonationswehavereceivedandforthe
publicexpressionofsupportyouhaveshown,youractionsarevery
much appreciated.

Best wishes,

i)
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Martin Havenhand
Chairman



Performance Report

Overview of Performance

The purpose of the overview is to provide a short summary with
sufficient information to enable the reader to understand the
organisation, its purpose, the key risks to the achievement of its
objectives and how it has performed during the year.

Introduction to The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust
In2005TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustwasestablishedpursuant
tosection 6 of the Health and Social Care (Community Healthand
Standards)Act2003.Priorto2005theTrustwasRotherhamGeneral
HospitalsNHSTrust. ThesectorregulatorforFoundationTrustsisNHS
Improvement'andtheCareQualityCommission(CQC)regulatesthe
quality of the services the Trust provides.

In 2011 Rotherham Community Health Services was acquired by
theTrustanditbecameacombinedTrustprovidingbothacuteand
community services across Rotherham, Doncaster and Barnsley.

Weserveapopulationof264,7000fwhom19.5%isagedover65and
21.6%isaged0-17 2ltisprojectedthatRotherham’spopulationwill
increasebyalmost3%between2017and2027toreach270,600.As
partofthisincreaseitisbelievedthatpeopleagedover85willincrease
by 30% from 6,000in 2017 to 7,800 in 2027 and that people aged
over 90 will increase by 25% to 2,700 in 2027.2

Rotherham’sBlack,AsianandMinority Ethnic(BAME) populationis
lowerthanthenationalaverageof20%andwasrecordedasbeing
8.1%inthe2011census.ThePakistani&Kashmiricommunityisthe
largestin Rotherham at 3.1% of the population. ‘Other - white’is
recordedasthesecondlargestcommunity(at1.3%ofthepopulation)
ofwhomthelargestconstituentcommunityidentifiedasbeingSlovak
andCzechRoma.91.9%oftheRotherhampopulationidentifiedas
being ‘White British'.

IntermsofthehealthofthepeopleofRotherhamthereareanumber

ofareasinwhichthepictureisworsewhencomparedwiththeEngland

average:

+ Thelevelofcancerdiagnosesishigherespeciallyinrelationtolung
and colorectal cancer

« Thenumberofpeopleagedunder75whodiefromcanceris15%
higher

« ThedementiadiagnosisratemeansthatRotherhamisratedas51st
highest in England (out of 209 CCGs)

« The determinants of mental health are worse in Rotherham

+ Premature deaths due to circulatory disease are worse

« Smoking levels are higher

« Dentaldecayin12yearoldsisworseanddentaldecayinthoseaged
5 is significantly worse

« Lifeexpectancyforbothwomenand menisbelowthe national
average

'SinceApril2019NHSImprovementandNHSEnglandhavebeenworkingtogetherasa
single organisation.
2Source:RotherhamJointStrategicNeedsAssessment(ResidentPopulation)located
at:https://archive.rotherham.gov.uk/jsna/info/23/people/48/resident _populationlast
accessed on 05/03/20
3Source:RotherhamJointStrategicNeedsAssessment(ResidentPopulation)locatedat:

https://archive.rotherham.gov.uk/jsna/info/23/people/48/resident populationandlast
accessed on 05/03/20

InotherindicatorsthepictureinRotherhamissimilarto,orbetterthan,
the national average:

« Levelsofharmfuldrinkingareaboutaverageforareaswithsimilar
socio-economiccharacteristics,althoughbingedrinkingappearsto
be more common in the more deprived areas of Rotherham

« The Borough is a low prevalence area for diagnosed HIV

« Reinfectionratesforsexuallytransmittedinfectionsstandat4.2%for
womenand4.7%formencomparedtothenationalratesof7.1%
for women and 9.3% for men

- Avoidablesightloss(e.g.fromglaucomaordiabeticretinopathy)is
similar to the national average*

TheTrusthas379bedsandcirca4000wholetimeequivalentmembers
of staff who provide a comprehensive range of services to the
populationofRotherhamaswellassomespecialisedservicesacross
South Yorkshire and nationally.

Purpose and Activities of The Rotherham NHS

Foundation Trust

TheTrustis registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to

provide the following legally regulated services:

« Treatment of disease, disorder or injury

- Diagnostic and screening procedures

+ Nursing Care

« Surgical procedures

« Maternity and midwifery services

« Termination of pregnancies

« Family planning services

« Assessmentormedicaltreatmentforpersonsdetainedunderthe
Mental Health Act 1983

ThemajorityofacuteservicesareprovidedattheTrust'sMoorgateRoad
site(RotherhamGeneralHospital),howevertheTrustalsoprovides
servicesatBreathingSpace,ParkRehabilitationCentre,Rotherham
CommunityHealthCentre,RotherhamIntermediateCareCentre,New
StreetHealthCentreinBarnsleyandatTheFlyingScotsmanCentrein
Doncaster.

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrusthasadivisionalmanagement
structuretocoordinateanddeliverhealthcareservices.Thisisdone
through five Clinical Divisions each of which is led by a clinical
Divisional Director. These are:

+ Integrated Medicine

+ Family Health

+ Surgery

+ Clinical Support Services and

« Urgent and Emergency Care

AdditionalservicescoveringHealthInformatics,EstatesandFacilities,
StrategyandPlanning,WorkforceandFinanceareprovidedthrough
acorporatedivisionalstructureeachofwhichisledbyaDirectoror
Executive Director.

“Source:RotherhamJointStrategicNeedsAssessment(ResidentPopulation)located
at:https://archive.rotherham.gov.uk/jsna/info/26/healthy livingandhttps://archive.
rotherham.gov.uk/jsna/info/27/ill health last accessed on 05/03/20
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The Trust also provides care in partnership with other providers,

including the third sector. This includes, but is not limited to:

+ TheBarnsleyandRotherhamIntegratedLaboratoryServices(BRILS)
whichprovidesanintegratedpathologyserviceacrossthetwoTrusts
AjointcontractwithMesmac,oneoftheoldestandlargestsexual
healthservicesinthecountry,toprovidesexualhealthserviceswithin
Rotherham

A joint Ear, Nose and Throat (ENT) on call rota with Doncaster
andBassetlawTeachingHospitalsNHSFoundationTrusttocover
emergency care across the region and
AnlntegratedDischargeTeam(IDT)whichisrunincollaborationwith
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council.

Additionally,theTrusthasanumberofpathwayswhichareco-delivered
withlocalspecialistTrustsincludingSheffieldTeachingHospitalsNHS
FoundationTrustandSheffieldChildren’sHospitalNHSFoundation
Trust.ThisincludesservicessuchasthoseforHyperAcuteStrokeand
complex cancer treatments.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

The Trust is also part of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SYB)
IntegratedCareSystem(ICS).TheSYBICSisoneofthemostdeveloped
integratedcaresystemswithinthecountryandcontinuestosupport
collaborativeworkingacrossorganisationswithinthesystem.Oneof
thedevelopmentswithinthelCSistheestablishmentoffive’hosted
networks’ across the five acute providers: Rotherham, Barnsley,
Sheffield,SheffieldChildren'sandDoncasterandBassetlawHospitals.
TheTrustwassuccessfulinbeingselectedtoleadtheMaternityHosted
Networkandwillcontinuetodevelopthisworkoverthenextfewyears
as the role of the network continues to mature.

Asanorganisation,theTrustcontinuestoplayaleadingroleinPlace-
basedworkingwithpartnersacrosstheRotherhamlIntegratedCare
Partnership(ICP).Thishasledtonationalawardsforanumberofareas,
recognising the progress made across health and social care.




National Healthcare Strategies
ThefutureambitionsfortheNHShavebeensetoutintheNHSLong
TermPlan(LTP)whichwaspublishedinJanuary2019.Itplacesafocus
onimprovingthequalityofcareofferedtopatientsthroughafocus
onurgentcarepathways, majorhealth conditionsandprevention
andhealthinequalities.ltalsosupportskeyenablersofthisambition
throughsupportingtheNHSworkforce,makingdigitalmainstreamand
ensuring effective use of the financial funding settlement.

Thisoverarchingnationalstrategyissubsequentlydistilledthroughto
theSYBICS.TheTrusthasbeenanactivecontributortothelCS'sLong
TermPlanResponse,whichisanationalrequirementoflCSstosupport
thedevelopmentoftheNationallmplementationPlan.Thisalsoguides
the Rotherham Place Plan, of which the Trust is a key stakeholder.
ThePlacePlanhasbeenrefreshedduring2019withprioritieseither
updated or reinforced to ensure that it is fully aligned with the
ambitionssetoutintheLTP.Finally,theseplansallfeedintotheTrust’s
operationalobjectivesanditiscriticalthatourplansdovetailwiththe
vision of the LTP.

COvID-19
Theworld-wideCOVID-19pandemicledtheBritishgovernmentto
instructtheNHStoreduceallnon-essentialelectiveandurgentactivity
to free up capacity to treat patients with COVID-19. The Trust did
thisthroughoutMarch2020andsawamarkedreductioninelective
activity. Thishadanegative knock-oneffectontheTrust'sdelivery
of waiting list and cancer targets as well as reduced diagnostic
deliverables.

TheTrustalsoexperiencedareductionindemandforelectiveand
emergencyservicesaspatientsandprimarycarepractitionersmade
a concerted effort to reduce any risks to patients as the national
lockdown took effect.
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Chief Executive’s Statement

The Trust has continued to face a number of challenges during
2019/20, but has also achieved success in other areas.

Thesix-week-waitdiagnostictarget,whichaimstosupportpatients
receivingtheirdiagnostictestwithin6weeks,hastraditionallybeena
standardtheTrusthasstronglyachieved.However,theTrustdidnot
deliveragainstthisperformancemeasureduringtheyear,withsmaller
specialities,e.g.urology,facingparticularchallenges.Theadditionof
adedicatedCancerlmprovementManagermid-yearsupportedthe
serviceinbeingabletodecreasethePatientTrackingListfrom+1,000
patients,to733inSeptember2020,andtowardstheendofQ3,there
werefurthersignsofimprovement.Performanceagainstthe31-day
cancertreatmenttargetwasalsostrong. However,theonsetofthe
CoronaviruspandemictowardstheendofQ4sawadeterioration,with
theTrustachievingonly76.8%againstthe 85%6-weekwaittarget
fortheyear.Furtherworkistakingplacetoimprovethispositionaswe
move through 2020/21.

Given we have been a field test site for the proposed new A&E
standards for 11 of the 12 months of the financial year, we are
unabletocompareoururgentcareperformanceagainstsomeofthe
well-known national indicators, such as the 4-hour access target.
Nevertheless,wecontinuedtotrackourperformancethroughexisting
indicators and the new pilot measures.

Lengthoftimespentin A&EbyourpatientsisanissuethattheTrust
has particularly focused on; having twenty-seven 12-hour trolley
breachesduringtheyear(2018/19:2)isnotsatisfactory,andtheTrust
hastakensignificantstepstoaddressthisposition,includingafocus
onournewassessmentpathwaystosupportmoretimelyandeffective
care for patients.

The new model of care is not yet fully embedded, although
improvementshavebeenmade,somuchsothattheCQCrecognised
progressattheirinspectioninAugust2019andwereabletoupgrade
our 2018 CQC rating for UECC to ‘requires improvement’ from
‘inadequate’Clearlythereisstillsome worktobeundertaken,and
the Trust continues to strive to ensure that the services are rated
morepositively.TheTrusthasanimprovementplaninplaceandwill
continuetofurtherimprovethequalityandperformanceofUrgentand
Emergency services for patients.

TheTrust'sHospitalStandardisedMortalityRatio(HSMR)stoodat 104
atthestartof theyear, buthad deteriorated to 116.9 by the end of
January2020.Theissuehasreceivedsignificantattentionduringthe
yearfromtheBoardanditscommittees,withqualityimprovement
workundertakentounderstandthereasonsforthecontinuousrise;this
hasincludedassessmentofcodingpractices,externalreviews,andthe
appointmentoftheTrust'sfirstMedicalExaminer,andLearningfrom
DeathsSpecialistNurse.Workcontinuesinthisareaandisbeingledby
the Executive Medical Director.

TheTrust'sfinancialchallengeremainssignificantanddespitehaving
tackledanumberoffinancialissuesinpreviousyears,theTrustdidnot
deliveritsfinancialplanin2019/20.Thefinancialpositiondeteriorated
overthefinal quarteroftheyear,and ended the year with a deficit
of £4.9M against a break even plan. However, because the South
YorkshireandBassetlawIntegratedCareSystemremainedinaggregate
balance, theTrustqualifiedforadditional Financial RecoveryFund
(deficitreduction)monies.Asaresult,theTrustclosedtheyearwitha
surplus of £9K.




Theeffectiveandefficientuseofresourcesremainscriticalandcentral
toourplanningfor2020/21,andtherisktothefinancialsustainability
oftheTrustremains; we will need to manage thisonalongerterm
basis, beyond 2020/21.

WehavehadexcellentperformanceforourFriends&Familylnpatient
scoresallyear,andwehavealsoseenimprovementsinanumberof
otherareas,includinganincreaseinthepercentageoflookedafter
childrenwithassessmentsreportedwithin20days,potentialunder-
reportingofincidents,andnon-electivereadmissionswithin28days.
Improvedperformanceinanumberofareashasalsobeenachieved
asaresultoftheongoingpartnershipworkingacrossthe Borough
throughtheRotherhamIntegratedHealth&SocialCarePlacePlan,
whichisbringingpartnerstogetheracrosshealthandsocialcareto
improvethehealthandwellbeingofthepopulationweserve,delivering
more joined up integrated services across Rotherham.

WealsocontinuetodevelopandbuilduponourTrust5-yearstrategy,
and have developed a 5-year plan to drive forward delivery of our
vision.WecontinuetoimplementchangeacrosstheTrust,wesupport
initiativesacrosstheRotherhamPlaceandacrosstheSouthYorkshire
&Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (SYBICS). This programme of
transformationhasseenareconfigurationofourlntermediateCarebed
base,thefirstyearofoperationofournewAcuteSurgicalUnitandthe
fullimplementationofstreaminginourUrgentandEmergencyCare
Centre.Wehaveequallyambitiousplansfor2020/21whichwillseeus
continueourcollaborationwithpartnersacrosshealthandsocialcare
andwillincludetherelocationofourOphthalmologyservicestothe
RotherhamCommunityHealthCentreandimplementationofanew
model of care for respiratory patients.

Finally,COVID-19.Bythetimethat'lockdown’hadbeenimposedby
thegovernmentinlateMarch2020,theTrusthadalreadybeenmaking
planstocopewiththeexpectedsurgeincriticallyillpatients.Thespeed
atwhichtheTrustwasabletoimplementtherequired newways of
working,andourcolleaguesabilitytocopewithaquicklychanging
environment,wasinspiring. Andwhilstthepandemicbroughtwith
itarenewed appreciationforthe NHSingeneral,Imustsayahuge
thankyoutoourincrediblecolleaguesfortheirongoingdedicationin
providingsafeandeffectivecareforourpatients.Theirresponsehas
beenfantastic,andtheastonishingoutpouringofsupportfromthe
public, is well-deserved.

Aswemoveforwardintothenextphaseofthepandemic,wewilltake
withuslessonslearntfromthisunprecedentedperiodinthehistory
ofhealthcare,andapplyourknowledgetomakingourservicesmore
efficient,effectiveandsustainableforthepopulationofRotherhamand
beyond.




The key issues, opportunities and risks that
could affect the foundation trust in delivering
its objectives and / or its future success and

sustainability

Quality of Care

The Trust will continue to strive to deliver the highest quality of
compassionate, patient-centredandharm-freecareaspossible.We
willdosobyensuringthatappropriatelessonsarelearntfollowing
theTrust'sCQCinspectioninSeptember2018andAugust2019.There
isanopportunitytoimprovequalityofcareandincreasecolleague
engagementinpatientsafetybyensuringthatourqualitygovernance
framework is as robust as possible through the embedding and
continueddevelopmentoftheTrust'sSafe&SoundQualityFramework.
Doing this consistently will ensure the services provided are as
clinicallyeffectiveaspossible.Therewillalsobeproactiveengagement
in national initiatives such as the ‘Get It Right First Time' (GIRFT)
programme and Model Hospital.

TheTrustwillcontinuetofocusonprovidingaspositiveanexperience
foritspatients,relativesandcolleaguesaspossible, byembeddingthe
newpatientandpublicengagementstrategy.Furthermore, theTrust
willcontinuetotraincolleaguesinleadershipdevelopmentandquality
improvement,launchingaQualitylmprovementFaculty,whichinturn
willempowerandbetterenablethemtodrivefurtherimprovementsin
patientexperienceandoutcomes,andthedeliveryofhigh-qualitysafe
care.

TheTrustwillcontinuetofocusonimprovingitsHSMR*/SHMI®and
the learning from deaths by implementing a Medical Examiners’
Office,withmonthlyreportingonimprovementsmadeagainstthe
‘3Cs'(qualityofcare;casemixandcoding);byensuringthatthereare
regulartimetabledStructuredJudgementReviews;andbyensuringthat
anylearningiswidelydisseminatedthrougharegularSafe&Sound
Quality Bulletin.

A failure to deliver high-quality patient care could lead to poor
patientexperienceandavoidableharm,andafailuretodeliverclinical
sustainability;thisinturncouldeventuallyleadtofinancial penalties
and regulatory action.

Workforce
TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustrecognisesthathavingastable,
flexibleandhighlyskilledworkforce,withabroadrangeofskillsacross
thediffering professions,iskeytodeliveringourambitiontobean
outstandingTrustdeliveringexcellentcareathome,inourcommunity
andinhospital. Itfollowstherefore,thathavingtherightworkforce
with the right skills in the right place is one of the key risks to the
organisation delivering its objectives.

InkeepingwithmuchoftheNHS,theTrusthasanumberofvacancies
acrossarangeofdisciplinesparticularlymedicalandnursingroles.
Thisimpactsontheabilitytodeliverhighqualitycareandalsoimpacts
onthefinances of theTrust. The Trust has high temporary staffing
costs,bothbankandagency,andakey priorityforthecomingyear
istoreduce ourspendinginthisarea. We havealready committed
toworkingwithexternalpartners,suchasNHSProfessionals,tohelp
delivermorerobust, temporarystaffingsolutionsatanaffordablecost.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

WewillalsobeworkingwithotherpartnersinourlocallntegratedCare
Systemtoincreasethesupplyofstafftofillvacanciesonapermanent
basis.Thisincludesincreasingthenumberofnursingplacementsand
continuingtodevelopnewrolessuchastraineenursingassociatesand
advancedclinicalpractitioners.Wewillalsodevelopandexpandthe
use of apprenticeships in the organisation.

AnotherkeyworkforceriskfortheTrustrelatestoensuringthatwe
worktoimprovecolleagueexperienceattheTrust. Itisclearthatwe
haveacommittedandloyalworkforce,butitisalsoclearfromourstaff
surveyresultsthatthereareareaswherecolleagueexperiencecouldbe
better.Overthecomingyearwewillbefocusingonensuringthatthere
areimprovementsincolleagueexperienceasthereisstrongevidence
linkingpositivecolleagueexperiencetobetterpatientoutcomesand
we are determined to make improvements in this area.

Tosupportcolleaguesandimprove our people offer, the Trust has
listenedtocolleaguesduringtheyearandtakenintoconsiderationtheir
feedbackindevelopingaPeopleStrategy.ThePeopleStrategyoutlines
thekey prioritiesforthe nextthreeyears(2020-2023)and centres
around four themes:

Build  How we will build our workforce

Engage How we will engage with all our people

Lead Howwewilldevelopourleadershipcultureandnurturetalent
Learn Howwewillensuretherearelearningopportunitiesforall

Theaimistocreateaworkforcethatsupportsandsustainsthedelivery
ofhighqualitycareandservicescombinedwiththeambitiontobein
thetop20%ofNHSemployersnationallyforstaffexperience(by2023)
as measured by the National Staff Survey and our own local Pulse
surveys.

TheTrust'sPeopleStrategyhasbeendevelopedandwillbeapprovedby
the Board of Directors during quarter one 2020/21.

Finance

TheTrust’s financial plan for 2019/20 was to deliver a break-even
position.Therewereanumberoffinancialpressuresthatemergedlater
intheyearwhichmeantthattheTrustwouldnothaveachieveditsplan
withoutthesupportofadditionalnon-recurrentfunding.Thisfunding
isclassedasFinancialRecoveryFunds(deficitreductionfunding)which
isawardedtoTrustswhoareadversetotheirplan,althoughtheirwider
ICS is in aggregate financial balance.

ThisvaluealsoincludesdeliveringaCostimprovementPlanof£8.4M
against a target of £9.3M (91% delivery).

> HSMR: Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratios
6 SHMI: Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator



Inaddition,theTrustoriginallyagreedaninternally-fundedcapital
programmeof£5.4Mfor2019/20tosupportinvestmentinEstates,|T
infrastructureandmedicalequipment.Thisprogrammewasincreased
through the receipt of additional national funding for IT, medical
equipmentandCOVID-19coststoatotalcapitalprogrammeof£8.4M
for 2019/20.

Operational Delivery

Emergency Access
TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustisnolongertrackingthenational
standardof95%ofpatientsbeingadmitted,transferredordischarged
within4hoursoftheirarrivalattheUrgentandEmergencyCareCentre
(UECCQ).TheTrustistakingpartinayear-longfieldtestoftheproposed
newnationalstandardswhichtheTrustisreportingseparatelytoNHS
England. Assuch,informationaboutthefieldtestisavailablefrom
NHSEnglanddirectly.Regrettably,27 patientswaitedforlongerthan
12hoursfollowingadecisiontoadmitintothehospital,comparedto
2suchwaitsin2018/19. TheTrust was challengedinbeingable to
treatandadmitthesepatientswithinthenationalaccessstandard,
thenationalpicturewasonewhereperformancehasdeteriorated
significantly with patients waiting longer across acute hospitals.

Inaddition,asstatedpreviously,theUrgentandEmergencyservicewas
ratedas’Inadequate’bytheCQCinlastyear’sinspection.Significant
actionshavebeen,andcontinuetobe,takentoensureimprovements
are made and sustained toimprove the safety and quality of care
for our patients with the most recent CQCinspection showingan
improvement in rating to ‘Requires improvement.

The organisation’s journey of development this year has been to
continuetoembedeffectivewardroundsanddischargeplanningby
wardteamswiththedevelopmentandrolloutofestimateddischarge
dates.

Through2019/20therewillbeacontinuedfocusontheimportance
ofimproving flow through the medical wards and Acute Medical
Unittosupportthe UECC. Thetoolsusedwillbe strengthenedand
oversightoftheeffectiveuseofthesetoolswillassistinthisendeavour.
Thisincludescontinuedattentiononidentifyingplanneddischarges,
increasingtheproportionofmorningdischargesandstandardisingthe
number of discharges across all seven days of the week.

Inresponsetotheincreaseddemandsplacedonthehealthservice
over the winter period, the Trust took part in the development of
asystem-wideWinterPlan.Thisconsisted of detailed modelling of
theanticipateddemandthatwouldbeplacedupontheacuteand
communityservicesandtheactionsthatneededtobetakentomeet
thisdemand.Allpartnersacrosstheboroughwereengagedwiththe
planand contributedto keyactions.Thisresultedinanadditional,
flexible24to37bedsbeingopenedwithinthehospitalsiteaswellas
additionalbedsbeingprovidedbytheClinicalCommissioningGroup
(CCG)withinthenursinghomesector.TheTrust'selectivecareactivity
wasalsoreducedduringthebusiestperiodsforemergencyadmissions.
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TheTrustplacedsignificantfocusonthechallengesposedbywinter
andcolleaguesworkedcloselywithpartnerorganisations.However,
asdescribedabove,despitewinterplanning,thefailuretosufficiently
mitigateacutewinterpressures,contributedtotheunderperformance
representedbythelongwaitswithinourUrgentandEmergencyCare
Centre during quarter 4.

Theorganisationcontinuestoworkcloselywithhealthandsocialcare
partnersinRotherhamtoreduceavoidablehospitaladmissionsand
avoidunnecessarilyprolongedhospitalstaysthroughouttheyear.

During 2019/20 the 18-week Referral to Treatment performance
indicatorwasconsistentlyachievedforthefirst8 months,remaining
above the 92% national target. During the last quarter the Trust’s
performance,whilstremaininggoodnationally,dippedbelowthe92%
t086.4%inMarch2020duetothecancellationofelectiveactivityto
create capacity for COVID-19 patients.

Cancer Waiting Times

Timelymanagementofpatientsreferredontothecancerpathway
isanimportantfocusfortheTrust.The organisationhashad mixed
performanceagainstthecancerstandardsinpreviousyearsandis
continuingtodriveperformancein2weekwaitsandbreastscreening.

Across2019/20theorganisationmetthenationalstandardforpatients
being treated within 31 days of diagnosis as well as for the 62-day
screeningtarget.However,duringthelast 12monthstheTrustwas
non-compliantwiththe62-daystandardofppatientsbeingtreated
following urgent referral from their GP. This was due to a number
offactorswhichincludedasignificantincreaseinreferralsintothe
Trust coupled with workforce challengesinanumberofkeyareas.
Aswouldbeexpectedforsuchaprioritygroupofpatients,recovery
planswereputinplaceandenhancedoversightprovidedtoensurean
improvement in performance.

DuringtheyeartheTrustbeganmonitoringperformanceagainsta
28-daycancerdiagnosisstandard,duefornationalimplementationin
April2020.Introducingthemonitoringofthisstandard,whichrequires
patientstobegivenaconfirmeddiagnosiswithin28daysofreferral,
hashelpedidentifyopportunitiesforfastercancerpathwaysandensure
morepatientswithandwithoutcancerreceivethisconfirmeddiagnosis
much faster.

Diagnostic Waiting Times
Theperformanceaveragefor2019/20indicatesthat99.5%ofpatients
waitednolongerthansixweeksfortheirdiagnostictest.Thenational
standardrequiresthatnomorethan 1%ofpatientsshouldwaitlonger
thansixweeksandthereforethiswasapositiveachievementforthe
teamsinvolvedinensuringthetimelinessofthesetests.Performance
shouldbesustainedthroughout2020/21.Thisisanareaofstrengthin
the Trust.
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Other Performance Indicators
IntermsoftheDelayedTransfersofCareindicator,theTrustremained
wellwithinthenationalthresholdsandafteradifficultwinterperiod
finished the year reporting strong performance.

Communityservicescontinuedtoseeincreasedactivityacrossadult
andchildren’sservices.DistrictNursingprovidedcloseto6,000more
contactsthanthepreviousyear,whichreflectstheongoingdriveto
providecareclosertohomeandawayfromtheacutehospitalsetting.
Despite the pressures this increased demand brings, community
teamscontinuetorespondpositively,andinanumberofareashave
implemented new ways of working.

WithinChildren'sservices,theteamscontinuetoworkwithpartners
and on the implementation of the 0-19 service model, and the
developmentofnewrolestosupportthis.Asignificantamountoffocus
hasalsobeenputintotheLookedAfterChildrenserviceandworking
closelywithRotherhamMetropolitanBoroughCouncilondeveloping
newapproachesinordertodealwiththechangingdemandthatis
being experienced across the Borough.

Opportunitiesforthecomingyearwillbelinkedtoourimprovement
plansto'rightsize’'emergencyandelectivecareservicesprovidinga
platformfordevelopmentsinelectiveservicesimprovingproductivity
and patient flow. We plan to improve the waiting times for our
patientsandwillensureanyadditionalcapacitycreatedispartofthe
localRotherhamcommissioningplans.AsaTrustweareplanningto
improvecancerwaitsforpatientsandthenew,fastercancerdiagnostic
standardwillgivethepeopleofRotherhamanopportunitytobeseen,
diagnosed and treated within an improved time scale.

Looking ahead to 2020/21
AstheTrustmovesinto2020/21itmustrespondtothechallenges
ahead,includingthoseoutlinedabove.TheTrustwillneedtoensure
thatitfocusesitsresourcesintherightwaytorespondeffectivelyto
these challenges.

TheTrustdemonstratedgoodprogressinthequalityofserviceprovided
acrossitsUrgentandEmergencyCareServicesattheunannounced
inspectionbytheCQCinAugust2019.However,theTrustcontinues
tohaveanoverallratingofRequiresimprovement’:Wewelcomethe
feedbackfromtheCQCandotherpartnersasaninvaluablesource
ofinsightintotheservicesweofferandidentificationofareaswhere
improvementscanbemade.Deliveringtheseimprovementsand
improvingthequalityofcareweofferourpatientswillbeakeyfocusin
2020/21.

AnothercriticalareaoffocuswillbeimprovingtheTrust'smortality
indicator.TheTrust'smortalityscoreissignificantlyhigherthanthe
nationalaverage,andthisisanareawearedeterminedtoaddressin
2020/21.EnsuringthattheTrustfullyunderstandsthedriversofthis
performanceandmakesrapidandsustainedinterventionswhichdeliver
tangible improvements will be key in 2020/21.

TheTrust,aswithmanyotherproviders,continuestohavechallenges
indeliveringanumberofthenationalconstitutionalstandards.Asa
fieldtestsiteforthepotentialnewA&Estandards,theTrustnolonger
reports on the 4-hour target. However, the Trust has experienced
challengesineffectivelydeliveringitsemergencypathwaysandthis
hasledtoadverseimpactsonotherservicesinourhospital.Giventhe
increasedpressuresonsite,ourelectiveperformancehasdeteriorated
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ascapacityhasbeenconstrainedinordertomanageouremergency
patients and respond to the COVID-19 pandemic.In 2020/21 the
Trust will work to deliver more effective patient flow through our
organisationandimproveourperformanceagainstkeyoperational
standards, ensuring we deliver a better service to our patients.

Vitaltodeliveringthesekeyimprovementswillbeourcolleagues.They
arecriticaltoeverythingthatwedo.Ourrecentstaffsurveyresultswere
disappointing,andtheTrustiscommittedtodoingmoretoengageand
supportourcolleagues.Inlinewithourstrategy,ourstrategictheme
ofcolleaguesaimstodevelopengagedandaccountablecolleagues.
Centraltothiswillbethedevelopmentandimplementationofthe
Trust’s People Plan during 2020/21.This will shape our workforce
prioritiesandsupporttherecruitmentandretentionofasustainable
workforce able to meet current and future demands.

The Executive Directors, led by the ChiefExecutive of theTrust,are
focusingondeliveringthesemutuallysupportiveimprovements.lfwe
canengageourcolleaguesandleadershipteamsindeliveringmore
effectiveemergencypathways,thisshouldhaveapositiveimpacton
ourmortalityperformance whichwillinturnberecognisedthroughan
improved CQC rating.

Finally,theTrustcontinuestobeaproactivepartnerwithintheSouth
YorkshireandBassetlawIntegratedCareSystemandtheRotherham
IntegratedCarePartnership.TheTrustrecognisesthatmanyofthe
challengeswefacecannotbesolvedinisolationandourroleasan
acuteandcommunityproviderpresentsuswithauniqueopportunity
tomaketangiblechangestothequalityofcareweofferourpopulation
byworkingwithourpartnerorganisationswithinRotherhamandSouth
Yorkshire.

Preparation of Accounts and Going Concern

NHS foundation trusts are required to prepare their accounts in
accordancewiththerelevantaccountingrules,whicharesetoutinthe
InternationalFinancialReportingStandards(IFRSs)andInternational
AccountingStandards(IASs)asinterpretedbyDepartmentofHealth
Group Annual Reporting Manual (GAM).

Therequirementtoprepareaccountsonagoingconcernbasisisset
out in IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, which states:

‘Anentityshouldprepareitsfinancialstatementsonagoingconcern
basis, unless:

(a) The entity is being liquidated or has ceased trading; or

(b) The directors have no realistic alternative but to liquidate the
entityortoceasetrading,inwhichcircumstancestheentitymay;if
appropriate, prepareitsfinancialstatementsonabasisotherthan
going concern!

‘Whenpreparingfinancialstatements,directorsshouldassesswhether
therearesignificantdoubtsabouttheentity’sabilitytocontinueasa
going concern’

Inadditiontotheabove, theTrustisalso mindful of table 6.2 of the
GovernmentFinancialReportingManual(FReM),whichnotesthat:

‘...the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service
in the future, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision



for that service in published documents, is
normally sufficient evidence of going concern.”

TocomplywithlAS1managementmust,inpreparing
the annual statement of accounts, undertake an
assessmentoftheTrust’sabilitytocontinueasagoing
concern.lnmakingthisassessment,managementshould
takeintoaccountallinformationaboutthefuturethatis
available at the time the judgment is made.

Asaminimum, thisassessmentshould coveratleast
a 12-month period from the date of approval of the
accounts,althoughthisperiodwillneedtobeextended
where management is aware of events and related
businessrisksfurtherinthefuturethatmaycastdoubt
on the going concern assumption.

Aftermakingenquiries,theDirectorshaveareasonable
expectationthattheTrusthasadequateresourcesto
continueinoperationalexistencefortheforeseeable
future, subject to additional central funding being
providedbytheDepartmentofHealthandSocial Care
(DHSC)tohelpmanageworkingcapitalandmaintain
liquidity.Forthisreason,andasthereisnoindication
fromtheregulatorsthat theTrust will cease any part
ofitstradingactivities,theywillcontinuetoadoptthe
going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

However, theTrustrecognisesthechallengesahead
including the existence of a material uncertainty in
relation to the 2020/21 finances of the Trust, the

needtotakestepsregardingitsunderlyingdeficitand
to continue to work with partners and stakeholders
to improve sustainability. The Trust has a strategic
commitmenttoworkingwithpartnerstoachievethis.

On 2 April 2020, the Department of Health and
SocialCareandNHSEnglandandNHSImprovement
announced reforms to the NHS cash regime for the
2020/21financialyear.During2020/21existingDHSC
interimrevenueandcapitalloansasat31March2020
will be extinguished and replaced with the issue of
PublicDividendCapital (PDC)toallowtherepayment.
Theaffectedloanstotalling£67.459Mareclassifiedas
currentliabilitieswithinthesefinancialstatements.As
therepaymentoftheseloanswillbefundedthroughthe
issueofPDC,thisdoesnotpresentagoingconcernrisk
for the Trust.

Also, see note 1 of the financial statements and the
reportfromtheAuditCommitteedetailingthesignificant
issuesconsideredbytheCommitteeinrelationtothe
financialstatementsasrequiredbytheFoundationTrust
CodeofGovernance(provisionC.3.9)intheGovernance
and Organisational Structure section of this Annual
Report.

’IAS1PresentationofFinancial Statements(3),p.38GovernmentFinancialReporting
Manual 2019/20
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Performance Analysis

The purpose of the performance analysis is to provide a detailed
performance summary of how the organisation measures its
performance,amoredetailedintegrated performanceanalysisand
long-term trend analysis where appropriate.

Development and Performance of the Trust during the Year
[tisvitaltheTrusthasanappropriateframeworkinplacetooverseethe
progressagainstkeymilestonesanddefinedoutcomemeasures.ltis
alsoimportantthatthereistriangulationofperformanceacrossquality,
workforce,operationsandfinance,andthereareanumberofelements
in place to provide this.

OnesuchelementistheTrust'sIntegratedPerformanceReport(IPR).
ThelPRisprovidedonamonthlybasistotheBoardofDirectorsaswell
asspecificperformancereportsgoingtotherelevantcommitteesofthe
Board.ItisstructuredaroundtherequirementsofNHSImprovement’s
OversightFrameworktoprovideappropriatesupportinmonitoring
compliance with key standards and performance indicators.

ThelPRanditssupportingmonthlyreportsrelatingtoclinicalquality,
operationalperformance,workforceandfinance,providetheBoardof
DirectorswithaholisticviewoftheTrust'sperformance,explainingthe
linkagesbetweeneachofthedifferentpiecesofinformation.Tosupport
thelPR,theBoardalsouses'soft’performancemeasurementfeedback
suchasvisitstoservice areas, patientfeedbackand otherexternal
stakeholder views and reports. The IPR is reviewed

annually to reflect the requirements for each new financial year
and ensure thatany updated or‘local’ requirements are reflected
appropriately.

Each Division participates in an Executive Director-led monthly
performance review at which the local divisional integrated
performancereport,structuredaroundtheDivision’srelevant(hard
andsoft)outcomemeasures,isreviewed.Clinicalteamshavetimely
andrelevantinformationtoinformthem of progressagainst their
performanceobjectives,withfeedbackstepsinplacetoseethatdata
quality issues are addressed.

Inaddition, theTrusthasdevelopeditsowndata quality kite mark
whichensuresthatthelevelofassuranceforeachkeyqualityindicator
representedonthelPRisclear,withactionsbeingtakentoachieve
futurecomplianceandprovideassuranceacrossallindicators.The
regularreviewofkeyperformanceindicators(KPIs)describedabove
aswellasquarterlyreviewsofthecorporateriskregisterandBoard
AssuranceFrameworkatBoardcommitteesensuresadynamicand
responsive link between KPIs, risk and uncertainty.

Emergency Access
TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustwasafieldtestsiteforthenew
proposed A&E standards for 11 of the 12 months of 2019/20, and
assuchweareunabletoreportagainstourperformancewithinthe
UrgentandEmergencyCareCentre(UECC)formanyofthestandard
metrics, such as the 4-hour standard.

Implementingtheproposednewfieldteststandardshasinvolved
aprolongedperiodofintensivework.Thenewstandardsrequirea
differentapproachtomanagingpatientsinthe UECCinparticular,
astheyaredesignedinsuchawaythatitisexpectedthatanumber
of patients will spend longerin the urgent care department than
underthe4-hourstandard.Thisislikelytoleadtoamorecrowded
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department,withpatientspotentiallyrequiringadifferenttypeofcare
tothatofadepartmentoperatingundera4-hourtarget.Equally, it
hasrequiredustoredesignourlTsystemstosupportthedeliveryof
adifferentsetofstandards,andhasinvolvedanumberofadditional
datasubmissionsandengagementeventsfortheorganisation.Weare
inanexcellentpositiontotakeadvantageofour11monthsofpiloting
thesestandards,andtoensurewemakethemostofbeing’aheadof
the game!

Eventhoughwehavebeentestingthenewstandards,ouroperational
journey of development this year has continued, with a focus on
effective ward rounds and discharge planning by ward teams, as
well as key patient flow initiatives such as the’SAFER flow bundle’
and’Red2Green programme’These pieces of work continuetobe
supported by the Integrated Discharge Team with staff from the
TrustandRotherhamMetropolitanBoroughCouncil(RMBC)coming
togethertoformasinglepointofaccessforallcomplexdischarges.
Through2020/21therewillbeacontinuedfocusontheimportance
ofimproving flow through the organisation to support the UECC.
Thisincludescontinuedattentiononidentifyingplanneddischarges,
increasingtheproportionofmorningdischargesandstandardisingthe
number of discharges across all seven days of the week.

Inresponsetotheincreaseddemandsplacedonthehealthservice
overthewinterperiod,theTrustledthedevelopmentofasystem-wide
WinterPlan.Thisconsistedofdetailedmodellingoftheanticipated
demandthatwouldbeplacedupontheacuteandcommunityservices
and the actions that needed to be taken to meet this demand.
All partners across the Borough were engaged with the plan and
contributedtospecificactions.Thisresultedinanadditionalacuteand
communitycapacitybeingbroughtonstreamfromNovember2019,
withadditionalbedsbeingprovidedbytheClinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) within the nursing home sector. The Trust’s elective
careactivitywasreducedduringthebusiestperiodsforemergency
admissions in December 2019 and January 2020.

TheTrustplacedsignificantfocusonthechallengesposedbywinter
andcolleaguesworkedcloselywithpartnerorganisationsinparticular
toimprovethequalityandtimelinessoftransferofpatientsfromacute
settings once they were medically fit to do so.

However,asdescribedabove,despitethiswinterplanning,thefailure
tosufficientlymitigateacutewinterpressurescontributedtosomeof
thechallengesidentifiedabovesuchasthe2712-hourtrolleywaits
ourpatientsexperienced.TheTrustcontinuestoworkcloselywith
healthand social care partnersin Rotherhamtoreduceavoidable
hospitaladmissionsandavoidunnecessarilyprolongedhospitalstays
throughout the year.

18-Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times

During 2019/20 the 18-week Referral to Treatment performance
indicatorwasachievedforthefirst8 monthsoftheyear.However,
followingaperiodofgradualdecline(reflectiveofthatofthewhole
country),theTrustfailedthestandardinDecember2019continuing
throughtoMarch2020.Despitethis, theTrustremained oneofthe
strongest performers in the country against this standard during
2019/20, ranking in the top quartile for every month of the year.
Capacity pressurescontinuetobemonitoredandactionstakento
mitigaterisks,toensurethatpositive performancereturnsduring
2020/21.

AsmentionedabovetheTrustfailedthe 18-weektargetinDecember
2019and putin place a plan to recover the position in February/
March 2020, however this plan had to be put on hold due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Cancer Waiting Times

Timelymanagementofpatientsreferred ontoacancerpathwayis
animportantfocus fortheTrust. Across 2019/20the organisation
metthenationalstandardforpatientsbeingtreatedwithin31days
ofdiagnosis.However,theTrustwasnotcompliantwiththe62-day
standardofpatientsbeingtreatedfollowingurgentreferralfromtheir
GP for 3 of the 4 quarters of the year. This was due to a number of
factorswhichincludedasignificantincreaseinreferralsintotheTrust
coupled with workforce challengesina number of key areas, and
someprocessissues(whichhavenowbeenrectified). Aswould be
expectedforsuchaprioritygroupofpatients,recoveryplanswereput
inplaceandenhancedoversightprovidedtoensureanimprovement
inperformance.WhilsttheTrustwasreviewingandimprovingthis
performancefor2019/20,areturntocompliancewiththestandardsis
anticipated in 2020/21.

TheTrust’splantoreturntocompliancewiththecancertargetsduring
quarter42019/20wasontrackwithDecember2019performancethe
besttheTrusthadseenoverthe previousninemonthsandplansin
placetodeliversustainableperformanceduringquarter4.However,
once the adjusted activity linked to the COVID-19 pandemic was
implementedcancerperformanceacrossSouthYorkshirewasnolonger
deliverable within the targets.

From2020/21,theTrustwillhaveanadditionalCancerWaitingTimes
standardtodeliver-theFasterDiagnosisStandard,wherebypatients
arerequiredtohavebeengivenaconfirmeddiagnosisofcancerwithin
28daysofreferral. Wehaveworkedhardduringtheyeartoredesign
relevantprocessesandensureweareinapositiveplacetodeliveron
thisnewrequirement,butthereisstillfurtherworktodoinoneortwo
morechallengedspecialties,toensureallpatientsreceivethesame
timely and responsive level of care from the Trust.

Diagnostic Waiting Times
TheTrust'sperformanceagainstthisstandarddiddeteriorateduring
March2020asaresultofthe cancellation ofall but urgentelective
proceduresinordertocreatethecapacityrequiredtodealwiththe
COVID-19 pandemic.

However,theTrust'sperformanceaveragefor2019/20indicatesthat
99.5%of patientswaitednolongerthansixweeksfortheirdiagnostic
test.Thenationalstandardrequiresthatnomorethan1%ofpatients
shouldwaitlongerthansixweeksandthereforethiswasapositive
achievementfortheteamsinvolvedinensuringthetimelinessofthese
tests between April 2019 and February 2020.

Other Performance Indicators
IntermsoftheDelayedTransfersofCareindicator,theTrustremained
within the national thresholds for 4 months of the year, seeing a
deteriorationinperformancethroughwinter,toahighpercentagerate
of5.63%inFebruary2020.ThisreducedconsiderablyinMarch2020
toamonthlyaverageof2.74%,andapositiveimpactoftheCOVID-19
pandemicwasasystem-wideapproachtoreducingDelayedTransfers
of Care which meant that by the first week in April there were no
reportable Delayed Transfers of Care within the Trust.
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Communityservicescontinuedtoseeincreasedactivityacrossadult
andchildren’sservices.DistrictNursingprovidedcloseto6,000more
contactsthanthepreviousyear,whichreflectstheongoingdriveto
providecareclosertohomeandawayfromtheacutehospitalsetting.

Despite the pressures thisincreased demand brings, community
teamscontinuedtorespondpositively,andinanumberofareashave
continuedtoimplementnewwaysofworking.Withinadultservices,
thishasbeenthroughcontinuingtheseparationoftheplanned,routine
activityfromtheurgentresponsedemand.Aspartofthisdevelopment,
theCareCoordinationCentreandintegratedRapidResponseteams
havebeenco-locatedawayfromthemainacutesitetoprovideamore
responsive and integrated approach.

Within children’sservices, theteamsare continuing the work with
partnersontheimplementationoftheagreed0-19servicemodel,and
thedevelopmentofnewrolestosupportthis.Asignificantamount
of focus has also been putinto the Looked After Children service
andworking closelywithRMBConimplementingtheagreed new
approachesinordertodealwiththechangingdemandthatisbeing
experienced across the Borough.

Mortality performance continued to be an area of focus during
2019/20.Unfortunately,theTrustsawagradualdeteriorationinboth
itsHSMRBandSHMIPthroughouttheyear.Althoughthisisconsidered
tobeduetomanyfactors,makingimprovementsaroundallofthe
3Cs'(qualityofcare;casemixandcoding)wasgivenparticularfocus.
TheMedicalDirectorfacilitatedanextensiveindependentmortality
reviewof150respiratoryandheartfailuredeaths,withthelearning
widelydisseminatedacrosstheTrustandtotheBoardof Directors.

Harmfreecareperformanceremainedgoodduringtheyearwiththe
Trust'sannual percentageachievementbeing93.80%againstthe
targetof95%andachieving over94%forsixmonthsoftheyear.In
relationtoHospital Acquiredinfections,therewasonecaseof MRSA
and35casesofClostridiumdifficilerecordedduringtheyearagainsta
target of less than 11.

Financial Performance
TheTrustachievedits2019/20planofdeliveringabreak-evenposition
anddelivered £8.4M (91%) of its Cost Improvement Plan of £9.3M
butonlyfollowingadditionalnon-recurrentFinancialRecoveryFund
monies at year-end.

8Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR). HSMR providesarolling 12-month
pictureofmortalitydataforatimeperiodending6monthspreviouslyatthetimeof
publishing.

StandardisedHospitalMortalitylndex(SHMI).SHMIprovidesarolling 12-monthpicture
of mortality dataforatime periodending 12monthspreviouslyinthe case of SHMI.
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Social, Community and Anti-Bribery Issues
InFebruary2020,theTrustwasawarded EmployeroftheYearfrom
RNN Group, whichownsand operates Rotherham Collegeattheir
ApprenticeshipAwardsceremony.TheTrusthasaround54apprentices
withRNNGroup,whichisagroupingofDearneValleyandRotherham
Colleges that predominantly offers our healthcare courses.

Rotherham’s Allied Health Professionals (AHPs) were chosen as
‘Northern Flagbearers’ for 2019’s National AHPs Day back in
October2019.InourTrustwehavenineofthefourteenAHPcareers
representedanditwasanopportunityforthevariousteamshereto
championandcelebratetheenormouscontributionAHPsmaketothe
NHS every single day.

AlsoinOctober2019,fouroftheTrust'steamswereshortlistedinthe
prestigiousHSJAnnual Awards.Theawardssetoutto’producearoll
callofthebestorganisations,teamsandpeopleintheNHSandthe
widerhealthsector’Ourteamswerenominatedincategoriesincluding:
AcuteorSpecialistServiceRedesignlnitiative;PatientSafety Award;
WorkforcelnitiativeoftheYearAward;andConnectingServicesand
Information Award.

The Trust’s Chief Executive and Director of Finance are jointly
responsible for ensuring adherence to the NHS Counter Fraud
Authority(NHSCFA)Anti-CrimeStrategyforcounteringfraud,bribery
andcorruption.TheNHSCFAisresponsibleforensuringthequality
of measures to counter fraud, bribery and corruption within NHS
FoundationTrusts.TheTrustisobligedtosafeguardNHSfundsand
resourcesthroughcompliancewith23standardsforcounteringfraud,
bribery and corruption.

TheTrusthasanominated Counter Fraud Specialist (CFS) in place
providedby360Assurance.TheCFSisresponsibleforcarryingouta
rangeofactivitiesincompliancewiththeabovestandardswhichare
overseenbytheDirectorofFinanceandtheAuditCommittee. TheCFS
undertakesfraud,briberyandcorruptionriskassessmentsthroughout
theyearwhichareusedtoinformtheannualprogrammeofactivities.

Duringtheyear,counterfraudactivityfocusedonactivitiestoensure
compliancewithNHSCFAstandardsandtoaddressareasofheightened
riskincludingcyber-crime;staffsecondaryworking;bankandagency
staff;mandatefraud;declarationsofinterestsandoverseasvisitors.

TheTrust has a Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy whichiis fully
supportedandendorsedbytheTrust.ThepolicyoutlinestheTrust’s
zerotoleranceapproachtofraud,briberyandcorruptionandsendsa
clearmessagethatallavailablesanctionswillbepursuedinrespect
ofthosecaughtcommittingoffencesagainsttheTrust.Clearreporting
proceduresareincludedwithinthepolicyandthepolicyissignposted
to staff within all training delivered by the CFS.

Where fraud is identified or reported it is formally investigated in
accordancewiththeTrust'sFraud,BriberyandCorruptionpolicy.During
2019/20, 5referrals of suspectedfraud, briberyorcorruptionwere
madetotheCFS,demonstratingagoodawarenessandunderstanding
of the Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy.

TheRotherhamHospitalandCommunityCharity(‘theCharity’)aimsto
raisemoneytofundresources,equipmentandprojectswhichenhance
theexperiencethatpatients,theirfamiliesandcarersreceivefromthe
Trust, in our community and at Rotherham Hospital.



The Charity continued to work with fundraisers, volunteers, local
business,schoolsandorganisationstoboostfundsandraiseawareness
about the work it does. Corporate support from the Rotherham
communityincludedgiftsanddonationsfromRotherham United
Football Cluband Rotherham United Community SportsTrust, St
Bernard’sCatholicHighSchool,Asda, Tesco,theHallamFMMission
ChristmasAppeal,theRotherhamLionsClub,BusyBeesNursery,Co-Op
Swinton,KelfordSchoolandtheRawmarshandDistrictMotorcycle
Club.

TheTrust'svolunteerscontinuedtosupporttheCharityduring2019/20,
dedicatingtheirfundraisingtotheCharity’sDrTedchildren’'sappeal.
Theirregularfundraisingincludedbook,Christmascardandbakesales
at Rotherham Hospital.

TrustcolleagueswereaninvaluablesupporttotheCharityonceagain.

Their activities included:
FundraisersfromtheTrust'sAntenatalandNewbornScreeningTeam
atGreenoaks'rockingtheiroddsocks'on21March2019tomark
WorldDownSyndromeDay.Theteaminvitedparents,theirfamilies
andcolleaguestoshowofftheirfunkyfootweartoraiseawareness
about Down Syndrome. They raised £620.
NHS Big Tea parties were held in the Rooftop Restaurant at
RotherhamHospitalandOakwoodCommunityUnittocelebrate
the71stbirthdayoftheNHS.Colleagues,includingthe Unison
RotherhamHealthBranchteam,bakedcakesandboughtraffle
tickets. Combined with eventsin the community, NHS Big Tea
parties raised Rotherham'’s events raised £573.
Abake salewas hosted by colleaguesin Maternity Services, to
markBabyLossAwarenessWeek,toraiseawarenessandsupport
available for families. They raised £704.
PorterBobLumbyentertainedpatientsandcolleaguesalikeduring
hisannualChristmasfancydresswalk-roundthehospital.Heraised

SuccessfuleventsalsoincludedtheHospital OpenDayon30November
2019,whichincludedahostofactivities,suchasagiantOperation
game, raffle and arts and crafts, to raise £129 for Dr Ted.

InDecember2019,theCharityChristmasFairandlightsswitch-onwas
heldinthemainentranceofRotherhamHospital.YoungstersfromBusy
BeesNurseryandStBernard’sCatholicHighSchoolsangcarolsand
playersfromRotherhamUnitedFootballClubswitchedonthehospital’s
Christmas tree lights. Santa and DrTed also made an appearance
helping to raise £1,178.

TheCharitysawawealthofsupportfrombusinessesandorganisations
in Rotherham in 2019/2020. This included tenants at Parkgate
ShoppingwhosupportedtheannualOneGreatDayfundraisingevent,
raising £657 for Dr Ted.

Louise Whitworth and Pat Doherty, colleagues at Santander’s
Rotherhambranch,hostedaquiznightandauctioninFebruary2019at
RotherhamTownCricketClub.Thefundsraisedwerematchedfunded
by Santanderandtotalled £3,225forthe charity’s Purple Butterfly
Appeal.

HospitalityandTourismstudentsfromtheUniversityCentreRotherham
hostedaladies’'NightatTheWharncliffe Restaurant, raising £335.

ResidentsatBakersFieldCourtrananEasterraffle, raising£1,001and
morethan70membersoftheRawmarshandDistrictMotorcycleClub
visitedtheChildren’sWardatRotherhamHospitalonEasterSunday
2019 to deliver a £400 cheque and chocolate treats.

TheformerMayorofRotherham,ClIrAlanBuckley,hostedaMayor’s
Ballatthe Carlton Park Hotel to raise funds for the Mayor’s Charity
Appeal.The event raised £9,000 for Dr Ted. The Charity hosted a

£500 for the Special Care Baby Unit’s Neonatal Outreach Team.HalloweenSpooktaculareventwithUnisonRotherhamHealthand

Tesco Maltby, raising £256.
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Property solutions provider Fortem launched its annual Trainee
Challengeonceagainwiththecompany’sNorthernteamchoosing
toundertakeaprojecttohelptransformtheSpecialCareBabyUnit
atRotherhamHospital. Theprojectinvolvedcreatingapurpose-built
storagefacilityandanewbreastfeedingroom.Theteamalsoraisedan
additional £3,500 to fund the added extras to revamp the room.

TheCharityfundedahostofresourcesandequipmentduring2019/20,

including:

+ Anechocardiographyheartscannerandvideo-linkingequipmentfor
Family Health worth £64,321.

-« £16,800fundingforVisualite Skylightsforthe Special Care Baby
Unit and the Delivery Suite.

« £2,771foradjustableheightchairsandTVsforthenewBoneHealth
Falls and Fracture Liaison Service.

« £2,053tofundasupply of activity boxes to aid the recovery of
dementiaandstrokepatients.Theboxescontaingamesandsensory
activities to enable patients to socialise and engage with the
colleagues caring for them.

+ £3,9071tofundtheredecorationoftheBreastCancerHolisticNeeds
AssessmentRoominGeneralSurgery.Theroomprovidesaprivate,
comfortingspaceforwomenduringtheirbreastcancerjourney.

« Morethan £10,000 to fund artwork by artist Lucy Strutt for the
Special Care Baby Unit, UECC and Children’s Outpatients.

— a—-—q_———a__—-\_,.—l.—_l—.-q_:-—n_,:_-_g#.,
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Human rights and equality reporting

Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES), Workforce Disability
Equality Standard (WDES), Gender Pay Gap (GPG) reporting data,
PublicSectorEquality Duty (PSED) data, nationalstaff surveydata,
datafromNHSjobsandcensusdataallprovideassuranceinthisarea.
TheorganisationpublisheditsfirstreportunderthenewWorkforce
Disability Equality Standard (WDES) in August 2019.

During2019/20,theTrusthasseenimprovementsinWRES metrics
alongsideimprovementsinsomeoftheEqualityandDiversitytheme
data in the national staff survey.

During2019/20,theTrusthasbeenrequiredtoreportonitsgenderpay
gapasat31March2019.ThisreportshowedanincreaseintheTrust’s
genderpaygap.Workisbeingundertakentoanalysethereasonsfor
this increase.

AlongsideWRESandWDES, theTrustcontinuestousetheEquality
Delivery System (EDS2) toassistin discussions withlocal partners
includinglocalpopulationsandreviewandimproveperformancefor
peoplewithcharacteristicsprotectedbytheEqualityAct2010.Byusing
theEDS2,theGPG,theWDESandtheWRES,theTrustisabletodeliver

onthePublicSectorEqualityDuty.Duringthefinalquarterof2019/20, - N AR S
theTrustcarriedoutareviewofitsperformanceagainstEDS2,which :
willbeusedtoinformthesetting of revised equality objectivesfor : puBlic (IVING
2020/21. rOOM IN A BOX
AllrecruitmentcampaignsaremanagedinlinewiththeTrust’spolicy, i
thispolicyhasbeenimpactassessed andidentified noimmediate = To oVE
issues.TheTrustisaLevel2DisabilityConfidentEmployerandoperates EArH OTHEE

a guaranteed interview scheme for disabled applicants.

Equalityanddiversity trainingis mandatoryforall colleaguesand
coversallprotectedgroups.Duringthelastthreefinancialyears,the
TrusthastrainedanumberofstafftoactasMentalHealthChampions,
whoareabletoprovidesupportandsignpostingtocolleagueswho
areexperiencingmentalill-healthandwhoworktoreducethestigma
around mental illness by encouraging open conversations.

In October 2018, the Trust launched a new Employee Assistance
Programme(EAP),whichprovidesconfidentialsupportbyqualified
counsellors 24 hours a day to colleagues.

Duringthepreviousfinancialyear(2018/19)theTrustrelaunchedits
DiversityandinclusionGroup,witharefreshedmembershipandrevised
TermsofReference.TheGroupreportsintotheTrust'sOperational
WorkforceGroup(OWG)andhasstronglinkswiththeYorkshireand
the Humber Equality and Diversity Leads Network.

During2019/20,theTrusthassupportedthedevelopmentofBAME',
DisabilityandLGBT+""colleaguenetworks.TheTrusthasalsostarted
totrainBAMErepresentativestositoninterviewpanelsforseniorroles
andcommencedplanningfortheimplementationof NHSRainbow
Badges,whichwillincludetheprovisionof LGBT+awarenesstraining
for staff.

19BAME: Black, Asian and minority ethnic
""LGBT+: Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender/transsexual and ‘plus’ which represents other sexual identities
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Modern Slavery Act
Thisstatementismadepursuanttosection54oftheModernSlavery
Act2015andsetsoutthestepsthatTheRotherhamNHSFoundation
Trusthastaken,andiscontinuingtotake,tomakesurethatmodern
slaveryorhumantraffickingisnottakingplacewithinourbusinessor
supply chain.

Modernslaveryencompassesslavery,servitude,humantrafficking
andforcedlabour,includingsexualorcriminalexploitation.TheTrust
hasazerotoleranceapproachtoanyformofmodernslavery.Weare
committedtoactingethicallyandwithintegrityandtransparencyinall
businessdealingsandtoputtingeffectivesystemsandcontrolsinplace
tosafeguardagainstanyformofmodernslaverytakingplacewithin
the business or our supply chain.

We operate a number of internal policies to ensure that we are
conductingbusinessinanethicaland transparentmanner.These
includeourpolicieson:recruitment,equalopportunities,safeguarding,
whistleblowing and our Standards of Business Conduct.

TheTrustisawareofitsresponsibilitiestowardspatients,serviceusers,
employeesandthelocalcommunityandexpectsallsupplierstothe
Trusttoadheretothesameethical principles.Wearecommittedto
ensuringthatthereisnomodernslaveryorhumantraffickinginour
supply chains orin any part of our business. Our internal policies
replicateourcommitmenttoactingethicallyandwithintegrityinallour
business relationships.

TheTrust’sprocurementprocesshasbeenreviewedtoensurethat
humantraffickingandmodernslaveryissuesareconsideredatanearly
stage, requiringself-certificationfrompotentialsuppliersthattheir
supply chains comply with the law.

Weprocuremanygoodsandservicesthroughframeworksendorsed
bytheCabinetOfficcandDepartmentofHealth&SocialCare,under
whichsupplierssuchasCrownCommercialServicesandNHSSupply
Chain adhere to a code of conduct on forced labour.

Weoperateprofessionalpracticesrelatingtoprocurementandsupply,

includingasustainableprocurementpolicywhichincludesreferenceto

theModernSlaveryActandprocurementstaffattendregulartraining

on changes to procurement legislation.

Additionally, we also:

+ Ensurethatoursuppliersarecarefullyselectedthroughourrobust
supplier selection criteria/processes

« Require that the main contractor provides details of its sub-
contractor(s) to enable the Trust to check their credentials.

« Randomlyrequestthatthemaincontractorprovidedetailsofits
supply chain, or compliance to the Modern Slavery Act

+ Ensureinvitationtotenderdocumentscontainaclauseonhuman
rightsissuesandclausesgivingtheTrusttherighttoterminatea
contract for failure to comply with relevant labour laws

Whenprocuringgoodsandservices,weadditionallyapplyNHSTerms
andConditions(fornon-clinicalprocurement)andtheNHSStandard
Contract(forclinicalprocurement).Bothrequiresupplierstocomply
with relevant legislation.

Overseas operations
The Trust does not have any overseas operations.

Any important events since the end of the financial year
affecting the Foundation Trust
On2April2020,theDepartmentofHealthandSocialCare(DHSC)and
NHSEnglandandNHSImprovementannouncedreformstotheNHS
cashregimeforthe2020/21financialyear.During2020/21existing
DHSCinterimrevenueandcapitalloansasat31March2020willbe
extinguishedandreplacedwiththeissueofPublicDividendCapital
(PDQ) to allow the repayment. Given this relates to liabilities that
existedat31March2020,DHSChasupdateditsGroup Accounting
Manual to advise this is considered an adjusting event after the
reporting period for providers.

Outstandinginterimloanstotalling£67.459Masat31March2020in
thesefinancialstatementshavebeenclassifiedascurrentastheywill
be repayable within 12 months.
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Progress against the

Sustainable Development Plan

Introduction
AsanNHSorganisation,andasaspenderofpublicfunds,theTrust
hasan obligation toworkin away that has a positive effect on the
communitiesitserves.Sustainabilitymeansspendingpublicnoneywell,
usingnaturalresourcessmartlyandefficiently,andbuildinghealthy,
resilientcommunities.Bymakingthemostofsocial,environmentaland
economicassetsitispossibletoimprovehealthbothintheimmediate
andlongtermand eveninthe context of the rising cost of natural
resources.Demonstratingthatconsiderationisgiventothesocialand
environmentalimpactsensuresthatthelegalrequirementsinthePublic
Services (Social Value) Act (2012) are met.

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustiscommittedtodemonstrating
leadership in sustainability and has produced a Sustainable
DevelopmentManagementPlan(SDMP)inordertosetouttheroute
todeliveringasustainablehealthcaresystemthatworkswithinthe
availableenvironmental,financialandsocialresources, protecting
and improving health now and for future generations.The SDMP
outlinestheTrust'svisionandprioritiesforsustainabledevelopment,
andensuresthatitmeetsallapplicablelegislativerequirementswhilst
embeddingtheprinciplesofsustainabledevelopmentforthebenefitof
colleagues, patients and the local community in Rotherham.

The SDMP will embed opportunities to:
Reduceenvironmentalimpactandassociatedcarbonemissionsand
so benefit from a healthier environment
Establishlocallevelpartnershipsandcollaborationinordertohelp
thelocalcommunityflourishandtoimprovetheresilienceofservices
andthebuiltenvironmentinresponsetosevereenvironmentaland
climatic changes
Embedsustainablemodelsofcareandsupportthelocalcommunity
tobewellconnected, healthy,resilient,independentandmanage
their lives in a positive way

ﬂ
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Policies
Inordertoembedsustainabilitywithinthebusinessitisimportantto
explainwheresustainabilityfeatureswithintheTrust'sprocessand
procedures.

Oneofthewaysinwhichanorganisationcanembedsustainability
isthroughtheuseofanSDMP.The Board of Directorsapprovedthe
Trust’s SDMP in 2017 so the plans fora sustainable future are now
well known within the organisation and are clearly laid out. One
of the ways in which the impact of the organisation on corporate
socialresponsibilityismeasuredisthroughtheuseoftheSustainable
DevelopmentAssessmentTool (SDAT).ThisisatoolwhichtheTrust
continuestoworkthroughand update. Asan organisation which
acknowledgesitsresponsibilitytowardscreatingasustainablefuture,
the running of awareness campaigns promoting the benefits of
sustainability to colleagues aids in the achievement of this goal.

Climatechangebringsnewchallengestothebusinessbothindirect
effectstothehealthcareestates,butalsotopatienthealth.Examples
ofrecentyearsincludetheeffectsofheatwaves,extremetemperatures
andprolongedperiodsofcold,floods,droughtsetc.Theorganisation
hasidentified the needforthe developmentofaBoard-approved
planforfutureclimatechangerisksaffectingourarea.Thesocialand
environmental impacts for the Trust have not been assessed.

Partnerships
TheNHSpolicyframeworkalreadysetsthesceneforcommissioners
and providerstooperateinasustainable manner.Cruciallyforthe
organisationasaprovider,evidenceofthiscommitmentwillneed
tobeprovidedinpartthroughcontractingmechanisms.Nostrategic
partnerships are currently established.

Performance

Sincethe 2007 baselineyear,the NHS has undergoneasignificant
restructuringprocessandonewhichisstillongoing.Therefore,inorder
toprovidesomeorganisationalcontext, thefollowingtablemayhelp
explainhowboththeorganisationanditsperformanceonsustainability
has changed over time




Use (kWh) 40,577,691 37,312,553 36,277,907 36,483,275 39,825,892
Gas
tCOe 8,492 6,853 6,707 6,707 7,325
Use (kWh) 0 194,400 0 590,000 0
Oil
tCO,e 0 618 0 1,753 0
Use (kWh) 0 0 0 0 0
Coal
tCO,e 0 0 0 0 0
Use (kwWh) 423,606 708,498 778,945 720,732 657,995
Electricity
tCOe 212 354 284 221 190
Green Use (kWh) 1,037,104 2,306,501 4,412,514 3,486,692 3,183,616
Electricity tCO,e 378 841 1609 1,071 922
Total Energy CO,e 9,024 8,570 8,561 10,336 8,437
Total Energy Spend £1,073,928 £1,087,629 £1,492,854 £1,537,401 £1,667,330

Every year our energy provider strives to improve the split of fuel
sourcesusedtogenerateourelectricityinordertolessenourimpact
upon the environment. At present our energy mix is:

+ 5.2% coal

+ 10.84% gas

+ 72.07% nuclear

+ 11.73% renewable

+ 0.16% other

Theamountofgasandelectricity thatisconsumedat Rotherham
HospitalistotallydependentupontheperformanceofitsCombined
Heatand Power plant (CHP).Ifthe CHP achievesits target ofa90%
availability then grid electricity willreduce pro-rataand the waste
heatwillbeutilisedtosupplementtheheatingandhotwatersystems,
resulting in less gas being bought in from the supplier.

The CHP engine has been affected by ongoing technical issues
duringthepast12monthsresultinginlessgenerationthanwould
beexpected.These problemshaverecentlybeenrectifiedanditis
anticipated thatthe engine will deliver optimal generation going
forward,however,thedowntimestillhadanadverseeffectuponthe
financesoftheTrustasitresultedinmoreelectricitybeingpurchased
fromthesupplygrid,aswellasmoregastoprovideheatingandhot
water from the site boilers.

TheCHPwouldnormallygenerateapproximately65%ofthehospital
base load electricity and supplement the heating and hot water
infrastructure via the waste heat that the CHP engine produces.

Over the past four years there has been little capital expenditure
available to improve the energy performance on site and so the
decisionhasbeentakentoworkwithathirdpartyprovidertoidentify
andimplementenergysavingsolutionsunderanEnergyPerformance
Contract (EPC). A partner has been selected and employed to

implement this EPC, this contract was signed in December 2019.

Theschemeisbeingthermallydrivenresultinginthereplacementof
theCHP sevenLowTemperatureHotWaterBoilers,twosteamraising
boilers and a raft of other measures including a chilled waterring
main,thereplacementofover7,000lightfittingswithamoreenergy
efficientoption(incorporatingsmartcontrolsanddaylightdimming)
and improved building heating controls.

4
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Alltheprojectsidentifiedwillbefundedbytheenergysavingsmade
and these savings will be guaranteed.

TheTrusthasspent£1,667,330onenergyin2019,whichis£129,929
more than last year, an increase of 7.8%

Travel
Theorganisationrecognisesthatcolleagueandvisitortravelimpact
greatlyuponthelocalairquality.Thisisanareainwhich theTrustis
activelyworkingtoreducevehicleemissions.Airpollutionandaccidents
are a major cause of health issues in the locality, whether that is
throughrespiratoryproblemsorattendanceatourUECC.Itistheaim
oftheTrusttoreducethenumberofcarsonsiteandtheamountof
colleaguetravel.Businessandleasecarmileageinformationiscollected
onamonthlybasisandtheresultingcarbonemissionscalculated.
However,overtimeithasproveddifficulttoacquirethenecessarydata
andthishasledtoacertainamountofinformationbeingunavailable
(see table below).

Performance
AGreenTravelPlanhasbeendevelopedandtheTrustiscommittedto
encouragingactiveandlowcarbontravelinordertoreducevehicle
carbon emissions, reduce the demand for car parking spaces and
promotehealthandwell-being.Theorganisationhasalongstanding
relationship with local bus operators, RMBC and South Yorkshire
PassengerTransportExecutive(SYPTE)tomaintainandimproveaccess
toRotherhamHospitalbybus.Publictransportincentiveschemes
arepopularwithcolleaguesandareaimedatencouragingbususe
ratherthancaruse.CycletoWorkschemesandcarshareinitiatives
arealreadyin place, whilstotherinitiatives such asthe DrBike free
cyclemaintenanceandhealthcheckhaveprovedverypopularwith
colleagues.

201516 | 2016717 | 201718 | 201819 | 2019720

miles 894,015 825,198 732,937 631,575 741,519
Business travel
tCOze 265 246 209 169.45 209
miles 403,186 423,531 No data No data No data
Fleet travel . . .
tCO.e 104 108 available available available
: miles Data not Data not Data not No data No data
Patient travel . . .
tCOe collected collected available available available
miles 263,356 370,552 483,618 449,484 489,962
Staff travel
tCOze 68 95 124 115 132

N.B. It is no longer possible to obtain Fleet travel and Patient Transport data
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Waste Disposal Tonnages & Emissions

201516 | 201677 | 201708 | 201819 | 2019720

(tonnes) 216 187.00
Recycling
tCO,e 432 4,07
(tonnes) 573 642.00
Other recovery
tCOe 11.46 14.74
(tonnes) 63 61.00
High Temp disposal
tCOe 441 427
(tonnes) 0.00 0.00
Landfill
tCO.e 0.00 0.00
Total Waste (tonnes) 852.00 890.00
% Recycled or Re-used 25% 21%
Total Waste tCO,e 20.19 23.08

N.B.ThehightemptCO2ehaschangedfrompreviousyearsastheTrustwasusingthebestknownavailablecalculationforthis,
howeverguidancewasprovidedbythewastedisposalcompanyofarevisedcalculation.Thishasnowbeenusedforthetable

and backdated to offer a true comparison year on year.

Performance
Inlinewithlegislativerequirements,noneofthewasteproducedby
theTrustissenttolandfillfordisposal.Otherrecoverytonnagehas
increasedby14.25tonnesduetoimprovedsegregationfrom2018/19,
andwithinthiscalculation,theoffensivewastestreamhasincreasedby
1.7% (3.75 tonnes) just below the target of 2%.

Itwasenvisagedthatduetoachangeofprocesswithinthesite,the
orange bag waste would increase by 8% on 2018/19 figures, the
increase seen was actually 7% and in the main this was due to the
increase in patient throughput.

Generalwaste has continued toreduceannually duetoincreased
recyclingwithintheTrust.In2019/20thedecreasewas0.5%meaning
thatthekeyperformanceindicatorofa1%reductionwasthereforenot
met.

197.00 210.03 181.87
4.29 4.57 3.88
700.35 699.83 714.08
16.08 16.06 15.25
67.68 69.08 67.71
4.74 4.84 4.74
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
970.45 978.94 963.66
20% 21.5% 19.0%
25.11 2547 23.87

Commentary
Plasticrecyclingcontinuestoworkwellandtherecyclingtonnages
havebeenmaintainedcomparedto2018/19figuresat1.00tonneper
month produced.

PlasticbottlecrushingmachinescontinuetoworkwellwithintheTrust.
Toextendthis,workisbeingundertakentolookatthefeasibilityofa
newcrushertobepurchasedtocrushthebottleswithinthebinsinthe
waste area, allowing for increased recycling.

TheTrustcontinuestoreviewwaysofreducingwasteandincreasing
recyclingwithimprovedsegregation,withtrialscomingduring2020/21
for the recycling of single use instruments in Theatres.

InlinewithGDPRregulations,shreddingonsitecommencedinearly
2019,toensuretheTrustisfullycompliant.Thiswillresultinasaving
oncarbonfootprintandreducedownthestoragetimeforconfidential
waste within the Trust’s waste area.

__.J,rr;;rflmnm

12 General Data Protection Regulation
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Finite resource use — Water

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19** 2019/20*

Use (m?3) 97,450 90,224 104,822 101,411 96,186
Water
tCO,e 34 31 36 35 33
Disposal(m?3) 77,966 92,085 94,340 99,864 100,616
Sewage
tCO,e 55 65 67 71 71

*NB up to end of December 2019, figures extrapolated for full year to March 2020

**NB Actual figures following final accounts

Performance
Duetoanincreasedflushingregimetocombattheriskoflegionella
andachievecompliancetherehasbeenanoticeableimpactonthe
amountofwaterbeingconsumedonsite.However,duetoincreased
consumptionbytenantsthenetconsumptionattributabletotheTrust
has actually decreased significantly from the previous year.

Modelled Carbon Footprint
Thedatasourcefortheinformationprovidedintheprevioussections
ofthissustainability reportisthe ERIC (Estates Return Information
Collection)return.However,thisdoesnotreflecttheorganisation’s
entire carbonfootprint.Therefore, thefollowinginformationuses
a scaled model based on work performed by the Sustainable
DevelopmentUnit(SDU).Moreinformationisavailablehere:https://
www.sduhealth.org.uk/sdat/default.aspx

Modelled trajectory
InlinewiththeNHScommitmenttoreduceitscarbonfootprintby28%
by 2020 the Trust is able to report the following progress:

Electricity-reduceelectricityconsumptionby10%by2018againsta
2010 baseline [achieved].

Gas - reduce gas consumption by 10% by 2018 against a 2010
baseline [achieved].

Water-reducewaterconsumptionby15%againsta2008baselineby
2020 [on target].

Emissions-reducebuildingenergyrelatedgreenhousegasemissions
by 10% by 2015againsta2007 baseline [achieved];and by 20% by
2020 against a 2008 baseline [on target].

Adaptation

Events such as heat waves, cold snaps and flooding are expected
toincrease asaresult of climate change.To ensure that the Trust’s
servicescontinuetomeettheneedsofthelocalpopulationduringsuch
eventsanumberofpoliciesandprotocolshavebeendevelopedand
implemented in partnership with other local agencies.

TheTrust,aspartofitsoperationalbusinessplanning,updatesitsheat
waveplanandwinterplanannuallytoensureitisabletomaintainits
operationalservicesduringsevereweatherdisruptionandprojected
increases in the demand for health care.This requires the Trust to
work closely with partneragenciesin ensuringitis able tofulfilits

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

obligationsinprovidinghealthcareservices.TheTrustalsocarriedout
businessimpactassessmentsforallitsservicestoensurethattheyare
able to respond to situations as and when they arise.

For a Greener NHS
TheNHSinEnglandistheonlyhealthcaresystemintheworldwhich
routinelyreportsonitsgreenhousegasemissions.ltcontributes5%of
theUK'sentirecarbonemissions,althoughNHSemissionshavealready
beencutbyalmostafifthinthelastdecade.On 25 January 2020 Sir
SimonStevens,ChiefExecutiveOfficeroftheNHS,announcedtheNHS'
plantoreach’netzero'carbonemissionsaheadof2050,andlaunched
its campaign ‘For a Greener NHS'.

Airpollutionislinkedtokillerconditionslikeheartdisease,strokeand
lungcancer,contributingtoaround36,000deathsannually.SirSimon
Stevensannouncedathree-stepplanthatthe NHSwillimplement
during 2020 to tackle this problem.

Firstly, NHSEnglandisestablishinganexpertpaneltochartapractical
route map during 2020 to enable the NHS to get to’net zero; and
becometheworld'sfirstmajorhealthservicetodoso.Theexpertpanel
willlookatchangestheNHScanmakeinitsownactivities,initssupply
chain,andthroughwiderpartnershipstherebyalsocontributingtothe
government'’s overall target for the UK.

Thesechangesincludethe LongTerm Plancommitmentto better
usetechnologytomakeupto30millionoutpatientappointments
redundant,avoidingthousandsofunnecessarytripsmadebypatients
toandfromhospital.ltisestimatedthat6.7 billionroad mileseach
year are from patients and their visitors travelling to the NHS.

The panel willalso look at changes that can be made in the NHS's
medicaldevices,consumablesandpharmaceuticalsupply,aswellas
areastheNHScaninfluencesuchastheenergysectorasthehealth
service moves to using more renewable energy.

Secondly, the NHS will be takingimmediate actionin 2020 with a
proposednewNHSStandardContractcallingonhospitalstoreduce
carbonemissionsfrombuildingsandestates,switchtolesspolluting
anaestheticgasesandimprovedasthmainhalers,andencouragemore
active travel for staff.

And finally, the health service will also launch its own grassroots
campaign’ForaGreenerNHS'toencouragestaffandhospitalstocut
theirimpact on people’s health and the environment.
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The'ForAGreenerNHS'campaignwillbesupportedbytheUKHealth
AllianceonClimateChangewhichincludesrepresentative bodies
coveringover650,000NHSstaff. Thecampaignwillbuildonthework
alreadyunderwaytohelpTrustsandstafftocutemissions,energyuse
andwaste,includingphasingoutoilandcoalboilersandincreasingthe
use of LED lighting and electric vehicles.

Carbon and Energy Fund
InDecember2019theTrustenteredintoa20-yearEnergy Savings
ProjectAgreement(ESPA)thatissupportedbythirdpartyinvestment
inthe energy provisioninfrastructure at the Trust. The project will
securecapitalinvestmentofc.£10.8Mwhichwillberepaidthrough
guaranteedsavingsfromvolumereductionsinenergyconsumption.ln
addition,aservicepaymentwillbemadeoverthetermofthecontract
thatcoversthecostofplant,lifecyclingcostsfor20years,maintenance
and the guarantee of availability, service and savings.

The 20-year contract does not become operational until all the
infrastructurehasbeeninstalledandsigned-offbytheTrust,whichis
scheduledtobecompletedinthefinalquarterofthefinancialyear
2020/21.Duringtheinstallation phase of this contract,basedona
14-monthperiod,theTrustwillpaythethird partyaninterimservice
chargeofc.£0.1M,whichasaminimum, theTrustwould expectto
beoffsetbyassociatedenergyefficiencysavingsgeneratedduringthe
same period.

TheTrust'sappointedlegaladvisershaveproducedanindependent
reportonthevalidityofthenon-financialaspectsoftheESPAinwhich
theyidentifiedthattherewerefiveprincipalcontractsthattheTrust
wasrequiredtoenterintoinrelationtotheproject. Atyearsixofthe
agreementtheCombinedHeatandPowerplant(CHP)willbereplaced
andtheTrustensuredthatanyfuturerisksarisingfromtheworkwere
fully understood before it entered into the ESPA.

Duringthelifetimeofthecontract, theTrustwillberesponsibleforthe
performanceandoperationalmanagementofthecontractandwillbe
supportedthroughoutbytheCarbonandEnergyFund(CEF)inrelation
tothemeasurementandverificationofthecontractualperformance
andinprovidingatechnicalsupportrole.TheCEFisanorganisation
thathasbeenspecificallycreatedtofund,facilitateandprojectmanage
complexenergyinfrastructureupgradesfortheNHSandthewider
public sector.

Performance Report signed by the Chief Executive in his role as
Accounting Officer:

R.D2\

Dr Richard Jenkins
Interim Chief Executive
02 June 2020




Accountability Report

Directors’Report

ThisreportispresentedinthenameofthedirectorsoftheBoard of
Directors who occupied the following positions during the year:

Martin Havenhand
Richard Jenkins
Nicola Bancroft
Joe Barnes
George Briggs
Heather Craven
Mark Edgell
Callum Gardner
Lynn Hagger
Steven Ned
Rumit Shah
Simon Sheppard
Mike Smith
Angela Wood

Michael Wright

Chairman
Interim Chief Executive From 10 February 2020
Non-Executive Director From 01 October 2019

Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent
Director

Chief Operating Officer
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Interim Medical Director To 31 October 2019
Medical Director From 01 November 2019

Non-Executive Director and Vice Chair
Joint Director of Workforce From 01 April 2019
Non-Executive Director From 01 January 2020

Director of Finance

Non-Executive Director From 01 April 2019
Chief Nurse
Interim Deputy Chief Executive From 10 February 2020

Louise Barnett
David Hannah
Chris Holt

Barry Mellor

Chris Preston

Chief Executive To 07 February 2020

Non-Executive Director To 31 January 2020

Deputy Chief Executive To 31 May 2019

Non-Executive Director To 30 September 2019

Interim Deputy Chief Executive From 07 May 2019 to 09 February 2020
Director of Strategy and Transformation' From 10 February 2020 to 08 March 2020

BWhilstChrisPrestoncontinuedtoworkfortheTrustfrom 10Februaryto08March 2020, hesteppeddownasanExecutiveDirectorandcontinuedas
Director of Strategy & Transformation, a non-voting member of the Board of Directors.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

32



Directors’biographiescanbefoundwithintheGovernanceReport
beginningonpage64,togetherwithdetailsofDirectorsattendanceat
Board and Board Committees.

Directors’ Register of Interests
TheDirectors'RegisterofinterestsisavailabletoviewontheTrust’s
website(http://www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk/Corporate_Governance_
Information/Our_Board_of_Directors/)orbyrequestingacopyfrom
the Company Secretary at the address below:

Ms Anna Milanec, Company Secretary
General Management Department, Level D
The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust
Moorgate Road

Rotherham

S60 2UD

Under the NHS Act 2006, NHS Improvement has directed The
RotherhamNHSFoundationTrusttoprepare,foreachfinancialyear,
astatementofaccountsintheformandonthebasissetoutinthe
Accounts Direction.

TheDirectorsareresponsibleforpreparingtheaccountsonanaccrual
basis, which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of The
RotherhamNHSFoundationTrustandofitsincomeandexpenditure,
totalrecognisedgainsandlossesandcashflowsforthefinancialyear.

Inpreparingtheaccounts,theDirectorsarerequiredtocomplywiththe
requirementsof NHSImprovement’sNHSFoundationTrustAnnual
Reporting Manual 2019/20 and in particular to:

+ Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement,
includingtherelevantaccountinganddisclosurerequirements,and
apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis

« Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis

- Statewhetherapplicableaccountingstandardsassetoutinthe
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (and the
Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manual) have been followed

« Disclose and explain any material departures in the financial
statements

- Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant
legislation, delegated authorities and guidance

- Confirmthatthe AnnualReportand Accounts,takenasawhole,
isfair,balancedandunderstandableandprovidestheinformation
necessaryforpatients,regulatorsandstakeholderstoassesstheNHS
foundationtrust’sperformance,businessmodelandstrategy,and

« Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

TheDirectorsareresponsibleforkeepingproperaccountingrecords
which disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time the financial
position of theTrustand enable themto ensure that the accounts
complywithrequirementsoutlinedintheabovementionedAct.The
DirectorsarealsoresponsibleforsafeguardingtheassetsoftheTrust
andhencefortakingreasonablestepsforthepreventionanddetection
of fraud and other irregularities.

TheDirectorsconsiderthatthe AnnualReportand Accounts, taken
asawhole,arefair,balancedand understandableand provide the
informationnecessaryforpatients,regulatorsandotherstakeholdersto
assess the Trust's performance, business model and strategy.
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Cost Allocation and Charging Guidance
TheTrusthascompliedwiththecostallocationandchargingguidance
issued by HM Treasury.

Political Donations
There are no political donations to disclose.

Better Payment Practice Code

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to pay all
undisputedinvoicesbytheduedateorwithin 30daysofreceiptof
goodsoravalid,verifiedinvoice,whicheverislater.However,theTrust,
incommonwithallsectorsoftheeconomy,hastoprimarilymanageits
cashflowaccordingtotherequirementsoftheorganisationinorderto
ensureithassufficientliquidity,preventunforeseenbankchargesand
minimise the extent of interest payable on loan financing.

As can be seen in the table below, during 2019/20 the Trust paid
31.56% (by number) of all of its bills within the 30-day target.

Value

NON-NHS

Total Bills Paid in Year 46,345 83,577
Total Bills Paid Within Target 15,141 29,217
Percentage of Bills Paid in Target 32.67% 34.96%
NHS

Total Bills Paid in Year 2,045 11,425
Total Bills Paid Within Target 133 644
Percentage of Bills Paid in Target 6.50% 5.64%
TOTAL

Total Bills Paid in Year 48,390 95,002
Total Bills Paid Within Target 15,274 29,861
Percentage of Bills Paid in Target 31.56% 31.43%

Thetotalamountofliabilitytopayinterestwhichaccruedbyvirtueof
theTrustfailingtopayinvoiceswithinthe30-dayperiod,andthetotal
amountofinterestactuallypaidindischargeofsuchliabilitybythe
Trust during 2019/20 was £318.

Thetableaboveshowsadeteriorationfromthepositionin2018/19
whentheTrustpaid71.75%(bynumber)ofbillswithinthetarget.In
partthiswasaplannedreduction,andresultedfromplannedhigh
levelsofcreditorsthroughoutthefirsthalfofthe2019-20year.The
higherlevelswererequiredtomanagetheexpecteddeficitduring
thefirstsixmonthsoftheyear. However,theTrustwasadditionally
affectedbyadeteriorationintheincomeandexpenditurepositionin
thelastquarterof2019/20,alsoputtingpressureoncashavailability.
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InApril2020theTrust received contractincomeforboth Apriland
May and June’sincome will be received in May.This new payment
inadvance process,implementedtosupportTrustsand suppliers
duringCOVID-19,hasenabled ustobegintorecoverourpayment
performance.April2020'sperformancefiguresshowedthat77%of
invoices (by value) were paid within 30 days overall.

Information on Fees and Charges
TheTrusthasnothingtodiscloseinrelationtoanyindividualservice
having full costs exceeding £1 million.

Income disclosures required by section 43(2A) of the

NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health & Social Care
Act 2012)

Section 43(2A) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health
andSocialCare Act2012)requiresthattheTrust'sincomefromthe
provisionofgoodsandservicesforthepurposesofthehealthservice
inEnglandmustbegreaterthanitsincomefromtheprovisionofgoods
andservicesforanyotherpurposes.TheRotherhamNHSFoundation
Trust meets this requirement.

Asrequiredbysection43(3A)oftheNHSAct2006,anNHSfoundation
trustmustprovideinformationontheimpactthatotherincomeithas
receivedhashadonitsprovisionofgoodsandservicesforthepurposes
ofthehealthserviceinEngland.TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrust
hasnotreceivedanyincomewhichwasnotforthe purposesofthe
health service in England during 2019/20.

Disclosures relating to NHS Improvement’s Well-led
framework

During 2019/20, the Board of Directors implemented the
recommendations from an external well-led review that was
commissionedthepreviousyear.Thisreviewidentifiedsomeareasthat
neededtobefocusedon,andanactionplanwasdevelopedandfully
implemented.

TheTrustalsoreceivedaninspectionfromtheCareQualityCommission
(CQQ)during2019/20whenare-inspectionofUrgentandEmergency
Careserviceswasundertaken.TheTrustwaspleasedtoachievean
improvedratingfollowingthisinspectionandafurtheractionplanwas
developed to take forward the identified recommendations.

Inaddition,therecommendationsfromareviewofthearrangements
forriskmanagementandqualitygovernancethathadpreviouslybeen
undertaken during 2018/19 were fully implemented.

TherearenomaterialinconsistenciesbetweentheAnnualGovernance
Statement, AnnualReport,theTrust'sCorporateGovernanceStatement
and reports from the Care Quality Commission.

Patient Care
TheTrusthashadanotherparticularlybusyyear,withseveralservice
developmentswhichhavepositivelyimpactedonpatientcare,suchas
therefurbishmentoftheendoscopydecontaminationunitandthenew
Greenoaksunit,alongwithanextensiveservicereviewofcommunity
respiratory care.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

AllTrustsmonitortheirmortalitydataintheformofamonthlyHospital
Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) and Standardised Hospital
Mortality Index(SHMI).HSMRprovidesarolling 12-month picture
of mortality dataforatime period ending sixmonthspreviouslyat
thetimeofpublishing,or12monthspreviouslyinthecaseof SHMI.
Unfortunately,theTrusthasseenagradualdeteriorationinbothits
HSMRandSHMIthroughouttheyear.Althoughthisisconsideredto
bemulti-factorial,particularfocuscontinuestobegiventomaking
improvementsaround all of the'3Cs'(quality of care; case mixand
coding).Thishasincludedanextensiveindependentmortalityreview
of150respiratoryandheartfailuredeaths,facilitatedbytheMedical
Director,withthelearningwidelydisseminatedacrosstheTrustandto
the Board of Directors.

The Trust has appointed its first Medical Examiner, who has
responsibilityforreviewingalldeathsanddiscussingthequalityofcare
giventothepatientpriortotheirdeathwiththedeceasedpatient’s
next-of-kin.Inaddition,theMedicalExaminerhasakeyroletoplayin
helpingtheMedicalDirectorimprovetheTrust'slearningfromdeaths.
TheTrusthasamonthlyMortalityGroupwhichreviewsperformance
andlearningsfromdeaths,andwhichinturnreportsintothePatient
SafetyGroupandtheClinical GovernanceCommittee, thelatterof
which is chaired by the Trust’s Medical Director.

Furthermore, the Trust is in the process of expanding its Medical
ExaminerserviceinordertocreateaMedicalExaminers'Officewith
7-dayaweekcoverage.Throughout2020/21therewillbecontinued
focusonimprovingsuchlearningfromdeathsbyensuringthatall
deaths are reviewed within a month of death; by optimising the
recognitionofpatientscomingtotheendoftheirlife;andbyensuring
that all such learning is triangulated with learning from adverse
incidents and complaints.

Inaddition,alldeathsinvolvingpatientswithlearningdisabilitiesand
alldeathsgoingforaCoroner’sinvestigationand/orinquest, now
haveastage-2detailedmortalityreview(StructureJudgementReview)
andarereviewedattheTrust'sSeriousincidentPanel,chairedbythe
MedicalDirectororChiefNurse, toensureanyissuesandappropriate
learningareidentifiedinatimelymannerinordertocontinuously
improve the quality of care within the organisation.

As part of the Trust’s new Safe & Sound Quality Framework, co-
ownedbytheChiefNurseandMedicalDirector,theTrusthasrecently
introducedanenhancedseniorleadershipstructure,whichwillincrease
Trustoversight,leadershipandclinicalengagementacrossanumber
ofqualitydomains,includingpatientexperience,clinicaleffectiveness,
patient safety and human factors.

ThisincludestheintroductionofthreenewAssociateMedicalDirector
posts:oneforPatientSafety(whichincludesresponsibilityforleading
onqualityprioritiessuchassepsisandthedeterioratingpatient);one
forClinicalEffectiveness(whichincludesresponsibilityforleadingon
auditandcompliancewithNICEguidance);andoneforHumanFactors
(leading on theroll-out of human factors within the Trustand the
introductionofimportantcolleaguewellbeingmechanisms,suchas
Schwartz Rounds).

AlloftheTrust’sAssociateMedicalDirectorrolesareoverseenbythe
MedicalDirector,whopersonallyleadsonpatientexperience,andwill
complementthealreadyestablishedseniornursingrolesintheseareas.



Followingasuccessful pilotontwowards, the Trust went live with
electronicprescribingacrossallin-patientareas (exceptintensive
care)inSeptember2019,followedbyallout-patientareasbetween
December 2019 and February 2020. This has led to a significant
reduction in the number of medication omissions, which is now
consistentlywellbelow 5% (seenasthenationalbenchmark),thus
leading to a positive impact on patient care and treatment.

Furthermore,theMedicalDirectorhasintroducedmandatorytraining
modules for doctors for insulin and anti-coagulation, (these two
medicationgroupsarethekeydrugsinmedicationincidents)along
withenablingaccesstotheother47availablemodulesforallmedical
colleagues.TheTrustisalsointheprocessofintroducingnewMedicines
Managementtraining,ledbytheChiefPharmacistundertheauspices
of the Medical Director and Chief Nurse.

The Trust continues to focus on improving the timeliness and
effectivenessofresponsestodeterioratingpatientsandrolledout
electronicobservationsacrossthehospitalinApril2019.Inaddition,
theTrusthasamonthlySafe&SoundDeterioratingPatientandSepsis
Group,whichdiscussesanymatterorissuerelatingtothedeteriorating
patient,includingtheresultsofsepsisauditsandlocalandnational
qualityimprovementinitiatives.TheMedical Directorisalsointhe
processofleadingontherefinementofabusinesscasetosupport
thelaunchofanewandenhancedresponseteamcalledthe Acute
ResponseTeam (ART).The ARTwillfunction24hoursaday,7 daysa
week,andwillreplacethecurrentHospitalatNightservicewhichonly
operates out of hours.

TheTrustcontinues tohold aweekly’Harm Free’'meeting, chaired
by the Medical Directorand ChiefNurse,atwhich allkeyincidents
andqualityissuesarediscussedandactionsagreed.Thismeeting
helpssustainafocusonthe quality of care withinthe organisation
andiscomplementedbytheoutputsfromtheSafe&SoundQuality
Directorate.TheTrusthastrainedseveralcolleaguesintheinvestigation
ofseriousincidents(RCA™training)throughout2019/20,andisinthe
processofrollingthisouttomorecolleaguesandensuringthathuman
factorsisincorporatedintothelearningfromsuchrootcauseanalyses.

Asof31March2020,therewere40Seriousincidentreportsoverdue
forcompletion.Anumberofactionsarebeingundertakentoaddress
this both to provide outcomes for patients and their families and
toensurethatany necessary learning can be acted upon without
unnecessarydelay.ThisisbeingledbythenewlyappointedHead of
PatientSafetyandAssociateMedicalDirectorforPatientSafetyworking
in conjunction with the Clinical Divisions.

Keylearningfromincidentswillbeincorporatedintoanewmonthly
Safe&Soundqualitybulletin,whichwillhavesectionswrittenbyour
leadsforpatientsafety,clinicaleffectiveness,humanfactors, patient
experienceandtheMedicalExaminer'sOffice,aswellasbytheMedical
Director and Chief Nurse.

Goodprogresscontinuestobemadearoundtheidentificationand
managementofsepsis,includingtheintroductionofsepsisscreening
toolsacrossalladultand paediatric wards, as well as in obstetrics;
thishasbeensupportedbytargetedtrainingandeducation,including
throughmandatorytraining,postersinclinicalareas,screensavers
oncomputers,andrevisedpoliciesandprocedures.Theintroduction
ofelectronicprescribingandmedicinesadministrationwithinthe

Root cause analysis (RCA)
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Trusthasalsoenabled ustomoreeasilymonitorthetimebetween
theprescriptionandadministrationofantibiotics;thisisimportant,as
timelytreatmentofsepsisleadstobetteroutcomes,sinceevidence
suggeststhatsepsiscanworsenwithdelayedtreatment.Asaresult,
the Trust will continue to focus on the timely administration of
antibiotics and the recognition of sepsis throughout 2020/21.

TheTrusthadanunannouncedCQCinspectioninSeptember2018,
followingwhichtheTrustwasratedas’Requiresimprovement’overall,
andInadequatefortheUrgentandEmergencyService,withsomekey
areas highlighted for improvement.

Following intense focus on actions required to drive quality
improvement, supported by theTrust’s new Safe & Sound Quality
Framework,theTrustreceivedafurtherunannouncedCQCinspection
to our UECC in August 2019, following which UECC was rated as
‘Requires Improvement’ overall, and ‘Good’ for Caring.

Sinceboththeunannouncedandannouncedinspections,theTrusthas
continuedtoworkcloselywiththeCQCtoprovidethemwithassurance
ofthesignificantimprovementsmadetodate,particularlyinthe UECC,
andenhancedseniorsupporthascontinuedtobeprovidedbytheChief
NurseandMedicalDirector.Inaddition,theTrusthasproactivelysought
externalsupporttohelpidentifyanddriveimprovements,withthe
aimofbecoming'Good’bythetimeofthenextCQCinspectionand,
ultimately, ‘Outstanding’.

Monitoring Improvements in the Quality of Healthcare
Improvementsinthequalityofcare,progressmadeagainstlocaland
nationaltargetsandtheimplementationofactionsemanatingfrom
theCQCinspectionsinSeptember,October2018andAugust2019are
allmonitoredatTrust-levelbytheQualityAssuranceCommittee(one
oftheBoardAssuranceCommittees)andbytheClinicalGovernance
Committee (operational level committee).

Inaddition, each oftheClinical Divisionsalso monitors the quality
ofcareitprovides,achievementofitslocalandnationaltargetsand
progresswithitsactionsrelatingtotheCQCinspectionsattheirown
Divisional meetings.

BoardAssuranceCommitteesseekevidenceastoperformanceand
complianceinorderthattheyareableto provideassurancetothe
BoardofDirectorsthatqualityobjectivesarebeingmet.TheClinical
GovernanceCommitteeisthehighestleveloperationalcommittee
responsibleformonitoringallaspectsofthequalityofhealthcarethe
Trust provides.

TheClinicalGovernanceCommittee,chairedbytheMedicalDirector
and supported bythe ChiefNurse, hasakeyroleinoverseeingthe
operationaldeliveryofhighqualityhealthcarethroughtheworkofa
numberofsub-groupsincludingthoserelatingtopatientexperience,
patientsafetyandclinicaleffectiveness.During2019/20theroleand
functionsofthesegroupsandtheirinterfacewiththegovernance
arrangementsintheClinicalDivisionshasbeenthesubjectofafurther
externalreviewandthechangesrecommendedbythisreviewarebeing
implemented.
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Progress towards targets as agreed with local
commissioners, together with details of other key

quality improvements
In2019/20theTrustwascontractuallyrequiredtodeliverthenational
CommissioningforQualityandinnovation(CQUIN)indicators.The
indicatorsareidentifiednationallyasareasrequiringfocusedwork
to be undertaken throughout the year with the aim of delivering
improvements in performance by year-end.

Theindicatorsandpositionfortheyeartodateasatquarter3against
each scheme are detailed below:

Range of Performance
(as per CQUIN guidance)

Minimum Maximum

CQUIN Indicator Description

Anti-MicrobialResistance-lowerurinarytract

0,

infections in older people 60%
Anti-MicrobialResistance-antibioticprophylaxis 60%
in colorectal surgery °
Staff flu vaccinations' 60%
Alcohol and Tobacco - Screening 40%
Alcohol and tobacco - Tobacco brief advice 50%
Alcohol and tobacco - Alcohol brief advice 50%
Three high impact actions to prevent falls 25%
Same Day Emergency Care - Pulmonary 50%
embolus
SameDayEmergencyCare-tachycardiawith

: — 50%
atrial fibrillation
Same Day Emergency Care - Community 50%

acquired pneumonia

TheTrustalsosustainedorimprovedperformanceinnationallydefined
quality indicators in the following areas during 2019/20:

+ MRSA

« Compliance against 18 week wait targets

» Best Practice Hip Fracture

« Dementia assessments

InApril2019/20theChiefNurseandMedicalDirectorlaunched'Safe
andSoundframeworktosupportdeliveryoftheQualitylmprovement
Strategy and Quality Improvement Plan strategy.

[tisanewapproachdevelopedtoallowkeyinitiativestobedelivered
andisbasedontheprinciplesofpatientsafety,clinicaleffectiveness
andpatientexperience.ltputsqualityattheheartofeverythingwedo
andstatesthateachandeveryoneofourcolleagueshasaparttoplay
in continuously improving the quality of care we provide.

[twillhelpuscreateaculturewhereeachcolleaguetakesresponsibility
forimprovingpatientcareandmakingthepatient’'sexperienceasgood
as it can be.
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Due to the response to

COVID-19theTrustwasnot
required tosubmitdataon
itsperformanceforquarter4.

Year-to-Date
2019/20 Position
(as at December 2019)

90% Partiallyachieved:74%
90% Partiallyachieved:61%

There areanumber of work streams where colleagues have been
encouragedtoparticipatetoinformchange,continuousimprovement
and the way we do things in future. These work streams are:

+ Deteriorating Patient & Mortality

- Engagement and Inclusion

+ Information and Innovation

« Governance, Risk and Safety

+ Record keeping and Communication

« Workforce, Training and Competence

+ Medicines Management

Workhascontinuedthroughouttheyeartopromoteandembedthe
‘Safe and Sound’ culture.

>FinalperformancenotavailableduetosuspendingCQUINreportinglinkedtoCOVID-19



Any new or significantly revised services

TheTrustprovidedafullrangeofacuteandcommunityservicesduring
2019/20.Duringtheyeartheorganisationcontinuedtobuilduponits
transformationworkprogrammeaimedatreviewingclinicalpathways
in a number of areas across both acute and community services.

In 2019/20 we:

+ Reconfiguredthecommunitybedbasecapacitytosupporttransfer
of medically fit patients from hospital to a more appropriate
environment for ongoing care

+ ReviewedtheRespiratorypathwaytoprovideamorecommunity
baseddeliverymodelaimedatsupportingpeopletomanagetheir
conditionathomeandavoidurgentattendanceandadmissions

« Continuedthewardreconfigurationandspecialty/serviceco-location
programmetoprovideamoreeffectiveflowofpatientsaroundthe
hospital

+ Implementedthe’'HomeFirstmodeltoprovideintervention,advice
andguidancetopatientstosupportconditionmanagementintheir
own home

« Introduced Electronic Prescribing across acute hospital wards

During2019/20theTrusthascontinuedto progressthe’Digital by
Default'agendawhichisasignificantcontributingfactorinallowing
more innovative changes to clinical pathways to be considered.

Followingaprocurementprocessled by NHS England, the Urgent
Dental Access and Out of Hours service covering the Rotherham,
BarnsleyandDoncasterpopulationswasawardedtoanalternative
providerandtheTrustceasedtodeliverthisserviceasof01April2019.

Service improvements following staff or patient surveys

/ comments and CQC reports
Anumberofserviceimprovementshavebeenundertakenaspartof
theTrust’sQuality PrioritiesandfollowingonfromtheCareQuality
Commission inspection and recommendations.

Improvements in Patient / Carer Information
TheTrust’sCommunicationsTeamworks closelywithbothclinical
andnon-clinicalteamstoupdateinformationforpatientsandvisitors
andeveryeffortismadetoensurethattheinformationontheTrust’s
websiteisinplainEnglish,conciseandwellpresentedtomakeaccess
to information as easy as possible.

InlinewithTrust-widelnformaticsandCommunicationsstrategies,
workisprogressingwiththeTrust'swebsiteandtheCommunications
Teamisalsolookingatothermediathroughwhichtocommunicate
information.Thisworkincludesprovidingmorehyperlinksthroughour
websitetositessuchasNHSChoicesandspeciality-specificexpertand
supportgroupsandcharities.ltalsoincludesimprovingtherangeof
informationavailableandmovingawayfrompredominantlypaper-
basedleafletsthatcanquicklybecomeoutofdateandmayalsonotbe
read and appreciated in this format by all service users.

Asignificantamountofpatienthealthinformationisalsoproduced
throughthird-partyorganisationsand,whereappropriate, theTrustis
seekingtoutilisetheseresourcestoensuretheaccuracyofinformation
andminimisethereproductionandreviewcostsassociatedwiththe
development of in-house patient health information.
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Wherepatientinformationneedstobeproducedlocally,thePatient
Experience Group hasbeenresponsibleforthereviewofthisfrom
all areas of the Trust during the past year. A new role of Trust lead
forPatientandPublicInvolvementandEngagementwasdeveloped
in 2019, with the post holder commencing earlyin 2020.This role
willleadthecontinueddevelopmentofeffectiveandcreativeuser
engagementandinvolvementandseektobetterunderstandhow
ourcurrentinformationmaterialsareused;whethertheyareeffective
and valued and how patients, families and carers want to receive
thisinformationfromtheTrust.APatientInformationGroupisbeing
re-established to supportthisactivityandto provideacentral co-
ordination point.

The Trust’s Communications and Graphic Design Teams work
collaborativelywithservicestocreate,designanddisplaytheirkey
healthmessagesinanaccessibleandengagingway.Thisincludes
supportingthebestuseoftechnologiesandsocialmediabyservices,
particularlythoseworkingwithyoungerpatientswhoappreciate
Trustinformationandserviceupdatestobeprovidedviasocialmedia
platforms such as Instagram, YouTube, and Facebook etc.

Information on Complaints Handling
TheTrustrecognisestheimportanceofmanaginganyconcernsor
complaintsraised by patients orfamilies onapatient’s behalf,ina
timely and effective manner.

Duringtheyear,focuscontinuedonencouragingmoreface-to-face
meetingsbetweenpatientswithconcernsandstaff,thishasresultedin
27%ofcomplaintsreceivedduring2019/20beingaddressedthrougha
Local Resolution meeting.

Inaddition, for those patients who would rather receive a written
response, work remains ongoing to ensure that they receive that
responsewithintheagreedtimeframeof30workingdays.Thiswork
hasresultedintheTrust'soverallperformancebeing69%ofcomplaints
answered within the agreed timescale.

We are clear that a focus on quality is as important as a focus on
performanceandhandlingcomplaintsintherightwayiscrucialto
embeddingacultureofcontinuousimprovement.Wealsoappreciate
thatany missed targetreflects poorly on the Trustand potentially
exacerbatesacomplainant’sfeelingsofupsetandfrustration,andwe
are working hard to improve the response rate in this regard.

Wemustensurethatwearenotonlyprovidingtimelyresponsesbut
alsorespondingintherightwaysothatcomplainantsareconfident
thattheirissueshavebeenhandledprofessionallyandsympathetically.
TothatendtheappointmentofanAssistantChiefNurseforPatient
Experiencehasbeenestablishedwithresponsibilityformonitoring
thepatient'sexperienceduringthecomplaintsprocessandensuring
lessons have been learned.
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Stakeholder Relations

Descriptions of significant partnerships and alliances
TheTrustisanactivememberoftheRotherhamTogetherStrategic
Partnership.WearealsoamemberontheRotherham Place Board
working alongside Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council,
RotherhamClinicalCommissioningGroup,RotherhamDoncasterand
SouthHumberNHSFoundationTrustandVoluntaryActionRotherham.

Ouraimistoprovidethebestpossibleservicesandoutcomeforthe
Rotherham population and we are committed to a whole system
partnershipapproachtooptimiseserviceprovision,makebestuseof
theRotherhamHealthpoundandfuture-proofservicesmakingthem
sustainable in the long-term.

TheTrust also operates within the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw
Integrated Care System (ICS) whichisa partnership of 22 NHS and
non-NHSorganisationsresponsibleforlookingafterthehealthandcare
ofthe 1.5million peoplelivingacrosstheregion. Theaimissimilar
tothatoftheRotherhamPlacedescribedabovebutworkingacrossa
largerpopulationbasetoprovidethebenefitsofpartnershipworkingto
our patients.

TheTrusthasdevelopedexcellentworkingrelationshipswithConnect
Healthcare, the Rotherham GP Federation. We have continued to
effectivelydeliverphysiotherapyserviceswithinpractices,aservice
whichhasdemonstratedbenefitsacrossthewholehealthcommunity.
Throughout2019/20wehavebeenengagingwiththesixPrimaryCare
Networks,acollaborativeofGPsworkingtogethertoagreeanddeliver
services on behalf of their geographical population.

TheTrustcontinuestoworkinwell-established partnerships with
Doncaster&BassetlawTeachingHospitalNHSFoundationTrustto
deliver Ear Nose and Throat (ENT) and Oral Maxillofacial services.
Managementoftheseservicesacrossthesitesisembeddedandhas
beeninplaceforasignificantnumberofyears.Thisoperatingmodel
isfundedbyClinical CommissioningGroupswithactivitydetailedin
agreedrespectivecontractsandchargesaremadebetweenthetwo
providers to reflect the costs of actual service provision.

The modelwasintroduced to separate theinpatientand daycase
activity for ENT and Oral Maxillofacial services, thereby providing
sufficient capacity at each site to manage patientsinatimelyand
efficientmanner.Thecurrentmodelalsosupportsconsultanton-call
arrangements across the two sites.

Inadditiontotheseservices,wehavealsoworkedcollaborativelywith
DoncasterandBarnsleyHospitalNHSFoundationTrustduring2019/20
toprovideanout-of-hoursgastrointestinalbleedrota.Thishasbeen
developedtosupportconsultanton-callarrangementsandensure
patientshavetimelyaccesstospecialistsdealingwiththiscondition.

Throughout2019/20wehavebeenseekingtoagreeajointworking
arrangementwithBarnsleyNHSFoundationTrustinGastroenterology.
Theintentionofthisistoimproveresiliencewithintheserviceand
increase capacity for patients to access appointments, as well as
supporting consultant on-call arrangements. This work is still in
progress with no final agreements reached as at year-end.
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During2019/20theTrustcontinuedtoprovideacombinedpathology
serviceviathejointpathologypartnershipwithBarnsleyHospitalNHS
FoundationTrust-BarnsleyandRotherhamIntegratedLaboratory
Services (BRILS). BRILS servesapopulation of over 500,000 across
both Barnsley and Rotherham

TheTrustalsohasstrongcollaborative working relationshipswith
Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in relation to
neurology,vascular,cardiologyandchemotherapyservices.These
provide significant benefits to patients as clinics are provided at
RotherhamHospitalallowingthemlocalaccesstotheseserviceswhich
wouldotherwiseresultinpatientshavingtotraveltoSheffield.Activity
isfundedthroughcontractagreementswithSheffieldTeachingHospital,
with agreed recharges for provision of services to Rotherham.

Througharangeoftransformational developments, theTrust has
continuedtoworkverycloselywithRotherhamMetropolitanBorough
Councilandotherhealthandvoluntarysectororganisationstosupport
the delivery of the Trust’s overall vision.

Development of services involving other local services/
agencies and involvement in local initiatives
TheTrustcontinuestoworkcollaborativelywithotherservicesand
agenciesbothinRotherhamandacrossthewidergeographicarea
aligned to the Integrated Care System.

WithinRotherhamweworkwithpartneragenciesincludinghealth,

social care, mental health, primary care and private / charitable

organisations.Thisprovidesexcellentopportunitiesfordeliveringafull

androundedcarepackageforpatientswithagreedreferralpathways

understoodbyallorganisations.Thishasprovedsuccessfulinanumber

of areas including:

« Children’s Services - ‘Every Child Counts'’

+ Access to specialist stop smoking and alcohol services

« DevelopingtheIntegratedPointofContact'toincorporateother
agencies

- Continued development of the clinical record across multiple
platforms (within the remit of GDPR'®)

+ Progression ofthelocality based model/hubs to deliver multi-
disciplinary team working based around the patient

Wecontinuetodevelopourlocality-basedmodelenablingdirectlinks
togeneralpracticeteams.Regularmulti-disciplinarycasereviewsof
adultpatientsallowhealth,socialandemotionalneedstobeidentified
andanindividualisedpackageofcaretobeestablishedtosupportthe
patient.

Asmentionedabove,during2019/20wehaveworkedmoreclosely
with ConnectHealthcare, a Federation of General Practitionersin
Rotherham which has been created toidentify how GPs can work
morecollaborativelytomeettheneedsofthelocalpopulation.The
modelofPhysio1st’hasprovedsuccessfulandiswellembedded.We
continuetoreviewotheroptionsforcollaborativeworking,alongwith
thePrimaryCareNetworkstoestablishotherpotentialareaswhichwill
benefit patients.

'® General Data Protection Regulation



Thismulti-disciplinaryandmulti-agencyapproachbringssignificant
benefitsforpatientsintermsofcontinuityofcareandallowsvaluable
exchange of knowledge within, and across, organisations. This
approachultimatelyshapesandstreamlinesservicestobepatient-
focused,withtheaimofimprovingclinicaloutcomesandprovidingan
improved patient experience.

TheoverallaimoftheTrustistoprovidetherightservice,delivered by
therightperson,intherightplaceattherighttimethroughembracing
the'HomeFirstmodelandsupportinghealthpreventionandlifestyle
promotion schemes.

Consultation with local groups and organisations

In February 2020, the Quality Priorities showcase for colleagues,
patients,publicandstakeholderstookplace.ThisallowedtheQuality
Priorities for the Trust to be shared with those present to make
suggestions for how the improvements could be made.

TheTrusthasstronglinkswiththelocalauthority,andrepresentatives
from the Trust often attend meetings of the local Health Select
Commissioninordertoprovideanoverviewonarisinghealthcare
matters.

Public and patient involvement activities

Patientandpublicinvolvementisnowawell-establishedtoolinthe
relationshipbetweenhealthcareprovisionandthepatient’sexperience
asthe end user of services. The inclusion of patients, families and
carersintheplanning,developmentandreviewofawiderangeofthe
Trust'scareprovisionmustalwaysbeintegraltoeverythingthatwedo.
Engagementandinvolvementis,however,notsimplyacaseofasking
forpatientfeedback,itrequiresthecreationofdiverseandcreative
opportunitiestoengage,buildingpublicconfidenceinjoininginand
speakingupandensuringthevalidity ofthisendeavourforallwho
directly or indirectly experience services and freely participate.

TheTrustseekstoalwaysdojusticetotheeffortsserviceusersmake
towork with us, by committing to hearand act on their proposals
forservicedevelopmentortransformation,respondingpositivelyand
proactivelytotheirfeedbackandreportingonwhatwehavedoneas
an organisation to ensure that we value this co-production.

ThisyearwehavewelcomedourfirstdesignatedTrustleadforPatient
andPublicInvolvementandEngagement,anewroletoreachoutto
thelocalpopulationandwidercommunitieswhouseourservices,to
ensurethatwearereallyworkingtogetheronhowweprovidethose
services.Theexpectedbenefitsofthisrolearetoalsoseekwaystogive
accessforall,includingvulnerable, marginalisedorunheardgroupsand
widerstakeholders,sothattheyarefullyincludedintheestablishment
of Trust processes, clinicalguidelines, servicechangeanddelivery
leadingtolocalconfidenceandstrengthenedloyaltytotheservices
here in Rotherham.

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust recognises and values the
benefitsofengagingwiththepublic,colleaguesandpartnerstoinform
decisionmaking.ltisthereforealwaysourintentiontoconsultwidely
onmattersaffectingthepublic,inparticular,inrelationtoserviceor
provisionredesign.Wherelargescaleconsultationisrequired,the
Trustundertakesthisinconjunctionwithpartners.Theexamplesbelow
wereundertakenduring2019withRotherhamClinical Commissioning
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Group:
« A proposed new model of care for Breathing Space
+ The proposed move of Ophthalmology outpatients

TheTrusthasengagedinarangeofactivitieswithserviceusersand
the publicduring 2019/20. This hasincluded the recognition of a
numberofdaysofnationalfocusonkeyhealthconditionswhichtake
placeeveryyearandduring2019/20included:Parkinson’sDiseaseand
dementia,deafnessandblindnessawareness,mentalhealth,carers’
rights,organdonation,strokeawareness, learningdisabilitiesand
autism, HIV and AIDs and nutrition and hydration.

As a Foundation Trust, we held an Annual Members' Meeting

in September 2019 for the public to come and hear about key
developments.AtthemeetingtheTrust'sBoardofDirectorspresented
theTrust’'sAnnualReportand Accountsalongsidetheoperational
plan,futureplansandpriorities.Similarly,ourmonthlyBoardmeetings
andpaperswerefullyopenandaccessibletothepublicthroughout
2019/20 as in previous years.

TheTrust'sCommunicationsTeamcompilesatabloidpublication-
YourHealth-onaquarterlybasis,containingfeature-stylestories,
informationandgraphicsontopicalhealthissues.Thesupplement
is published as an insert into the weekly Rotherham Advertiser
newspaper,withextracopiesdistributedatkeyinformationpoints,such
as reception areas, at all Trust sites.

TheTrustheldan OpenDayon Saturday 30 November2019witha
wideinvitationtothepeopleofRotherhamtocomeandmeetthestaff
teams, seetheTrust‘at work’and hearabout NHS careers through
games, activities, interactive stands and displays. This was a great
successanditisintendedtobuilduponthisengagementwithsimilar
events next year.

The Trust’s Research Team participated in a series of events
throughouttheyeartopromotetheresearchthattakesplacewithinthe
Trust and to explain to patients how they can get involved.

OneoftheseeventswasWorldChronicObstructivePulmonaryDisease
(COPD)DayinDecember2019; this was to promote the work that
theResearchTeamhavebeenundertakingtoincreasethecapacityfor
clinicalresearchatBreathingSpace.TheRotherhamNHSFoundation
Trusthasensuredthatpatientsandmembersofthepublicwereable
to take partin research awareness and activities across the Trust,
by increasing the team’s presence in outpatient clinics and ward
environmentsduring2019/20.Thishasprovedtobeaveryproductive
approach,withourtotalnumberofpatientsrecruitedintoresearchto
date being 772 participants against a network target of 550.

TheTrust'sSafeandSoundpatientassuranceandwellbeingstrategy
waslaunchedinApril2019.Thisisamodelwhichmakesasinglebut
all-encompassingcommitmenttoeachpatient,askingthem’Doyou
feelSafeand Sound?Thisapproachisunderpinned by offeringan
easilyaccessiblerouteforanypatient,familymemberorcarerwho
hasconcerns,toraisetheseandescalatethemifnecessary,aimingto
achieveearlyandfullresolutionwhilstthepatientisstillreceivingcare
from of our services.
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InNovember2019newpostersdescribingthisSafeandSoundprocess,
wereplacedatthebedheadofeachTrustinpatienttoensurethatthey
knewhowtoaccessthisassistance.Thisincludesthecommitmentto
allthatiflocalresolutionisnotachieved,thenthesupportandinputof
aseniornurseintheTrustcanberequestedviaadedicatedphoneline
and a visit to the patient will occur within one hour of the call.

Someexamplesofthemanypatientengagementactivitiesundertaken
during the year are shown below:

World Aids Day was on 1 December 2019, when the colleaguesin
thelntegratedSexualHealthServiceprovidedinformationdisplaysand
adviceonarangeofsexualhealthtopicstomembersofthepublicand
staff via their stand.

The Rotherham Maternity Voices Partnership forum was
institutedinresponsetothenational'BetterBirths'strategy,toprovide
avoiceforserviceuserstogivetheirviewsandbeinvolvedinservice
development,patientinformationandpatienteducation.Thegroup
continues to meet bi-monthly and also to engage with arange of
maternityinitiativesfromprogressingkeyhealthmessagesthrough
itscommunicationchannels,gatheringwomen’sfeedbackonnew
proposalsandtheirexperiencesoftheservice,andsinceSeptember
2019hasbeenverysupportive ofthe Maternityand Family Health
Showcase work.

The monthly Maternity and Family Health Showcase launched

on4September2019.Thisisaregular,openhouseeventbringing
togetheracuteandcommunityhealthcolleaguesinmaternitycare
andchildrenandyoungpeople’sservices,colleaguesinpublichealth,

commissioningandthirdsectorgroupstoofferinformation,education
andsupporttoparents-to-be,newparentsandtheirextendedfamilies.

Child Development Service Review. The Trust’s work with the
localParentCarerForumhascontinuedandtheirviewshavebeen
capturedandprogressedwithintherevisedservicespecificationforthe
Child Development Service.

World Osteoporosis Day. The Bone Health, Falls and Fracture
LiaisonServicecelebratedWorldOsteoporosisDayinOctober2019,in
conjunctionwiththeNationalOsteoporosisSociety,withdisplaysand
information leaflets for patients, the public and colleagues.

Ophthalmology. The Ophthalmology Service continuestorunits
bi-annual open days, where pastand present patientsare invited
todiscuss the care they receive with nurses, consultants, support
colleagues, volunteers and other patient representatives.

World Osteoporosis Day
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Remuneration Report

Annual Statement on Remuneration from the Chair of
the Remuneration Committee (not subject to audit)

lampleasedtopresenttheRemunerationReportforthefinancialyear
2019/200onbehalfoftheBoardofDirectorsRemunerationCommittee
with regard to Executive Directors, and the Council of Governors'’
Nomination Committee with regard to Non-Executive directors..

Inaccordancewiththerequirementsofthe HMTreasuryFinancial

ReportingManual(FReM)andNHSImprovement,wehavedividedthis

report into the following parts:

« The Directors'Remuneration Policy sets out the Trust’s senior
managers’ remuneration policy; and

« TheAnnualReportonRemunerationwhichincludesmoredetailed
information and governance details.

Major decisions taken on senior managers

remuneration, 2019/20
Indetailingbelow,thedefinitionforseniormanagersascontainedin
theFReMhasbeenappliedandreferstoexecutiveandNon-Executive
directorsonly,i.e.thosewhoinfluencethedecisionsoftheTrustasa
whole, ratherthanthedecisionsofindividualdirectoratesorsections
within the Trust.

Colleagues subject to Agenda for Change, 2019/20
Withregardtocolleaguesonagendaforchange,theNHSStaffCouncil
formallyratified athree-year pay dealand the changestothe NHS
Termsand Conditions of Service handbookinJune 2018.The new
structureincreasedstartingsalaries,reducedthenumberofpaypoints,
andformoststaff,shortenedtheamountoftimetakentoreachthetop
of their payment band.

From1April2018,AgendaforChangepay(increment)pointsbeganto
beremovedfrompaybands,removingthebottomoverlappoint,and
increasing top pay points in bands 2 - 8c by 3%.

From1April2019,furtherrestructuringofthepaybandstookplace;
twofurther points removed fromthe bottom of band 3, one point
removedfromthebottomofband4,twopointsremovedfrombottom
ofband5, three pointsremovedfromthebottomofbands6and 7,
and one point removed from the bottom of bands 8a - 9.

Thetoppaypointinbands2-8cwasincreasedby 1.7%,withthetop
paypointsinbands8dand9beingincreasedbythemonetaryvalueof
the increase to band 8c.

Thoseatthetoppointoftheirpaybandson31March2019received
aone-offnon-consolidated cashlumpsumintheir April 2019 pay,
amountingto1.1%ofthevalueofthetoppaymentpointintheirpay
bandforcolleaguesonbands2-8c,andthesamemonetaryvalueas
that given to band 8¢, for colleagues on bands 8d and 9.

Furtherrestructuringofthepaybandstookplacefrom 1 April2020
which marked the start of the final year of the three year pay deal.

FromApril2020thefinaltransitionalpaypointinbands5,6and7was
removedandthereformofthepaybands8ato9wascompletedwith
paybands8ato9movingtoatwo-pointstructurewithanentrypoint
andatop point. Forstaffin bands8ato9whohadnotyetreached
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thetopoftheirpaybandbutforwhomnootherpaypointotherthan
thatatthetopoftheirbandexistedasatApril2020,aconsolidated
paymenttothesestaffmemberswasmadefromApril2020inmonthly
instalmentsuntilthedatewhenthestaffmemberreachedtheirpay
progressiondatetoensuretheydidnotexperienceanydetriment.

Thetoppaypointsinbands2-8bwereincreasedby 1.67%;andfor
8cby 1.47%.Thetop paypointsinbands8d-9werealsoincreased
up to a cap at the level of increase for the top of band 8c.

During2019/20the Remuneration Committee and the Council of
Governorscontinuedtouseannualbenchmarkeddata,includingthat
providedbyNHSProviders,asthepayandrewardframeworkupon
which to base Executive and Non-Executive salary amounts.

Indeterminingthesalaries of Executive Directorsfor2019/20, the
RemunerationCommitteedidnotapproveanypayincreasesduring
2019/20 financial year.

AspartofaretrospectivereviewrelatingtotheDirectorofFinance,it
wasagreedthathissalarybeincreasedby£6,900p.a.backdatedto1
April 2018, bringing his salary up to £128,100 at that point.

Followingnationalguidancerecommendingthataflatrateupliftof
£2,075p.a.,backdatedto 1 April2018bepaid (commensuratewith
thecashvalueofthe2018/19awardappliedtoagendaforchange
staff at the top of pay bands 8c, 8d and 9), the Committee agreed
backdatedsalaryincreasesforthoseExecutiveDirectorswhowerein
poston 1April2018and continuedinpost,i.e.Directorof Finance,
Chief Operating Officer (ditto), and Chief Executive, be paid.

The second phased review of the Director of Finance’s salary was
undertaken and it was agreed that this be increased to £135,000
p.a., backdated to 1 April 2019, thus taking the salary up to the
benchmarked median for the role.

A£1,354p.a.costoflivingincreasewasagreedforthosesubstantive
ExecutiveDirectorsinpostasat31March2019,withtheawardbeing
appliedtotheMedicalDirector’ssalaryfrom1November2019,the
date at which he became substantive.

TheremunerationforNon-Executivedirectorsisdeterminedbythe
CouncilofGovernors,whichdidnotrecommendapayawardtothe
Non-Executive Directors for 2019/20.



TakingintoaccountguidancepublishedbyNHSImprovementrelating
toNon-ExecutiveDirectorremuneration,inJanuary2020theCouncilof
Governors approved the following:

your Data Matter
to the NH5

Non-ExecutiveDirectors:Singleuniformrateof£13,000p.a.,with
discretiontopayupto£2,000perannumforuptotwoindividuals
inrecognition of specificduties. If suchdutieswereto cease, so
would the £2,000 increment.

Chairman: being in the upper quartile of group 2 (the Trust is
challengedandthecurrentincumbentisexperienced)remuneration
of £50,000 p.a. was appropriate.

General principle that going forward any new Non-Executive
Directorwouldbeadvertisedandappointedonthestandardrate
of £13,000 perannum. Additionally,allexistingNon-Executive
Directorswould,bytheendofDecember2022,beremuneratedat
£13,000 per annum.

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrusthasalwaysstrivedtooperate
withopennessandtransparency whenreviewingandsettingthe
paylevelsforseniormanagersandwewillcontinuetodothisgoing
forward.

Signed:

ﬁ‘., 7 -
o b —7%

Joe Barnes
Chair, Remuneration Committee
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Senior Managers Remuneration Policy
Thissectiondescribesthepolicyrelatingtothecomponentsofthe
remunerationpackagesforexecutiveandNon-Executivedirectors
(senior managers).

TheremunerationpolicyforExecutiveDirectorswasupdatedduring
2019/20.

Theaimsoftheupdatedpayandrewardframeworkcurrentlyinplace,

are to:

« Facilitatetherecruitmentandretentionofhighqualityseniorstaff;

+ Ensure that remuneration reflects the extent of the role and
responsibilitiesofindividualpostsandtheircontributiontotheTrust;

- Ensurethattheremunerationisjustifiableandprovidesgoodvalue
for money; and

« Provide atransparent framework for determining senior level
remuneration.

In setting and reviewing pay, it is vital to recruit and retain talent
andtooperatethepaysystemfairly;however,itisalsonecessaryto
havearobustprocessforreviewingremunerationandtobeableto
demonstrate sensible use of public money.

Basepayisdeterminedbyusingannualbenchmarked
datainordertoattractandrewardtherightcalibre

B . .
ase pay ofleaderstodelivertheTrust’sshort,mediumand
long term objectives.

Pension ExecutivedirectorsareabletojointhestandardNHS
pensionschemethatisavailabletoallstaffmembers.
Bonuseswerenotgiventostaff,ExecutiveorNon-

Bonuses . .

Executive Directors.

On call In relation to executive pay, no Board members

payment receive on call payment
The Trust operates a number of salary sacrifice
schemesincludingchildcarevouchersandacarlease

Benefits scheme.Theseareopentoallmembersofstaff.The
individualforgoesanelementoftheirbasicpayin
return for a defined benefit.

Travel . . . .
Appropriatetravelexpensesarepaidforbusinessmiles.

expenses

. AswithallemployeesExecutiveandNon-Executive
Declaration . . o
i Directors must declare any gifts or hospitality

accordingtoTrustpolicywithavalueinexcessof£25.

WiththeexceptionoftheChiefExecutive,theExecutiveDirectorsand
dentalcolleagues,allothernon-medicalsubstantiveemployeesof
theTrust,areremuneratedinaccordancewiththenationalNHSpay
structure,AgendaforChange.ThemajorityoftheTrust'ssubstantive
medicalcolleaguesareremuneratedinaccordancewithnationalterms
and conditions of service for doctors and dentists.

From1January2018,theTreasuryincreasedthethresholdforsenior
pay controls in the NHS to £150,000 and above, against which,
approval for payment is required from the Chief Secretary of the
Treasury. The Cabinet Office approvals process does not apply to
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foundationtrusts.However,thefigureisconsideredtobeasuitable
benchmarkfortruststodisclosewhytheyconsidertheremunerationis
reasonable in situations where it is paid.

Thefigure of £150,000 was exceeded in the case of two executive
directorsduringthefinancialyear.Theseexecutivedirectorsoccupy
statutorypositionsandtheirremunerationhasbeenbenchmarkedwith
others respectively in the same posts.

TheTrust'sremunerationpolicyistransparentandnoperformance
related elements make up the total amount of remuneration.

Service Contracts Obligations
ThecontractsofemploymentofsubstantiveExecutiveDirectorsare
standardised and contain a notice period of six months. All such
contractsareopen-endedbutaresubjecttoearlierterminationfor
cause or if notice is given under the contract.

Policy on Payments for Loss of Office

Thereisnoentitlementtoanyadditionalremunerationintheeventof
earlyterminationforanyoftheExecutiveDirectors.During2019/20no
ExecutiveDirectorreceivedadditionalremunerationforlossofoffice.

Statement of Consideration of Employment Conditions
Elsewhere in the Trust

Except for ‘senior managers’ (as per the definition above) Trust
colleaguesare subjecttonational AgendaforChange, ornational
Medical and Dental Terms and Conditions.

Whensettingtheremunerationpolicyforseniormanagers,thepayand
conditionsoftheseemployeegroupswastakenintoconsideration,and
the need for a transparent policy decided.

TheTrustdidnotconsultwithemployeeswhenpreparingthesenior
managersremunerationpolicy,howeverannualbenchmarkeddata,
includingthatprovidedbyNHSProviders,wasusedtodeterminethe
appropriateremunerationfortheExecutiveandNon-ExecutiveDirectors
during the year.

Executivesalariesareinlinewithnationalexecutiveremuneration
benchmarking, and comprise a transparent process. By using
benchmarkingguidelines,theTrustensuresthatsalariesaresufficientto
attractandretainhighcalibrecandidates,andareappropriateforthe
benchmarked role.

Noperformance-relatedbonusesorlong-termperformancerelated
bonuseshavebeenpaid. Noadditionalfeesorotheritemsthatare
considered to be remuneration in nature are paid.



Policy on diversity and inclusion

Thenational structureforpaymentof NHS colleagues,’agendafor
change) provides a transparent and fair system which supports
NHS servicemodernisationand meetsthereasonableaspirations
ofcolleagues. Itprovidesamodernworkforce, withtherightskills,
experienceanddiversity,whichisorganisedappropriatelyonanational
level,andwhichaimstosupporttherecruitmentandretentionofNHS
professionals.

Likewise, theTrust'spolicyforpaymentofseniormanagersprovides
thesametransparencywithsalariesbeingbenchmarkedagainstpeers
(circa168organisations)withsimilarturnover,size,organisationtype,
andgeographicallocation.Thereisanemphasisonprovidingsalaries
thataresufficienttoattract,retainandmotivatedirectorsofquality
withtheskillsandexperiencetoleadtheTrustsuccessfully,butwithout
paying more than is necessary for this purpose.

Annual Report on Remuneration

Information not subject to audit

Service Contracts
WiththeexceptionsofRichardJenkins,MichaelWright,ChrisPreston
andCallumGardner(upuntil310ctober2019)allExecutiveDirectors
who served during the year did so on substantive contracts of
employmentwithnoenddateswhichincludedanoticeperiodofsix
months.

Withtheexceptionslistedbelow,alloftheExecutiveDirectorsserved
fortheentiretyofthefinancialyear2019/20(1April2019to31March
2020).

LouiseBarnett,ChiefExecutive,employedsubstantivelybytheTrust
since 01 April 2014, left the Trust on 07 February 2020.
DrRichardJenkinsbecamelnterimChiefExecutivefrom10February
2020.

Dr Callum Gardner served as Interim Medical Director from 03
September2018to310ctober2019.Hetookupthesubstantiverole
as Medical Director on 01 November 2019.

ChrisHolt, Deputy Chief Executive,employed by theTrustsince 06
October2014,lefttheTruston31May2019,howeverhestooddown
fromhisexecutive postas Deputy ChiefExecutiveon06May2019.

ChrisPrestonservedasinterimDeputyChiefExecutivefrom07May
2019to09February2020.MichaelWrighttookuptheroleofinterim
Deputy Chief Executive from 10 February 2020.

SteveNedtookuphispostasJointDirectorofWorkforceon01 April
2019.(MrNedisDirectorofWorkforceatboththeTrustandBarnsley
NHS Foundation Trust).
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Executive Directors who were in post prior to 01 April 2019:
Simon Sheppard,employed by theTrust since 03 November2014
George Briggs, employed by the Trust since 01 April 2018.

AngelaWood,employedsubstantivelybytheTrustsince01February
2019.

None of the Trust’s Executive Directors were released by the
organisationtoserveasaNon-ExecutiveDirectorelsewhere.However,
Mr Ned acts as a joint Director of Workforce at both the Trust and
BarnsleyHospitaNHSFoundationTrust.DrJenkinsisChiefExecutive
atBarnsleyHospitaNHSFoundationTrustandwasalsoappointed
Interim Chief Executive at the Trust in February 2020.

Non-ExecutiveDirectorsaregenerallyappointedontermsofthreeyears
andforuptotwoterms,buttheycanbeappointedforuptooneyear
further, at a time, on an exceptional basis, as follows:

Heather Craven
17.02.17 - 16.02.20
17.02.20 - 28.02.23

Mark Edgell
01.06.12 - 31.05.15
01.06.15-31.05.19
01.06.19 - 31.05.21
Dr David Hannah
11.01.18-10.01.20
11.01.20-31.01.20

Barry Mellor
19.09.13 - 18.09.15
19.09.15-18.09.19
Michael Smith
01.04.19-31.03.20
01.04.20 - 31.03.22

Joe Barnes
26.09.13 - 25.09.16
26.09.16 - 25.09.19
26.09.19 - 30.09.20 Nicola Bancroft
01.10.19 - 30.09.22
Lynn Hagger (Vice Chair)
01.10.13 -30.09.16
01.10.16 - 30.09.19

01.10.19 - 30.09.20

Dr Rumit Shah
01.01.20-31.12.21

Martin Havenhand (Chairman)
01.02.14-31.01.17

01.02.17 -31.01.20
01.02.20-31.01.23

EachoftheNon-ExecutiveDirectorsandChairmanareabletoresignby
giving notice.
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Remuneration Committee
ThiscommitteewaschairedbyNon-ExecutiveDirector,BarryMellor,
followedbyJoeBarnes(fromOctober2019),andwascomposedof
fourNon-ExecutiveDirectors.ItsresponsibilitiesaresetoutinitsTerms
of Reference, which were updated during the year.

Following this Terms of Reference revision, the Remuneration

Committeecontinuestohavedelegatedresponsibilityfordetermining
thetermsofremunerationfortheChiefExecutiveandtheExecutive
directorsandalsorecommendsandtakesintoaccountthestructure
andlevelofremunerationacrosstheorganisationasappropriate.Each
memberofthecommitteeisconsideredtobeindependentandnone
hasapersonalfinancialinterestinanyoftheCommittee’sdecisions.

OtherTrustemployeesattendthemeetingasrequestedbytheChair
whereappropriate,includingtheChiefExecutive, butnonewereparty
to decisions made by the Committee.

NoservicesoradvicewasreceivedbytheCommitteefromthirdparties
thatmayhavemateriallyassistedwiththeirconsiderationofanymatter.

The committee formally met five times during the financial year;
membershipandattendancedetailsareshowninthetablebelow.

Joe Barnes :
Meeting date Barry Mellor (Vice Chair Heather Mike Smith Nicola 0
(Chair)"” then Chair)'® Craven Bancroft'

08 May 2019 V v v Vv n/a

17 July 2019 v vV Vv v n/a

14 Aug 2019 v vV Vv vV n/a

13 Nov 2019 n/a Vv v X n/a

02 Dec 2019 n/a Vv Vv v nattendance
only

Attendance 3/3 5/5 5/5 4/5 0/0

MembershipoftheRemunerationCommitteewasupdatedon1Apiril
2019.BarryMellorcontinuedtochairtheCommitteeuntiltheendof
histermofoffice;JoeBarnestookoverasChairoftheCommitteefrom
October2019;HeatherCravencontinuedasamemberandMikeSmith
becameamemberoftheCommittee.(NicolaBancroftbecameavoting
memberofthe Committeefrom 1 April 2020,and Heather Craven
became Vice Chair from the same date)

7Barry Mellor left the Remuneration Committee at the end of his term of office as a Non-Executive Director on 30 September 2019.
'®Joe Barnes became Chair of the Remuneration Committee from October 2019.
“Nicola Bancroft joined the Remuneration Committee from February 2020.
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Not subject to audit

Disclosures required by the Health & Social Care Act 2012
Details relating to the expenses of the Executive, Non-Executive
Directors and Governors are set out in the table below:

Number in office

Number receiving expenses

2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Governors 25 26 3 2
Directors(includingtheChairand 2 18 9 9

Non-Executives)

Expenses shown in £00s

Aggregate sum of expenses paid to Governors

Aggregate sum of expenses paid to Directors

Total

* figures subject to rounding up

Information subject to audit

TheSingleFigureTotalTable(1)appearingoverleafprovidesdetails
ofeachofthecomponentsoftheremunerationpackageforExecutive
Directors,whoaresubjecttotheseniormanagersremunerationpolicy.
Aseparatetable(2)providesdetailsforNon-ExecutiveDirectors,whose
remunerationissetbytheCouncilofGovernors.Setoutseparatelyare
detailsofthepensionentitlementsreceivedbytheExecutiveDirectors.

0 1
71 106
72* 108*

Single Total Figure Table (1)

Salaries and Allowances
ThefollowinginformationisrequiredbyParagraph4-16inclusiveof
Part3ofSchedule8totheRegulations,orwhererequiredbytheNHS
FTCodeofGovernnance.Thesedisclosuresoutlinetheremuneration
figuresforSeniorManagersmadeupofasingleremunerationfigure
foreachseniormanagerwhoservedduringtheyearintabularformas
shownbelow.ThisSingleTotalFiguretablereportssalaryandbenefits
relatedtotheperiodinoffice.PensionBenefitsareaffectedbypension
inflationinyearandsalaryincreasesinyear.SeeTableBPensions,for
further details.

Singhe Total Figure Table Paricd 018419 to 310350 Poriod 010818 & 310319
Annual Long-Tirm Annal Long-Tem
Taxabbe Tanabss
Salary And | Benefies || oo manee| PRAmARCE: | lon—Relate SalayAmd | gygpy | Peromance. " | Pensice-rea
E Rulated Rilaned Total [bamds Foos . Arlated Roated Total (Bands
s (bands | [roumded to d Benaits rounded o bed Bty
Bomuses Bonuses of E5000) [Erihn of Beruses Bomses of ES000)
cf D5000) | the neasest fhands of e nearest (bards of
£00) {bansds of (bands of £2500) L5000 £00) oy of (uredn of £2400)
E5000) ES000) ESDOO) ]
Mrs L Bame®, Chisf Exscutive (in ofes fo 07022020} 155 - 160 ] L] ] S00-51% 205 -0 175 - 180 ¢ 0 Q IT5-400 215 - 230
DOir Rt Jersirs, imeris Chied Enseution fin oo fiom
10022020 15-20 ] ] ] #285-950 | 108-110
e M Wiright, inerim Depuly Chiel Executive (in offce from
ALLeFlrarr]] 2028 ] o o 8751000 | 115.170 - ]
Me S Mad, Joint Dingcier of Wondonos (in offce fom
L — L] — 0 0 | W5-1875 | M5-370
W C Preston, inlenm Deputy Chief Daeoutres (n ofioe from
0TS0 0 CRNA2020) 115- 420 ] 1] o #00 -42 5 160 - 165
Mr 5. Shegppard, Dineclor of Firansg 145 - 150 ] ] ] 102.8-108 | 250-294 120 - 125 ] b ] T5-100 125- 130
Mr C Holl, Degputy Chiaf Exptulive (in ofics b 31.052018) -2 ] ] ] 400429 6570 135 - 148 ] o ] 27.5- 30 165- 170
O G Chareensr, interien Rssical Dirscier (in ofos B
ITA02019L Medeal Dinector in offcs fom 01M 12015) 185 - 188 ] ] ] 600 -625 240 - WS 100 - 105 ] o ] 825 650 165- 170
Mrs & Woosd, Chisf Nurse 130 - 125 ] ] ] 600 -625 180 - 185 60 - 65 a a Q GT5-1000 | 155- 160
W G Briggn. Chinl Opaatrg Offcar 125 - 130 ] L] o 300-325 155 - 183 125-130 ] o L] 2050-2875 | 410-41%

*WhilstChrisPrestoncontinuedtoworkfortheTrustfromthe 10Februaryto08 March2020,hesteppeddownasanExecutiveDirectorand
continued as Director of Strategy and Transformation, a non-voting member of the Board of Directors.
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MrsLouiseBarnett,ChiefExecutive,lefttheTruston7February2020.

DrRichardJenkinsbecamelnterimChiefExecutiveattheTrustfrom
10February2020asajointrolewithBarnsleyHospitalNHSFoundation
Trust.

DrCallumGardnertookupthesubstantiveroleofMedicalDirectoron
1 November 2019 (interim role from 3 September 2018 to
31 October 2019)

Chris Holt, Deputy Chief Executive, left the Trust on 31 May 2019,
however he stood down from his executive post as Deputy Chief
Executive on 6 May 2019.

ChrisPrestonservedasinterim Deputy ChiefExecutivefrom7 May
2019 to 9 February 2020.

MichaelWrighttookuptheroleofinterimDeputyChiefExecutivefrom
10 February 2020.

SteveNedtookuphispostasJoint Directorof Workforce on 1 April
2019 (as joint role with Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.)

Thevalueofpensionbenefitsaccruedduringtheyeariscalculatedas
therealincreaseinpensionmultipliedby20,lessthecontributions
madebytheindividual.Therealincreaseexcludesincreasesdueto
inflationoranyincreaseordecreaseduetoatransferofpensionrights.

Thisvaluederiveddoesnotrepresentanamountthatwillbereceived
by the individual. Itis a calculation that is intended to provide an
estimationofthebenefitbeingamemberofthepensionschemecould
provide.Thepensionbenefittableprovidesfurtherinformationonthe
pension benefits accruing to the individual.

Single Figure Total Table (2)
TheremunerationforNon-ExecutiveDirectorsincludingtheChairman
has been determined by the Council of Governors and is set at a
leveldesignedtorecognisethesignificantresponsibilitiesof Non-
ExecutiveDirectorsinfoundationtrusts,andtoattractindividualswith
thenecessaryexperience, expertiseandabilitytomakeanimportant
contribution to the Trust's affairs.

ThefollowinginformationisrequiredbyParagraph4-16inclusiveof
Part3ofSchedule8totheRegulations,orwhererequiredbytheNHS
FTCodeofGovernnance.Thesedisclosuresoutlinetheremuneration
figuresforSeniorManagersmadeupofasingleremunerationfigure
foreachseniormanagerwhoservedduringtheyearintabularformas
shownbelow.ThisSingleTotalFiguretablereportssalaryandbenefits
relatedtotheperiodinoffice.PensionBenefitsareaffectedbypension
inflationinyearandsalaryincreasesinyear.SeeTableBPensions,for
further details.

Single Tolal Figure Tabe Period 04N o 10320 Panod DN S o 310019
Annual Lang-Term Arnal Long-Term
Taxabie | P o Tamable
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TheNon-ExecutiveDirectorremunerationframework,agreedbytheCouncilofGovernors,isconsistentwithbest
practiceandexternalbenchmarking,andremunerationduring2019/20hasbeenconsistentwiththisframework.
No additional payments are made for any additional duties carried out.

The Non-Executive Directors took no pay rise during 2019/20

Non-Executive Directors, including the Trust Chairman, are subject to fixed term appointments.
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Pension Entitlements of Executive Directors

DetailsofpensionentitlementsofExecutiveDirectorsareshowninthetablebelow.AsNon-ExecutiveDirectorsdonotreceivepensionable
remuneration,therearenoentriesinrespectofpensionsforNon-ExecutiveDirectors.Thistableoutlinestherealincreaseduringthereporting
yearofpensionbenefit,relatedlumpsumandcashequivalenttransfervalues(CETV)atpensionageandthevalueofaccruedpension,lumpsum
and CETV at the end of the year, specifically related to the period in office.

@ 8
£5 | 258 | @ §F |4z |43 |s3.|:
; § EH 8 -
28y | B8 g | § | & g £ (23
dsc | 955 | & §3 cF | L5 S8
IR IR EEHEE B3] i
- o - [
Name and title §w§. Euﬁ EE £es 28 | 3% | €
Eg W Ef7 = = w; w% §§§ 3
AN A At R ERE AL
(bands of | (bandsof | (bands of (bands of
£2,500) £2,500) £5,000) £5,000) £000 £000 £000 £000
£000 £000 £000 £000
Mrs L Bamnett, Chief Execulive (inoffice to
07/02/2020) 25 .50 0.0 -25 450 -50.0| 85.0 - 90.0 699 il 30 NA
Dr R Jenkins, Interim Chief Executive (in office from
10/02/2020) 0.0 -25 0.0 -25 |[75.0 - 80.0| 160.0 - 165.0 | 1,326 | 1,454 11 NA
Mr M Wright, Interim Deputy Chief Executive (in
office from 10/02/2020) 0.0 -25 0.0 -25 [25.0 -30.0 0.0 - 50 327 366 1 NA
Mr S Ned, Joint Director of Workforce (in office from
01/04/2019) 7.5-10.0 | 17.5 -20.0 [55.0 - 60.0 | 140.0 - 145.0| 962 1,179 183 NA
Mr C Preston, Interim Deputy Chief Executive {in
office from 07/05/2019 to 09/02/2020)* 0.0 -25 0.0 -25 [10.0 - 150 0.0 - 50 145 190 14 NA
Mr 5. Sheppard, Director of Finance 50 -7.5 7.5 -10.0 |45.0 - 50.0| 105.0 - 110.0| 678 799 84 NA
Mr C Holt, Deputy Chief Executive (in office fo
31/05/2019) 0.0 -25 0.0 -25 [20.0 - 25.0 0.0 - 50 214 250 2 NA
Dr C. Gardner, Interim Medical Director (in office to
3110/2019), Medical Director (in office from
0111/2019) 2.5 -5.0 0.0 -25 15.0 - 20.0 0.0 - 50 119 171 24 NA
Mrs A Wood, Chief Nurse 25 -5.0 25 -50 |20.0 -25.0| 35.0 - 40.0 294 367 48 NA
Mr G. Briggs, Chief Operating Officer 0.0 -25 50 -7.5 |45.0 - 50.0| 140.0 - 145.0| 1,014 | 1,113 57 NA

*ThemajorityofemployeesarecoveredbytheprovisionsoftheNHS
PensionsScheme.TheSchemeisanunfunded,definedbenefitscheme
thatcoversNHSemployers,GeneralPractitionersandotherbodies
underthedirectionoftheSecretaryforState,inEnglandandWales.As
aconsequence,itisnotpossiblefortheNHSTrusttoidentifyitsshare
oftheunderlyingschemeassetsandliabilities.Furtherdetailscanbe
found in the Annual Accounts at note 1.2.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (CETV)
ACashEquivalentTransferValue (CETV)istheactuariallyassessed
capitalisedvalueofthepensionschemebenefitsaccruedbyamember
ataparticularpointintime. Itistheamountavailabletotransferto
analternativeplaninexchangeforgivinguprightsunderthescheme.
Thebenefitsvaluedarethemember'saccumulatedbenefitsandany
contingentspouse’s pension payablefromthe scheme.CETVsare
calculatedwithintheguidelinesandframeworkprescribedbythe
InstituteandFacultyofActuaries.Theaccruedbenefitsderivedfromthe
member’spurchaseofaddedyearsofserviceandanytransferred-in’
service must be included in these pension disclosures.

The method used to calculate CETVs changed, to remove the
adjustmentfor Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) on 8 August
2019.IftheindividualconcernedwasentitledtoGMP,thiswillaffect
the calculation of the real increase in CETV. This is more likely to
affectthe1995Sectionandthe2008Section.Thisdoesnotaffectthe
calculationoftherealincreaseinpensionbenefits,column(a)and(b)
ofthisPensionsTable,northeSingletotalfiguretable,column(e)ofthe
Salaries table.
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Therealincrease in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively
fundedbytheemployer.lttakesaccountoftheincreaseinaccrued
pensionduetoinflation,contributionspaidbytheemployee(including
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or
arrangement)andusescommonmarketvaluationfactorsforthestart
and end of the period.

Fair Pay Multiple

The Trust is required to disclose the relationship between the
remunerationofthehighestpaiddirectorintheorganisationandthe
medianremunerationoftheorganisation’sworkforceatthereporting
periodenddate(inthiscase31March2020)onanannualisedbasis.

Thebandedmid-pointremunerationofthehighestpaiddirectorinthe
financialyear2019/20was£232,500(2018/19,£177,500).Thiswas

8.5times(2018/19,7.13)themedianremunerationoftheworkforce
(includingdirectlyengagedandagency staff) whichwas £27,260

(2018/19 £24,915)
2019/20 2018/19

2325

Mid-Point of £5k Band of
Highest Paid Director’s Total
(Remuneration £000)
Median Total Remuneration
(000s) (includes Direct
Engagement and Agency)

177.5

27.3 249
RatioofMedianRemuneration
toMidpointoftheHighestPaid
Director’s Band

8.52 7.13
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Of the employeesin post at 31 March 2020, zero members of the
organisation’stotalworkforce(includingagencyanddirectlyengaged
staff)receivedremunerationinexcessofthehighest-paiddirector.

Thiscomparesto30reportedin2018/19,includingdirectlyengaged
and agency staff. This reduction in the number of staff receiving
remunerationinexcessofthehighest-paiddirectorisduetoachange
inthe highest paid director,and the highest paid director's salary.
Itis also due to continued efforts to transfer from agency staff to
directlyengagedorpayrolledstaffwhichmeansthatthehighestpaid
salariesarereducing.In2019/20thesalariesrangedfrom£7,626to
£222,726,excluding the highest paid director.(2018/19£7,235to
£307,747).

Totalremunerationincludessalary,non-consolidatedperformance-
related pay and benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance
payments,employerpensioncontributionsandthecashequivalent
transfer value of pensions.

Themedianisthemiddlenumberinasortedlistofnumbers.Theratio
isthenumberoftimesthemediancanbedividedintothehighestpaid
director's total remuneration.

Definition of Senior Managers
ForthepurposesofthisRemunerationReport'seniormanagers‘are
definedasthosewhoinfluencethedecisionsoftheTrust.Thismeans
thosewhoinfluencethedecisionsoftheTrustasawholeratherthan
thedecisionsofindividualdivisionsorsectionswithintheTrust.AtThe
RotherhamNHSFoundationTrust,andforthepurposesofthisreport,
theterm'seniormanager’appliestotheChair,Non-ExecutiveDirectors
and Executive Directors only, whether substantive or interim.

'.IH—-:' R

ThisRemunerationReportcoversallindividualswhohold,orhaveheld,
officeasChairman,Non-ExecutiveDirectororExecutive Directorfor
TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustduring2019/209,whetherornot
they were substantively appointed.

Senior Managers with Additional Duties
Therewerenopaymentsmadeduring2019/20toSeniorManagers
with additional duties.»

Payments for Loss of Office
Therewerenopaymentsmadeduring2019/20toSeniorManagersfor
loss of office.

Payments to Past Senior Managers
Onepaymentinlieuofannualleaveandinlieuof noticewasmade
during2019/20toapastSeniorManagerwhichrelatedtoaperiodin
office during 2018/19.

Remuneration Report signed by the Chief Executive in his role as
Accounting Officer:

R 7y \ -

Dr Richard Jenkins
Interim Chief Executive
02 June 2020

2FReMrefersto"medicaldirectorsandsimilarstaff’,anddoesnotinclude’deputy CEO'typeroles
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Staff Report

Analysis of Staff Costs

2019/20
Staff Costs

2018/19

Salaries & wages** 145,031 5,601

Social security costs 14,651 -
Apprenticeship levy 718 =
Employer’s contributions to NHS pensions*** 25,091 -
Pension cost - other 83 =
Termination benefits - -
Temporary Staff -

External Bank**** i 3,124
Temporary staff -

agency/contract** 6,706
TOTAL GROSS STAFF COSTS 185,574 15,431
Of which: Costs capitalised as part of assets 319 205

150,632
14,651
718
25,091
83

3,124

6,706

201,005

524

139,880

14,045
686
16,739
46
58

171,454

143

5,261

9,076

14,337

89

*Other' staff includes secondments in, and trainee medial staff employed by the local lead unit, but training within The Rotherham NHS FT on rotation.
**TheSalaries,SocialSecurity, Apprenticeshiplevy,EmployerscontributionsandotherPensioncostsassociatedwithstaffemployedviaaSecondaryContractedPayrollareincludedinthose

lines, and not classed as Agency staff as these staff have zero hours permanent contracts direct with the Trust.

*** Employers pension contributions increased by 6.3% in 2019/20.

**4% 1n 2019/20 the Internal Bank arrangements transferred to an External Bank arrangements with NHS Professionals.

Analysis of Staff: Average Number of Employees (Whole Time Equivalent Basis)

2019/20 2018/19
Permanent
[\[o} b ! b ! !

145,141
14,045
686
16,739
46
58

9,076

185,791
232

Total Permanent Total

No No \[o)

Medical and dental 424 86 509 379 103 481
Administration and estates 1,056 11 1,067 1,049 8 1,057
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 858 - 858 845 - 845
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 1,170 48 1,219 1,164 40 1,204
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 429 8 437 419 5 424

Social care staff 101 4 105 92 2 94
4,038 157 4,195 3,947 158 4,105

Ofwhich:NumberofemployeesengagedonCapital projects 7 5 12 3 3 6

*Other’staff includes secondments in, and trainee medial staff employed by the local lead unit, but training within The Rotherham NHS FT on rotation.

o —

-::‘mﬁz’!ﬁ
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Analysis of Staff: Gender of Staff
As at end March 2020 the breakdown of Trust employed staff by

gender was as follows:
6 1 7

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors 5 3 8
Employees 919 3946 4865
Total 930 3950 4880
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Analysis of Staff: Ethnicity of Staff
As at end March 2020 the breakdown of Trust employed staff by ethnicity was as follows:

Ethnic Origin % of Workforce

White - British 4198 86.02%
White - Irish 23 0.47%
White - Any other White background 63 1.29%
White English 10 0.20%
White Scottish 3 0.06%
White Welsh 1 0.02%
White Polish 1 0.02%
White ex-USSR 1 0.02%
White Croatian 3 0.06%
White Mixed 2 0.04%
White Other European 19 0.39%
Mixed - White & Black Caribbean 11 0.23%
Mixed - White & Black African 8 0.16%
Mixed - White & Asian 22 0.45%
Mixed - Any other mixed background 9 0.18%
Mixed - Black & White 1 0.02%
Mixed - Chinese & White 2 0.04%
Asian or Asian British - Indian 113 2.32%
Asian or Asian British - Pakistani 99 2.03%
Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 7 0.14%
Asian or Asian British - Any other Asian background 36 0.74%
Asian Tamil 1 0.02%
Asian British 1 0.02%
Black or Black British - Caribbean 8 0.16%
Black or Black British - African 54 1.11%
Black or Black British - Any other Black background 6 0.12%
Black Nigerian 2 0.04%
Black British 1 0.02%
Chinese 8 0.16%
Any Other Ethnic Group 38 0.78%
Filipino 1 0.02%
Other Specified 4 0.08%
Not Stated 124 2.54%
Grand Total 4880 100.00%
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Sickness Absence Data

DatarelatingtosicknessabsenceforTrustcolleaguesispublishedby
NHSDigitalandcanbeaccessedhere:https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-
information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence-rates

Staff policies and actions applied during the financial year
TheTrusthasasuiteofpolicies,proceduresandinitiativesinrelationto
theworkforceinordertosupportanddevelopcolleaguesintheirroles.
Some of the key policies and actions are detailed below.

Work has continued during 2019/20 to encourage employees to
disclose disabilities, as disclosure rates in this area are historically
low.Theserateshavenowstartedtoincrease.TheTrusthasengaged
withanumberofdisabledcolleaguesincarryingoutacomprehensive
reviewofitsManagingAttendancePolicyandimprovingthesupport
provisionswithinthatpolicy.TheTrusthassupportedtheestablishment
of a Disability Staff Network.

Alongside the Workforce Race Equality Standard and Workforce
DisabilityEqualityStandard, theTrustcontinuestousetheEquality
Delivery System (EDS2) toassistin discussions withlocal partners
includinglocalpopulationsandreviewandimproveservicesandthe
experienceofemploymentforpeoplewithcharacteristicsprotectedby
the Equality Act 2010.

Modern Slaveryisaddressed under the umbrella of safeguarding
attheTrust,allsafeguardingtraining hasbeenupdatedtoinclude
ModemSlaveryanditisincludedintheAdultSafeguardingPolicy.All
colleaguesarerequiredtoundertakesafeguardingtrainingtoensure
they understand how to raise a concern.

Throughout2019/20,theTrust’sDiversityandInclusionGrouphas
metregularlytoreviewanddriveprogressagainsttheTrust’sEquality,
DiversityandInclusionactionplanandhasprovidedregularupdatesto
the Board of Directors and relevant committees.

The Recruitment, Selection and Promotion Policy contains full
informationontheprocessesforrecruitmentandthevarioustraining
policies contain information on access to training for colleagues.

The organisation’s policy in respect of disabled applicants who
indicatethattheywishtobeconsideredforapostunderthe'Disability
Confident Scheme'is that they will be shortlisted and invited for
interviewwheretheymeettheessentialrequirementsforthepost.

Trustmanagers,withthehelpfromtheOccupationalHealthservice
providerandHumanResources,regularlymakeworkplacemodifications
for colleagues which are reasonable and ensure that disabled
colleaguescannotonlycontinueintheirrolewiththeTrustbutalso
seekpromotionopportunities. Workisundertakenonaproactive
basis,whereapplicable,withoutsideagenciestohelpsupportthe
continuedemploymentandpromotionofcolleagues.ln2019/20the
TrustlaunchedaDisabilityPassportSchemetofurthersupportthe
implementation of reasonable adjustments.

ThelLearningandDevelopmentdepartmentactsasacontactpoint
forall colleaguesbookingontotraining provided by theTrustand
supportscolleagueswhorequirereasonableadjustmentsorspecial
arrangementstoaccesstraining.Inthiswaytheorganisationensures
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thatreasonableadjustmentsaremadetosupportcolleagueswho
discloseadisabilitywhichmaymeantheyrequireextrasupportwith
their learning and development.

Allcolleagueshaveaccesstolocalworkforcedevelopmentprogrammes
andtrainingcourses;colleaguesdiscusstheirtrainingneedswiththeir
linemanagerduringtheirannualappraisal,atone-to-onemeetingsor
at other times, as arranged locally.

TheTrust continues to strive for continuous improvementand to
prioritiseengagementwithcolleagues,settinghighstandards,learning
fromcolleagueexperience,andstrengtheningpartnershipworking.
Ensuring active colleague involvement in the management and
directionofservicesatalllevelsisachievedthroughvaluingcolleagues,
listening and responding to their views and monitoring quality
workforceindicators.Equally,theorganisationacknowledgesthatits
colleaguesshouldhaveconfidencethattheirinputisvaluedandthat
theTrustisresponsivetotheirviewsinthedecisionsittakes,building
on that positive relationship.

There areanumber of mechanismsthrough whichinformationis
communicatedtoemployees.Theseincludeweeklyallusere-mailsand
bulletins,monthlyTeamBrief, departmentalmeetings,adhocbriefings,
TwitterandFacebookaccounts,personalletters,andpayslipmessages
andattachments.Thereisalsoadirectcommunicationfacilitythat
isalsoavailable toenable colleaguesto ask questions of the Chief
Executive(anonymouslyifdesired). Themethod(s)usedwillbethemost
appropriatefortheparticularinformationtobeconveyedbutoneor
more methods will be used for all matters of importance.

Thereisacolleagueintranetwhichprovidesinformationregardingthe
latestchangesanddevelopmentsaswellasroutineinformation.Notall
clinicalandsupportcolleaguesuseelectroniccommunicationmethods
andconsequently,managersareaskedtomakeallcolleaguesawareof
information communicated by electronic means.

Theweeklyallusere-mails, theintranetandTeamBriefareallused
asameansofconveyingofficialinformation,asappropriate,whichis
ofbenefittocolleaguesinasocial,personalanddevelopmentalway.
Examplesincludereportingontheachievementsofcolleagues,benefits
andservicesavailable,activitiesandeventstakingplace, healthrelated
informationandoffers.Thereareseparatepagesontheintranetfor
colleaguehealth,benefitsandwellbeingofferinganextensiverangeof
discountsandcontactsaswellassourcesforsupport,developmentand
training.

Colleaguesareactivelyengagedwith,andtheirfeedbackobtained,
onmattersbeingcommunicated.Thisoccursthroughthe'TeamBrief’
process,ColleagueForumsandthroughtheregularmeetingsofthe
JointPartnershipForumandLocalNegotiatingCommitteewhere
tradeunionsandprofessionalassociationrepresentativesmeetwith
seniormanagerstodiscussissuesaffectingstaffandlocalconditions
ofservice.AsubgroupoftheJointPartnershipForum,theJointPolicy
Group, agreesand updates Human Resources (HR) policiesinline
withcurrentemploymentlawandensurestheyhavebroadagreement
withintheorganisation.TheLocalNegotiatingCommitteeistheforum
for medical and dental staff.



AllTrustpoliciesareavailableontheintranetforcolleagues,including
theextensiverangeofHRpolicies,manyofwhichareaboutservices
availabledirectlyinsupportofcolleagues.Examplesinclude:Special
Leave,FlexibleWorking,ManagingAttendance,HealthandWellbeing
policies,FreedomtoSpeakUp(RaisingConcerns)andSharedParental
Leave.

ThisyeartheTrustreceived external recognitionforthechangesit
hasmadetoitsadoptionleavepolicyenablingandmakingiteasier
forcolleaguestoaccesssupportatwhatcanbeaverydifficultand
stressfultime.TheTrust,workinginpartnershipwithourtradeunion
colleagues, signed up to the Dying at Work charter, a Trust wide
commitmentwhichhelpsandsupportscolleaguestoremainatwork.

TheTrustrecognisesthatvaluingandcelebratingtheachievementsof
theworkforceisessentialtoenablethefuturegrowthanddevelopment
of the organisation and the individuals who are part of it. This
wasdemonstratedwhenspecificeventswerearrangedtosupport
InnovationWeek,ValuesWeekand PROUDWeekculminatinginan
awards ceremony for colleagues held on 15 November 2019.

Health & Safety and Occupational Health

A seventh consecutive gold award was received by the Trust for
preventingaccidentsonitshospitalandcommunitysitesfromtheRoyal
SocietyforthePreventionofAccidents(RoSPA),aspartoftheirRoSPA
OccupationalHealthandSafety Awards2019/20.0Onlyorganisations
abletomaintaincontinuedhighstandardsinhealthandsafetyachieve
the gold award.

TheOccupationalHealthserviceislocateddiscreetlybehindthemain
Woodsidebuilding,offeringprofessionalspecialistnurse,counselling
andproactiveoccupationalhealthservices.Aspartoftheoccupational
health provision the Trust can access the Employee Assistance
Programme(EAP),whichprovidesconfidentialsupportbyqualified
counsellors 24 hours a day to colleagues.

Theoccupational health service continued todeliver high quality
interventionstoemployees,supportingahealthier,fitterworkforceand
supporting the Trust’s objective to reduce sickness absence.

Countering fraud, bribery and corruption

The Trust’s Chief Executive and Director of Finance are jointly
responsible for ensuring adherence to the NHS Counter Fraud
Authority(NHSCFA)Anti-CrimeStrategyforcounteringfraud,bribery
andcorruption.TheNHSCFAisresponsibleforensuringthequality
of measures to counter fraud, bribery and corruption within NHS
Foundation Trusts.

Service condition 24.2 ofthe NHS Standard Contract2019/20sets
outTheTrust’s obligations to safeguard NHS funds and resources
throughcompliancewith23standardsforcounteringfraud,briberyand
corruption:

Strategic Governance (7 standards). Covers standards in relation
to The Trust’s strategic governance arrangements. The aim is to
ensurethatanti-crimemeasuresareembeddedatalllevelsacrossthe
organisation.
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Inform and Involve (4 standards). Covers requirementsin relation
to raising awareness of crime risks against the NHS and working
withNHSstaff,stakeholdersandthepublictohighlighttherisksand
consequences of fraud, bribery and corruption against the NHS.

Prevent and Deter (6 standards). Covers the requirements in
relationtodiscouragingindividualswhomaybetemptedtocommit
fraudagainsttheNHSandensuringthatopportunitiesforcrimeto
occur are minimised.

Hold to Account (6 standards). Sets out the requirements in
relationtodetectingandinvestigatingeconomiccrime,obtaining
sanctions and seeking redress.

Inordertodemonstratecompliancewiththestandards,theTrustis
requiredtocompleteand submitanannual SelfReviewTool (SRT)
assessmentratingcomplianceagainstared/amber/greenscale.An
SRT against these standards was completed in April 2019 which
demonstrated an overall ‘Green’rating.

TheTrusthasanominated Counter Fraud Specialist (CFS) in place
providedby360Assurance.TheCFSisresponsibleforcarryingouta
rangeofactivitiesincompliancewiththeabovestandardswhichare
overseenbytheDirectorofFinanceandtheAuditCommittee. TheCFS
undertakesfraud,briberyandcorruptionriskassessmentsthroughout
theyearwhichareusedtoinformtheannualprogrammeofactivities
undertaken within the above areas of focus.

During the reporting year, counter fraud activity has focused on
activitiestoensurecompliancewithNHSCFAstandardsandtoaddress
areas of heightened risk including:

« Cyber-crime

- Staff secondary working

- Bank and Agency Staff

« Mandate Fraud

« Declarations of interests

+ Overseas Visitors

TheTrusthasaFraud,BriberyandCorruptionPolicywhichoutlinesthe
Trust'szerotoleranceapproachtofraud,briberyandcorruptionand
sendsaclearmessagethatallavailablesanctionswillbepursuedin
respectofthosecaughtcommittingoffencesagainsttheTrust.Clear
reportingproceduresareincludedwithinthepolicyandthepolicyis
signposted to staff within all training delivered by the CFS.

Where fraud is identified or reported it is formally investigated in
accordancewiththeTrust'sFraud,BriberyandCorruptionpolicy.During
2019/20,fivereferralsofsuspectedfraud,briberyorcorruptionwere
madetotheCFS,demonstratingagoodawarenessandunderstanding
of the Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy.

Trade Union Facility Time Disclosures
Communicatingandconsultingwithouremployeesinpartnershipwith
ourtradeunionsandprofessionalbodiesiscoretoourservicedelivery.
Wearecommittedtodevelopingcommunicationwithallemployees
and maximisingthebenefitsof staffinvolvementbyensuringthat
wehaverobustmechanismsinplacewithourunioncolleagues.We
recognisethatemployeeinvolvementandpartnershipworkingmust
takeplacethroughouttheorganisation,regardlessofprofessional,
service or functional boundaries.

Annual Report and Accounts 201920



We are committed to maximising staff involvement by:

« Developingandimplementingeffectivecommunicationprocesses
within the Trust

+ Developingacultureofstaffinvolvementandparticipationwhere
mechanismsare in place for all staff to be able to contribute to
the decision-making processes that affect their working lives
andthedeliveryofhealthcare,whilstfeelingconfidentthattheir
contribution makes a difference and is valued and

- Effectivechangemanagementdeliveredthroughpartnership
working.

We recognise that good employment relations are an important
factorinachievingourobjectivesanddeliveringhighqualitypatient
care.Cooperationandcommunicationareimportantfeaturesofthe
relationship between us, our unions and our employees.

Inpartnershipwithourunioncolleagues,werecogniseourcommon
interestsandarecommittedtomaintainingandimprovingemployment
relationsandengagementintheTrustanddealingwithandresolving
anyissuesatanearly stage, asspeedilyas possibleandinline with
jointly agreed policies and procedures.

Number of employees who were relevant union

officials during the relevant period

25 (equated to 22.05 WTE)

WehavehadourTradeUnionRecognitionandFacilitiesAgreementin
placeforseveralyears(whichisoursystemforagreeingaccesstopaid
timeanddevelopmentforourunioncolleagues)toenablethemto
givethebestpossiblesupporttotheirmembersandtheorganisation.
Throughouttheyearweengagethroughmanyformalandinformal,
planned and ad hoc forain the pursuit of achieving our common
interests for our employees, and ultimately our patients.

TheTradeUnion(FacilityTimePublicationRequirements)Regulations
2017requiretheTrusttodiscloseanumberofpiecesofinformation
relating to the work of Trust employees who are Trade Union
representatives. However,during the disclosure period the exact
detailswerenotkeptduetoachangeoverinprocessduringtheyear.
Consequently,theTrusthastakenthedecisiontodisclosethefigures
relatingto2017/18(disclosedinthe 2018/19 Annual Report) plus
10%ratherthanprovideaninaccuratefigure.Thisapproachhasbeen
agreed with the Trust’s staff side representatives.

Table 1: Relevant union officials

Whatwasthetotalnumberofyouremployeeswhowererelevantunion
officials during the relevant period?

Full-time equivalent employee number

Between 1501 and 5000




Table 2: Percentage of time spent on facility time

How many of your employees who were relevant union officials
employedduringtherelevantperiodspenta)0%,b)1%-50%,c)51%-
99% or d) 100% of their working hours on facility time?

Percentage of time Number of employees

0%

1-50% 25
51%-99%

100%

Table 3: Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Providethefiguresrequestedinthefirstcolumnofthetablebelow
todeterminethe percentage of yourtotal paybill spenton paying
employeeswhowererelevantunionofficialsforfacilitytimeduringthe
relevant period.

P.rowde the total cost of facility £74,000
time

Provide the total pay bill £185,574,000

Provide the percentage of the
totalpaybillspentonfacilitytime,

calculated as: 0.04%
(total cost of facility time + total

pay bill) x 100

Table 4: Paid trade union activities

As a percentage of total paid facility time hours, how many hours
werespentbyemployeeswhowererelevantunionofficialsduringthe
relevant period on paid trade union activities?

Time spent on paid trade
union activities as a

[0)
percentage of total paid 0.7%

facility time hours

(Totalhoursspentonpaidtradeunionactivitiesbyrelevantunionofficials
during the relevant period =+ total paid facility time hours) x 100
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Expenditure on Consultancy

Consultancy costsduring2019/20 were £208,000, representinga
reduction from £827,000 spent during 2018/19 which related to
one-off piecesof workwhich were notrepeated. The consultancy
workundertakenduring2019/20wasacrossvariousfunctionsofthe
organisation.

Off Payroll engagements

The decision to appoint Board members or senior officials with
significantfinancialresponsibilitythroughanoff-payrollarrangementis
made at a very senior level for exceptional operational reasons.

Thestandard processduring2019/20wasto seekassuranceforall
off-payrollworkersthattheywerecompliantwithIR35andthatall
relevant taxes were being paid.

lz?LﬁI]c;ff-payroll engagements as of 31st March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than six months.
Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020 3
Of which;

Number that have existed for less than one year at time of reporting. 3
Number that have existed between one and two years at time of reporting. 0
Number that have existed between two and three years at time of reporting. 0
Number that have existed between three and four years at time of reporting. 0
Number that have existed for four or more years at time of reporting. 0

Table 2:

For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020,
for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than six months.

Number of new engagements, or those that reached sixmonths in duration, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 3
Of which;
Number assessed as within the scope of IR35 2
Number assessed as not within the scope of IR35 1
Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted to Trust) and are on the Trust's payroll 0
Number of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance purposes during the year 0
Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following the consistency review 0
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Table 3:

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility, between
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020.

Numberofoff-payrollengagementsofboardmembers,and/or,seniorofficialswithsignificantfinancialresponsibility,duringthe
financial year.

Numberofindividualsthathavebeendeemedboardmembers,and/or,seniorofficialswithsignificantfinancialresponsibility’;

during the financial year. This figure should include both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements.* 10

*Thereare7Boardmemberposts.InyeartherehavebeentwoChief
Executives and three Deputy Chief Executives.

Staff Exit Packages

Thetablebelowsummarisesthetotalnumberofexitpackagesagreed
duringtheyear.Includedwithinthesearecompulsoryredundancies
andotherschemesincludingMARS (MutuallyAgreedResignation
Scheme) applications. The table shows packages agreed in year,
irrespective of the actual date of accrual or payment. This table
excludesPaymentinLieuofNotice(PILON) paymentsmadeaspartof
standard contractual terms, and not part of a wider exit package.

Exitcostsinthistablearethefull costs of departuresagreedinthe
yearWheretheTrusthasagreedearlyretirements,theadditionalcosts
aremetbytheTrustand notbythe NHS Pension Scheme.lll-health
retirement costsare met by the NHS Pensions Schemeandarenot
included in the table.

Number of other

Number of compulsory er-eai ey Total number of exit

Exit package cost band redundancies departures agreed packages by cost band
£50,001 - £100,000 0 1 0 0 0 1
Total number of exit packages by type 0 1 0 0 0 1
Total resource cost £000s 0 58 0 0 0 58

Analysis of non-compulsory departure payments
In2019/20therewerenonon-compulsorydepartures,andtherefore
zeropaymentsmade(2018/19£0).Thisnotereflectspackagesagreed
in year, irrespective of the actual date of accrual or payment.

Thisnoteexcludespaymentsinlieuofnotice(PILON)paymentsmade

as part of standard contractual terms, and not part of a wider exit
package.
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Staff Survey

Staff Engagement
TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrusthascontinuedinitsambition
todeliver high quality care.Inlate 2019 our Chief Executive along
withseniorcolleaguesheldanumberoflisteningsessionswithteams
acrosstheorganisation.Theseeventsgaveustheopportunityasan
organisationtofurthershapeourorganisationalprioritieswhichwere
outlined in our overarching Trust 5-year plan.

AsaTrustwehavetakensomereallypositivestepsbutwerecognise
thatthereismoreworktodotoachieveourstrategicambitionofbeing
in the top 20% of NHS employers for staff engagement.

Werecognisethatimprovingcolleagueengagementisachallenge
in the current climate. Therefore, we have sought to embed the
approacheswedeployedwiththeacknowledgementthattheytake
timetobefeltacrosstheorganisation.Thatsaidwehaveseenasteady
improvementinourstaffsurveyresultsbothfromacompletionrate
andfromourindividualimprovementjourney,albeitourresultshave
not moved us into a more favourable position nationally.

Lastyearwecommittedtobuildanorganisationdevelopmentstrategy
(OD),revisetheengagementandwellbeingstrategyandreviseand
remodel our communication strategy.

TheinceptionofthenationallnterimPeoplePlanprovideduswitha
frameworktoincorporateourTrust-wideapproach. Asaresult,we
havecombinedEngagement,ODandwellbeingstrategiesintoaPeople
Strategy.ThisdocumentclearlysetsoutwhereweareasaTrustandour
keyprioritiesforthenext3yearsandisdesignedaroundfourthemes:
Build, Engage, Lead and Learn.

Build How we will build our workforce

Engage How we will engage with all our people

Lead Howwewilldevelopourleadershipcultureandnurturetalent
Learn Howwewillensuretherearelearningopportunitiesforall

Wecontinuetopromoteourcorevaluesinallthatwedotorecognise
the importance of our culture and the colleagues that make The
Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust the organisation it is.
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We have a number of initiatives that recognise and reward our
colleaguesfortheworktheydoindeliveringhighqualitycare Thisyear
wecelebratedkeyachievementsandunsungheroesduringourProud
Week,recognitionoflongserviceawardsandrecognitionoflearning
eventsculminatinginourprestigiousawardceremony.Theseawards
wereattendedbybothcolleaguesandotherstakeholdersthatweare
in partnership with.

We continued to deploy our ‘Together We Can’engagement
methodologyandthishasbecomeevidentthroughouttheyearasithas
beenusedtoinformlocalimprovementsinserviceprovision,corporate
responsetothenationalflucampaignanddevelopmentofwellbeing
initiatives.

TheTrustperformedwellintheannualflucampaign.Theinfluenza
vaccinationwasofferedtoallcolleaguesandtheTrustachieved80%
vaccination rates for frontline workers.

TheTrusthascontinuedtodevelopanddriveimprovementsacrossthe
organisationinlinewiththestandardssetoutin'ThrivingatWorkfor
example:mentalhealthpromotion,complementarytherapies,5Waysto
Wellbeing etc.

National Staff Survey
TheNHSstaffsurveyisconductedannually.From2018onwardsthe
resultsfromquestionsaregroupedtogivescoresacrosstenindicators.
The indicator scores are based on a score out of ten for certain
questions with the indicator score being the average of those.

Theresponseratetothe2019surveyamongstTrustcolleagueswas
48%(2018:38%).Scoresforeachindicatortogetherwiththatofthe
surveybenchmarkinggroup(combinedacuteandcommunitytrusts)are
presented below.
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2019/20

Equality,diversityandinclusion

Health and wellbeing 5.8 6.0
Immediate managers 6.8 6.9
Morale 6.0 6.2
Quality of appraisals 52 5.5
Quality of care 7.2 7.5
Eagi I(I?;\r:gzr:\nc;ir;trassment 8.2 8.2
Safety culture 6.6 6.8
Staff engagement 6.7 7.1
Team Working* 6.5 6.7

*New category in 2019 survey.

TheTrusthasshownaslightimprovementin5outof10themes.This
year’sresultsshowthatincomparisonwithourpeers3ofthe 10are
equaltoourpeergroupand?arelessfavourablenotablythegreatest
downturnbeingstaffengagement (0.4 points). Thenew category
thisyear,teamworking,wasalittlebelowourpeervalue.Themost
improved theme (0.2 points) in the 2019 survey was staff morale.

Future priorities and targets

Statement of key priority areas
TheTrusthasprioritisedcolleagueengagementasakeypriorityarea
offocusthroughout2020.Thisincludesdivisionalactionsinrelationto
local staff results and development of a corporate action plan.

TheTrustwillrevisittherewardandrecognitionapproach,inception
andembeddingofthenewTrustPeoplePlanandcontinuetoworkon
deliveryoftheequality,diversityandinclusionagenda.Workisalready
inprogresstoexamineandsupportthequalityofcolleagueappraisal
andtalentmanagement.TheTrustwill continueinitsambitionto
provideasupportivepsychologicalwellbeingagendaforcolleaguesto
complement the wellness agenda.

AllactivitieswillbealignedtotheOperationalPlanand5-yearTrust
strategy.

Trust Benchmarking Trust Benchmarking Trust Benchmarking
Group Group Group
9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2
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2018/19 2017/18

5.8 59 5.9 6.0
6.7 6.8 6.6 6.8
5.8 6.2 N/A N/A
49 5.4 49 53
7.2 7.4 7.1 7.5
8.2 8.1 83 8.1
9.5 95 9.5 95
6.5 6.7 6.3 6.7
6.6 7.0 6.5 7.0
N/A N/A N/A N/A

Performance against priority areas
TheBoardofDirectorswillagreekeymilestonesanddeliverytargets
fortheorganisation;however,inordertoensurewehaveadequate
capacity withinthe organisation to succeed given the challenges
we will face with COVID-19, it is important to focus on a few core
objectivesintheshort-term.Deliveryofthebelowfourobjectiveswill
moveusforwardasanorganisationandensurewemakeourpatients,
colleaguesandthewiderpublicproudtohavetheTrustastheirlocal
healthcare provider

Monitoring arrangements
Workforcerelatedperformanceandpeopleobjectiveswillbemonitored
throughthecommitteestructuresinplaceincludingtheOperational
Workforce Group, People Committee and ultimately the Board of
Directors.

Locally each Division will develop improvement plans using key
information from the national staff survey results, CQC feedback,
colleaguefriendsandfamilytestandotherkeyTrustmetrics.Thesewill
bemanagedthroughamonthlydivisionalperformancemeetingand
dashboards providing assurance to the Board of Directors.

Thewiderworkforceandengagementactivitieswillbemonitored
throughtheOperationalWorkforceGroupchairedbytheDirectorof
Workforce.Theactionsofthisgroupandanyassociatedworkplans
will provide the appropriate assurance to the People Committee.
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Future Priorities and how they will be measured

Mortality
Operational Performance

Workforce

Financial Stewardship &
Governance

Ensure the Trust’s mortality rates are being counted and reported correctly
Comply with national requirements around operational standards

Increasethesubstantiveestablishmentofourstaff,includingthroughimprovingourstaffengagement

Deliverourfinancialplanbasedonrevised COVID-19expectations;ensureimprovedfinancialstewardship
across the organisation

Ontopofthesehigh-levelobjectives,thereareasmallnumberofkey
prioritiesfortheTrustoverthenext12months,bearinginmindthe
impact that COVID-19 may have on our capacity to deliver these.

At a summary level, these priorities are:

Optimising Flow

Outpatient Transformation

Staff Engagement

Senior Leadership

Optimiseflowthroughthehospitalbydevelopingresilientemergencypathways,shoringupSameDay
EmergencyCareprovision,increasingearlydischargeandimplementingappropriatestreamingandon-siteGP
OOH services

Deliver a step change reduction in the number of face to face appointments, lowering the overall
number and utilising technology solutions where appropriate

Improvestaffengagementand moralebydrivingafundamentalchangeinthevolumeandimpactof
staff engagement activity in the Trust

Maximise the effectiveness of the senior leadership within the organisation, empowering staff to

Effectiveness

Recruitment and Retention

work collectively to make informed decisions
Increase the proportion of our workforce who are substantively employed by the Trust and in

doing so, reduce the vacancy rate and ensure a minimum 10% in-year reduction in agency cost

Estates Moves

Complete Ophthalmology move to RCHC and relocate existing Greenoaks services (ante and

post-natal care) and Cystoscopy services to Oakwood Hall

Gastroenterology Service

Itis essential that effective systems and processes are in place to
supportdelivery of the objectives set out within this plan. We will
do this via an agreed framework to oversee progress against key
milestonesanddefinedoutcomemeasuresforeachprogrammeof
work.Whilstoverallresponsibilityfordeliverywillsitwiththerelevant
Clinical or Corporate Division, compliance will be monitored and
tracked corporately,withmonthlyreportingtotherelevantBoard
Assurance Committees and the Board of Directors.

Theframeworkwillbuildupontheapproachtakenwithin2019/20
withleadExecutiveDirectorsforeachobjective.Implementationwill
beoverseenbyamulti-disciplinaryteamprovidinginputalignedto
theirfieldofexpertise.Thiswillinclude (butisnotlimitedto)Clinical,
Managerial,Operational,Financial Workforce,InformationandDigital
representation.Thisinclusiveandengagingoperatingstylewillbekey
toprovidingassurancethatanyimpactofindividualschemeshasbeen
fullyconsideredattheoutsettosupportasmoothimplementationand
transition.

Gender Pay Gap

Thegenderpaygapreportshowsthedifferencebetweentheaverage
(meanormedian)earningsofmenandwomen.Thisisexpressedas
apercentageofmen’searningse.g.womenearn15%lessthanmen.
Usedtoitsfullpotential,genderpaygapreportingisavaluabletool

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

Implement joint Gastroenterology service with Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust,
including a joint Gl bleed rota and joint ward cover

forassessing levels of equality in the workplace, female and male
participation, and how effectively talent is being maximised.

Dataandstatisticsprovidedforthisreporthavebeencreatedusingthe
nationalElectronicStaffRecordsSystemBusinessintelligencereporting
tool,specificallydesignedtoallowNHSTruststomeetthestatutory
reporting requirements.

Mean Gender Pay Gap and Median Gender Pay Gap

*Median

Gender Hourly Rate

Mean Hourly Rate

Male £20.88 £16.09
Female £15.07 £13.26
Difference £5.81 £2.82

Pay Gap % 27.83% 17.55%

* This data excludes Long Service Awards



TheTrust’s Gender Pay Gap asat 31 March 2019 was 17.55%. This
isasignificantdeterioration onthe previousyear,whenitstoodat
10.58%. There does not appear to be asingle explanation for this
change.Whilstthemeanhourlyrateofpayforwomenhasrisenthere
hasbeenaslightincreaseintheproportionofmeninthehighestpaid
quartile,accompaniedbyareductionintheproportionofmeninthe
lowestpaidquartile.Therehasalsobeenaslightincreaseintheoverall
percentage of men in the workforce, from 17.1% to 17.4%.

Thefullgenderpaygapreportcanbeaccessed here: http://www.

therotherhamft.nhs.uk/Equality_and_Diversity/Equality_and_diversity_
monitoring_data/
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Governance and Organisational Structure

Board of Directors

TheTrust’s Board of Directors operates as a unitary board which is
collectivelyresponsibleforallareasoftheTrust'sperformance(clinical
andservicequality,operationalperformance financialperformanceand
managementandgovernance).Bestpracticestandardsareusedbythe
Board as part of its governance framework.

TheBoardislegallyaccountablefortheservicesprovidedbytheTrust,
and its key responsibilities include:
Settingthestrategicdirection(havingtakenintoaccounttheCouncil
of Governors’ views)
Ensuringthatadequatesystemsandprocessesaremaintainedto
deliver the Trust’s annual Operational Plan

Ensuring that its services provide safe, clean, high quality and
professional care for patients
Ensuringrobustgovernancearrangementsareinplacesupportedby
aneffectiveassuranceframeworkwhichsupportssoundsystemsof
internalcontrolincludingtheappointmentanddismissalofBoard
Committees
EnsuringrigorousperformancemanagementwhichenablestheTrust
to achieve local and national targets

Seeking continuous improvement and innovation
MeasuringandmonitoringtheTrust'seffectivenessandefficiency
Approvingproposedexpenditureabovespecifiedfinanciallimits
Ensuring that the Trust, at all times, remains compliant with its
Licence, as issued by NHS Improvement

Exercising the powers of the Trust established under statute, as
described within the Trust’s Constitution

TheBoardalsoestablishesthevaluesandstandardsofconductofthe
TrustanditscolleaguesensuringtheseareinaccordancewithNHS
valuesandthe'NolanPrinciples'ofpubliclife:selflessness,objectivity,
integrity,accountability,openness,honestyandleadership.The'Nolan
Principles?'setouttheethicalstandardsexpectedofindividualswho
holdpublicoffice.TheTrusthasensureditssystemsduring2019/20
remainedcompliantwithNHSEngland'sConflictsofinterestguidance
which came into force in June 2017.

The Matters Reserved to the Board and the Scheme of
Delegationaredocumentswhichdetailthepowersanddecisionsthat
theBoardofDirectorshasresolvedmayonlybeexercisedbytheBoard
during a formal session.

Thedaytodaymanagementoftheorganisationisdelegatedbythe
BoardthroughtheChiefExecutivetotheExecutiveDirectors.Clear
objectivesaresetandusedtoensurethattheorganisationismanaged
effectively,efficientlyandtothehigheststandardsinaccordancewith
itsvalues.Monthlyupdatesonallaspectsofperformanceareprovided
to the Board by the Executive Directors.

Zhttps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
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Composition of the Board of Directors

Full-timeExecutiveDirectorsandpart-timeNon-ExecutiveDirectors
aremembersoftheBoardofDirectors.Non-ExecutiveDirectorsare
appointed by the Council of Governors and are selected from the
MembershipoftheTrust.Non-ExecutiveDirectorsarechosenfortheir
broadbusiness,clinicalorotherexperienceandincludeindividuals
specifically appointed due to their financial and/or commercial
experience,existingknowledgeoftheNHS,educationalbackgrounds,
voluntary and charitable sector experience.

Allthe Non-Executive Directorsareindependentincharacterand
theyarefreefrommaterialbusinessorotherrelationshipwhichmay
interfere with their judgement.

TheBoardofDirectorsconsidersthatitsrangeofskills,knowledgeand
experienceisappropriate,balancedandcompleteforthechallenges
currentlyfacingitsDirectors. Followingboththeexternalwell-led
reviewandtheCQCinspectionsundertakenin2018,during2019/20
theBoardsoughttofurtherincreasethediversityofitsmembership,
appointingthreenewNon-ExecutiveDirectorsandfourExecutive
Directors during the year.

AllExecutiveandNon-ExecutiveDirectorsreceivedannualperformance
evaluationandappraisal.FortheChairmantheperformanceappraisal
andobjectivesettingisundertakenjointlybytheSeniorindependent
Director and the Lead Governor.

FortheNon-ExecutiveDirectorsperformanceappraisalisundertakenby
theChairmaninconjunctionwiththeLeadGovernor.Bothappraisal
processesareinformedbyacollectiveviewoneachindividualNon-
ExecutiveDirector'sperformanceprovidedbytheExecutiveDirectors.

The ChiefExecutive’s performance appraisalisundertaken by the
ChairmanandtheperformanceappraisalsoftheExecutiveDirectorsis
carried out by the Chief Executive.

During 2019/20 the performance of the Board has been further
evaluatedinternallythroughBoard Developmentawaydays,Board
seminarsessionsandthroughtheon-going,quarterlyreviewofthe
Board Assurance Framework

Inaddition,followingonfromitsexternalwell-ledreviewin2018,the
BoardcontinuedtoworkwithTheGovernanceForumtoattain‘The
GovernanceFrameworkaccreditationfromTheCharteredGovernance
Institute.

InDecember2019theTrustbecamethefirstinEnglandtoattainthis
accreditation.




ix W F

Martin Havenhand Dr Richard Jenkins
Chairman Interim Chief Executive

Dr Rumit Shah Lynn Hagger Mark Edgell Heather Craven
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director / Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Vice Chair

Joe Barnes Nicola Bancroft Michael Smith

Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
and Senior Independent
Director

Michael Wright Dr Callum Gardner Angela Wood Simon Sheppard Steven Ned George Briggs

Interim Deputy Medical Director Chief Nurse Director of Finance Director of Workforce Chief Operating Officer
Chief Executive
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Followingtheexternal well-led review commissioned by theTrust
during2018/19,the Board of Directorsimplemented thereview’s
recommendations during 2019/20.

TheTrustdid notreceive aUse of Resourcesassessmentfrom NHS
Improvement / England during the year, instead the next such
inspection was scheduled for May 2020, although this date was
deferred due to COVID-19.

TheBoardAssuranceFramework(BAF),whichwashighlyratedbythe
Trust'sinternal Auditorsduring2017/18,wasfurtherrefinedduring
theyearwith the supportoftheTrust’s new Internal Auditors, 360
Assurance.TheBAFprovidesacomprehensivereviewofthemannerin
whichtheTrustisidentifying,managingandmitigatingtheriskstothe
achievement of its strategic objectives.

Meet the Board of Directors

The balance and relevance of the skills, knowledge and expertise
thateachoftheDirectorsbringtotheTrustisdemonstrated bythe
descriptionsbelowofeachDirector’sexpertiseandexperience.Details
areprovidedforthoseDirectorswhowereinpostasat31March2020.

Non-Executive Directors
AlINon-ExecutiveDirectorsontheBoardofDirectorsareconsideredto
beindependent.TheTrust’spolicyinrelationtoNon-ExecutiveDirector
appointmentsisthatappointmentsaremadeforuptoathree-year
termofofficeaspertheTrust’sConstitutionwithonemonth’snoticeon
eitherside.Theinitialthree-yeartermofofficemayberenewedonceto
meanaNon-ExecutiveDirectormayserveupto6consecutiveyearson
the Board of Directors.

ANon-ExecutiveDirectormay,inexceptionalcircumstances,serve
longerthansixyears;however,thisarrangementissubjecttoannual
review in accordance with The NHS Foundation Trust Code of
Governance.

Martin Havenhand

Chairman
MartinisaveryexperiencedChairmanandNon-ExecutiveDirector.He
hasawealthofExecutiveandNon-Executiveexperiencefromboththe
publicandprivatesectorsandisknowledgeableandexperiencedin
regulated industries.

HealsobringstotheTrustextensiveexperienceandknowledgeofthe
SouthYorkshireandBassetlawcommunitywhichisinvaluableasthe
Trustcontinuestodevelopandenhancelocalhealthcareservicesfor
the future.

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustisakeypartnerintheRotherham
Together Partnership and in March 2019 Martin was appointed
Chairman of the Ambition Rotherham Board whichis made up of
privateandpublicsectorleaderstopromotetheRotherhamStoryon
behalf of the Partnership.

MartinjoinedtheTrustasChairmaninFebruary2014andtheCouncil
ofGovernorsinitiallyre-appointedMartinasChairmanattheirmeeting
inJuly2016forafurtherthree-yeartermeffectivefromFebruary2017.
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OnceaNon-ExecutiveDirectorhasservedforsixyearsattheTrust,the
NHSFoundationTrustCodeofGovernancestatesthatNon-Executive
Directorsshouldbesubjecttoannualre-appointmentfollowinga
rigorous review. Such a review was undertaken for Martin by the
CouncilofGovernors’NominationCommitteeinFebruary2019.As
aresult,in April2019the Council of Governorsagainre-appointed
Martin as Chairman for a further three-year term effective from
February2020,subjecttosatisfactoryannualreview.AsatendMarch
2020 Martin had servedjustoversixyearsas theTrust’s Chairman.

Martin,asChairmanoftheTrust,chairstheBoardofDirectorsandthe
BoardNominationsCommittee.HeisalsotheChairoftheCouncilof
Governors’'meetingsandtheChairofthe Governors’'Nominations
Committee.

During2019/20Martinwasalsochairofthe Strategyand Business
Planning Committee which ceased at the end of 2019/20.

TheothersignificantcommitmentsoftheChairmanweredisclosed
beforeformalapprovaloftheappointmentbytheCouncilofGovernors
andaredocumentedintheRegisterofinterest.Detailsabouthowto
access the Register of Interests are described above.

Nicola Bancroft

Non-Executive Director
NicolaBancroftwasappointedasaNon-Executive memberofthe
BoardofDirectorson010ctober2019forathree-yeartermofoffice.
She has over 30 years'’commercial experience in the retail sector,
havingworkedforWalgreensBoots Allianceinanumberof senior
financeandstrategyleadershiprolesandforDFSwhereshewasGroup
ChiefFinancial Officer.Sheworkedextensivelyontheimplementation
ofvariouscustomerfocusedstrategiesandtransformationprogrammes
in both businesses.

Throughout her career Nicola has always been passionate about
coachinganddevelopingleadersandtheirteamstobeattheirbest.
Shehasafirstclasshonoursdegreeinaccountingandfinanceandisa
fellowoftheCharteredInstituteofManagementAccountants.Nicola
isalsoamemberoftheFinanceandRiskCommitteeforBusinessinthe
Community,acharitydedicatedtochampioningresponsiblebusiness.

Nicola is now motivated by the vision, mission and values of the
RotherhamNHSFoundationTrustandseekstoprovidesupportforits
current and future development.

During2019/20NicolawasamemberoftheFinance&Performance,
AuditandRemunerationCommittees,becomingVice-ChairoftheAudit
Committee in February 2020.

FromthebeginningofApril2020NicolacontinuedasVice-Chairof
theAuditCommitteeandasamemberoftheFinance&Performance
andRemunerationCommittees.ShealsojoinedtheCharitableFunds
Committee as a member.
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Joe Barnes

Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director
JoespentalmostnineyearsasaNon-ExecutiveDirectoratDoncaster
and Bassetlaw NHS Foundation Trust where, at various times, he
wasChairoftheAuditandClinical GovernanceCommittees,Senior
IndependentDirectorandDeputyChair.Hespentmostofhiscareer
with British Coal and the Coal Pension Funds and heis a qualified
accountant.

JoejoinedtheTrustasaNon-ExecutiveDirectorinSeptember2013.
InJuly2016theCouncilofGovernorsre-appointedJoeforafurther
three-year term of office from September 2016.

Having served six years as a Non-Executive Director of the Trust,
a rigorous review (as required by the Foundation Trust Code of
Governance)wasundertakenbytheCouncilofGovernorsNomination
CommitteeinJune 2016 which led to Joe being reappointedfora
furtherone-yeartermofofficefromSeptember2019toSeptember
2020bythe Council of Governorsattheir July 2019 meeting. As at
endMarch2020JoehadbeenaNon-ExecutivememberoftheBoard
for six and a half years.

JoebecametheTrust’s SeniorIndependentDirectorin April2018.

From 01 April 2019 Joe served as Chair of the Audit Committee,
Vice-Chair of the Remuneration Committee and amember of the
Finance&PerformanceCommittee.InOctober2019Joetookoverthe
Chairmanship of the Remuneration Committee.

Fromthebeginningof April2020 Joe continued to Chairthe Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, he also becamea
member of the newly created People Committee.

Heather Craven

Non-Executive Director

HeatherisaChartered AccountantwhotrainedwithKPMGandhas
spentmostofhercareerworkingacrossawidespectrumofindustries
atdirectorlevelincludingFTSEand AIMlistedcompanies.Since2006
shehashelpedanumberoforganisations,viainterimandconsultancy
roles,toidentifyoperationalandfinancialissuesandweaknessesand
hasdeliveredsolutionstoresolvethoseproblemsanddevelopedand
implemented strategies to deliver growth and profitability.

HeatherhasbeenaNon-ExecutiveDirectorattheTrustsinceFebruary
2017andhaschairedtheFinanceandPerformanceCommitteesince
thatdate.Heatherremainscommittedtousingherskillsandexperience
toassisttheTrustin meetingthe challengesitfacesin deliveringa
qualityhealthcareserviceandimprovingitsoperationalperformance
and its financial stability.

HeatherwasinitiallyappointedasaNon-ExecutiveDirectorinFebruary
2017 for a three-year term of office. Atits July 2019 meeting, the
CouncilofGovernorsre-appointedHeatherforafurtherthree-yearterm
of office from February 2020 to February 2023.

During 2019/20 Heather was Chair of the Finance & Performance

Committeeandamemberofthe Remunerationand Strategy and
Business Planning Committees.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

From 01 April 2020 Heather continued as Chair of the Chair of
the Finance & Performance Committee, becameVice-Chairofthe
RemunerationCommitteeandjoinedtheCharitableFundsCommittee
as a member.

Mark Edgell

Non-Executive Director
MarkjoinedTheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustasaNon-Executive
Directoron01June2012.MarkhaslivedincentralRotherhamsince
themid-1980sandhasadeepcommitmenttothetown,theBorough
andSouthYorkshire.Hespent13yearsasaCouncillorandwasLeader
ofRotherhamMetropolitanBoroughCouncilforseveralyearsinthe
early 2000s.

ThroughhisroleattheTrustandhispassionforensuringlocalpeople
enjoyhighqualitypublicservicesthateffectivelymeettheirneeds,Mark
seekstohelpTheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustmeetitschallenges,
both now and in the future.

OnceaNon-ExecutiveDirectorhasservedforsixyearsattheTrust, the
NHSFoundationTrustCodeofGovernancestatesthatNon-Executive
Directorsshouldbesubjecttoannualre-appointmentfollowinga
rigorous review.

HavingservedsixyearsasaNon-ExecutiveDirectoroftheTrustsuch
a review was undertaken for Mark by the Council of Governors’
NominationCommitteeinSeptember2017.Asaresult,theCouncil
ofGovernorsre-appointedMarkattheirmeetinginOctober2017for
afurthertwo-yeartermofofficefrom01June2018,subjecttoannual
review,tomaintaincontinuityontheQualityAssuranceCommittee
which is chaired by Mark.

Followingasatisfactoryannualreview,theCouncilofGovernorsoffered
Markafurtherextension,subjecttoannualreview,fromJune2020to
May2021.AsatendMarch2020MarkhadservedasaNon-Executive
Director at the Trust for 7 years and 10 months.

During 2019/20 Mark chaired the Quality Assurance Committee
and was a member of both the Strategy & Business Planning and
Nominations Committees.

FromApril2020MarkcontinuedasChairoftheQualityCommitteeand
amemberoftheNominationCommittee.Healsobecameamemberof
the Audit Committee.

Lynn Hagger

Non-Executive Director and Vice-Chair
LynnjoinedtheTrustasaNon-ExecutiveDirector01October2013for
an initial three-year term of office.

Aftercareersinsocialworkandlegal practice,Lynnbecamealegal
academicwithlectureshipsattheUniversitiesofManchester, Liverpool
andthenSheffield.Shehastaughtadministrative/publiclaw,contract,
environmentalandEuropeanlawbutthenspecialisinginhealthcare
law and ethics at undergraduate and postgraduate level.



Lynnhaspublishedextensivelyinthisareaincludingtwobooks:The
ChildasVulnerablePatient:ProtectionandEmpowermentandAGood
Death:LawandEthicsinPractice.Inparallelwiththeseactivities,Lynn
has been involved in the NHS for over 25 years, mostly as a Non-
ExecutiveDirectorofacutehospitalboards,andincludingasChairof
SheffieldChildren'sNHSFoundationTrustandNon-ExecutiveDirector
at Leeds Teaching NHS Trust.

TheCouncilofGovernorsre-appointedLynnforafurtherthree-year
termofofficewitheffectfromOctober2016attheirmeetinginJuly
2016. Having served six years as a Non-Executive Director of the
Trust,arigorousreview (asrequiredbytheFoundationTrustCodeof
Governance)wasundertakenbytheCouncilofGovernorsNomination
CommitteeinJune2019whichresultedintheCouncilofGovernorsre-
appointingLynnforafurthertwo-yearterm,subjecttoannualreview,
fromOctober2019toSeptember2021.AsatendMarch2020Lynn
had served six and a half years as a Non-Executive Director.

During 2019/20 Lynn was Vice-Chair of the Strategy & Business
PlanningCommittee, theBoard’sNominationCommitteeandthe
CharitableFundsCommittee.ShewasalsoamemberoftheQuality
Assurance and Audit Committees.

From01April2020LynnbecameChairofthenewlyformedPeople
Committee,continuedasVice-ChairoftheNominationCommittee,
Vice-ChairoftheCharitableFundsCommitteeandasamemberofthe
Quality Committee.

Dr Rumit Shah

Non-Executive Director
DrRumitShahbecameaNon-ExecutiveDirectoron01January2020
for a two-year term of office.

Rumitiscurrentlyafull-timepracticingGeneralPractitionerinHatfield,
Doncaster. He arrived in the UK to pursue his further education
from Kenyain 1977 at the age of 16. A graduate of the University
of Sheffield, Rumit initially followed a career path in Trauma and
Orthopaedics.HiscommitmenttotheNHSspansover36yearsand
duringthistimehehasbeenengagedinvariouscapacitiesincluding
withtheLocalMedicalCommittee(LMC),PrimaryCareGroups,Primary
CareTrustsand hehas nowbeen elected toabea Clinical Director
of East Doncaster Primary Care Network. He is also the Chair of
Doncaster LMC.

RumithasbeenaGPAppraiser,ontheNationalClinical Assessment
Service (NCAS) assessing General Practices, a GP member on the
AreaPrescribingCommittee,andtheScheduled DrugMonitoring
subcommittee of Doncaster CCG.

DrShahisaverykeenadvocateforexcellentqualityofcaredelivered
inatimelyfashionandinasafeenvironmentwithaclearemphasison
good communication.

Rumit was a member of the Quality Assurance and Nominations
Committees during 2020.

From 01 April 2020 Rumit became Vice-Chair of the Quality and
Finance&PerformanceCommitteesandcontinuedasamemberofthe
Nomination Committee.
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Michael Smith

Non-Executive Director
MichaelSmithwasappointedon01April2019andisanexperienced
Non-ExecutiveDirector,currentlyontheBoardatHumberTeaching
NHSFoundationTrust,havingpreviouslyservedinasimilarcapacityat
Rotherham Doncasterand South Humber NHS FoundationTrust.

He has an Honours Degree in Law and a Master’s in Business
Administration.In2016,Michaelreceivedhisthirddegree-aMaster’s
in Mental Health Law for which he was given a commendation.

Michael is a local man who lives in Wickersley. He has extensive
experienceinthepublicandprivatesectorsandhasbeenthePresident
of Rotherham Chamber of Commerce.Heis a volunteer director/
trusteeoftheMagnaScienceAdventureCentreandisanenterprise
adviser to a local Special School.

Michaelwasinitiallyappointedforaone-yearterm of office which
was due to conclude in March 2020. Following a review of the
Board’scompositioninNovember2019bytheCouncilofGovernors’
NominationCommittee,theCouncilofGovernorsre-appointedMichael
forfurthertwo-yearperiodfrom1April2020to31March2022atits
January 2020 meeting.

During2019/20MichaelwasamemberoftheFinance&Performance,
Quality Assurance and Remuneration Committees. He was also
a member of the Charitable Funds Committee, assuming the
Chairmanship of this committee in October 2019.

FromApril2020MichaelcontinuedasChairoftheCharitable Funds
CommitteeandasamemberoftheRemunerationCommittee. He
becameVice-ChairofthenewPeopleCommitteeandjoinedtheAudit
Committee as a member.

Executive Directors

Dr Richard Jenkins

Interim Chief Executive Officer
RichardjoinedtheTruston10February2020asinterimChiefExecutive
onapart-timebasis. Heisalso ChiefExecutiveatBarnsley Hospital
NHSFoundationTrustandisone of thefew qualified and clinically
activeChiefExecutivesintheUK.HehaspreviouslybeentheMedical
Director for two NHS provider organisations.

Hehaspractised medicineforover28yearssincegraduatingfrom
the University of Sheffield in 1991 with an intercalated degreein
virologyaswellashismedicaldegree.HewasatraineedoctorinSouth
Yorkshireuntilbecomingaconsultantin2002,specialisingindiabetes
andendocrinology.Duringhistraining,heheldvariousrolesincluding
asLecturerattheUniversityofSheffieldandhespentthreeyearsdoing
research for a Doctor of Medicine degree.

Michael Wright

Interim Deputy Chief Executive
MichaeljoinedtheTruston10February2020asinterimDeputyChief
Executive.

MichaelhasworkedacrossboththeNHSandDepartmentforWork
andPensions.PreviousNHSrolesincludebeingadirectoratLiverpool
UniversityHospitalsNHSFoundationTrustandtheDirectorofFinance
at Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
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George Briggs

Chief Operating Officer
GeorgeandhisfamilyliveinLincolnshire.Georgehasworkedinthe
NHSfor30plusyearsworkinginavarietyoforganisationsincluding
TrustsandCCGs.Hehasextensiveexperienceasgeneralmanagerand
associatedirectorinanumberofspecialtiesincludingcardiothoracic,
intensivecare, surgeryandmedicine.Georgehasalsoheldanumberof
director positions in acute Trusts.

Over recent years, George has enjoyed working in a number of
permanent and interim roles across the UK which gave him the
opportunity to support and learn from a varied number of NHS
organisations.

Dr Callum Gardner

Interim Medical Director (from 03 September 2018 to 31
October 2019)

Medical Director (from 01 November 2019)

Dr Gardner initially joined the Trust as Interim Executive Medical
DirectorinSeptember2018,bringingawealthofexperiencetothe
organisation. His previous role was as Divisional Director for the
Emergency&MedicinedivisionatNorthWestAngliaNHSFoundation
Trust (NWAFT), where he helped lead the division from ‘requires
improvement’to‘good’in the 2018 CQC inspection. He has also
previously held a number of key roles, including Deputy Medical
DirectorandAssociateMedicalDirector,andwasadoctorintheRoyal
Navyforalmost 18years.HeisalsoaConsultantacuteandgeneral
physician with a sub-specialty interest in respiratory medicine.

DrGardnerwasappointedaspermanentMedicalDirectorinNovember
2019andcontinuestoholdjointresponsibilityforqualityandclinical
governancewiththeChiefNurse,underthenewSafe&SoundQuiality
Directorate.

Steve Ned

Joint Director of Workforce

Steven Ned joined the Trust on 01 April 2019 as Joint Director of
Workforce with Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. He was
previouslyatSheffieldChildren'sNHSFoundationTrustwherehewas
Director of Human Resources and Deputy Chief Executive.

Steven has more than 30 years NHS experience and over 10 years
working in senior roles within South Yorkshire.

Simon Sheppard

Director of Finance
SimonSheppardjoinedtheTrustinNovember2014fromtheUniversity
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust where he was Acting Director of
Financeand,beforethat,DeputyDirectorofFinanceandProcurement.

Simon started in the NHS on the Graduate ManagementTraining
Schemeandhasover20years’experienceataseniorlevelinlarge
acuteteachinghospitalsincludingtheNottinghamUniversityHospitals
NHS Trust.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

Angela Wood

Chief Nurse
AngelaWoodjoinedtheTrustinOctober2018asInterimChiefNurse
beforebeingappointedtothesubstantiveChiefNursepositionon01
February 2019.

Angela, who has been nursing for 32 years, joined the Trust from
NorthernLincolnshireandGooleNHSFoundationTrustwhereshewas
thelnterimDeputyChiefNurse,onsecondmentfromhersubstantive
roleas Deputy Director of Nursing at NHS England. She has held a
numberofseniornursingrolesthroughouthercareer,bothstrategic
andoperational,includingsignificantexperienceinacutesettings.She
hasatrackrecordofachievementinquality, patientsafetyandpatient
experienceagendas,andispassionateaboutpatientsreceivingsafe,
good quality care.

Non-Executive Director Attendance at
Board of Directors’ Meetings 2019/20
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Executive Director Attendance at Board of Directors’ Meetings 2019/20

Totalattended | 10

T 120101 (1311212 7 1

12201 131133 | 1311313

Total eligible

1

Directors’' Register of Interests
TheDirectors'RegisterofinterestsisavailabletoviewontheTrust’s
website(http://www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk/Corporate_Governance_
Information/Our_Board_of_Directors/)orbyrequestingacopyfrom
the Company Secretary at the address below:

Ms Anna Milanec,

Company Secretary,

General Management Department Level D,
The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust
Moorgate Road,

Rotherham, S60 2UD

ThecontactdetailsabovemayalsobeusedbyMemberswhowishto
communicate with Directors.

Register of Staff Interests including those of members

of the Board of Directors
InaccordancewithNHSEngland'sConflictsofInterestguidancethe
Trustalsomaintainsaregisteroftheinterestsdeclaredbycolleagues
who are not members of the Board of Directors. This register is
updatedonasixmonthlybasisandislocatedontheTrust'swebsite:
(http://www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk/key_documents/)

Committees of the Board
TheBoardofDirectorshasthefollowingstatutoryCommitteesofthe
Board:

+ Audit Committee

«  Nominations Committee

+  Remuneration Committee

TheTermsofReferenceofeachofthesecommitteescanbefoundon
theTrust'swebsite:(http://www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk/key_documents/)

FordetailsregardingtheworkoftheRemunerationCommitteeduring
2019/20pleaseseetheRemunerationReportsectionofthisAnnual
Report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committeeis established under Board delegation with
approvedtermsofreferencethatarealignedwiththeAuditCommittee
Handbook published by the Healthcare Financial Management
Association (HFMA)?.

TheCommitteewaschairedthroughouttheyearbyJoeBarnes,aNon-
ExecutiveDirectorwithrelevantfinancialexperience.FromApril2019
toJanuary2020fouroftheNon-ExecutiveDirectorsweremembersof
theAuditCommittee,allofwhomwereconsideredtobeindependent.
FromFebruary2020threeNon-ExecutiveDirectorsweremembers
oftheCommittee,allofwhomwereconsideredtobeindependent.
TheTrust’sChairmanisneithertheChairnoramemberofthe Audit
Committee.TheDirectorofFinanceandCompanySecretaryattend
everymeeting,andinaddition,otherExecutiveorOperationalDirectors
attendmeetingsasrequired.SinceJanuary2014twomembersofthe
CouncilofGovernorshavebeeninvited,asobservers,toattendthe
Audit Committee.

TheCommitteehasmetonfiveoccasionsthroughoutthefinancialyear
andhasdischargeditsresponsibilitiesforscrutinisingtherisksand
controls which affect all aspects of the organisation’s business.

22 Fourth edition, 2018
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Nicola

Bancroft

Audit Joe Barnes Lynn David
Committee (Chair) Hagger Hannah
2019
23 April Y Y Y
22 May Y Y Y
11 September Y Y Y
11 December Y Y Y
2020
25 March Y Y
Attendance 5/5 5/5 4/4

ThefollowingareaswerethesignificantissuesconsideredbytheAudit

Committee during 2019/20:

« Annual Governance Statement 2018/19

+ Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19

+ Quality Account and Report 2018/19

+ Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2018/19

« External Audit ISA 260 review 2018/19

« Internal Audit (TIAA) annual work plan for 2019/20

« Internal Audit (360 Assurance) annual work planforremainder
of 2019/20 as well as draft Internal Audit annual work plan for
2020/21

- CounterFraudself-reviewtoolfor2019/20,draftannualworkplan
2020/21 and risk assessment for 2020/21

« Board Assurance Framework 2019/20

« Trust’s Risk Register (scores of 15 and above)

« Annual Review of Standards of Business Conduct

« Annual Report of the Audit Committee 2018/19

+ Freedom to Speak up Guardian Annual Update 2018/19

« Changes to Accounting Policies 2019/20

Exceptional items considered were:

+ External Audit 2018/19 de-brief

+ Operational Plan 2018/19 objectives

- General Data Protection Regulations

+ Internal Audit procurement process during 2019/20

- External Audit procurement during 2020

« Cyber security report

« RequirementsofinternationalFinancialReportingStandard(IFRS)8
relating to operating segments

+ CounterFraudServiceEngagementMeetingon24January2020

» Governance Diagnostics

Review of:
- Internal Auditor effectiveness
- External Auditor effectiveness

ThesignificantrisksidentifiedbytheExternal Auditors(PwC)atthe
2019/20 audit planning meeting on 13 March 2020 were:

« Risk of management override of controls

« Risk of fraud in income recognition

« Risk of fraud in expenditure recognition

« Financial sustainability

- Carrying value of property, plant and equipment

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk
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During2019/20theAuditCommitteehascontinuedtocriticallyassess
andreviewthejudgementsthathavebeenappliedinrelationtothe
significantrisksidentifiedbytheExternal AuditoraswellastheTrust’s
compliance with the relevant accounting standards.

Internal Auditors

From April until May 2019 the Committee worked with ‘TIAA"as
itsinternal AuditprovidertostrengthentheTrust'sinternal control
processes.FromJune2019onwardstheCommitteeworkedwith360
Assurance’asitsinternal Auditorsreviewingandstrengtheningthe
organisation’sinternalcontrolprocesses.Therecommendationsfrom
internalauditsareusedtocontinuallyimprovetheeffectivenessof
these processes.

External Auditors
During2019/20PricewaterhouseCoopersLLP(PwC)continuedasthe
Trust'sExternal Auditor.Thiscontractbeganon10October2016and
endedon30September2019(itwasathree-yearcontractwiththe
optiontoextendforoneyearplusoneyear). Thetotal value of the
contract for three years was £187,320 (£62,440 p.a.).

At the February 2019 Audit Committee meeting the Committee
supportedarecommendationtotheCouncilofGovernorsattheirApril
2019meeting,viatheTrustChairman,thatafurthercontracttermbe
offeredto’PwC.TheCouncilofGovernorsapprovedtheextensionof
PwC'scontractforaperiodofoneyearfromOctober2019.Thecostof
the additional one year of the contract was £83,800.

TheannualreviewoftheeffectivenessoftheExternal Auditfunction
wasundertakeninSeptember2019andconcludedthattheprovisionof
theExternal AuditservicewassufficientinsupportingtheCommitteein
fulfilling its role

Nominations Committee
TheTrusthastwoNominationsCommittees.Responsibilityforthe
appointmentofExecutiveDirectorslieswiththeBoardofDirectors’
NominationsCommittee.ResponsibilityfortheappointmentofNon-
ExecutiveDirectorslieswiththeCouncilofGovernors’Nominations
Committee. TheTrust's Chairman chairs both of the Nominations
Committees.



Executive Director Appointments

The Board of Directors'Nominations Committee is responsible
fortheidentification of suitable candidates for Executive Director
vacanciesastheyarise. TheCommitteerecommendsExecutiveDirector
appointmentstotheChairman,theotherNon-ExecutiveDirectorsand
theChiefExecutive(exceptinthecaseoftheappointmentofaChief
Executive).

TheCommitteeconsidersthebalanceofqualifications,skills,diversity,
knowledgeandexperiencerequiredontheBoardofDirectorsasa
wholebeforerecommendingacandidateforappointment.Thesize,
compositionandstructureoftheBoardof Directorsisreviewedon
anannualbasisbytheNominationsCommitteetoensureitremains
appropriate to deliver its statutory responsibilities

Attendance at Nominations Committee (Executive Director appointments) 2019/20

Nominations LA Mark 57
Committee Havenhand Edgell Hagger
(Chair) 9 (Vice Chair)
2019
08 July Y Y Y
11 October Y Y Y
29 October Y Y Y
26 November Y Y Y
17 December Y Y Y
24 December Y Y Y
2020
04 February Y Y Y
Attendance 7/7 7/7 7/7

During 2019/20 Martin Havenhand continued as Chair of the
NominationsCommittee,LynnHaggerwasVice-ChairandMarkEdgell
wasamember.DavidHannahservedasamemberuntiltheendofhis
termofofficeon31January2020whenRumitShahbecameamember
of the Committee.

Executive Director Appointments

The recruitment process undertaken to appoint an Interim Chief
Executiveduring2019/20wasasfollows. Initiallytheintentionwas
toappointasubstantivereplacementChiefExecutiveandexternal
recruitment consultants were appointed to undertake this task.
Subsequently,andfollowingdiscussionswiththelntegrated Care
SystemandNHSEngland/Improvement,itwasdecidedtopursuethe
appointment of an interim Chief Executive.

Following an interview process held on 14 November 2019, a

GovernorsNominationsCommitteeheldon22November2019,and
aBoardNominationsCommitteeheldon26November2019,itwas
proposedthatDrRichardJenkins,currentChiefExecutiveatBarnsley
NHSFoundationTrust,shouldbeappointedaspart-time,InterimChief
ExecutiveoftheTrust.Drlenkinstookupthisroleon 10February2020.
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David

Louise

Rumit Shah Steve Ned

Barnett

Hannah

Y Y Y
N N N
Y N Y
Y Y N
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Y Y Y
4/5 11 4/7 5/7

FollowingtheresignationoftheDeputyChiefExecutiveinMay2019,
thedecisionwastakentoappointaninterimDeputyChiefExecutivefor
thedurationofthefinancialyear.ChrisPrestonjoinedtheorganisation
fromTheQueenElizabethHospitalKing'sLynnNHSFoundationTruston
afixedtermcontractbasisandhadalsopreviouslyworkedattheTrust
inanotherseniormanagementrole;Chrishadover20yearsofsenior
managementandBoard-levelexperienceacrossbothhealthandenergy
sectors.

TherecruitmentprocessundertakentoappointasecondinterimDeputy
ChiefExecutiveOfficerduring2019/20wasasfollows.Followingthe
appointmentofthelnterimChiefExecutive(detailedabove),andthe
resignationofthelnterimDeputyChiefExecutive,adecisionwastaken
toappointasecondInterimDeputyChiefExecutive.Aninterviewfor
thisroletookplaceon24December2019involvingtheChairmanand
threeNon-ExecutiveDirectors(supportedbyDrRichardJenkinsand
StevenNed,DirectorofWorkforce).Followingthisprocess,MrMichael
WrightwasappointedasinterimDeputyChiefExecutiveandtookup
his role on 10 February 2020.

Annual Report and Accounts 201920



TherecruitmentprocessundertakentoappointanewMedicalDirector
during 2019/20 was as follows:
MeetingoftheNominationsCommitteetodiscusstherequirements
for the post and timelines

Applications invited by external search agency
Shortlistingtookplace,withapprovalforshortlistedapplicantsby
Nominations Committee members

A comprehensive selection process took place on 08 July 2019
whichresultedintheappointmentofDrCallumGardnerasthenew,
substantiveMedicalDirectorwitheffectfrom01November2019

Performance Appraisal Process for Executive Directors
The Chairmanundertakes the performance appraisal of the Chief
Executive and the Chief Executive undertakes the performance
appraisals of the Executive Directors.

Non-Executive Director Appointments

The Governors' Nomination Committee (the Committee) has
responsibilityforgivingassurancethattheindependence,skill diversity
andexperienceofeachoftheNon-ExecutiveDirectors,whichincludes
theChairman,reflecttheneedsoftheTrustthroughthecompositionof
theBoardofDirectorstoachievetheTrust'sobjectivesandsafeguard
the quality of care provided.

TheCommitteeischairedbytheTrust’sChairmanandcomposedof
atleastsixGovernors(twoPublicGovernorswhichshouldincludethe
Lead Governor, two Staff Governors and two Partner Governors).

TheCommitteemakesrecommendationsasappropriatetotheCouncil
of Governorswithregardtothe outcomeofthemeetings, withthe
minutes also routinely provided to all Council members.

The Committee met on three occasions during 2019/20.

Atthe start of 2019/20 the Council of Governors, based upon the
recommendationoftheCommittee,approvedtheappointmentofMr
MichaelSmithasaNon-ExecutiveDirector.Theskillrequirementsfor
thisappointment,whichincludedaknowledgeof,andbackgroundin,
mentalhealthissueshadbeenbaseduponanumberofmattersraised
by the Care Quality Commission during their inspection in 2018.

ThefactthatMrSmithwasalsoaNon-ExecutiveDirectoratHumber
TeachingNHSFoundationTrust(whichprovidesavarietyofservices
for people with mental health problems, learning disabilities,
addictionsandcommunityservices)wasmadeknowntotheGovernors
throughout the recruitment process.

TheCouncilofGovernorsalsoapprovedthe Committee’sTerms of
ReferenceandbasedupontherecommendationoftheCommittee,
agreed thatthere be no upliftin Non-Executive Directors’and the
Chair’s remuneration during 2019/20.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk
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Performance Appraisal Process for Non-Executive
Directors
TheChairandNon-ExecutiveDirectorsannualappraisalandobjective
setting process was undertaken in quarter one of 2019/20.

TheperformanceappraisalfortheChairmanisjointlyundertakenby
theLeadGovernorandtheSeniorlndependentDirector.TheChairman
undertakestheappraisalsoftheNon-ExecutiveDirectorsinconjunction
withthe Lead Governor. AllNon-Executive Director performance
appraisalsareinformedbythefeedbackfromfellowNon-Executive
Directors, the Executive Directors and members of the Council of
Governors.

InJune2019,theCommitteeconsideredtheoutcomeoftheappraisal
reviewsforeachNon-ExecutiveDirector,includingtheChairman,with
theSeniorindependentDirectorbeingpresenttoprovidefeedbackin
relation to the Chairman.

TheCommitteeutilisedtheseappraisalsaspartoftheirdiscussions
whenconsideringthetermsofofficeforalltheNon-ExecutiveDirectors,
includingtheChairman,whosecurrenttermwouldconcludeduring
2019/20.TherecommendationsfromtheCommitteewereapprovedby
the Council of Governors at their October 2019 meeting.

Inordertoalignthecommencementdatesforfutureappointments,the
CommitteerecommendedthattheCouncilofGovernorsapprovethe
proposalthatallfutureNon-ExecutiveDirectorappointmentswould
start at the beginning, and conclude at the end of the month.

TheCommitteeconsideredthe’specialarrangementsforparttime
office holders'in relation to the tax treatment of Non-Executive
Directorsexpenseswhichwouldseethembeingpersonallyresponsible
forpaymentoftaxesinthisarea.The Committeerecommendeda
changetotheNon-ExecutiveDirectorstermsandconditionsinrelation
toliabilityforpaymentofthetax,whichwassubsequentlyapprovedby
the Council of Governors.

FollowingagreementattheApril2019CouncilofGovernorsmeeting,
recruitmentwasundertakenduringquartertwotoappointtwonew
Non-ExecutiveDirectorstoreplace MrBarry Mellorwhose term of
officeconcludedinSeptember2019andDrDavidHannahwhoseterm
of office concluded in January 2020.

Following an analysis of the current Board of Directors’skills,
knowledgeanddiversity,recruitmentwasundertakenwiththesupport
ofanexternalrecruitmentagency.The Committeeestablishedan
AppointmentsPanelconsistingofGovernors(Public,StaffandPartner)
andtheTrustChairman,whichinterviewedatotalofsixcandidates,
supported by the recruitmentagency inan advisory capacity. All
shortlistedcandidateshadtheopportunitytomeetboththeVice-Chair
and the Senior Independent Director.

BasedupontherecommendationfromtheCommittee, theCouncilof
GovernorsapprovedtheappointmentofMissNicolaBancroftfora
three-yeartermofofficeandDrRumitShahinitiallyforatwo-yearterm
to facilitate succession planning.

ThethirdmeetingoftheCommitteeinquarterthree,consideredthe
reappointmentofMrSmithforafurthertwo-yearterm,oncehisinitial



one-yeartermhadconcluded.TheCommitteeconsideredthatthe
reasonsforhisappointmentwerestillrelevantandtheTrustwishedto
retain his skills and knowledge.

AtthatsamemeetingthreeguidancedocumentsrelatingtoNon-
ExecutiveDirectorsissuedbyNHSEngland/Improvement(NHSE/I)
were considered.

Oneofthesedocumentsrelatedtotheappraisalprocessforprovider
ChairsandintroducedastandardisedapproachtoChairappraisal.The
secondprovidedadvicetoprovidertrustsastohowtoattract,recruit
anddeveloptheirChairs.AlthoughnotspecificallyforFoundation
Trusts,thesedocumentswouldbeutilisedbytheTrustaspartofthe
forthcoming appraisal process for the Chairman.

ThethirddocumentdealtwiththeremunerationforproviderChairsand
Non-ExecutiveDirectorsandproposedchangesdesignedtoclosethe
gapbetweentheremunerationofNon-ExecutiveDirectorsinNHStrusts
and those within Foundation Trusts.

TheCommitteeconsideredthepositionforeachNon-ExecutiveDirector,
and recommended the following to the Council of Governors:

« Non-ExecutiveDirectors:Singleuniformrateof£13,000p.a.,with
discretiontopayupto£2,000perannumforuptotwoindividuals
inrecognition of specificduties. If such duties wereto cease, so
would the £2,000 increment.

« Chairman: being in the upper quartile of group 2 (the Trust is
challengedandthecurrentincumbentisexperienced)remuneration
of £50,000 p.a. was appropriate.

+ General principle that going forward any new Non-Executive
Directorwouldbeadvertisedandappointedonthestandardrate
of £13,000 perannum. Additionally, all existing Non-Executive
Directorswould,bytheendofDecember2022,beremuneratedat
£13,000 per annum.

TheCouncilofGovernorsapprovedtheCommittee’srecommendations
at its meeting in January 2020.

Non-statutory Committees of the Board 2019/20
Quality Assurance Committee

Finance & Performance Committee

Strategy & Business Planning Committee

TheannualrevisionoftheTermsofReference ofthenon-Statutory
BoardCommitteeswereapprovedbytheBoardofDirectorsinApril
2019.

Self-assessmentsoftheeffectivenessofeach ofthenon-statutory
committeesoftheBoardwereundertakenduringJanuary2020through
anonymoussurveyssenttocommitteemembersandtheresultswere
reported to the Committees at their February 2020 meetings.

AtitsmeetinginFebruary 2020the Board of Directorsagreed that
asof April2020the non-statutory CommitteesoftheBoard would
continuetoincludetheQualityCommitteeandFinance&Performance
Committee.RecognisingtheprogressmadebytheStrategy&Business
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Planning Committee in improving the maturity of the strategic,
transformationandbusinessplanninginfrastructureoftheTrust,itwas
furtheragreedthattheStrategy&BusinessPlanningCommitteewould
ceasefrom31March2020withtheBoardofDirectorscontinuingto
overseethesematters.Giventheimportanceofworkforcematters,
both nationally and locally, the Board agreed to the formation of
a People Committee from April 2020 to lead on the provision of
assurance to the Board in respect of workforce issues.

Council of Governors
TheCouncilofGovernorsisresponsibleformakingdecisionsregarding
the appointment or removal of the Chairman, the Non-Executive
DirectorsandtheTrust’s Auditor;and the termsand conditions of
office ofthe Non-Executive Directorsinadditiontoapprovingthe
appointment of the Chief Executive. The Council of Governors is
also consulted by the Board of Directors and its views taken into
consideration when formulating the Trust’s forward plans.

TheCouncilalsoconsiderstheTrust’sannualaccountsandtheExternal
Auditor’s report on them as well as representing the interests of
MembersandpartnershiporganisationsinthegovernanceoftheTrust,
regularlyfeedingbackinformationabouttheTrusttotheconstituencies
it represents.

OtherstatutorydutiesoftheCouncilofGovernorsincludeproviding
theirviewstotheBoardofDirectorsontheTrust'sstrategy,torespond
totheBoardofDirectorswhenconsultedandtoundertakefunctions
asrequestedbytheBoardofDirectors,andtoholdtheNon-Executive
Directorsindividuallyandcollectivelytoaccountfortheperformanceof
the Board of Directors.

ShouldanydisagreementsbetweentheBoardofDirectorsandthe
CouncilofGovernorsarisethemannerinwhichthesewillberesolved
isdescribedinAnnex60oftheTrust’sConstitutionwhichisavailableon
the Trust’s internet site.

TheCouncilofGovernorscomprisesof 16electedPublicGovernors,5
elected Staff Governors and 7 appointed Partner Governors.

AllGovernors,bothelectedandappointed, holdofficeforatermof
threeyears.Theyareeligibleforre-electionorre-appointmentatthe
endofthatperiodandserveamaximumofthreeterms(nineyears
in total). The Trust’s Constitution outlines that a Governor may, in
exceptionalcircumstances,servelongerthannineyears.However,this
will be subject to annual re-election.

AllelectionsforPublicandStaffGovernorpositionsareconducted

undertheauspicesoftheElectoralReformServiceinaccordancewith
the requirements of the Trust’s Constitution.
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During 2019/20 the members of the Council of Governors were:

Constituency Term of Office

Public Governors (elected):

Wentworth North

(Covering the electoral wards of Hoober, Swinton, Wath)

Wentworth South

(Covering the electoral wards of Rawmarsh, Silverwood, Valley)

Wentworth Valley

(Covering the electoral wards of Hellaby, Maltby, Wickersley)

Rotherham South

(Covering the electoral wards of Boston Castle, Rotherham East, Sitwell)

Rotherham North

(Covering the electoral wards of Keppel, Rotherham West, Wingfield)

Rother Valley South

(Covering the electoral wards of Anston & Woodsetts, Dinnington, Wales)

Rother Valley West

(CoveringtheelectoralwardsofBrinsworth&Catcliffe, Holderness,RotherVale)

Rest of England

(Covering those who live outside the borough)

Staff Governors (elected x5):

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk
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Vacancy x2

Lt Col Robert McPherson

Vacancy x1
MrGrahamBarryJenkinson

Vacancy x1

Dr Beverly Bennett
Mrs Jo Brookes

Mrs Marilyn Gambles
Mr A A Zaidi

Mrs Valerie Lindsay
Vacancy

Vacancy x2
Mrs Judy Dalton

Mr Gavin Rimmer
(Lead Governor)

Mrs Hilda Littlewood
Mr Dennis Moore

Dr Stephen Hudson

Vacancy x1
Vacancy x1

Mrs Catherine Ripley

Mrs Anne Rolfe

Vacancy

Vacancy

Mrs June Lovett

Dr Julian McDonough

Mr Christopher Bott

Dr Andrew Mellor

Mr Owen Dickinson

01.04.2019 to 31.05.2020

01.06.2017 to 31.05.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.05.2020
01.06.2011 to 31.05.2014
Re-elected:
01.06.2014 to 31.05.2017
Re-elected
01.06.2017 to 31.05.2020

01.04.2019 to 31.05.2020
01.06.2016 to 31.05.2019
01.06.2016 to 31.05.2019
01.06.2019 to 31.05.2022
01.06.2019 to 31.05.2022
01.06.2016 to 31.05.2019
01.04.2019 to 31.05.2019

01.06.2019 to 31.05.2020
01.06.2017 to 31.05.2020

01.06.2014 to 31.05.2017
Re-elected
01.06.2017 to 31.05.2020

01.06.2017 to 31.05.2020
01.06.2018 to 31.05.2021

01.06.2018 to 31.05.2021
Resigned 26.06.2019

27.06.2019 to 31.05.2020
01.04.2019 to 31.05.2020

01.06.2016 to 31.05.2019

Co-opted 15.01.2019 to
31.05.2019

23.03.2019t0 31.05.2019

01.04.2019 to 31.05.2019

01.06.2018 to 31.05.2021
Leftorganisation31.03.2020

01.06.2019 to 31.05.2022

01.06.2019 to 31.05.2022

01.06.2019 to 31.05.2022
Leftorganisation12.02.2020

01.06.2019 to 31.05.2022



Constituency Term of Office

Partner Governor Organisations (hominated/appointed):

Dr Christopher Low 01.08.2015 to 31.07.2018
Reappointed 01.08.2018 to
Sheffield Hallam University 31.07.2021
Stood down 10.05.2019
Dr Joanne Lidster 17.05.2019 to 16.05.2022
Sheffield University Vacancy 05.01.2019 to 31.03.2019
Rotherham Partnership Vacancy 27.09.2018 t0 31.03.2019
Voluntary Action Rotherham Mrs Jean Flanagan 01.09.2017 to 31.08.2020
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council ClIr Patricia Jarvis 06.02.2017 to 05.02.2020
Vacancy x1 01.04.2019 to 19.01.2020
Barnsley and Rotherham Chamber of Commerce
Ms Tricia Smith 20.01.2020 to 19.01.2023
Rotherham Ethnic Minority Alliance Mr Shakoor Adalat 12.02.2019 to 11.02.2022
Attendance 2019/20
of Governorsduring 2019/20,with an adiondl
held during tenure | meetings attended : ) _’
extraordinary meeting held in December 2019
Mr Shakoor Adalat 5 2 to approve the appointment of the Interim Chief
Dr Beverly Bennett 1 1 Executive. Attendance is detailed left:
Mr Christopher Bott 4 4
Mrs Jo Brookes 1 1
Mr Owen Dickinson 4 4
Mrs Marilyn Gambles 4 3
Mrs Judy Dalton 5 3
Mrs Jean Flanagan 5 3
Dr Stephen Hudson 1 0
ClIr Patricia Jarvis 5 5
Mr Graham Barry Jenkinson 5 5
Dr Joanne Lidster 4 3
Mrs Valerie Lindsay 1 1
Mrs Hilda Littlewood 5 5
Mrs June Lovett 5 4
Dr Christopher Low 1 0
Dr Julian McDonough 4 4
Lt Col Robert McPherson 5 3
Dr Andrew Mellor 4 2
Mr Dennis Moore 5 2
Mr Gavin Rimmer 5 4
Mrs Catherine Ripley 1 1
Mrs Anne Rolfe 1 1
Ms Tricia Smith
Mr A A Zaidi
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Members of the Board of Directors (Executive and Non-Executive
Directors)haveroutinelyattendedthequarterlyscheduledCouncilof
Governorsmeetingstoensurethattheydevelopanunderstandingof
theviewofGovernorsandMembers.Theirattendanceduring2019/20
was as follows:

Current Non-Executive Directors Mutlber el ieeiings
attended

Martin Havenhand 5

Nicola Bancroft

Joe Barnes

Heather Craven

2
5
4
Mark Edgell 4
4
3

Lynn Hagger

Michael Smith
Rumit Shah 0
attended
David Hannah 4
Barry Mellor 1
Current Executive Directors Nuinber ef el
attended
Richard Jenkins % 0
George Briggs 2
Callum Gardner 3
Steven Ned 1
Simon Sheppard 3
Angela Wood 1
Michael Wright 2 0
attended
Louise Barnett 2
Chris Holt 0
Chris Preston 2

ZRichardJenkinsandMichaelWrightjoinedtheTrustafterthelastmeetingof
the Council of Governors for the financial year 2019/20.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk
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AllGovernorsarerequiredtocomplywiththeTrust'sCodeofConduct
andConstitutionanddeclareanyintereststhatmayresultinaconflict
ofinterestintheirroleasGovernors.AteachmeetingoftheCouncilof
GovernorsastandingagendaitemalsorequiresallGovernorstomake
knownanyinterestinrelationtotheagendaandanychangestotheir
declaredinterests.Anannualreviewisalsoundertakenoftheregister.

TheregisterofGovernors'interestsisavailabletoviewontheTrust’s
website(www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk)orbyrequestingacopyfromthe
Company Secretary:

MsAnnaMilanec,DirectorofCorporateAffairs/CompanySecretary
General Management Department

Level D

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust

Moorgate Road

Rotherham S60 2UD

MemberswhowishtocommunicatewiththeGovernorscandosoby
sendinganemailtorgh-tr.public.governors@nhs.net.Alternatively,
they may write to the Governor at the following address:

Name of Governor
C/OMsAnnaMilanec,DirectorofCorporateAffairs/CompanySecretary
General Management Department

Level D

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust

Moorgate Road

Rotherham S60 2UD




H
0
21

Departments * Todets 00000 +
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The Foundation Trust Membership

AsaFoundationTrust,theTrustworks closelywithitsMembership
andcontinuestoinvolveandengageMembersintheTrust'sstrategic
directionthroughsustained,two-waycommunicationplans.During
2019/20thestrategyforinvolvingMembersincludedthefollowing
initiatives.

In March 2019, the Trust launched 'Your Health’ This quarterly

magazinereplaced’Your Choice,theannual Members'magazine,
andisavailabletopatients,MembersandthepublicatvariousNHS
locations,publishedviathelocalmediaandthroughtheTrust'swebsite.

YourHealth’providesnewsfromthehospitalandcommunityhealth
services,showcasingservices,providinghealtheducationaladvice,
careeroptionswithintheNHSandoutliningfutureplansfortheTrust.It
continuestobeutilisedtopromotetheroleofGovernorsandannounce
theforthcomingannualCouncilofGovernorElections,encouraging
Members to stand as Governors and to vote for their Governor.

WecontinuetoholdquarterlyGovernors'Surgeries,whichprovidean
opportunityforourMemberstospeakwithourGovernors,givingtheir
viewsonservicesandaskingquestionsofourGovernors.Thefeedback
fromthesesessionsisseenbytheseniormanagementwithintheTrust
toensureopportunitiesforqualityimprovementsinpatientcareand
experience are acted upon.

TheAnnualMembersMeetingisalsoanotheropportunityweutiliseto
meetMembersandthepublic,shareachievementsmadewithinthe
year and outline future plans.

Asat24February2020therewere 15,567 MembersofTheRotherham
NHSFoundationTrust(TRFT),whichincludespublicandstaffmembers.

The Trust has two membership constituencies:

A’public constituency’
A'staff constituency’

PublicMembersareabletocontacttheirlocalGovernorbysendingan
e-mailto:rgh-tr.public.governors@nhs.netindicatingthenameofthe
Governor they wish to contact in the subject line of the e-mail.

InasimilarmannerstaffMembersareabletocontacttheirGovernorby
sendingane-mailto:rgh-tr.staffgovernors@nhs.netalsoincludingthe
name of the Governor in the subject line of the e-mail.

PublicMembersareabletocontacttheTrust’s Directorsthrougha
varietyofmechanisms:viathepublicBoardofDirectorsmeetingorthe
publicCouncilofGovernorsmeetings;viatheirGovernor;viatheTrust’s
your.experience@nhs.net e-mail or the Trust’s switchboard.

TobecomeaPublicMember,thepersonmustbeatleast16yearsof
ageandlivewithintheTrust’sconstituencyarea(consistingofseven
localelectoralwardsanda’Restof England’constituency),notbea
Memberofthestaffconstituencyandhavemadeanapplicationfor
membership to the Trust.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

TobecomeaStaffMember,thepersonmustbeatleast16yearsofage,
beemployedbytheTrustwithapermanentcontractorhaveworked
at the hospital for at least 12 months and have opted in to Trust
Membership?.

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustconstituencyboundariesare:

Rotherham South
Rotherham North

Boston castle, Rotherham East & Sitwell)
Kepple, Rotherham West, Wingfield)
Wentworth South (Rawmarsh, Silverwood, Valley)

Wentworth North (Hoober, Swinton, Wath)

Wentworth Valley (Hellaby, Maltby, Wickersley)
RotherValleyWest(Brinsworth&Catcliffe, Holderness,RotherVale)
Rother Valley South (Anston & Woodsetts, Dinnington, Wales)
RestofEngland(coversallareasnotwithinRotherhamMetropolitan
Borough Council boundaries)

—_— e~~~

2From April 2018 staff had to opt-in to become a member



Membership composition as at 24 February 2020

Rotherham South 1,899
Rotherham North 1,420
Wentworth South 1,574
Wentworth North 1,122
Wentworth Valley 1,604
Rother Valley West 1,236
Rother Valley South 978
Rest of England 1,470
Out of trust area 0
Total number of Public Members 11,303
Staff Class 4,264
Total number of Staff Members 4,264
Total Membership: 15,567
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TheTrustvaluesthe continued  As at 24 February 2020 the Trust’s membership was composed as follows:
supportand engagementofits

importance of a Membership

that is representative of all Age

the communitiesitserves.The g 44 0 1 1

Trust strives to ensure that its

Membershipisasrepresentative ~ 17-21 3 30 33

of the population as possible. 22-29 444 515 959
30-39 1,329 958 2,287
40-49 1,407 1,004 2,411
50-59 1,866 1,270 3,136
60-74 2,786 474 3,260
75+ 2,233 9 2,242
Not stated 1,235 3 1,238
Gender
Unspecified 3 2 5
Male 4,450 673 5123
Female 6,850 3,589 10,439
Transgender 0 0 0
Ethnicity
White-English,Welsh,Scottish,Northernlrish,British 3,921 2,802 6,723
White - Irish 16 9 25
White - Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0 0 0
White - Other 13 30 43
Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 2 5 7
Mixed - White and Black African 1 3 4
Mixed - White and Asian 1 10 11
Mixed - Other Mixed 8 5 13
Asian or Asian British - Indian 34 54 88
Asian or Asian British - Pakistani 166 26 192
Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 3 2 5
Asian or Asian British - Chinese 5 6 11
Asian or Asian British - Other Asian 20 18 38
Black or Black British - African 24 21 45
Black or Black British - Caribbean 5 6 11
Black or Black British - Other Black 13 3 16
Other Ethnic Group - Arab 0 0 0
Other Ethnic Group - Any Other Ethnic Group 67 28 95
Not stated 7,004 1,236 8,240
Total numbers of Members 11,303 4,264 15,567

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk 82
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Disclosures as set out in the
NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance

Part of

schedule A CoG ref

Relating to

Board and
Council of
Governors

2: Disclose A1

Board,
Nomination
Committee(s),
Audit
Committee,
Remuneration
Committee

2: Disclose A1.2

2: Disclose Couind el

Governors AR

Additional .
. Council of
requirement

of ET ARM* Governors na

*FoundationTrustAnnualReportingManual

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

Summary of requirement

Theboardofdirectorsshouldmeetsufficientlyregularlyto
dischargeitsdutieseffectively.Thereshouldbeascheduleof
matters specifically reserved for its decision.

Thescheduleofmattersreservedfortheboardofdirectors
should include a clear statement detailing the roles and
responsibilitiesofthecouncilofgovernors.Thisstatement
shouldalsodescribehowanydisagreementsbetweenthe
council of governors and the board of directors will be
resolved.Theannualreportshouldincludethisschedule
of matters ora summary statement of how the board of
directorsandthecouncilofgovernorsoperate,including
asummary of the types of decisions to be taken by each
of the boards and which are delegated to the executive
management of the board of directors.

Thesearrangementsshouldbekeptunderreviewatleast
annually.

Theannualreportshouldidentifythechairperson,thedeputy
chairperson (wherethereisone), the chiefexecutive, the
seniorindependentdirector(seeA.4.1)andthechairperson
andmembersofthenominations,auditandremuneration®
committees.ltshouldalsosetoutthenumberofmeetingsof
theboardandthosecommitteesandindividualattendance
by directors.

Part of this requirement is also contained within
paragraph 7.25 as part of the directors’report.

Theannualreportshouldidentifythemembersofthecouncil
ofgovernors,includingadescriptionoftheconstituencyor
organisationthattheyrepresent,whethertheywereelected
orappointed,andthedurationoftheirappointments.The
annual report should also identify the nominated lead
governor.
Arecordshouldbekeptofthenumberofmeetingsofthe
councilandtheattendanceofindividualgovernorsandit
should be made available to members on request.

Theannualreportshouldinclude astatementaboutthe
number of meetings of the council of governors and
individual attendance by governors and directors.
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Self-assessment

Compliant

A statement describing how
any disagreements between the
Board of Directors and Council
of Governors would be resolved
appearsin Annexe 3 oftheTrust’s
Constitution.
ScheduleofMattersReservedlast
reviewed in December2018and
March 2020.

Summary statementincludedin
Accountability Report.

Compliant.

Includedinthe Annual Reportas
follows:

Directors’Report, Remuneration
Report and Governance &
Organisational Structure
section (Board of Directors,
Audit Committee, Nominations
Committee)

Compliant.

Included in Governance &
Organisational Structuresection
(Council of Governors Section)
AttendancebyindividualGovernors
atCouncilofGovernors’'meetings
isincludedintheAnnualReportin
theGovernance&Organisational
Structure section (Council of
Governors section)

Compliant.

Included in Governance &
Organisational Structuresection
(Council of Governors Section)



Part of
schedule A

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

2: Disclose

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Relating to

Board

Board

Board

Nominations
Committee(s)

Nominations
Committee(s)

CoG ref

B.1.1

B.1.4

n/a

B.2.10

n/a

Summary of requirement

Theboardofdirectorsshouldidentifyintheannualreport
eachnon-executivedirectoritconsiderstobeindependent,
with reasons where necessary.

The board should determine whether the director is

independentincharacterandjudgementandwhetherthere

arerelationshipsorcircumstanceswhicharelikelytoaffect,
or could appear to affect, the director’s judgement. The
boardofdirectorsshouldstateitsreasonsifitdetermines
that a director is independent despite the existence of
relationshipsorcircumstanceswhichmayappearrelevantto
its determination, including if the director:

<hasbeenanemployeeoftheNHSfoundationtrustwithin

the last five years;

« has, or has had within the last three years, a material
businessrelationshipwiththeNHSfoundationtrusteither
directly, or as a partner, shareholder, director or senior
employeeofabodythathassucharelationshipwiththe
NHS foundation trust;

- has received or receives additional remuneration from
the NHS foundation trust apart from a director’s fee,
participatesintheNHSfoundationtrust’sperformance-
relatedpayscheme,orisamemberoftheNHSfoundation
trust’s pension scheme;

-hasclosefamilytieswithanyoftheNHSfoundationtrust’s
advisers, directors or senior employees;

« holds cross-directorships or has significant links with
otherdirectorsthroughinvolvementinothercompaniesor
bodies;

+hasserved onthe board of the NHS foundation trust for
morethansixyearsfromthedateoftheirfirstappointment;
or

«is an appointed representative of the NHS foundation
trust’s university medical or dental school.

Theboardofdirectorsshouldincludeinitsannualreporta
descriptionofeachdirector’sskills,expertiseandexperience.
Alongsidethis,intheannualreport,theboardshouldmake
aclearstatementaboutitsownbalance,completenessand
appropriatenesstotherequirementsoftheNHSfoundation
trust.BothstatementsshouldalsobeavailableontheNHS
foundation trust’s website.

Theannualreportshouldincludeabriefdescriptionofthe
lengthofappointmentsofthenon-executivedirectors,and
how they may be terminated

Aseparatesectionoftheannualreportshoulddescribethe
workofthenominationscommittee(s),includingtheprocess
it has used in relation to board appointments.

The disclosure in the annual report on the work of the
nominationscommitteeshouldincludeanexplanationif
neitheranexternalsearchconsultancynoropenadvertising
hasbeenusedintheappointmentofachairornon-executive
director.

Self-assessment

Compliant.

Statement re: independence of
Non-ExecutiveDirectorsincluded
in Governance & Organisational
Structure(CompositionoftheBoard
ofDirectorssection,Non-Executive
Directors section)

Length of service over 6 years
included in biographies of
current Non-Executive Directors
in Governance & Organisational
Structure(CompositionoftheBoard
of Directors section).

Compliant.

Included in the Governance &
OrganisationalStructuresection
(Composition of the Board of
Directors and Meet the Board of
Directors section)

Compliant.
Included in the Directors’'Report
(MeettheBoardofDirectorssection)

Compliant.

Included in the Governance &
Organisational Structuresection
(NominationsCommitteesection)

Compliant.

Included in Governance &
Organisational Structuresection
(NominationsCommitteesection)

BThisrequirementisalsocontainedinparagraph7.45aspartoftheremunerationreportrequirements.Thedisclosurerelatingtotheremuneration
committee should only be made once.
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Part of

schedule A Relating to

Chair/
2: Disclose  Council of

Governors
2: Disclose Coinel e

Governors
AdQltlonaI Council of
requirement Governors
of FT ARM
2: Disclose Board

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

CoG ref

B.3.1

B.5.6

n/a

B.6.1

Summary of requirement

For the appointment of a chairperson, the nominations
committeeshouldprepareajobspecificationdefiningthe
roleandcapabilitiesrequiredincludinganassessmentof
thetimecommitmentexpected,recognisingtheneedfor
availability in the event of emergencies.
Achairperson’sothersignificantcommitmentsshouldbe
disclosedtothecouncilofgovernorsbeforeappointmentand
includedintheannualreport.Changestosuchcommitments
shouldbereportedtothecouncilofgovernorsastheyarise,
and included in the next annual report.
Noindividual,simultaneouslywhilstbeingachairperson
of an NHS foundation trust, should be the substantive
chairperson of another NHS foundation trust.

Governorsshouldcanvasstheopinionofthetrust'smembers
andthepublic,andforappointedgovernorsthebodythey
represent, on the NHS foundation trust’s forward plan,
includingits objectives, prioritiesand strategy,and their
viewsshouldbecommunicatedtotheboardofdirectors.
Theannualreportshouldcontainastatementastohowthis
requirement has been undertaken and satisfied.

If,duringthefinancialyear,the Governorshaveexercised
theirpower*underparagraph 10C** of schedule 7 of the
NHSAct2006,theninformationonthismustbeincludedin
the annual report.
Thisisrequiredbyparagraph26(2)(aa)ofschedule7tothe
NHSAct2006,asamendedbysection151(8)oftheHealth
and Social Care Act 2012.
*Powertorequireoneormoreofthedirectorstoattenda
governorsmeetingforthepurposeofobtaininginformation
aboutthefoundationtrust’sperformanceofitsfunctions
orthedirectors’performanceoftheirduties(anddeciding
whether to propose a vote on the foundation trust’s or
directors’ performance).

** Asinserted by section 151 (6) of the Health and Social
Care Act 2012)

Theboardofdirectorsshouldstateintheannualreporthow
performanceevaluationoftheboard,itscommittees,and
itsdirectors,includingthechairperson,hasbeenconducted,
bearinginmindthedesirabilityforindependentassessment,
and thereason why the NHS foundation trustadopted a
particular method of performance evaluation.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Included in the Governance &
OrganisationalStructuresection
(Board of Directors sectioninthe
Chairman’s biography)

Compliant:

The Chairman and Assistant
Director of Strategy, Planning &
IntegrationattendedtheGovernors
Forum on 19 February 2020 to
discussthedraftOperationalPlan
for2020/21. The Staff Governors
thencanvasedtheopinionoftheir
MembersataGovernors'Surgery
held on 27 February 2020. Their
views have been communicated
to the Board of Directors and
incorporatedintotheOperational
Plan 2020/21.

Compliant.
During2019/20theGovernorshave
not exercised their power under
paragraph 10C**of schedule 7 of
theNHSAct2006torequireoneor
more of the Directors to attend a
Governorsmeetingforthepurpose
ofobtaininginformationaboutthe
foundation trust’s performance.
ThisisduetothefactthatDirectors
regularly attend the quarterly
Council of Governors' meetings.

Compliant.

Included in Governance &
OrganisationalStructuresection:
Composition of Board of
Directors(re:evaluationofBoard)
NominationsCommittee(forBoard
members’ evaluation).
Alsoin'Non-statutoryCommittees
of the Board of Directors’section
forBoard committee evaluation.
AttheendofeachBoardmeeting
one of the Executive or Non-
ExecutiveDirectorsfeedsbacktheir
evaluation of the meeting.



Part of
schedule A

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

Relating to

Board

Board

Board

Audit
Committee

/ control
environment

CoG ref

B.6.2

C1.1

C2.1

C22

Summary of requirement

EvaluationoftheboardsofNHSfoundationstrustsshouldbe
externallyfacilitatedatleasteverythreeyears.Theevaluation
needstobecarried outagainsttheboardleadershipand
governance framework set out by Monitor.
Wheretherehasbeenexternalevaluationoftheboardand/
orgovernanceofthetrust, theexternalfacilitatorshouldbe
identifiedintheannualreportandastatementmadeasto
whether they have any other connection to the trust.

The directors should explain in the annual report their
responsibilityforpreparingtheannualreportandaccounts,
andstatethattheyconsidertheannualreportandaccounts,
takenasawhole,arefair,balancedandunderstandableand
providetheinformationnecessaryforpatients,regulators
andotherstakeholderstoassesstheNHSfoundationtrust’s
performance, business model and strategy.
Thereshouldbeastatementbytheexternalauditorabout
their reporting responsibilities

Directors should also explain their approach to quality
governanceintheAnnualGovernanceStatement(withinthe
annual report).

See also ARM paragraph 7.92.

Theboardofdirectorsshouldmaintaincontinuousoversight
of the effectiveness of the NHS foundation trust’s risk
managementandinternalcontrolsystemsandshouldreport
tomembersandgovernorsthattheyhavedonesointhe
annualreport. Aregularreview should cover all material
controls,includingfinancial,operationalandcompliance
controls.
Theannualreportshouldcontainastatementthattheboard
hasconductedareviewoftheeffectivenessofitssystemof
internal controls.

A trust should disclose in the annual report:
(a)ifithasaninternal auditfunction, how the functionis
structured and what role it performs; or

(b)ifitdoes not have an internal audit function, that fact
andtheprocessesitemploysforevaluatingandcontinually
improving the effectiveness of its risk management and
internal control processes.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Included in Governance &
OrganisationalStructuresection:
CompositionofBoardofDirectors
(re: evaluation of Board)
Andin’Non-statutoryCommittees
of the Board of Directors’
section (re: evaluation of Board
committees)
Duringthepreviousfinancialyear
(2018/19)TheGovernanceForum
/RSMwerecommissioned by the
Trust to undertake an external
well-ledreview. The Governance
Forumalsocontinuedtofacilitate
theBoardDevelopmentProgramme
during 2019/20.

In addition, NHS Improvement
undertooktheirUseofResources
assessment of the Trust in
September 2018 and the CQC
assessedtheTrustagainstits'well-
led’domainatitsinspectionalsoin
September2018. Both NHSIand
theCQCareregulatorsoftheTrust.

Compliant.

Included in the Directors'Report
andAnnualGovernanceStatement
sections
StatementfromtheExternal Auditor
isincludedintheiropiniononthe
Accounts

Compliant.
IncludedintheAnnualGovernance
Statement section

Compliant.

Included in Governance &
Organisational Structuresection
(Audit Committee section)
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Part of
schedule A

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

2: Disclose

Relating to

Audit
Committee
/ Council of
Governors

Audit
Committee

Board /
Remuneration
Committee

Membership

Board

Board /
Membership
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C35

C3.9

E1.4

E.1.6

Summary of requirement

If the council of governors does not accept the audit
committee’s recommendation on the appointment,
reappointmentorremovalofanexternalauditor,theboard
ofdirectorsshouldincludeintheannualreportastatement
fromtheauditcommitteeexplainingtherecommendation
andshouldsetoutreasonswhythecouncilofgovernorshas
taken a different position.

Aseparatesectionoftheannualreportshoulddescribethe
workoftheauditcommitteeindischargingitsresponsibilities.
The report should include:

- the significant issues that the committee considered
in relation to financial statements, operations and
compliance, and how these issues were addressed,;

- anexplanationofhowithasassessedtheeffectivenessof
theexternalauditprocessandtheapproachtakentothe
appointmentorre-appointmentoftheexternalauditor,
thevalueofexternalauditservicesandinformationon
thelengthoftenureofthecurrentauditfirmandwhena
tender was last conducted; and

- if the external auditor provides non-audit services,
the value of the non-audit services provided and an
explanationofhowauditorobjectivityandindependence
are safeguarded.

WhereanNHSfoundationtrustreleasesanexecutivedirector,
forexampletoserveasanon-executivedirectorelsewhere,
theremunerationdisclosuresoftheannualreportshould
includeastatementofwhetherornotthedirectorwillretain
such earnings.

Contactproceduresformemberswhowishtocommunicate
with governorsand/ordirectors should be made clearly
availabletomembersontheNHSfoundationtrust'swebsite
and in the annual report.

Theboardofdirectorsshouldstateintheannualreportthe
stepstheyhavetakentoensurethatthe members ofthe
board,andinparticularthenon-executivedirectors,develop
anunderstandingoftheviewsofgovernorsandmembers
about the NHS foundation trust, for example through
attendanceatmeetingsofthecouncilofgovernors,direct
face-to-face contact, surveys of members’opinions and
consultations.

Theboardofdirectorsshouldmonitorhowrepresentative
theNHSfoundationtrust'smembershipisandtheleveland
effectivenessofmemberengagementandreportonthisin
the annual report.

This information should be used to review the trust’s
membershipstrategy,takingintoaccountanyemergingbest
practice from the sector.
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Self-assessment

Not applicable

Compliant.

« Included in Governance &
OrganisationalStructuresection
(Audit Committee section)

« Included in Governance &
OrganisationalStructuresection
(Audit Committee section)

- Not applicable: No non-audit
serviceswereprovidedbyPwC
during 2019/20

Compliant.

None of the Trust’s Executive
Directors were released, for
example to serve as a Non-
ExecutiveDirectorelsewhere,during
2019/20

Website: Compliant
AnnualReport:Compliant,included
in Governance & Organisational
Structure section: Council of
Governorssection,FTmembership
section and Board of Directors
section

Compliant.

Included in the Governance &
Organisational Structuresection
(Council of Governors section)

Compliant.
IncludedinFTMembershipsection
of Governance & Organisational
Structure section.



Part of

schedule A Relatingto | CoG ref Summary of requirement Self-assessment

The annual report should include:

- a brief description of the eligibility requirements for
joiningdifferentmembershipconstituencies,includingthe
boundaries for public membership;

« informationonthenumberofmembersandthenumberof Compliant.

Add.ltlonal . members in each constituency; and IncludedinFTMembershipsection
requirement Membership n/a . .
- asummaryofthemembershipstrategy,anassessment of Governance & Organisational
of FT ARM . _— -
ofthemembershipandadescriptionofanystepstaken Structure section
duringtheyeartoensurearepresentativemembership
[seealsoE.1.6above], including progress towards any
recruitment targets for members.
The annual report should disclose details of company
directorshipsorothermaterialinterestsincompaniesheld
- bygovernorsand/ordirectorswherethosecompaniesor Compliant.
Additional . . . . .
requirement related parties are likely to do business, or are possibly Included in Governance &
9 Board / seekingtodobusiness,withtheNHSfoundationtrust.As OrganisationalStructuresection:
of FT ARM . . . , : .
Council of n/a eachNHSfoundationtrustmusthaveregistersofgovernors’ - Board of Directors section
(based on . B . . . .
FReM* Governors anddirectors'interestswhichareavailabletothepublic,an -« AtendofCouncil of Governors

alternativedisclosureisfortheannualreporttosimplystate ~ section.
howmembersofthepubliccangainaccesstotheregisters

instead of listing all the interests in the annual report.
SeealsoARMparagraphasdirectors’reportrequirement.

requirement)

The board should ensure that adequate systems and
6:Complyor processesaremaintainedtomeasureandmonitortheNHS
. Board Al14 . i . )
explain foundationtrust'seffectiveness,efficiencyandeconomyas
well as the quality of its healthcare delivery

Compliant.

Theboardshouldensurethatrelevantmetrics,measures,
milestonesandaccountabilitiesaredevelopedandagreed

so as to understand and assess progress and delivery of
performance.

Board A.1.5  Whereappropriateand,inparticularinhighriskorcomplex Compliant.

areas,independentadvice, forexample,fromtheinternal

audit function, should be commissioned by the board

of directors to provide an adequate and reliable level of

assurance.

6:Complyor
explain

The board should report on its approach to clinical
governance and its plan for the improvement of clinical
6:Complyor Board A16 qualityinaccordancewithguidancesetoutbytheDH,NHS
explain o England, the CQCand Monitor.The board should record
where,withinthestructureoftheorganisation,consideration
of clinical governance matters occurs.

Compliant.

Thechiefexecutiveastheaccountingofficershouldfollow
the procedure set out by Monitor foradvising the board
andthecouncilandforrecordingandsubmittingobjections

Board A.1.7  todecisionsconsideredortakenbytheboardofdirectors Compliant.
inmattersofproprietyorregularity,andonissuesrelating
tothe widerresponsibilities of the accounting officer for
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

6:Complyor
explain

Theboardshouldestablishtheconstitutionandstandards
of conduct for the NHS foundation trust and its staff in
6:Complyor accordance with NHS values and accepted standards of
. Board A.1.8 L - . .
explain behaviourin public life which includes the principles of
selflessness,integrity,objectivity,accountability,openness,
honesty and leadership (The Nolan Principles)

Compliant.

*Government financial reporting manual
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6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor

: Board
explain

6:Complyor

: Chair
explain

6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor Council of
explain Governors

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

CoG ref

A.1.10

A3.1

A4.1

A4.2

A43

AS5.1

Summary of requirement

The board should operate a code of conduct that builds
onthevaluesoftheNHSfoundationtrustandreflecthigh
standardsofprobityandresponsibility.Theboardofdirectors
shouldfollowapolicyofopennessandtransparencyinits
proceedingsanddecision-makingunlessthisisinconflict
withaneedtoprotectthewiderinterestsofthepublicorthe
NHSfoundationtrust(includingcommercial-in-confidence
matters)andmakeclearhowpotentialconflictsofinterest
are dealt with.

The NHS foundation trust should arrange appropriate
insurance to cover the risk of legal action against its
directors.Assumingthegovernorshaveactedingoodfaith
andinaccordance with their duties, and proper process
hasbeenfollowed,thepotentialforliabilityforthecouncil
shouldbenegligible.Governorsmayhavethebenefitofan
indemnityand/orinsurancefromthetrust.Whilethereis
nolegalrequirementfortruststoprovideanindemnityor
insuranceforgovernorstocovertheirserviceonthecouncil
ofgovernors,whereanindemnityorinsurancepolicyisgiven,
this can be detailed in the trust’s constitution.

Thechairpersonshould,onappointmentbythecouncil, meet
theindependencecriteriasetoutinB.1.1.Achiefexecutive
should not go on to be the chairperson of the same NHS
foundation trust.

Inconsultationwiththecouncil,theboardshouldappoint
oneoftheindependentnon-executivedirectorstobethe
seniorindependentdirectortoprovideasoundingboardfor
thechairpersonandtoserveasanintermediaryfortheother
directorswhennecessary.Theseniorindependentdirector
shouldbeavailabletogovernorsiftheyhaveconcernsthat
contactthroughthenormalchannelsofchairperson,chief
executive, financedirectorortrustsecretary hasfailed to
resolve,orforwhichsuchcontactisinappropriate.Thesenior
independent director could be the deputy chairperson.

Thechairpersonshouldholdmeetingswiththenon-executive
directors without the executives present.
Ledbytheseniorindependentdirector,thenon-executive
directorsshouldmeetwithoutthechairpersonpresent,at
leastannually,toappraisethechairperson’sperformance,and
on other such occasions as are deemed appropriate

Wheredirectorshaveconcernsthatcannotberesolvedabout
therunningoftheNHSfoundationtrustoraproposedaction,
theyshouldensurethattheirconcernsarerecordedinthe
board minutes.
Onresignation,adirectorshouldprovideawrittenstatement
tothechairpersonforcirculationtotheboard,iftheyhave
any such concerns.

Thecouncilofgovernorsshouldmeetsufficientlyregularlyto
discharge its duties.
Typicallythecouncilofgovernorswouldbeexpectedtomeet
asafullcouncilatleastfourtimesayear.Governorsshould,
wherepracticable, makeeveryefforttoattendthemeetings
ofthecouncilofgovernors.TheNHSfoundationtrustshould
take appropriate steps to facilitate attendance.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant

Compliant.

Compliant.
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6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

Relating to

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Board

Board /
Council of
Governors

Nomination
Committee(s)

CoG ref

A5.2

A54

A5.5

A5.6

A5.7

A5.8

A5.9

B.2.1

Summary of requirement

The council of governors should not be so large as to be
unwieldy.
Thecouncilofgovernorsshouldbeofsufficientsizeforthe
requirementsofitsduties.Theroles,structure,composition,
and procedures of the council of governors should be
reviewed regularly as described in provision B.6.5.

Therolesandresponsibilities of the council of governors
should be set out in a written document.

This statement should include a clear explanation of the
responsibilitiesofthecouncilofgovernorstowardsmembers
andotherstakeholdersandhowgovernorswillseektheir
views and keep them informed.

The chairperson is responsible for leadership of both
the board and the council but the governors also have a
responsibilitytomakethearrangementsworkandshould
taketheleadininvitingthechiefexecutivetotheirmeetings
and inviting attendance by other executives and non-
executives, as appropriate.
Inthesemeetingsothermembersofthecouncilofgovernors
mayraisequestionsofthechairpersonorhis/herdeputy,or
anyotherrelevantdirectorpresentatthemeetingaboutthe
affairs of the NHS foundation trust.

Thecouncilshouldestablishapolicyforengagementwiththe
boardofdirectorsforthosecircumstanceswhentheyhave
concernsabouttheperformanceoftheboardofdirectors,
compliancewiththenewproviderlicenceorothermatters
related to the overall wellbeing of the NHS foundation
trust.Thecouncilofgovernorsshouldinputintotheboard’s
appointmentofaseniorindependentdirector(seeA.4.1).

Thecouncilshouldensureitsinteractionandrelationship
with the board of directors is appropriate and effective.
In particular, by agreeing the availability and timely
communicationofrelevantinformation,discussionandthe
settinginadvanceofmeetingagendasand,wherepossible,
using clear, unambiguous language.

The councilshould only exerciseits powertoremovethe
chairpersonoranynon-executivedirectorsafterexhausting
all means of engagement with the board. The council
shouldraiseanyissueswiththechairpersonwiththesenior
independent director in the first instance.

Thecouncilshouldreceiveandconsiderotherappropriate
informationrequiredtoenableittodischargeitsduties,for
example clinical statistical data and operational data

Atleasthalftheboard,excludingthechairperson,should
comprisenon-executivedirectorsdeterminedbytheboardto
be independent.

Noindividual should hold, atthe same time, positions of
director and governor of any NHS Foundation Trust.

Thenominationscommitteeorcommittees,withexternal
adviceasappropriate,areresponsiblefortheidentification
andnominationofexecutiveandnon-executivedirectors.
Thenominationscommitteeshouldgivefullconsideration
to succession planning, taking into account the future
challenges,risksandopportunitiesfacingtheNHSfoundation
trustandtheskillsandexpertiserequiredwithintheboardof
directors to meet them.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.
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6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain
6:Complyor

explain

6:Complyor
explain

Relating to

Board /
Council of
Governors

Nomination
Committee(s)

Nomination
Committee(s)

Nomination
Committee(s)/
CoG

Nomination
Committee(s)

Council of
Governors

Council of
Governors

Nomination
Committee(s)

Board

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

CoG ref

B.2.2

B.2.3

B.2.4

B.2.5

B.2.6

B.2.7

B.2.8

B.2.9

B.3.3

Summary of requirement

Directorsontheboard ofdirectorsand governorsonthe
council should meet the “fit and proper” persons test
described in the provider licence.
Forthepurposeofthelicenceandapplicationcriteria,“fit
andproper”personsaredefinedasthosewithoutcertain
recentcriminalconvictionsanddirectordisqualifications,and
thosewhoarenotbankrupt(undischarged).Trustsshould
alsoabidebytheupdatedguidancefromtheCQCregarding
appointmentstoseniorpositionsinorganisationssubjectto
CQC regulations.

Theremaybeoneortwonominationscommittees.Ifthere
aretwocommittees,onewillberesponsibleforconsidering
nominationsforexecutivedirectorsandtheotherfornon-
executive directors (including the chairperson).
Thenominationscommittee(s)shouldregularlyreviewthe
structure, size and composition of the board and make
recommendations for changes where appropriate.
Inparticular,thenominationscommittee(s)shouldevaluate,
at least annually, the balance of skills, knowledge and
experienceontheboardofdirectorsand,inthelightofthis
evaluation, prepareadescriptionoftheroleandcapabilities
required for appointment of both executive and non-
executive directors, including the chairperson.

Thechairpersonoranindependentnon-executivedirector
should chair the nominations committee(s).
Atthediscretionofthecommittee,agovernorcanchairthe
committeeinthecaseofappointmentsofnon-executive
directors or the chairman.

Thegovernorsshouldagreewiththenominationscommittee
aclearprocessforthenominationofanewchairpersonand
non-executive directors.

Once suitable candidates have been identified the
nominationscommitteeshouldmakerecommendationsto
the council of governors.

Where an NHS foundation trust has two nominations
committees,thenominationscommitteeresponsibleforthe
appointmentofnon-executivedirectorsshouldconsistofa
majority of governors.
Ifonlyonenominationscommitteeexists,whennominations
for non-executives, including the appointment of a
chairpersonoradeputychairperson,arebeingdiscussed,
thereshouldbeamajorityofgovernorsonthecommittee
andalsoamajoritygovernorrepresentationontheinterview
panel.

When considering the appointment of non-executive
directors, the council should takeintoaccountthe views
of the board and the nominations committee on the
qualifications,skillsandexperiencerequiredforeachposition.

Theannualreportshoulddescribetheprocessfollowedby
thecouncilinrelationtoappointmentsofthechairperson
and non-executive directors.

Anindependentexternaladvisershouldnotbeamemberof
or have a vote on the nominations committee(s).

Theboardshouldnotagreetoafull-timeexecutivedirector
takingonmorethanonenon-executivedirectorshipofan
NHSfoundationtrustoranotherorganisationofcomparable
size and complexity, nor the chairpersonship of such an
organisation.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.
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6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor

explain

6:Complyor
explain

6:Complyor
explain

Relating to

Board /
Council of
Governors

Board

Board

Board /
Committees

Chair

Chair

CoG ref

B.5.1

B.5.2

B.5.3

B.5.4

B.6.3

B.6.4

Summary of requirement

Theboardandthecouncilgovernorsshouldbeprovided
withhigh-qualityinformationappropriatetotheirrespective
functionsandrelevanttothedecisionstheyhavetomake.
Theboardofdirectorsandthecouncilofgovernorsshould
agreetheirrespectiveinformationneedswiththeexecutive
directorsthroughthechairperson.Theinformationforthe
boardsshouldbeconcise,objective,accurateandtimely,and
itshouldbeaccompaniedbyclearexplanationsofcomplex
issues.Theboardofdirectorsshouldhavecompleteaccessto
anyinformationabouttheNHSfoundationtrustthatitdeems
necessarytodischargeitsduties,includingaccesstosenior
management and other employees.

Theboardandinparticularnon-executivedirectors,may
reasonably wish to challenge assurances received from
theexecutivemanagement.Theyneednotseektoappoint
a relevant adviser for each and every subject area that
comesbeforetheboard,althoughtheyshould,wherever
possible,ensurethattheyhavesufficientinformationand
understandingtoenablechallengeandtotakedecisionson
an informed basis.

When complexorhigh-riskissuesarise, thefirstcourse of
actionshouldnormallybetoencouragefurtheranddeeper
analysistobecarriedoutinatimelymanner,withintheNHS
foundationtrust.Onoccasion,non-executivesmayreasonably
decide that external assurance is appropriate.

The board should ensure that directors, especially non-
executive directors, have access to the independent
professional advice, at the NHS foundation trust’s
expense,wheretheyjudgeitnecessarytodischargetheir
responsibilities as directors.

Decisions to appoint an external adviser should be the
collectivedecisionofthemajorityofnon-executivedirectors.
Theavailabilityofindependentexternalsourcesofadvice
should be made clear at the time of appointment.

Committeesshouldbeprovidedwithsufficientresourcesto
undertake their duties.
Theboardofdirectorsshouldalsoensurethatthecouncilof
governorsisprovidedwithsufficientresourcestoundertake
its duties with such arrangements agreed in advance.

Theseniorindependentdirectorshouldleadtheperformance
evaluationofthechairperson,withinaframeworkagreedby
thecouncilofgovernorsandtakingintoaccounttheviewsof
directors and governors

Thechairperson,withassistanceoftheboardsecretary, if
applicable,shouldusetheperformanceevaluationsasthe
basisfordeterminingindividualandcollectiveprofessional
developmentprogrammesfornon-executivedirectorsrelevant
to their duties as board members.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant

Compliant.
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P Governors

6:Complyor Council of
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explain Governors
Board /
6.Ce())(m|§ilr)]/or Remuneration B.8.1
P Committee
6:Comp'lyor Board C.1.2
explain
6:Comp'|yor Board C.1.3
explain

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

Summary of requirement

Led by the chairperson, the council should periodically
assesstheircollectiveperformanceandtheyshouldregularly
communicatetomembersandthepublicdetailsonhowthey
havedischargedtheirresponsibilitiesincludingtheirimpact
and effectiveness on:

+ holding the non-executive directors individually and
collectivelytoaccountfortheperformanceoftheboardof
directors.

- communicatingwiththeirmemberconstituenciesand
the publicand transmitting their views to the board of
directors; and

- contributingtothedevelopmentofforwardplansofNHS
foundation trusts.

Thecouncilofgovernorsshouldusethisprocesstoreview

itsroles,structure,compositionandprocedures,takinginto

accountemergingbestpractice.Furtherinformationcanbe
found in Monitor’s publication: Your statutory duties:

A reference guide for NHS foundation trust

governors

There should be a clear policy and a fair process, agreed
and adopted by the council, for the removal from the
councilofanygovernorwhoconsistentlyandunjustifiably
failstoattendthemeetingsofthecouncilorhasanactual
orpotentialconflictofinterestwhichpreventstheproper
exercise of their duties.

Thisshouldbe shared with governors.Inaddition, it may
beappropriatefortheprocesstoprovideforremovalfrom
thecouncilofgovernorswherebehavioursoractionsofa
governororgroupofgovernorsmaybeincompatiblewiththe
valuesandbehavioursoftheNHSfoundationtrust. Where
thereisanydisagreementastowhetherthe proposalfor
removalisjustified,anindependentassessoragreeableto
bothpartiesshouldberequestedtoconsidertheevidence
and determine whethertheand determine whetherthe
proposed removal is reasonable or otherwise.

The remuneration committee should not agree to an

executivememberoftheboardleavingtheemploymentof
anNHSfoundationtrust,exceptinaccordancewiththeterms
oftheircontractofemployment,includingbutnotlimitedto
serviceoftheirfullnoticeperiodand/ormaterialreductions
intheirtimecommitmenttotherole,withouttheboardfirst
having completed and approved a full risk assessment.

ThedirectorsshouldreportthattheNHSfoundationtrustisa
goingconcernwithsupportingassumptionsorqualifications
as necessary.

See also ARM paragraph 7.15.

Atleastannuallyandinatimelymanner,theboardshould
setoutclearlyitsfinancial,qualityandoperatingobjectives
for the NHS foundation trust and disclose sufficient
information,bothquantitativeandqualitative,oftheNHS
foundationtrust'sbusinessandoperation,includingclinical
outcomedata,toallowmembersandgovernorstoevaluate
its performance.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant.

Non-compliant
TheChairmandiscussedtheChief
Executive'snoticeperiodwiththe
Non-Executive Directorsandthe
risks of her not serving the full
notice period were assessed and
agreed.

Compliant.

Compliant.
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Board C14

Board/Audit

Committee €2

Council of
Governors
/ Audit
Committee

C33

Council of
Governors
/ Audit
Committee

C3.6

Summary of requirement

a)TheboardofdirectorsmustnotifyMonitorandthecouncil
ofgovernorswithoutdelayandshouldconsiderwhether
itisinthepublic’sinteresttobringtothepublicattention,
anymajornewdevelopmentsintheNHSfoundationtrust’s
sphereofactivitywhicharenotpublicknowledge,which
itisabletodiscloseand which maylead by virtue of their
effectonitsassetsandliabilities,orfinancialpositionoron
thegeneralcourseofitsbusiness,toasubstantialchangeto
thefinancialwellbeing, healthcaredeliveryperformanceor
reputation and standing of the NHS foundation trust.
b)TheboardofdirectorsmustnotifyMonitorandthecouncil
ofgovernorswithoutdelayandshouldconsiderwhetheritis
inthepublicinteresttobringtopublicattentionallrelevant
informationwhichisnotpublicknowledgeconcerninga
material change in:

- the NHS foundation trust’s financial condition;

- the performance of its business; and/or

- the NHS foundation trust’s expectations as to its
performancewhich,ifmadepublic,wouldbelikelytoleadto
asubstantialchangetothefinancialwellbeing,healthcare
deliveryperformanceorreputationandstandingoftheNHS
foundation trust.

Theboardshouldestablishanauditcommitteecomposed
of atleast three members who are allindependent non-
executive directors.

The board should satisfy itself that the membership of
the audit committee has sufficient skills to discharge its
responsibilitieseffectively,includingensuringthatatleast
onememberoftheauditcommitteehasrecentandrelevant
financial experience.The chairperson ofthetrustshould
notchairorbeamemberoftheauditcommittee.Hecan,
however, attend meetings by invitation as appropriate.

Thecouncilshouldtaketheleadinagreeingwiththeaudit
committeethecriteriaforappointing,re-appointingand
removing external auditors.
Thecouncilofgovernorswillneedtoworkhardtoensure
they have the skills and knowledge to choose the right
externalauditorandmonitortheirperformance.However,
theyshouldbesupportedinthistaskbytheauditcommittee,
whichprovidesinformationtothegovernorsontheexternal
auditor’s performance as well as overseeing the NHS
foundationtrust’sinternalfinancialreportingandinternal
auditing.
TheNHSfoundationtrustshouldappointanexternalauditor
foraperiod oftimewhichallowstheauditortodevelopa
strongunderstandingofthefinances,operationsandforward
plansoftheNHSfoundationtrust.Thecurrentbestpracticeis
for a three- to five-year period of appointment.
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Self-assessment

Compliant

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.
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CoG ref

C3.7

C338

D.1.1

Summary of requirement

Whenthecouncilendsanexternalauditor’sappointment
indisputedcircumstances,thechairpersonshouldwriteto
Monitorinforming it of the reasons behind the decision.

Theauditcommitteeshouldreviewarrangementsthatallow
staffoftheNHSfoundationtrustandotherindividualswhere
relevant, toraise,in confidence,concernsaboutpossible
improprietiesinmattersoffinancialreportingandcontrol,
clinical quality, patient safety or other matters.

The audit committee’s objective should be to ensure
that arrangements are in place for the proportionate
and independent investigation of such matters and for
appropriatefollow-upaction.Thisshouldincludeensuring
safeguards for those who raise concerns are in place
andoperating effectively.Such processesshouldenable
individualsorgroupstodrawformalattentiontopractices
thatareunethicalorviolateinternalorexternalpolicies,rules
orregulationsandtoensurethatvalidconcernsarepromptly
addressed.Theseprocessesshouldalsoreassureindividuals
raisingconcernsthattheywillbeprotectedfrompotential
negative repercussions

Anyperformance-relatedelementsoftheremunerationof
executivedirectorsshouldbedesignedtoaligntheirinterests
withthose of patients, serviceusersandtaxpayersandto
givethesedirectorskeenincentivestoperformatthehighest
levels.
Indesigningschemesofperformance-relatedremuneration,
theremunerationcommitteeshouldconsiderthefollowing
provisions:

i) Theremunerationcommitteeshouldconsiderwhetherthe
directorsshouldbeeligibleforannualbonusesinlinewith
localprocedures.Ifso,performanceconditionsshouldbe
relevant,stretchinganddesignedtomatchthelong-term
interests of the public and patients.
ii)Payoutsorgrantsunderallincentiveschemesshouldbe
subjecttochallengingperformancecriteriareflectingthe
objectivesoftheNHSfoundationtrust.Considerationshould
begiventocriteriawhichreflecttheperformanceoftheNHS
foundationtrustrelative toagroup of comparator trusts
insomekeyindicators,andthetakingofindependentand
expert advice where appropriate.

i) Performance criteria and any upper limits for annual
bonusesandincentiveschemesshouldbesetanddisclosed.
iv)Theremunerationcommitteeshouldconsiderthepension
consequencesandassociatedcoststotheNHSfoundation
trust of basic salary increases and any other changes in
pensionableremuneration,especiallyfordirectorscloseto
retirement.

Levelsofremunerationforthechairpersonandothernon-
executivedirectorsshouldreflectthetimecommitmentand
responsibilities of their roles.
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Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.



Part of
schedule A

Relating to

6:Complyor Remuneration
explain Committee

6:Complyor Remuneration
explain Committee

Council of
6:Complyor Governors /
explain Remuneration
Committee

6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor

. Board
explain

6:Complyor

: Board
explain

CoG ref

D.1.4

D.2.2

D.2.3

E.2.1

E.2.2

Summary of requirement

Theremunerationcommitteeshouldcarefullyconsiderwhat
compensationcommitments(includingpensioncontributions
andallotherelements)theirdirectorstermsofappointments
would give rise to in the event of early termination.
Theaimshouldbetoavoidrewardingpoorperformance.
Contracts should allow for compensation to be reduced
toreflectadepartingdirector’sobligationtomitigateloss.
Appropriateclaw-backprovisionsshouldbeconsideredin
caseofadirectorreturningtotheNHSwithintheperiodof
any putative notice.

The remuneration committee should have delegated
responsibility for setting remuneration for all executive
directors,includingpensionrightsandanycompensation
payments.
Thecommitteeshouldalsorecommendandmonitorthelevel
andstructureofremunerationforseniormanagement.The
definitionofseniormanagementforthispurposeshouldbe
determinedbytheboard,butshouldnormallyincludethefirst
layer of management below board level.

Thecouncilshouldconsultexternalprofessionaladvisers
tomarket-testtheremunerationlevelsofthechairperson
andothernon-executivesatleastonceeverythreeyears
and when they intend to make a material change to the
remuneration of a non-executive.

Theboardshouldclarifyinwritinghowthepublicinterests
of patientsandthelocalcommunitywillberepresented,
including its approach for addressing the overlap and

interface between governorsandany local consultative
forums(e.g. LocalHealthwatch,theOverviewandScrutiny
Committee,thelocalLeagueofFriends,andstaffgroups).

Thechairpersonshouldensurethattheviewsofgovernors
andmembersarecommunicatedtotheboardasawhole.
The chairperson should discuss the affairs of the NHS
foundationtrustwithgovernors.Non-executivedirectors
shouldbeofferedtheopportunitytoattendmeetingswith
governorsandshouldexpecttoattendthemifrequestedby
governors.Theseniorindependentdirectorshouldattend
sufficientmeetingswithgovernorstolistentotheirviewsin
ordertohelpdevelopabalancedunderstandingoftheissues
and concerns of governors.

Theboardshouldbeclearastothespecificthird partybodies
inrelationtowhichtheNHSfoundationtrusthasadutyto
co-operate.
Theboardofdirectorsshouldbeclearoftheformandscope
oftheco-operationrequiredwitheachofthesethirdparty
bodies in order to discharge their statutory duties.

Theboardshouldensurethateffectivemechanismsarein
placetoco-operatewithrelevantthirdpartybodiesandthat
collaborativeandproductiverelationshipsaremaintained
withrelevantstakeholdersatappropriatelevelsofseniority
in each.

Theboard ofdirectorsshouldreviewtheeffectiveness of
these processes and relationships annually and, where
necessary, take proactive steps to improve them.

97

Self-assessment

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant.

Compliant:
Scheduleofthirdpartieswithwhom
theTrusthasadutyofcooperation
is located on Trust website here:
http// www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk/
key documents/

Compliant.
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NHS Oversight Framework

NHS England and NHS Improvement’s NHS Oversight
Frameworkprovidestheframeworkforoverseeing providersand
identifyingpotentialsupportneeds.Theframeworklooksatfivethemes:
+ Quality of care

« Finance and use of resources

« Operational performance

« Strategic change

+ Leadership and improvement capability (well-led)

Basedoninformationfromthesethemes,providersaresegmentedfrom
1to4,where‘4d’reflects providers receiving the most support,and
"1'reflectsproviderswithmaximumautonomy.Afoundationtrustwill
onlybeinsegments3or4whereithasbeenfoundtobeinbreachor
suspected breach of its licence.

Segmentation

TheRotherham NHS FoundationTrustisinsegment3. Thismeans
thattheTrust has beenin receipt of mandated support from NHS
Improvement.

ThissegmentationinformationistheTrust'spositionasat31March
2020.

CurrentsegmentationinformationforNHStrustsandfoundationtrusts
is published on the NHS Improvement website.

During2019/20, the breachesagainsttheTrust’s ProviderLicence
remainedinplace.ThesebreachesresultedfromEnforcementAction
taken against the Trust by Monitor in April 2013. The Trust was
requiredtotakespecificactions,pursuanttosection 106oftheHealth
andSocialCareAct2012,relatingtofinancialplanning,governance
breaches,andbreachesrelatingtotheElectronicPatientRecord (EPR)
system.

Twoofthebreaches(thoserelatingtogovernanceandtheEPRsystem)
wereliftedduring2014/15becauseNHSImprovement(thenMonitor)
consideredthattheTrusthadtakenall oftheactionsrequired ofit.

Progressinrelationtotheoutstandingfinancialandstrategicplanning
breacheshasalsobeenmadebytheTrustintermsofbeingableto
evidenceitscompliancewiththerequiredactions.Thisevidencehas
notyetbeenformallysubmittedtotheregulatorbytheorganisation
duetotheextensivechangesthathavetakenplaceacrosstheNHS
sincetherequirementswereenforced,inadditiontotheTrust'sfinancial
position.

Consequently, the following breaches against the Trust’s Licence
remainedinplacethroughout2019/20:LicenceconditionsFT4(5)(a),
FT4(5)(b), FT4(5)(d), FT4(5)(e), FT4(5)(f), FT4(5)(g) and CoS3(1).

TheTrust'ssegment3ratingallocatedbyNHSImprovementinOctober
2016, reflectedtheTrust'sregulatory positionatthattime. Further
detailsareprovidedintheAnnualGovernanceStatementsectionofthis
Annual Report in the ‘Future Risks’ section.

Finance and use of resources

Thefinanceanduseofresourcesthemeisbasedonthescoringoffive
measuresfrom’1'to’4,where’'1'reflectsthestrongestperformance.
Thesescoresarethenweightedtogiveanoverallscore.Giventhat
financeanduseofresourcesisonlyoneofthefivethemesfeedinginto
theNHSOversightFramework,thesegmentationoftheTrustdisclosed
above might not be the same as the overall finance score here.

Capitalservice

Financial capacity
Sustainability o

Liquidity 4 4
Financial Efficiency  I&E margin 2 4

Distance from

Financial Controls financial plan

Agency spend 1 2

Overall Scoring 3 3

#Sourceoflatestsegmentationinformationdated20April2020:https://improvement.
nhs.uk/resources/single-oversight-framework-segmentation/,lastaccessedon21April
2020

2019/20 scores

o J o oo e o] e]a_
3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

2018/19 scores

4 4 4 4 4 4
4 4 4 4 4 4
1 1 1 1 1 1
2 2 3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3 3 3

Accountability Report signed by the Chief Executive in hisrole as
Accounting Officer:

R.D.

Dr Richard Jenkins
Interim Chief Executive
02 June 2020
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Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities

Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the
Accounting Officer of The Rotherham NHS Foundation
Trust

TheNHSAct2006statesthattheChiefExecutiveistheAccountingOfficerof
theNHSfoundationtrustTherelevantresponsibilitiesoftheAccountingOfficer,
includingtheirresponsibilityfortheproprietyandregularityofpublicfinances
forwhichtheyareanswerable andforthekeepingofproperaccounts,areset
outintheNHSFoundationTrustAccountingOfficerMemorandumissuedbyNHS
Improvement.

NHSImprovement,inexerciseofthepowersconferredonMonitorbytheNHS
Act2006,hasgivenAccountsDirectionswhichrequireTheRotherhamNHS
FoundationTrusttoprepareforeachfinancialyearastatementofaccountsinthe
formandonthebasisrequiredbythoseDirections.Theaccountsarepreparedon
anaccrualsbasisandmustgiveatrueandfairviewofthestateofaffairsofThe
RotherhamNHSFoundationTrustandofitsincomeandexpenditure,otheritems
of comprehensive income and cash flows for the financial year.

Inpreparingtheaccountsandoverseeingtheuseofpublicfunds,theAccounting
OfficerisrequiredtocomplywiththerequirementsoftheDepartmentofHealth
and Social Care Group Accounting Manual and in particular to:

+ ObservetheAccountsDirectionissuedbyNHSImprovement,including
therelevantaccountinganddisclosurerequirements,andapplysuitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis

» Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis

- State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (and the Department
of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual) have been
followed,anddiscloseandexplainanymaterialdeparturesinthefinancial
statements

- Ensurethattheuseofpublicfundscomplieswiththerelevantlegislation,
delegated authorities and guidance

«+ Confirmthatthe Annual Reportand Accounts, taken asawhole, is fair,
balancedandunderstandableandprovidestheinformationnecessaryfor
patients,regulatorsandstakeholderstoassesstheNHSfoundationtrust’s
performance, business model and strategy; and

« Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

TheAccountingOfficerisresponsibleforkeepingproperaccountingrecords
whichdisclosewithreasonableaccuracyatanytimethefinancialpositionofthe
NHSfoundationtrustandtoenablethemtoensurethattheaccountscomply
withrequirementsoutlinedintheabovementionedActTheAccountingOfficer
isalsoresponsibleforsafeguardingtheassetsoftheNHSfoundationtrustand
hencefortakingreasonablestepsforthepreventionanddetectionoffraudand
other irregularities.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
foundationtrust’sauditorsare unaware,andlhavetakenallthestepsthatl
oughttohavetakentomakemyselfawareofanyrelevantauditinformationand
to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the
responsibilitiessetoutinthe NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum.

Signed:
R.3.)

i
Dr Richard Jenkins
Interim Chief Executive
02 June 2020
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Annual Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

AsAccountingOfficer,lhaveresponsibilityformaintainingasound
systemofinternalcontrolthatsupportstheachievementoftheNHS
FoundationTrust'spolicies,aimsandobjectives,whilstsafeguarding
thepublicfundsanddepartmentalassetsforwhichlampersonally
responsible,inaccordancewiththeresponsibilitiesassignedtome.
lamalsoresponsible forensuring thatthe NHS foundation trustis
administeredprudentlyandeconomicallyandthatresourcesareapplied
efficientlyandeffectively.lalsoacknowledgemyresponsibilitiesasset
outinthe NHSFoundationTrustAccounting OfficerMemorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a
reasonablelevelratherthantoeliminateallriskoffailuretoachieve
policies,aimsandobjectives;itcanthereforeonlyprovidereasonable
andnotabsoluteassuranceofeffectiveness.Thesystemofinternal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and
objectivesofTheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrust,toevaluatethe
likelihoodofthoserisksbeingrealisedandtheimpactshouldtheybe
realised,andtomanagethemefficiently,effectivelyandeconomically.
ThesystemofinternalcontrolhasbeeninplaceinTheRotherhamNHS
FoundationTrustfortheyearended31March2020anduptothedate
of approval of the annual report and accounts.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring sound risk
managementsystemsareinplacethroughouttheorganisation,andis
supportedbyanumberofcommitteeswhichoverseetheeffectiveness
ofriskmanagement,internalcontrolandassurancearrangements,
includingtheAuditCommittee.Ultimately,Ihavetheresponsibility,as
ChiefExecutiveand AccountingOfficer,forthemanagementofriskin
the organisation.

To supportme, each member of the executive team hasan area of
responsibilityforriskmanagement,inaccordancewiththeirportfolios
andasreflectedintheirroledescriptions,whichsupportsmeinmyrole
as Accounting Officer.

WehavealsoappointedaSeniorindependentDirectorwhoisavailable
toanycolleagueorGovernorshouldtheyhaveconcernsthattheyfeel
theyareunabletoraisevianormalcommunicationchannelswiththe
Chair, Chief Executive or any of the board members.

The risk and control framework

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a
reasonablelevel,ratherthantoeliminateallriskswhichmayleadto
failure of objectivesandthe organisational strategy. Itisbased on
anon-going process ofidentifying and prioritising the risks tothe
achievementoftheTrust'sstrategy,andevaluatingthepotentialfor
thoseriskstoberealisedandtheimpactthattheymighthave,whilst
ensuringasfaraspossiblethattheyaremanagedeffectively,efficiently
and economically.



The high level Board committee structure discharging overall
responsibilities for risk management is summarised below:

-TheTrustBoardisresponsibleforestablishingprincipalstrategicand
corporateobjectivesandfordrivingtheorganisationforwardtoachieve
these.ltisalsoresponsibleforensuringthateffectivesystemsarein
placetoidentifyandmanagetherisksassociatedwiththeachievement
oftheseobjectivesthroughtheBoardAssuranceFrameworkandthe
Corporate Risk Register.

-AuditCommittee,onbehalfoftheBoard,reviewstheestablishment
andmaintenanceofaneffectivesystemofinternalcontrolandrisk
managementacrossthewholeoftheTrust'sactivities(bothclinicaland
non-clinical)thatsupportstheachievementoftheTrust'sobjectivesand
also ensures effective internal and external audit.

-QualityCommittee(QC)formallytheQualityAssuranceCommittee
(QACQ) providesassurancetotheTrustBoardand Audit Committee
thatthereareadequatecontrolsinplacetomonitorthecaregivento
patientsusingtheservicesprovidedbytheTrust,andtoensurethat
their experience of our services and outcomes are as expected.

- Finance and Performance Committee (FPC) is responsible for
scrutinisingaspectsoffinancialperformanceasrequestedbytheBoard,
as well as conducting scrutiny of

majorbusinesscases, proposedinvestmentdecisionsandregular
review of contracts with key partners.

- The People Committee was established on 1 April 2020 and is
responsibleforprovidingleadershipandoversightfortheTruston
workforceissuesthatsupportthedeliveryoftheBoard’sapproved
workforceobjectivesandformonitoringtheoperationalperformance
oftheTrustinpeoplemanagement,recruitmentandretention,and
employee health and wellbeing.

TheTrust'sriskmanagementstrategy,approvedbytheBoard, sets
out the organisational approach to risk, the Executive and Non-
ExecutiveDirectorresponsibilities,and theframeworkin placefor
themanagementofriskthroughouttheorganisation.Riskappetite
isdetermined by theboard andisreviewed onaregularbasis.The
Strategy also includes details of the role of board committees in
providing assurance that risks are being managed effectively.

TheBoardAssuranceFramework(BAF)isthemechanismwhichisused
toidentifyandmonitortheTrust'sstrategicobjectivesandmanagethe
associatedrisksthatmaycompromisetheirachievement.TheBAFis
reviewedonamonthlybasisbytheExecutiveDirectorsandformally
reviewedquarterlybyboardassurancecommitteesandtheBoardof
Directorstoensurethatappropriatemitigatingactionistakenagainst
the key risks. Operational and other corporate risks with scores of
15and above, are also reviewed by the Board as part of its reqular
monitoring of risk management

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustisrequiredtoregisterwiththe
CareQualityCommission(CQC)anditscurrentregistrationstatusis
‘RegisteredwithConditions.TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrusthas
the following conditions on registration.

InOctober2018,theCareQualityCommissionservedaconditionon
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theTrustregistrationrelatingtomitigatingtheriskswithinpaediatric
Urgent and Emergency Care Centre with a focus on medical and
nursing staffing levels.

TheCareQualityCommissionhasnottakenenforcementactionagainst
the Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust during 2019/20.

ThroughoutthecourseoftheyeartheTrusthasmaintainedcontact
withtheCQCthroughregularconversationsandcorrespondencewith
theTrust’sleadCQClnspectorandquarterlyengagementmeetings.

Theorganisationhasestablishedqualitygovernancearrangementsin
placewhichisunderpinnedbytheTrust'squalityframeworkandthe
quality improvement strategy.
TheTrustmonitorscomplianceofallservices.Eachserviceundertakes
aself-assessment,whichisusedtoprovideassurancethattheyare
assessedagainstregulatorystandards.Inaddition, thisinformation
isreviewedandusedtounderpininternalreviewsofcompliance.An
action planisin place and monitored for all must and should dos
identified at previous CQC Inspections.

Patients,serviceusers,carersandvisitorsareencouragedtoreport
anyissueofconcern,orsuggestareasforimprovementusingleaflets,
commentcards(positionedinpatientareas),andthroughdischarge
patientsurveys.TheTrustactivelytakespartinthenationalFriendsand
Family Test model.

Gathering feedback from external stakeholders as well as using
patients’and carers’views isimportant and also undertaken. This
processenablesthesegroupstofeedbackandscrutinisetheTrust’s
activityensuringthatthepatientandcarerviewisincorporatedintoour
systems.

Theorganisationalsohasanumberof patientexperience groups,
wherepatientsandcarersaremembers,whichoverseeandmonitor
involvementandpatientexperienceactivityintheTrust.Ourpatient
experienceteamprovidescentralreportingoflowlevelconcernsand
issuesraisedbypatientsandthepublic.ltisfullyintegratedwiththe
complaintsmanagementprocess.Theseandotherpatientexperience
issues are considered at the patient experience group and then
ultimatelyintothequalitygovernancecommittee.This,alongwithother
qualitydata,isreportedinaqualitydashboardthatispresentedtothe
Quality Committee.

TheTrustiscommitted todeliveringexcellentcareathome,inour
community and in hospital. We aim to improve the health and
wellbeing of the population we serve, building a healthier future
together.Tosupportthis,weestablishedqualityprioritiesfor2019/20,
whichweresetoutinourpreviousqualityreport.Qualitytargetswere
linkedthroughoutthedivisionsandareincludedinlocaldashboards
whicharepresentedthroughvariouscommittees monthlyperformance
reviewswiththeexecutivedirectors,andultimatelytheBoardviathe
Quality Assurance Committee.

The quality priorities for 2019/20 were:
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Patient Safety

+ Increase Medication Safety

« Improve the treatment of the deteriorating patient

+ Improve mandatory training compliance for medical staff

Patient Experience

« Improve end of life recognition

« Improve patient discharge

» Enhance patient feedback and public engagement

Clinical Effectiveness

- Improvingtheexperienceofpatientstransitioningfromchildrento
adult services

+ Improve Mortality Reviews

« ImprovepolicyandNationallnstituteforHealthandCareExcellence
(NICE) guidance compliance

InorderforustooperateasaproviderofNHSservicesunderlicence
withtheCQC,wemustcomplywiththerequirementsofNHSI'sQuality
GovernanceFramework.NHSI(previously,Monitor)JandtheCQChave
alignedtheirdefinitionofa'well-led'organisationwhichisreflectedin
the CQC’s assessment approach.

Duringtheyear,theTrustcommissionedanindependentwell-ledreview
usingNHSI'sframework.Thereportidentifiedanumberofstrengths
and good practice, and afew areas for development. These were
presentedtotheboardofdirectors,andanactionplandrawnupand
followed.

Data Security

Data security risks are managed in line with the Trust’s risk
managementframework,andwhereappropriate,arerecordedonthe
Trust’s risk register.

AllTrustcolleaguesaresubjecttoacodeofconfidentiality,andaccess
todataheldonl|Tsystemsisrestrictedtoauthorisedusers.TheTrust’s
ITdepartmentmaintainsup-to-datetechnicalsecuritymeasuresto
minimisethethreattoTrustnetworkresourcesfromoutsidethreatsand
inappropriate access.

TheTrusthasinplacestandardoperatingproceduresandpoliciesfor
thereportingofpersonaldatasecuritybreachestothelnformation
Commissioner’sOfficewithinthe72hourdeadline.Thisreportingof
incidentsisthroughtheDataSecurityandProtectionIncidentReporting
tool,whichinformsNHSDigital, DHSC,thelCOandotherregulators.

Networkandinformationsystemriskswhichmayhavea'significant’
impactonthecontinuityofessentialservices,arereportedtotheDHSC,
inaccordancewiththeSecurityofNetworkandInformationSystems
Regulations 2018.

Risksandissuesinvolvinginformationsecurityaremonitoredbythe

InformationGovernanceCommittee(IGC)whichescalatesissuestothe
Audit Committee or Board.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

Risks to the organisation
TheBoard’sAssuranceFrameworkprovidestheTrustwithasystem
toidentifyandmonitorriskswhichmayaffectachievingthestrategic
objectives. Each risk is mapped to corresponding controls and
assurances, both internal and external.

ThehighestscoringrisksidentifiedviatheBoardAssuranceFramework
during 2019/20, are summarised below:

Quiality of care:
Thisrelatestothefailuretodeliverhighqualitypatientcare,leadingto
poorpatientexperience,avoidableharmandpoorclinicaloutcomes.

OftheTrust'sninequalityprioritiessetatthebeginningofthefinancial

year, four were delivered as planned. These were:

+ Increase Medication Safety

« Improvingtheexperienceofpatientstransitioningfromchildrento
adult services

+ Improve Mortality Reviews

« ImprovepolicyandNationallnstituteforHealthandCareExcellence
(NICE) guidance compliance

Oftheremainingfive,anyrequiredactionstocontinueimplementation
orimproveperformancewillbedetailedinthequalityaccount(tobe
publishedlaterintheyear)andoverseenbytheQualityCommittee.

OurHSMRandSHMIhavesteadilyincreasedduringtheyear,withboth
being117atyearend.Thishasbeenasignificantareaoffocusforthe
Trustwithongoingwork,includingexternalreviewsandpeerreviews,
takingplace.Furtherworkcontinuesintothenewfinancialyearwith
closefocusonensuringtherightcareprocessesareinplaceandthat
activity has been counted properly.

TheTrust’s62-daycancerpositionforQuarters1,2and3wasbelow
the national 85% standard which prompted commencementofa
formal cancer improvement programme. At year end, the Trust’s
performancestoodat69.3%,havingdeterioratedfromanin-month
performanceinJanuary2020,priortotheeffectsof COVID-19,0f81%.

ReferralToTreatment(RTT)performancedeterioratedinMarch2020
due to the cancellation of elective activity to create capacity for
COVID-19patients,and minimiseriskto staffand patients. Atyear
end,therewereonlythreespecialitiesmeetingtheRT Tstandardwith
the remaining having experienced a significant decline.

TheTrustcontinuedtofacechallengesinconsistentlymeeting A&E
targets,withincreasesinthepercentageofambulancewaitsover60
minutescomparedtothepreviousyear(2.73%in2018/19compared
t06.23%in 2019/20) and patients having to sometimes waitlong
periodspriortobeingtakentotheappropriatewardforfurthercare.
Muchworkhasbeenundertakentoimprovethesituationincluding
recruitmentofadditionalclinicians,considerationofnewmethodsof
working,andengagingwithexternalagenciessuchasECISTandNHS
Improvementacademywithsignsofimprovementevidentinthesecond
half of Quarter 4.



Workforce:
Wehaveworkedextremelyhardtoredesign,supportandretainour
workforce, whilstalsorecruitingtovacant postsinordertoreduce
agencyspending.Consultantrecruitmenthasbeensteadyduring
theyearresultinginan establishmentof 171.27 WTE consultants.
Whilsttheyearout-turnshowedareductioninagencyexpenditureat
£11,216Kagainstaforecastof£11,238K,furthercontrolshavebeen
implementedsinceyearend.Theseincludethecompleteremovalofthe
useofhighercostagenciesandtheintroductionofnewweeklyinternal
control meetings led by an executive director.

Financial Sustainability:
InanotherfinanciallychallengingyearfortheTrust,andfollowinga
quarter4deterioration,theTrustdelivered£4,919Kdeficitagainsta
plannedbreakevenpositionfor2019/20.However,asaresultofthe
SouthYorkshire&BassetlawIntegratedCareSystembeinginaggregate
balance theTrustreceivedadditionalnon-recurrentFinancialRecovery
Fund monies to clear the deficit, resulting in a surplus of £9K.

Byyearend,theTrust'sclinicalincomewasadversetoplanwithafull
year deficit of £239K. Full year outturn of pay costs was adverse to
planby £5,310Kwithalmost47%oftheM12 costlinkedtonursing
andnursingsupportstaff. Additionalexpenditureduringtheyear
onadditionalbedcapacity(+£1m),deliveryofacostimprovement
programme resulting in a below plan position of £856K, and an
overspendincapitalexpenditurethattranspiredinM12,ledtheTrust
tocommissionanindependentreviewoffinancialgovernanceduring
Q12020/21andincreasemonitoringoffinancialmattersandfinancial
controls.

COVID-19ledtonationalsuspensionofusualNHSplanningprocesses
foraninitial period ofthefirstfourmonthsofthenewfinancialyear
2020/21.Atthisstage,itisunclearwhatwillhappenafterthisperiod
andwhetherinterimfinancialarrangementswillcontinuelongerthan
originallyadvised.Howeveritisclearthatatsomepoint,arrangements
will be put in place to transition back to business as usual.

Future Risks
PotentialrisksthatcouldaffecttheTrustachievingitsobjectivesin
2020/21 are similar to those from previous years:

Standards and quality of care are not achieved;
Performance against A&E and other access standards;

The Trust not meeting its financial targets and the financial
requirements of the ICS.

Workforce recruitment, retention and potentially, capacity.

TheTrust'sStanding Ordersand Scheme of Delegationoutlinethe
accountabilityarrangementsandscopeofresponsibilityoftheBoardof
Directors,executivedirectorsandtheorganisation’sofficers.Theunitary
Boardwasfullyinvolvedinagreeingthestrategicprioritiesandannual
objectivesoftheTrust,withthemostimportantprioritiesbeingthose
setoutintheTrust’sannual plan,againstwhich the Board submits
regular reports to the Council of Governors.

TheBoardreceivesregularminutesandreportsfromeachoftheboard
committeesthatreporttoit.Thetermsofreferenceofthecommittees
of the Board have been reviewed to ensure that governance
arrangements continue to be fit for purpose.
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All executive directors report to me and the performance of the
executive team is held to account through team and individual
objectives, which reflect the Board objectives.

Duringtheyear,theTrustretainedbreachesagainstitsLicence, resulting
fromEnforcementActiontakenbyMonitoragainsttheTrustin April
2013.0utstandingfinancialplanningbreaches,i.e.thoserelatingto
LicenceconditionsFT4(5)(a),FT4(5)(b),FT4(5)(d),FT4(5)(e), FT4(5)(f),
FT4(5)(g)andCoS3(1),remaininplace,asdoesanoverallsection111
breach.Theallocationofasegment3sectorratingbyNHSlinOctober
2016, reflects the regulatory position.

The Board of Directors, as required under NHS Foundation Trust
condition 4(8)(b) assures itself of the validity of its Corporate
GovernanceStatement.TheBoardofDirectorsreviewstheCorporate
Governance Statement every year to ensure that declarations
beingmadecanbesupportedwithevidence.ltconsiderstherisks
andmitigatingactionsthatmanagementprovidedtosupportthe
Statementsanddetermine,bothfromitsownworkthroughoutthe
year-particularlythetestingofthecontrolssetoutintheAssurance
Framework-andassurances providedfrom the work of the Trust’s
internalauditors,externalauditorandotherexternalauditsorreviews,
whether the Statements are valid.

Operationally, risk management is delegated through the Risk
ManagementCommittee,chairedbytheChiefNurse.ThisCommittee
provides assurance to the Board on the functioning of systems of
riskmanagement,andissupportedbytheRiskAnalysisGroup,the
attendees of which, are taken from across the organisation. The
agendaoftheweeklyexecutiveteammeetings,whichlchairincludea
standingitemtoconsideranyneworganisationalrisksscoring15and
above.

The Risk Management Committee ensures that effective risk
management processes encompass the following:
Improvement torisk response: good risk management should
providetherigortoidentifyappropriateresponsestorisks(avoid,
mitigate, share or accept).
Reductionofoperationalsurprises:theCommitteeshouldbeableto
identifypotentialissuesthatmightadverselyaffecttheorganisation
and be better able to respond in the event of a crisis.

The identification and management of multiple and cross
organisationalrisks:effectiveriskmanagementshoulddeterminethe
scopeofcrossorganisationalrisksandfacilitateresponsetointer-
related risks across the organisation.
Improvedeploymentofresources:theCommitteeshouldensurethat
theTrusthasrobustinformationonrisktoallowtheBoardandthe
ExecutiveTeamMeetingtoeffectivelyassesstheneedsforcapital
and appropriate allocation of resources.

Inaddition,clinicaldirectors,operationalmanagers,seniornursing
colleaguesallhavedelegatedresponsibilityforensuringeffectiverisk
management within their own areas.
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Stakeholder Involvement

Establishedandeffectivearrangementsareinplaceforworkingwith

keypublicstakeholdersacrossthelocalhealtheconomy,including:

« Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group

« Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

- Health Select Commission (RMBC)

+ HealthWatch Rotherham

+ Rotherham and Barnsley Chamber of Commerce

+ Rotherham College / University College Rotherham

+ Rotherham Place Board

+ Voluntary Action Rotherham

+ Yorkshire Ambulance Service

+ South Yorkshire Police

» South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Services

+ South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System

« NHS England

» NHS Improvement

- TheTrust'sCouncilofGovernors,Trustmembers,andmembersofthe
public

Workforce

The Board of Directors and Board Committees (Quality, Finance &
PerformanceandPeople)receiveregularreportsdetailingthestaffing
arrangements in place to provide assurance in respect of safety,
sustainabilityandeffectiveness.Thereportsdetailareasofriskand
mitigationstrategiesinrelationtoworkforce.Workforceassurance
is also provided through the Board Committees in respect of key
workforce metrics, e.g. establishment data, sickness absenceand
turnover.TheBoardhasalsoapproveda'WorkforcePlan'whichhasa
keyobjectivetosupportandenableClinicalDivisionsandCorporate
Servicestodeveloprobustworkforceplanningstrategies.Inaccordance
withtherecommendationsof DevelopingWorkforceSafeguards'the
Trustwilluseatriangulatedapproachtomaintainingassurancearound
workforce strategies and safe staffing systems.This approach will
includeutilisingevidencebasedtools,e.g.establishmentreviews,roster
informationtogetherwithprofessionaljudgementandpatientoutcome
measures.TheNursingandMedicalDirectorswillprovideastatement
totheBoarddetailingtheoutcomeofthisevidencebasedapproach.

The Foundation Trust is not fully compliant with the registration
requirements of the Care Quality Commission, and its current
registrationstatusis'RegisteredwithConditions’InOctober2018,the
CareQualityCommissionservedaconditionontheTrustregistration
relatingtomitigationoftheriskswithintheUrgentandEmergency
Care Centre paediatric area with a focus on medical and nursing
staffing levels.

The Foundation Trust has published on its website an up-to-date
registerofinterests,includinggiftsandhospitality,fordecision-making
staff(asdefinedbythetrustwithreferencetotheguidance)withinthe
pasttwelvemonths,asrequiredbythe’'ManagingConflictsofInterest
in the NHS’ guidance.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS

PensionScheme,controlmeasuresareinplacetoensureallemployer
obligationscontainedwithintheSchemeregulationsarecomplied
with.Thisincludesensuringthatdeductionsfromsalary,employer’s
contributionsandpaymentsintotheSchemeareinaccordancewiththe
Schemerules,andthatmemberPensionSchemerecordsareaccurately
updatedinaccordancewiththetimescalesdetailedintheRegulations.

Control measures arein place to ensure that all the organisation’s
obligationsunderequality,diversityandhumanrightslegislationare
complied with.

The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has a
sustainabledevelopmentmanagementplaninplacewhichtakes
accountofUKClimateProjections2018(UKCP18).Thetrustensures
thatitsobligationsundertheClimateChangeActandtheAdaptation
Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the
use of resources

The Board, onamonthly basis, keeps under review the Trust's use
ofresources,financialperformanceandcosteffectivenessthrough
the monthlyfinance report, reviewed in detail by the Financeand
PerformanceCommittee(FPC)andalsoreceivedmonthlybytheBoard.
WherekeyrisksandissuesinrelationtotheTrust'suseofresourcesare
identified,divisionalreviewsarepresentedtotheFPCtoensurethata
sufficient degree of assurance is obtained.

TheoversightroleoftheBoardandtheFPCissupplementedbythe
annualinternalauditprogrammewhichincludesacomprehensive
review of the Trust’s financial systems and controls.

Externalauditorscarryouttheauditoffinancialsystemsandcomment
specificallyontheuseofresourcesandgoingconcernintheirreportsto
the Audit Committee and the Board.

The governance structure at Executive level and below provide
opportunitiesforspecificdivisions,servicelinesanddepartments
to be challenged on their use of resources within the respective
serviceswhichthey provide. Allbudgetholdersare provided with
monthlyfinancialinformationtohelpthemensureresourcesareused
economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Trust underwent a Use of Resources Assessment, led by NHS
Improvement,inSeptember2018,theoutcomeofwhichwasratedas
‘requiresimprovement’.Duetothe COVID-19pandemic,theTrust’s
scheduledreview,whichwasplannedforApril2020,waspostponed.
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Information governance
TheTrusthasanestablishedprocessformanagingthelnformation
Governanceagenda,ledbytheSIRO,theMedicalDirectorasCaldicott
Guardian, and supported by the Data Protection Officer.

ThelnformationGovernanceCommitteeisresponsibleformonitoring
and controlling risks relating to data security. The Information
GovernanceCommitteeescalatesbreachesandanyarisingriskstothe
AuditCommittee(formallythroughtheTrustManagementCommittee).
AllinformationGovernancesecurityrelatedincidentswerereportedvia
the Data Security and Protection Incident Reporting tool.

Oneincidentwasreportedduringthefinancialyearinvolvingpersonal
data,whichwasdisclosedduetohumanerror.ThelCOdetermined
thatnofurtheraction wasrequired by theTrustand noaction was
taken against it.

OurDataQualityTeamhascontinuedtoworkwithheadsofservice,
linemanagersandhealthprofessionalsacrosstheTrusttoensurethat
allofourcolleaguesaresupportedtoenableaccurateandcomplete
inputofdataandtohaveanunderstandingoftheimportanceofdata
quality.

The annual review of all performance indicators (including
constitutional KPIs), was carried out in Q2 2019/20, with updated
data quality assurance statements being written and signed off
foreachindicator. Our system rates the 6 elements of granularity,
contemporaneousness,completeness,sign-off,system/datasourceand
audittoprovideagradingofdataqualityrangingfrom‘inadequate’to
‘robust’

TheprocesssupportstheDataProtectionandSecurityToolkitassertion
1.7andwasacknowledgedbytheTrust'sinternalauditorsandNHS
Digital as an example of best practice nationally.

AquarterlyreportispresentedtotheBoardprovidingassuranceon
progress against our digital strategy and data quality processes.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review of the
effectivenessofthesystemofinternalcontrolisinformedbythework
oftheinternalauditors,clinicalauditandtheexecutivemanagersand
clinicalleadswithintheNHSFoundationTrustwhohaveresponsibility
for the development and maintenance of the internal control
framework.Ilhavedrawnonperformanceinformationavailabletome.
Myreviewisalsoinformedbycommentsmadebytheexternalauditors
intheirmanagementletterandotherreports.lhavebeenadvisedon
theimplicationsoftheresultofmyreviewoftheeffectivenessofthe
systemofinternalcontrolbytheboard,theauditcommittee[andrisk/
clinicalgovernance/qualitycommittee,ifappropriate]andaplanto
addressweaknessesandensurecontinuousimprovementofthesystem
is in place.

Thekeyconsiderationsofmyreviewoftheeffectivenessofthesystem
of internal control can be summarised as follows:

« TheBoardhasbeenactivelyinvolvedindevelopingandreviewing
the Trust’s risk management processes including receiving
and reviewing reports from the Risk Analysis Group and Audit
Committee.The Board has also reviewed the Board Assurance
Frameworkaswellasmonitoringperformanceobjectivesviathe
Board'sintegratedPerformanceReportandtrackingoftheannual
plan objectives.
TheRiskManagementCommitteehasoverseentheeffectivenessof
alltheTrust'sriskmanagementarrangementsincludingtheon-going
development of the Trust’s risk register.
AclinicalauditprogrammeisinplaceandisoverseenbytheClinical
EffectivenessandResearchGroup,withdetailsappearinginthe
Trust’s Quality Account, to be published later in the year.
The Audit Committee has been a directing force in relation to
reviewingthesystemofinternalcontrolparticularlywithregardto
corporateriskandcounterfraud.TheAuditCommitteealsohasa
key role in the oversight of the Trust’s key financial challenges.
Executive Directors have ensured that key risks have been
highlighted, monitoredandthenecessaryactiontakentoaddress
them.ExecutiveDirectorswerealsodirectlyinvolvedinproducing
and reviewing the BAF.
Internalaudithasreviewedandreporteduponcontrol,governance
andriskmanagementprocesses,basedonanauditplanfor2019/20
approvedbytheAuditCommittee.Thisworkincludedidentifying
andevaluatingcontrolsandtestingtheireffectiveness,inaccordance
withPublicSectorInternal AuditStandards.Recommendations
weremadewherescopeforimprovementwasfound,andactions
agreed with management. The Head of Internal Audit has
providedamoderateassuranceopinionontheeffectivenessofrisk
management,internalcontrolandgovernanceprocessesthatare
designedtosupportachievementoftheTrust'sobjectiveswhichisa
higher level of assurance than the previous year.
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TheHeadofInternal AuditOpinionfor2019/20isproducedbelow:
“l am providing an opinion of moderate assurance that there
isagenerally sound framework of governance, risk management
andcontrol,however,inconsistentapplicationofcontrolsputsthe
achievement of the organisation’s objectives at risk.

In providing our opinion we consider three areas:

» Board Assurance Framework and strategic risk management
+ Internal audit plan out-turn

« Follow up of internal audit actions

BoardAssuranceFramework(BAF)andstrategicriskmanagement:
moderateassurance.WeraisedsomehighriskactionsinourStage 1
reviewinNovember2019;thesewereacteduponandprogressedin
quarter 4.

Internalauditplanoutturn:limitedassurance.Wehaveissuedanumber
ofcorereviewswithalimitedassuranceopinion.Risk-basedreviews
have also led to a range of significant issues being raised.

Followupofactions:significantassurance.TheTrusthasimplemented
80% of actions in line with original timeframes.

ThisOpinionshouldbetakeninitsentiretyfortheAnnualGovernance
Statement and any other purpose for which it is repeated.”

Inaddition,|gainassurancefromthefollowingthirdpartysources:

« reportsfromtheinternalandexternalauditorsandthelocalcounter
fraud specialist

« national patient surveys

. service accreditations

« JAG* and GIRFT** inspections

+ Royal College / Deanery visits

« Annual NHS Staff Survey

« Qutcomes of external Well Led reviews and CQC Inspections

Conclusion

Having joined the Trust only 6 weeks before year end, the task of
havingtoidentifywhethertherearesignificantinternalcontrolissues
intheorganisationisbasedontheinformationthathasbeenmade
availabletome, theresult of my own enquiries,engagement with
externalpartiessuchasthosementionedabove,andrelianceuponthe
existingassuranceframeworkandcontrolsystemsatTheRotherham
NHS Foundation Trust.

Acknowledging that there are areas for improvement, for which
mitigatingactionshavebeenputinplace,Iconfirmthatthereareno
internal control issues that | consider significant.

R Ay -

Dr Richard Jenkins
Interim Chief Executive
02 June 2020

*Joint Advisory Group on Gastrointestinal Endoscopy
**Getting It Right First Time

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk
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Forsword to the atcoLunts

The Rotherham BHS Foundation Trust

These accounts, for the year andad 31 March 2020, have beeny praparad by
The Fotherham MHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 B 25
af Schadule 7 within 1he Mational Health Servige Ack 2606,

The Accounts of The Raotherham WMHS Foundalion Trust for the period ending
31 Mareh 20820 follow. Tha faur primary stetements; the Stetement of
Comprehensive Income (S20C[): the Staterment of Financial Position (SOFF);
the Statement of Changes it Taxpayers' Equity (SOCITE) and the Statermnent of

L L

E:ﬂahﬂuwa E'GEI II aie HIEI'.'IEI IE'::I| ﬂr Elt Tp‘i'ﬂhhl d e fﬂ“uwuu LJ?‘ IJIH El'..l}.'l..lul I.II IH
nates Lo the accaunts.

Mote 1 putlings the Foundation Trust's accounting policies. Subsenueni nites
provida further detail on tha four prirnar'g,.l statemants and are eross refarenced
accordingly.

The knancial stetements I[Al:xmunla] ware approved Dy the Board on 02 Junz
2020 and =igned on its behalf by:

JLHLA_:-‘L n '
Signad S s R AN e

Wama Dr Richard Jankins
Job titla Interim Chief Exacutive
Date 02 June 2020
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ending 31 March 2020

2019720 2018M1%

Hote £000 £000
Operating income from patient care activities 3 242 465 228,870
Other operating income 4 46,149 24 669
Total operating income from contimuing
operations 288,614 253,539
Operating expenses o1 {285,195) ({270,238)
Operating surplus/{deficit) from confinuing
operations 3,419 {16,699)
Finance income 10 80 64
Finance expenses 11 (2,639) (2,257)
PDC dividends payable (832) {1,260)
Het finance costs (3,.391) (3.453)
Gaina/{losses) of dispozal of non-curmmrent assets (19) [33)
Surplusg/{deficit) for the year from continuing
operations 9 (M) A1
Surplug/{deficit) on disconfinued operations and the
gainf{lozs) on dizposal of discontinued operations 12 - x5
Surplus/{deficit) for the year 9 I1 EEI
Other comprehensive income
Will not be reclassified to imcome and expenditure:
Fevaluations and impairmenis of property, plant and
equipment 16 11 -
Other reserve movements 2 -
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the
period 22 {19, 982)

Allocation of profits / (losses) for the period:
Surplusiideficit) for the year atiributable to the

Foundation Trust 9 !191932!

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
attributable to the Foundation Trust 22 (19,582)
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Statemant of Financial Fositlon as at 31 March 2020

31 I'.H;n:h KAM U FT

2020- - 2015
Note £000 £aan
Non-currant assats
Inlangible assels 13 8,927 9,333
Froparty, plant and equiprnent 14 122,300 126,179
1 1=Wd% ATl VLG 1SS Y aEUG S o mip )
Total non<<urrent asseis 131,281 128,529
Cument agaety :
Inverdorias . _ 21 3,952 57T
Trade and other raceivables i 22 25,002 13,338
Cash and cash equivatents 23 1,367 1461
Total current assels 3%.381 13,026
Current liabilities
Trade and ather pavables 24 (27.511) (23 696
Barrewings 27 (59,455) (5, 7430
Previsions 30 {185} {SEE)
Other liabilties 26 (1,425 (1,359
Total current iabilities . : (88,987) (31,260}
Total agsets less current liabilities T3665 -117.08E
Hon-cunent labllitles )
Borrocwings ar (29,015 (75 730)
Provigions 30 {BHE) (912}
Total non-current liabifities (30,001} (76 552}
Total assots employed ] 43 654 40,403
Financed by
. Publls dividernd capital B, 038 TE,BOF
Revaiuation resana 11 B7§ 45138
Income and expendifure resarve (VB D&0) (73,5418
Total taxpayers' equity , 43 664 40,403

The fallowing notes 1 - 36 fermn parl of these accounls.

. 0, B
TR . Dr Rlehard Jenkin:s
Pasition Intarim Chlef Executive
Dale 02 June 2024
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Statsment of Changes In Taxpayer's Equily for the year smded 31 March 3020

Pubis Inoome and
dividend Revaleation papandBurs
oapital reGane raGarss Total
i) ED0D E003 1[5
Taxpayers' and offers' =quity at 1 April 2015 - broupht foracard 76, B80S 43 13E {7541 40,432
SurpusMdefick} for the year g 8
Tramsfars bEbwEEn ragaryes {1,472} 1472 -
Revalsations: - PPE 11 11
Fublic diidend capial received 3.5 4,338
Other reserse Moyements: - 1 1 2
Taxpayers" and ofhare" agquily af 31 March 2030 BO,03E 41 878 | T8 MBI} 43, BEd
*Sow acdlonal information on msanas beipw this table.
Statsment of Changes In Taxpayer's Equily for the vear smded 341 March 3018
Pubillc Incame amid
dheldemd Aewaluadon expeEndiunes
caphal rESEnE eseEne Total
EOOD EO0D EQOD EQOD
Taxpayers' and cffers' squity a1 1 Aprl 205 - brought Sonwarn 73,403 32,945 {45,368 55,580
Burplusydefick} for the year {15 =m0 [19,382)
Other transie=rs bebween ressves 10,191 1101913 -
Pubilc dividend capial received _340 3,906
Taxpayers" and ofhare” agquity af 31 Marsh 2018 76,805 43 13E {78541 40,40
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Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance bazed on the
excess of azsetz over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor
MHS trust. Additional PDC may also be izsued to NHS foundation trusts by the
Department of Health. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilized by the HHS
foundation frust, is payable to the Depariment of Health as the public dividend
capitai dividend.

Revaluation reserve
Increages in asset values arsing from revaluations are recogniged in the
ravsalniatinm roaoco oavreoant whore ondd 40 Hhio ovtont thoat fhour r '.l:mnim'lnnm

reveluation resenye, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse npaimen
previously recognised in uperahng expenges, in which case they are recognized in
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are
charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was
recognised, unless the dowrnward movement represents a clear consumpfion of
economic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

At the last trust valuation at 31st March 2018 the trust componentised its asset
base. From 1=zt April 2018 all revaluation reserve balances are recognised at
component level.

A review of the indexation movements in asset valuationg since the last formal
valuation concluded that the Met Book Value of assets held on the Trusf's asset
register are not materially different from the value they would have held if
indexation had been applied. Formal Valuations are conducted every 5 years, with
deskiop valuations in the interim as required.

The revaluation reserve is reduced each year by an appropriate amount (to the 1&E
rezerve) per the Trust's depreciation policy to 'realize’ the gain and reduce the
revaluation reserve for each asset to zero by the end of the azset's life.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of thiz reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the NHS
foundation frust, including realised gain transfers from the Revaluation reserve.
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Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

201320 201814
Mote E000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus/|{deficit) (including discontinued
operations) 3.4158 (16.474)
Mon-cash income and expense:

Crepreciation and amortisation g1 7621 7115
Impairments and reversals 4] - -
(Increase)/decrease in frade and other receivables {11,983 (2,355)
(Increase){decreass in inventories (415) 75
Increasef{decrease) in frade and other payables 3,065 1,887
Increasef{decrease) in other liabilities 72 129
Increasef{decrsase) in provisions (293) 314
Other movements in operafing cash flows 2 -
Met cash generated fromif{used in) operating activities 1,488 (9,488)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received B0 G4
Purchase and sale of financial assets - -
Purchase of intangible assets (8DE) (772)
Sales of intangible assets - -
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment
property (6,613) (G.281)
Sales of property, plant, equipment and investmemnt
property 12 -
Met cash generated fromf{used in) investing activities (7,327} (6,288)
Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received 3,229 3,408
Public dividend capital repaid - -
Movement on loans from the Department of Health 6,497 14,808
Movement on other loans - -
Other capital receipts - -
Capital element of finance lease rental paymenis {281} {128}
Capital element of PFI, LIFT and cther service
concession payments - -
Interest on loans (2,484) (1.248)
Interest element of finance lease (169} {154)
Interest element of PFl. LIFT and other service
concession obligations - -
PDC dividend {paidyrefunded (1,047) (1.557)
Cash flows atfributable to financing activifies of
discontinued operations - -
Cash flows from (used in) other financing activities - -
Met cash generated fromf{used in) financing activities 5 745 18,628
Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (94} G
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 1,461 1,400
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 23 1i35? 1,461
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Motes to the Accounts
Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust (‘the Trust') is a public benefit corporation
authorsed, in England, by Monitor (frading as MHS Improvement) in accordance
with the Mational Health Service Act 2006. The Trust provides healthcare mainly to

the region. The address of the Trust is Moorgate Road, Rotherham, 360 2UD.

MNHS Improvement, in exercizing the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has
directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting
requirements of the Deparment of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manual {GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the
following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the GaM
izssued by the Departiment of Health. The accounting policies contained in the GAM
follow Intemational Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which iz
advized by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a
choice of accounting policy, the accounfing policy that iz judged fo be most
appropriate fo the particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpoze of giving a
frue and fair view has been selected. The pariicular policies adopted are described
below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items congidered
material in relation to accounts.

1.1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention
micdified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and eguipment,
intangible assets, and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.1.2 Going Concem

The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust's annual report and accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Mon-trading entities in the public sector are
assumed to be going concems where the continued provision of a service in the
future iz anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that
service in published documents.
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The Trust has delivered a £4 980K deficit against a planned break even position
for 2019720, However, as a result of the South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw Integrated
Care System being in aggregate balance, the Trust will receive additional non-
recurrent Fimancial Recovery Fund monies to clear the deficit resulting in a
surplus of £9K.

As a consequence, the Trust will achieve itz annual condrol total and secure its

Tinrartor A Drossidar Soietaimahilifv FrredFimanecial Bocscocony Friond momenidco of
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£5 170K, which is already included within the deficit position referred to above.

Due fo recent events concerning COVID-19, the financial planning process for
202021 haz hean suenandad nationally and interim financial :nrrnnnnnmh rart
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in place, initially covering the period April to July 2020. Included within these
financial arrangements are cash agreements with the providers' main
commizsioners to pay for services provided one month in advance, so that
paymenis to suppliers can be made regularly and prompthy. This will negate the
need for any further temporary borrowing during this period to support working
capital.

Af this stage, it is unclear what will happen after thiz initial four months’ period
and whether these interim financial arangements will continue longer than
originally advised. However, it iz clear that at some point there must be further
arrangementz put in place to transition back fo business as usual, which must
include provision for management of working capital and cazsh so that continuity
of supplies can be maintained.

Having congidered the material uncertainties and the Trust's financial plans,

together with the likelihood of securing additional financial funding to support the
financial operations, the directors have determined that it remains appropriate to
prepare these accounts on a going concem basgiz. The accounts do not include

any adjusiments that would result if the Trust was unable to continue as a going
CONCEern.

Note 1.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust's accounting policies,
management iz required to make various judgements, esfimates and assumptions.
These are regulary reviewed.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk

1.2.1 Crifical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from thoze involving estimations (see
below) that management has made in the process of applying The Rotherham
MHS Foundation Trust's accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amountz recognised in the financial statements:

- Management make judgements in determining when substantially all the

significant risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets and lease assets
are transfemred to other entities.
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1.2.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant rigk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year:

- Income estimates

In measuring income for the year, management have taken account of all
available information. Income estimates that have been made have been based
on actual information related to the financial yvear. Included in the income figure
iz an estimate for open spells: patients undergoing treatment that is only partially
complete at twelve midnight on 31 March. The number of open spells for each
specialty iz taken and muliiplied by the average specialty price and adjusted for
the proporiion of the spell which belongs to the current year.

Injury compensation scheme income g also included to the extent that it is
estimated it will be received in future years. It is recorded in the current year as
this iz the year in which it was eamed. However as cash is not received until
future periods, when the claims have been settled, an estimation must be made
as to the collectability.

- Expense accruals
In estimating expenses that have not yet been charged for, management have

made a realisfic azsezsment based on costs actually incurred in the year to date,
with a view to ensuring that no material items have been omitted.

- Impaiment of property, plant and equipment

The Trust has undertaken an annual impairment exercize of its Property, Plant
and Eguipment. Following a professional valuation carmied out at 31 March 2018,
the Trust has congidered items such as: indices movements,; deterioration of
assets and its further estates plans to support itz impairment assessment. It is
the judgement of management following this review that there is not an indicafion
of impairment.

- Recoverability of receivables

In accordance with the stated policy on impairment of financial assets,
management have asseszed the impaiment of receivables and made
appropriate adjustments to the existing allowance account for expected credit
lozses.

- Provisions

In accordance with the stated policy on provigions, management have used
best estimates of the expenditure required fo zetile the obligations concemed,
applying HM Treasury's discount rate as stated, as appropriate. Management
hawve alzo taken into account all available information for disputes and possible
outcomes.
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Note 1.3 Operating Segments

Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are
reported in line with management information uzed within The Rotherham NHS
Foundation Trust.

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it iz accounted for under

IFRZ 15 Tho (CAM cvnoando tha Adosfindinn of o peondroet e |nn!ud& lzmio oty ol

IFRS 15. The GAM expands the definiion of 2 contract fo ing legialation and
regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial asset that is
not classified as a tax by the Office of Nafional Stafistics (ONS). As direcied by the
GAM, the transition to IFRS 15 in 2018/19 has been completed in accordance with
paragraph C3(b) of the Standard: applying the Standard refrospectively but
recognising the cumulative effects at the date of initial application (1 April 2018).

In the adoplion of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard
have been employed. These are as follows;

- as per paragraph 121 of the Standard the Trust will not disclose information
regarding performance ocbligations part of a condract that has an original expected
duration of one year or less,

- the Trust is to similarty not disclose information where revenue is recognized in
line with the practical expedient offered in paragraph 616 of the Standard where the
right to consideration comesponds directly with value of the performance completed
fo date and

- the FReM has mandated the exercize of the practical expedient offered in C7{a) of
the Standard that requires the Trust to reflect the aggregate effect of all confracts
maodified before the date of initial application.

The main gource of income for the Trust iz contracts with commigsioners for health
Care sefvices. A penornmancs obiigaton relating 1o delivery of a speil of heaith care
iz generally satisfied over fime ag healthcare is received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer as the Trust performs it. The customer in such a
contract is the commissioner, but the customer benefits as services are provided to

el Emom bnrrmle e o= o
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performance obligations, healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the
Standard entailing a delivery of a senes of goods or services that are substantially
the same and have a similar pattemn of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrues
income relating fo activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell iz
incomplete.

The Trust receives income from commiszioners under Commissioning for Quality
and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes. The Trust agrees schemes with itz
commissioner but they affect how care is provided to patients. That is, the CQUIN
payments are not conzidered distinct performance obligations in their own right;
instead they form part of the transaction price for performance ohligations under the
contract.
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The Trust receives income under the MHS Injury Cost Eecovery Scheme, designed
fo reclaim the cost of freating injured individuals to whom personal injury
compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust
recognizes the income when it receives notification from the Deparment of Work
and Pengion's Compensation Recovery Unit, has completed the NHS2 form and
confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured
at the agreed tariff for the freaiments provided to the injured individual, less a

mirmricinm foor nmonecrooch d smmansatioon clarne oo dooobd ] Askbde e e !FD':
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9 requirements of measuring expected credit lozses over the lifefime of the asset.

Income from the sale of non-curment assets i= recognised only when all material

condifions of 2ale have bean met and is measured az the 2ums due under the zale

(SRR LY e R R S W meraria T AT R AR nALEEE ERAY RAW

contract.

Payment terms are standard reflecting cross govemment principles.

The value of the benefit received when the Trust acceszes funds from the
Government's apprenticeship service are recognized as income in accordance with
145 20, Accounting for Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly to
an accredited training provider, non-cash income and a corresponding non-cash
fraining expense are recognised, both equal 1o the cost of the training funded.

Note 1.5 Expenditure on Employee Benefits

1.5.1 Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising
from the apprenticeship levy, are recognized in the pericd in which the service is
received from employees, including non-consolidated performance pay earned
but not yvet paid. The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end
of the perod is recognized in the financial statements fo the extent that

employees are permitted to camy-forward leave into the following period.
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1.5.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

NHE Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS
Penzion Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of the Schemes can
be found on the NHS Pensicns website at www_nhzbza nhz ukipensionz. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP pracfices
and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health
and Social Care in England and Wales. They are not dezigned to be run in a way
that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme iz accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the MHS body of paricipating in each
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the
accounting period.

For early refirements other than those due fo ill health the addifional penszion
liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the
additional costs iz charged to expenditure at the time the MHS body commits
itzelf to the refirement, regardless of the method of payment.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognized in the financial
statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at the
reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period
between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate azsezsments in
intervening yearz”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liakility iz carmied out annually by the scheme actuary
(currently the Govermmment Actuary’s Department) azs at the end of the reporting
period. This utilizes an actuarial azszeszment for the previous accounting period
in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current
reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial
reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability az at 31 March 2020, iz
haszed on valuation data ag 21 March 2019, updated to 21 March 2020 with
summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial
assessment, the methodology prezcribed in 1AS 159, relevant FReM
interpretationzs, and the dizcount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been
used.

The latest azssesasment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of
the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual NHS Pengion Scheme
Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are

publighed annually. Copies can alzo be obtained from The Stationery Office.
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by} Full actuarial {funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liahility in respect of the
benefits due under the schemes (taking into account recent demographic
experence), and fo recommend contribution rates payable by employees and

emphoyers.

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Penzion Scheme waz
completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this valuation set the employer
contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6%, and the scheme Regulations
were amended accordingly. The Department of Health and Social Care have
recently laid Scheme Regulationz confirming that the employer contribution rate
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will increase to 20.6% of pensionable pay from this date.

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme
relative to the employer cost cap set following the 2012 valuation. Following a
judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018, the Govemment
announced a pause to that part of the valuation process pending conclusion of
the confinuing legal process.

NEST Pension 8cheme
The Trugt iz a member of the National Employment Savings Trust (MEST)

pengion scheme which operates as a defined contribuficn plan. The Trust pays
contributions info a fund but has no legal or constructive obligation to make
further payments if the fund does not have sufficient assets to pay all of the
employees’ entitements to post-employment benefitz. The Trust's obligation is
therefore limited fo the amount it agrees to confribute to the fund and effectively
place actuarial and investment rizk on the employee. The amount recognized in
the pericd is the contribution payable in exchange for service rendered by

employees during the period.
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Expenditure iz recognized in operating expenses except where it results in the
creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.
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Hote 1.7 Property, plant and equipment

1.7.1 Recognition
Property, plant and equipment iz capitalised where:

* it iz held for uze in delivering services or for administrative purposes

+ it iz probable that future economic benefitz will flow fo, or service potential be
provided to, the Trust

* it iz expected fo be used for more than one financial year

* the cost of the item can be measured reliably, and either

* the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

* collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have
cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally inferdependent, had
broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated fo have similar disposal dates
and are under single managerial control.

+* jtemns form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward
or unit, irmespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with
significantly different asset lives, e.g., plant and equipment, then these components
are treated as separate asseifs and depreciated over their own useful economic
lives.

1.7.2 Measurement

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing
the costz directly atiributable to acquiring or congtructing the asset and bringing it to
the location and condifion necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

All azsets are measured subsequently at valuation. Aszsets that are held for their
service potential and are in use are measured subzequently at their current value in
exizling use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are
surplus, with no plan to bring them back into use and where there are no
restrictions preventing access fo the market at the reporting date, are valued at fair

value under IFRS 13.
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient
regularity fo ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those
that would be determined at the end of the reporting pericd. Current values in
existing uze are determined as follows:

* Land and non-gpecialised buildings - market value for existing use

* Specialized buildings - depreciated replacement cost, modern equivalent asset
basis

VWWhere applicable, agssets held at depreciated replacement cost have been valued

on an alternative site basis where thiz would meet the location requirements of the
service being provided.
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Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are
cammied at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and,
where capitalized in accordance with 1AS 23, bormowing costs. Assets are revalued
and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

IT equipment, fransport equipment, fumiture and fittings, and plant and machinery
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that are neid for OpeErauonal use anc valued at ut:l.lll::L.ItIlt:u nislonc cost wihere these

aszets have short useful economic lives or low values or both, as this is not
conzidered to be materially different from current value in existing use.

An increase arising on revaluafion is faken fo the revaluation reserve except when it
reverses an impaiment for the same asset previously recognised in expendifure, in
which case it iz credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously
charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic
value or service potential iz recognized as an impairment charged to the revaluation
rezenve to the extent that there iz a balance on the reserve for the asset, and
thereafter to expenditure. Gaing and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve
are reported as other comprehengive income in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

1.7.3 Subzequent expenditure

Subszequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and eguipment is
recognised as an increase in the camying amount of the asset when it is probable
that additional future economic benefitz or service potential deniving from the cost
incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost
of the item can be determined reliably. Where a component of an azset is replaced,
the cost of the replacement iz capitalized if it meets the criteria for recognition
above. The camying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other
expenditure that does not generate additional future economic benefits or service
potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of
Comprehenzive Income in the period in which it iz incurred.

ltemz of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful
economic lives in a manner congistent with the consumption of economic or service
delivery benefits. Freehold land iz considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment which haz been reclassified as ‘held for zale' ceazes
to be depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and
residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI confract assets are not
depreciated until the azsst iz brought into use or reverts to the Trust, rezpectively.
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Finance-leazed assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the
useful economic life or the lease term, unless the FT expecis to acquire the asset at
the end of the lease term in which casze the assets are depreciated in the same
manner az owned assets above.

1.7.5 Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to
the extent that, they reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously besn
recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operafing

FLELFEo i) L

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is
an available balance for the asset concemed, and thereafter are changed to
operating expenses.

Gains and losges recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

1.7.6 Impairments

In accordance with the DH GAM, impainments that arize from a clear consumption
of economic benefits or of service potential in the asset are charged to operating
expenses. & compensating transfer iz made from the revaluation reserve to the
income and expenditure rezerve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the
impairment charged to operating expenses; and (i) the balance in the revaluation
rezenve attributable to that asset before the impaiment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of
service potential is reversed when, and to the extent that, the circumstances that
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the extent that the asset is restored fo the carmying amount it would have had if the
impairment had never been recognized. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the
revaluation resenve. Where, at the time {:ﬂhe orginal impairment, a tranzfer was
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amount is transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal
is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other
impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.
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1.7.7 De-recognition

Asszets intended for disposal are reclassified as 'held for 2ale’ once all of the
following criteria are met;

* the azset is available for immediate zale in its present condition subject only to
terms which are usual and customary for such sales;
* the saie must be highiy probabie ie.:

- management are commitied to a plan to =2ell the azsst

- an acfive programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale

- the asset iz being actively marketed at a reazonable price
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clazsification as ‘held for zale” and
- the acfions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will
be dropped or significant changes made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing
carmying amount and their ‘fair value less cosis to sell’. Depreciation ceaszes to be
charged and the assets are not revalued except where Tair value less costs to sall’
falls below the camying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale
confract conditions have been met.

Property, plant and equipment which iz to be scrapped or demolizhed does not
qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale' and instead iz retained as an cperational
asset and the aszset's economic life iz adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when
scrapping or demaolition occurs.

1.7.8 Donated, government grant and other grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment aszets are capitalised at
their fair value on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same
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embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in
which case, the donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is camed forward 1o
future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same
manner as other items of property, plant and equipment.
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1.7.59 Useful Economic lives of property, plant and equipment

Min life Max life

Years Years
Land - -
Buildings, excluding dwellings 3 90
Fiant & machinery 5 i5
Transport equipment T 9
Information technology 2 20
Furniture & fittings 10 10

HNote 1.8 Investment properties

Investment properiies are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognized as gains or losses in income/expenditure.

Only those assets which are held solely to generate a commercial retum are
conzidered to be investment properties. Where an asset iz held, in part, for
support service delivery objectives, then it iz considered to be an item of
property, plant and equipment. Properies occupied by employees, whether or
not they pay rent at market rates, are not classified as investment properties.

HNote 1.9 Intangible assets
1.9.1 Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which
are capable of zale separately from the rest of the Trust's business or which
arize from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is
probakble that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be
provided to, the Trust, where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably
and where the cost iz at least £5,000.
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Internally generated infangible assets
Intemnally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publizhing titles, customer
lists and similar items are not capitalized as intangible asseis.

Expendifure on research iz not capitalized; it iz recognized as an operating
expense in the pericd in which it is incurred.

Intemally-generated assets are only recognized if, and only if, all of the
following can be demonstrated:

* the project iz technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an
intangible asset for sale or use

* the Trugt intends to complete the asset and sell or use it

* the Trust has the ability to sell or use the azset

* how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or sernvice
delivery benefits, e.g., the presence of a market for it or its output, or where it is
to be used for intemal use, the usefulness of the asset

* gdequate financial, technical and other rezources are available to the Trust to
complete the development and zell or use the asset

= the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable fo the aszset during
development.
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SBoftware

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. an operating
gystem, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and
equipment. Software which iz not integral to the operation of hardware, e.g.
application software, iz capitalized as an intangible aszet.

1.9.2 Measurement

Intangible assets are recognized initially at cost, comprizing all directly
attriibutable costz needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point
that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

1.9.3 Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at cumrent value in existing use.
Where no active market exists, intangible assets are valued at the lower of
depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income
generating. Revaluations gains and loszes and impairments are treated in the
same manner as for property, plant and equipment. An intangible azset which is
surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value.

Intangible azsets held for 2ale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amaount or “fair value less costs fo sell™.

1.9.4 Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a
manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery
benefits.

1.9.5 Useful economic life of intangible assets

Uzeful economic lives reflect the total life of an aszet and not the remaining life
of an agset. The range of useful economic lives are shown in the table below:

Min life Max life
Years Years

Intangible assets - purchased
Software 2 20
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Hote 1.10 Revenue government and other grants

Government grants are grants from govemment bodies other than income from
commizsioners or NHS trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to
fund revenue expenditure it iz taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to
miatch that expenditure.
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MOLE 1. inventones

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is measured using the first in, first out (FIFO) method.

Hote 1.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash iz cazh in hand and deposgitz with any financial institufion repayable without
penalty on nofice of not more than 24 hours. Cagh equivalents are investments that
mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant rizk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the
Truzst's cagh management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at
current values.

Mote 1.13 Financial az=setz and financial liabilities

Finandal axaetx ane recogrsed when the Tnest becomes party Lo the oot ciusl
ok of the inancisl sirmument or, in the case off rede receivablex, when the
goods or semvices e bean delivered . Financial azsets are derecognised when the

contraciual righis hawe expired or when the asset has been imnsfamed and e
Trxt haz inerefomed substonticlhr 2l of the el ad eemmis of enershin or hes
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e netaned commiml of the azaet

Financal axzeix are inlislly ecognised st Far value plies or minus directly
attridshle raactinon ooz for fmancsl sxssts nol mesused 8t B veluee Baooogh
ol or kes. Far value s laken a2 the iaraction price, or would be oltherwise
detiermined by reference ta quoted market prices, whene possioke, or by valusion
Edrrpues where relevant (See IFRS 985124 )

Financal axzeiz are dessiied imo the liowing calegaries: financial sascis gl
amorised cost, inancial asxcls gl far value through ather comprehensiae ncome,
& fnancsl exselz &t far value though profit and loss. The clessificatn s
deiermined by the cash Now and business model chamcieyialics of the financial
azapix. 2x 36t pul 0 IFRS 9, and 2 delkemined at the ime of inidial recogrition.
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Mote 41.13.1 Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial azsets measured at amortized cost are those held within a buzsiness
model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cazh
flows and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This
includes most trade receivables, loans receivable, and other simple debt
ingtruments.

After inifial recognition, these financial azsetz are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impaimment. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly dizcounts estimated future cash receipis through the life of the
financial azzet to the gross camying amount of the financial asset.

Hote 1.13.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial agsetz measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
thoze held within a business model whose objective iz achieved by both collecting
contractual cash fiows and selling financial aszets and where the cash flows are
solely paymentz of principal and interest.

Af prezent the Trust does not hold any financial aszets or financial liabilities held for
trading.

Hote 1.13.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial azsets measured at fair value through profit or loss are those that are not
otherwize measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income. This includes derivatives and financial assets acquired principally for the
purpogse of gelling in the short ferm.

Hote 1.13.4 Impairment of financial assets

For all financial azsets measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income), lease receivables and confract assets, the Trust
recognizes a loss allowance representing expected credit lozses on the financial
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instrument.

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impaiment, in accordance with IFRS 9,
and measures the loss allowance for frade receivables, confract assets and lease
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit logses. For other financial
asszets, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit rizgk on the financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition (stage 2), and otherwise at an amount equal o 12-month
expected credit losses (stage 1).
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A provigion matrix approach is adopted, as one of the recommended
methodologies, to calculate lifetime expected credit lozses of frade receivables. at
the reporting date. The Trust does not currently hold any lease receivables or
contract azsets.

HM Treasury has ruled that central govemment bodies may not recognize stage 1
or stage 2 impairmients against other government departments, their executive
agencies, the Bank of England, Exchequer Funds, and Excheguer Funds' aszets
where repayment is ensured by primary legislation. The Trust therefore does not
recognize loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies.
Additionally, the Department of Health and Social Care provides a guarantee of last
resort against the debts of itz arm's length bodies and MHS bodies (excluding NHS
charities), and the Trust does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2
impairments against these bodies.

For financial azsets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition {stage
3), expected credit lozses at the reporting date are measured as the difference
between the azset's gross carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows dizcounted at the financial aszet's original effective interest rate.
Any adjustment iz recognized in profit or loss az an impairment gain or loss.

Note 1.13.5 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Trust becomes party to the confractual
provisions of the financial ingtrument or, in the case of frade payables, when the
goods or services have besn received. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when
the liability has been extinguished - that is, the obligation has been dizcharged or
cancelled or has expired.

Hote 1.13.6 Financial Liabilities at fair wvalue through profit and loss
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or lozgs. Embedded derivatives that are not part of a hybrid contract containing a
host that is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9 are separately accounted for as
derivatives only if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
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the definition of a derivative, and the hybrid confract iz not itzelf measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Trust has reviewed all its main confracts and concluded that any derivatives the
contracts may have are "closely related” and therefore do not warrant separate
dizclogure or accounting.
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Mote 1.43.7 Other Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost
uging the effective interest method. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly
dizcounts estimated future cazh payments through the Iife of the as=et, to the
amoriized cost of the financial liakility. In the caze of DHSC loans that would be the

nominal rate charged on the loan.

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk 132



MHote 1.14 Leases

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leazed asset are borne by
the Trust, the as=set iz recorded as properiy, plant and equipment and a corresponding
liabiiity is recorded. The vaiue at which both are recogniged is the iower of the fair vaiue
of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease.

=
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he assel and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease.
azset iz accounted for as an item of property plant and equipment.

The annual rental iz apportioned between the repayment of the liability and a finance
cost =0 as fo achieve a constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual
finance cost is charged fo Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The lease liahility iz de-recognized when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Contingent rents are recognised as an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building componenis are separated
and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases.

Operating leases

Other leazses are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating
expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operafing lease incentives
received are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life
of the lease.

Frivafe Finance initiative (PFi) iransactions

PFI transactions that meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as
interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are accounted for as "on-Statement of Financial
Position’ by the trust. In accordance with 1AS17, the underlying assets are recognised
as property, pian and equipment, together with an equivaient finance iease liabiiity. The
annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using
appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:
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1. payment for the fair value of services received - the cost of the services received
in the year iz recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within "operating
EXpENSES’.

2. repayment of the finance lease liability, including finance costs - The PFI
assets are recognized as PPE when they come into use. The aszets are measured
initially at fair value, or, if lower, at the prezent value of the minimum lease payments, in
accordance with the principles of I1A517. Subsequently, the assets are measured at
current value in existing use.

A liability iz recognized at the same time as the PFl azsets are recognized. Itis
measured initially at the zame amount as the initial value of the assefs and is
subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with 1A517.

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to
the opening lease liability for the period, and is charged to 'Finance Cosgts' within the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance leasze rental is
applied to meat the annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract
term.

The element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is
treated as contingent rent and iz expensad as incurred.

3. payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract
‘lifecycie replacement’ - Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the
contract (ifecycle replacement) are capitalized where they meet the Trust's criteria for
capital expenditure. They are capitalise at the time they are provided by the operator
and are measured initially at cost.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-
determined for each year of the contract from the operator's planned programme of
lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than
expected, a short-term accrual or prepayment iz recognised respectively.

Where the fair value of the [ifecycle component iz less than the amount determined in
the contract, the difference iz recognized as an expense when the replacement is
provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the confract, the
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defemred income is released to operating income over the shorter of the remaining
confract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.

Assetls contributed by the trust to the operator for use in the PFl scheme . Assels
contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognized as items of PPE in the
Trust's SoFP.

Other assets contributed by the trust fo the operator . Other aszets confributed (e.g..
Cash payments, surplus property) by the frust to the operator before the asset iz brought
into use, where these are intended to defray the operators capital costs, are recognised
initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the contract. When the aszet
iz made available to the trust, the prepayment iz treated az an initial payment towards
the finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.

Altemative wording applies for PFIl assets funded principally by third party usage.
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Mote 1.15 Provisions

The Trust recognises a provigion where it has a present legal or constructive obligation
of uncertain fiming or amount; for which it iz probable that there will be a future outflow
of cagh or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The
armount recognized in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the
resources required to sette the uhligatiun at the end of the reporting pericd. Where the
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are discounted using the discount rates published and mandated by HM Treasury. This
applies to early refirements and injury benefits provisions.

Clinical negligence cosis

HHS Resolufion (MHSR) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an
annual contribution to NHSE, which, in refurn, setiles all clinical negligence claims.
Although the NHSR iz administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the
legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provizions
carried by the NH5R on behalf of the Trust iz disclosed in the notes to the Accounts but
is not recognised within the Trust's Accounts.

Non-clinical risk pooling

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third
Parties Scheme. Both are rizk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual
confribution to NHSR and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arizing.
The annual membership confributions, and any “excesses” payable in respect of
particular claims are charged fo operating expenses when the liability arises.

Early Retirement Provisions

Eary retirement provigions are discounted using the HM Treasury's pension discount
rate of -0.5% (2018M15 +0.23%) in real terms. All general provisions are subject to four
separate discount rates according fo the expecied timing of cash flows from the SoFP
date:

A nominal short-term rate of +0.51% (2018M19 +0.76%) for inflation adjusted expected
cash flows up to and including 5 years from SoFF date.

A nominal medium-term rate of +0.55% (2018M9 +1.14%%) for inflation adjusted
expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years from the SoFP date.

A nominal long-term rate of +1.99%2018/M19 +1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected
cash flows exceeding 40 years from the SoFFP date.
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HNote 1.16 Contingencies

Contingent asseis (that iz, assets arizing from past events whose existence will only be
confirmed by one or more future events not wholly within the Trust’s condrol) are not
recognized az assets, but are dizclosed in note 21 where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized, but are disclosed in note 31, unless the
probabiiity of a fransfer of economic benefits iz remoie.

Contingent liakiliies are defined as:
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= possible obiigations ansing from past events whose existence will be confirmead only by
the occcurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Trust's
control; or

* present obligations ariging from past events but for which it is not probable that a
transfer of economic benefits will arse or for which the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Mote 1.17 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend

Public dividend capital (PDC) iz a type of public sector equity finance based on the
excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS
Trust. | represents the DHSC's invesiment in the Trust. HM Treazury has determined
that, being izsued under statutory authority rather than under contract, PDC is not a
financial ingtrument within the meaning of 1AS 32.

At any time the Secretary of State can igsue new POC to, and requirement repayments
of PDC from, the Trugt. PDC i recorded at the value received.

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilized by the Trust, is payable to DHSC
az PDC dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by the Secretary of State
with the congent of HM Treasury (currenthy 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of
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Relevant net azsets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all
liabilities, except for (i) donated aszets (including lottery funded assetz), (i) average daily
cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and Mational Loans
Fund {MLF) depositz, excluding cazh balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a
short-term working capital facility, and (i) army PDC dividend balance receivable or
payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Depariment of Health (as
the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant
net assets as set out in the “pre-audit”™ version of the annual accounts.
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The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occcur as
a result of the audit of the annual accounts. The PDC dividend calculation is based upon
the Trust's group accounts {i.e. including subsidiaries), but excluding consolidated
charitable funds.
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Mote 1.18 Value added tax

Most of the activifies of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, cufput tax
does not apply and input tax on purchases iz not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is
charged fo the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost

of fixed assetz. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts
are stated net of VAT.

Note 1.19 Corporation tax

The Trust iz a Health Service Body within the meaning of 25194 ICTA 1938 and
accordingly is exempt from taxation in respect of Incﬂn'le and Capital Gaing within
categories covered by this but the Trust iz potentially within the scope of Corporation Tax

in respect of activities where income is received from a Mon Public Sector source.

However, the Trust has evaluated that it is has no Corporation Tax Liability, as all
activiies are either ancillary to healthcare or below the de minimiz level of profit at which
tax becomes payahle.

Note 1.20 Foreign exchange

The functional and presentational currencies of the Trust are sterling.

A transaction which iz denominated in a foreign currency is franslated into the functional
currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Where the Trust has azsets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the
Statement of Financial Position date:
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income and expenditure”) are translated at lhe E-pﬂt exchange rate on 31 Marc
* non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are franslated using the
spot exchange rate at the date of the fransaction and
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exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined.
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Exchange gains or lozses on monetary items (arsing on setlement of the tranzaction or
on re-franglation at the Statement of Financial Pogition date) are recognized in income or
expense in the pericd in which they arise.

Exchange gains or logses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognizsed in the
same manner as other gains and lozses on these items.
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Mote 1.21 Third party assets

Aszzets belonging to third parfies (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not
recognized in the accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However,
they are disclozed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of HM Treasury's FReM.

Note 1.22 Losses and special payments

Loszes and special payments are items that Pariament would not have contemplated
when it agreed funds for the heaith service or passed legisiation. By their nature they are
items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special confrol
procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govem the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special
payments are charged fo the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals
basis, including logses which would have besn made good through ingurance cover had
trusts not been bearing their own rigks (with insurance premiumz then being included as
nomal revenue expenditure).

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and
compensations register which reports on an accrual basis with the exception of
provigions for future losses.

Mote 1.23 Gifts

Giftz are items that are voluntarly donated, with no preconditions and without the
expectation of any return. Gifiz include all transactions economically equivalent to free
and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful life,
and the sale or lease of assets at below market value.
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Note 1.24 Transfers of functions to / from other NHS bodies / local government
bodies

Az public sector bodies are deemed to operate under common confrol, business
reconfigurations with the DHSC group are outside the scope of IFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Where functions transfer between two public sector bodies, the GAM
requires the application of absorption accounting. Absorption accounting requires that
entities account for their transactions in the pericd in which they took place.

For functions that have been transferred to the Trust from another MHS or local
government body, the assets and liabilifies transferred are recognized in the accounts as
at the date of transfer. The assets and liabiliies are not adjusted to fair value prior to
recognition. The net gainfloss corresponding to the net assetslliabilities is recognised
within incomefexpenses, but not within operating activities.

For property plant and equipment aszets and intangible assets, the cost and
accumulated depreciation / amortisation balances from the transferring entity’s accounts
are preserved on recognition in the Trust's accounts. Where the transferring body
recognized revaluation reserve balances attibutable to the assets, the Trust makes a
transfer from itz income and expenditure reserve to its revaluation rezerve fo maintain
transparency within public sector accounts.

For functions that the Trust has fransferred to another NHS / local govermment body, the
azsets and liabilities transferred are de-recognized from the accounts as at the date of
transfer. The net loss [ gain comesponding fo the net assets [ liabilities fransferred is
recognized within expenses / income, but not within operafing activities. Any revaluation
reserve balances attributable fo aszets de-recognized are fransferred to the income and
expenditure reserve. Adjustments to align the acquired function fo the Trust's accounting
poiicies are applied after inifial recognition and are adjusted directiy in taxpayers’ equity.

Note 1.25 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

Bl moan
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in 2019/20.
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Note 1.26 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective
or adopted

The DHSC GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to
be applied in 20197/20. These Standards are still subject fo HM Treasury FReM adoption,
with IFRS 16 being for implementation in 2020021, and the government implementation
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O IFRS 16 Leases - The standard iz effective 13t Aprl 2021 as adapted and interpreted

by the FReM.

O IFRS 17 insurance Contracts - Ai:.-i:-‘mahu n required for accounting pericds beginning
on or after 1st January 2021, b adopted by the FReM: early adopfion is not
therefore permitted.

The Trust has considered the above new standards, interpretation and amendmenis to
published standards that are not yet effective and concluded that, with the exception of
IFRS 16 that is dealt with below, they are cumently either not relevant to the Trust or that
they would not have a significant impact on the Trust's financial statements, apart from
some additional disclosures. Thiz conforms with the FT ARM which requires that any
amendments fo standards are applied in accordance with the applicable timetable, with
early adoption not permitted.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases will replace 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
arrangement containg a lease and other interpretations and iz applicable in the public
sector for pericds beginning 1 April 2021. The standard provides a single accounting
model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of
financial position for most leases: some leases are exempi through application of
practical expedients explained below. For those recognizged in the statement of financial
position the standard alzo requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific
circumstances after the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction

between operating and finance leazes will remain and the accounting will be largely
unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to |AS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Trust

will apply this definition to new leases only and will grandfather itz azsessments made
under the old standards of whether existing confracts contain a lease.
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On frangition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2021, the Trust will apply the standard retrospectivehy
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized in the income and
expendiure reserve at that date. For existing operating leases with & remaining lease
term of more than 12 monthe and an underlying asset value of af least £5,000, a lease
liability will be recognized equal to the value of remaining lease payments dizcounted on
transition at the trust’s incremental bomrowing rate. The Trust's incremental bormowing
rate will be a rate defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate is 1.27% but this may
change between now and adoption of the standard. The related right of uze asset will be
measured equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease
payments. For existing peppercorn leases not classified as finance leases, a right of
uze aszset will be measured at current value in existing use or fair value. The difference
between the aszet value and the calculated lease liability will be recognised in the
income and expenditure reserve on transition. Mo adjustments will be made on 1 April
2021 for existing finance leases.

For leases commencing in 2021/22, the Trust will not recognise a right of use asset or

lease liahility for short term leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low
value aszets (less than £5,000). Right of use assets will be subsequently measured on
a basis congistent with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease term.

HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 in the UK public sector to 1
Aprl 2021 on 15 March 2020. Due to the need to reas=sess lease calculations, together
with uncertainty on expected leasing activity in from April 2021 and beyond, a
quantification of the expected impact of applying the standard in 2021/22 iz cumrenthy
impraciicable. However, the Trust does expect this standard to have a matenal impact
on non-current assets, liabilities and depreciation. In azsessing the impact of standard
wef 1 April 2020, the Trust expected there to be:

- & reduction in operating iease cosis reporied in operating expenditure of . £2.1m

- an increase in depreciation costs reported in operating expenditure of c. £2.5m

- an increase in finance costs reported on S0C| of c. £0.06m

- an increaze in Right of Use Aszets reported on SOFP in the value of ¢. £4.0m, with a
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comesponding long term finance lease payabie.

Thesze calculations assumed use of the discount rate of 1 275% for fransfeming leases.
These calculations give an indication of the likely impact, but will now be revized in light
of the deferral and therefore will change.
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Hote 2 Operating Segments

All of the Trust's activities are in the provigion of healthcare, which iz an aggregate
of all the individual specialty components included therein, and the large majority of
the healthcare services provided occur at the one geographical main site. Trust
revenue derives within the UK. The majorty of expenses incurred are payroll
expenditure on staff involved in the production or support of healthcare activities
generally acrozs the Trust together with the related supplies and overheads
needed to establizh thiz production. The buginess activities which eam revenue
and incur expenses are therefore of one broad combined nature and therefore on
thiz basiz one segment of 'Healthcare' iz deemed appropriate.

The operating results of the Trust are reviewed monthly by the Trust's chief
operating decision maker which is the overall Foundation Trust Board of Directors,
which includes non-executive directors. The Board of Directors review the financial
position of the Truzt as a whole in their decizion making process, rather than
individual components included in the totals, in terms of allocating resources. This
process again implies a single operating 2egment under IFRS 5.

The finance report considered monthly by the Board of Directors containg summary
figures for the whole Trust together with graphical line charts relating to different
total income activity levels, and directorate expense budgets with their cost
improvement pogitions. Likewize only total balance sheet poszitionz and cash flow
forecasts are considered for the whole Trust. The Board of Directors as chief
operating decision maker therefore only considers one segment of healthcare in itz
decizion-making process.

The gingle segment of "Healthcare' has therefore been identified conziztent with the
core principle of IFRS & which is to enable users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of business activities and economic
environments.

Healthcare Total
2019920 201819 2019020 201819
£000 £000 £000 £000
Income 288,614 25?izu1 288,614 zﬁ?izm
Retained Eamings /
(Accumulated Deficit) 9 19 582 9 19 982
| |

Segment net assets 43,654 ~ 40403 43,654 40403
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Hote 3 Operating income from patient care activities
Hote 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature)

2019720 2018M19

£000 £000
Acute services

Elective income 33,938 33,703
Maon elective income 61,985 61,316
First outpatient income 17,454 17,057
Follow up outpatient income 15,777 14,610
A & F ncome 12,011 11,237
High cost drugs income from commissioners 10,833 11,262
Diher NHS clinical income 36,611 33,480

Community services

Community services income from CCGs and MHS England 42,303 43,695

Community services income from other commiszioners 2,080 1,852
All services

Agenda for Change pay award central funding® - 2 656

Additional pensions contribution central funding 7,646 -

Other clinical income™ 927 1,189
Total income from activities 242,465 232 057

e E———
See footnoles under 3.2 below)
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Hote 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2019720 201819

Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000
MHS England® 28,797 19,653
CCGsa r, LI 1Y 198,609
Department of Health & Social Care™ - 2,656
Other MHS foundation trusts 251 -
MHS frusts 4 (30)
MHS other 70 156
Local authorities 10,487 9,585
Mon-MNHS: overseas patienis (chargeabie to patient) 87 23
MHS Injury Cost Recovery scheme*™ iT6 981
Mon MHS: other*** T8 424

Total |_nmme from activities E-EIAEE 232Iﬂ5?

OFf wihich:

Realated to contimuing operations 242 465 228 870

Relatad to discontinued operations - a3, 187

*The evmployer conlribulion rale lor NHS pensions ineraased fom 14.3% 1o 20.6% [axchuding sdmimstration
chuarga) fram 1 Apel 2015, For 201900, NHS providers conlinued b [y over contributians al the fommer rale wilh
the stiona] amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behal, The full cost and related funding have
Bt fAcOSET 1 Mese SOSIuris.

**Aditional Agenda for Change pay awand lunding of £2.856m was received in 201819 separalely fo conract
income 1o fund the implamentation of 8 new Agenda for Change pay structung lor ail NHS stafl. In 201818 the
impact of pay changes will be bull inky NHS (anilf prices amd this separale disclosuns ing wil nol be requined.

"UNHS njury schame incame i3 sulyect o et alowanes v impared conlracl recenvalies.  The suggested rabe ig
21.79% i 2010 (27.89% in 20TETE) b refiect expecied rales of colsolin.  Howewer, whene NHS Providens
AN MRS A SEiTale Dased on M o el infavmalion, i rale can be vanksad accondingl).
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Note 3.3 Overseas visitors [relating to patients charged directly by the HHS

Trust)
2019720 201819
£000 £000
Income recognised this year a7 23
Cash payments received in-year 3 10
Amounts added fo provision for impairment of
receivables 53 15

There was mo Overseas Visidors income wriflen off in year (207819 £0).

Note 4 Other operating income

Note 4.1 Other operating income by nature

2019720 2018M9
£000 £000
Research and development 286 486
Education and training 9,483 8,826
Education and training - notional income from
Apprenticeship fund 451 1
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 5 9
Non-patient care services to other bodies 8,049 9,116
Provider Sustainability Fund / Financial Recovery Fund
income* 21,175 141
Rental revenus from operating leases 555 680
Income in respect of staff costs where accounted on
gross basis 2,051 1,528
Other income 4,004 4111
Total other operating income 45,149 20,144
Of which:
Realatad to continuing oparations 46, 149 24 660
Related to disconfinued operafions - 475

Further analysis of other Operating Revenue - "Other income"

Car Parking 1,327 1,193
Estates Recharges [(external) 241 316
IT Recharges (external) 386 457
Phamiacy Sales 245 331
Clinical Tesis 675 835
Catering - 2
Staff Accommodation Rentals R24 501
Staff Confributions to Employee Benefit Schemes 443 405
Property Rentalz [ | 70
iOther income not already covered 192 1

4,094 4111

AN ICRRBRE I PrOAE SIS S g FInSn0E MEOOVINY Fund ICome Wl MNONved By W Tt &
B0 88 Dt OF PETIONE OMAS! SUEIDON I IROWE JOWRINOR & BB DOBNOD,
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MNote 4.2 Additional information on revenue from confracts with customers
2019720 2018/149
£000 £000

Fevenue recognised in the reporting period that was

included in within contract liabilities at the previous

period end 1,353 1,224
Revenue recognised from performance obligations

satisfied (or partially zatisfied) in previous periods - -

HNote 4.3 Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

As gl the year end the Tnust has no perkemance adligations thal are ether partialy or
Tully urmalizied that & has not acoourked ko in revenue recogniion in yesr.
Thensfore, thene ae na conniracs thal commenced pioe o e pexiod end, with

The Tnust has eemed the pradical expedients pamited oy IFRS 15 pasgaph 1.1
in preparing thiz decozure. Revenose fram (1) cantrads with an expeded dueiion of
Dne year o exz and () conireds where the Tiust recoqnescs revenue deecly
ccarexponcing o work dane ba dale = nal disdozed

Note 4.4 Fees and Charges

HM Treasury requires disclosure of fees and charges income, for example: dental and
prescription charges and other income generation activities. This disclosure is of
income from charges to service users where full cost for that service excesds £1,000k
andfor iz otherwize material to the Accounts. It iz presented as the aggregate of such
income. The cost associated with the service that generated the income is also
disclosed.

In A1 574 The Rodhaerham NHS Foundaiion Toust had no fees or chames whens the
scheme individuslly resulled n incame from thal service exceeding £1 000k
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Note 4.5 Income from activities arising from commissioner requested services

Under the terms of itz provider licence, the Trust iz required to analyze the level of
income from activiies that has arizen from commissioner requested and non-
commizsionsr requested services. Commissioner requested services are defined in
the provider licence and are services that commissioners believe would need to be
profected in the event of provider failure. This information is provided in the fable

R SRR f L e |

below:

2019720 201819

£000 £000

Income from services designated (or grandfathered) as
commissioner requested services 241,538 230,868
Income from services not designated as commissioner
requested services 47,076 26,333
Total EH-EIEH 25?1201

Note 4.6 Profits and losses on digposal of property, plant and equipment

The Trust has not dispozed of ey land or bulidingz asaets in year pzed n the
prowizian o commissianer requesied services. The Tust hes disposed of equipment
aezels with 8 loss on diepoaal of E19 000, This depozal will ol impad the Tss
abiily iI0 coniinue I meet iz abligationz 1o prowide commiszioner requesied senices,
Bnd was part of an annusl equipment replacement prodg Emme.
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Hote 5.1 Operating expenses

Purchase of Healthcare
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Staff Costs

Emplovee expenses - staff and executive directors

Research and development - staff costs
Remuneration of non-executive directors
Redundancy

Premises and Esfablishment
Premizses

Premizes (Business rates)
Eztablishment

Rentals under operating leases
Transport (business travel only)
Transport - other {including patient travel)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization on intangible assets
Supplies

Supplies and services - clinical

Supplies and services - general

Crug costs

Inventories written down

Other Costs

Clinical negligence

Consultancy costs

Research and development

Increasef{decrease) in credit loss allowance: confract

receivablesfassets

Increasef{decrease) in credit loss allowance: all other

receivables

Change in provigions discount rate(z)

LR 1 A - - e AL o R -
AL 1SS Py aliis 1O RS SRl @

audit services - statutory audit

N

other auditor remuneration (extemal auditor only - quality

account)

(= T=1]

I_'I.r'H'LII EEEE
Intemal audit cosis
Training, courses and conferences

Education & Training - notional expenditure from

Apprenticeship Levy Fund

Insurance

Dther services, eg external payroll
Loszes, ex gratia & special payments
Other

Total

OF which:

Related to continuing operations
Related to discontinued operations

149

2019020 201819
£000 £000
1,088 ;
200,161 185242
320 259
182 180
- 58
10,442 11,723
1,218 1,181
1,773 1,922
2,511 3,782
66T 812
2,045 904
6,287 5,931
1,334 1,184
25,418 26,715
4,148 4,168
16,839 17,206
17 15
7,041 7,548
208 821
8 56
(372) 280
(1) 5
39 12
24 89
5 10
99 88
406 404
451 251
217 218
1,624 1,121
119 141
721 1,158
285195 73675
285,195 270,238
- 3,437
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Mote §.2 Other auditor remuneration

The Council of Govemors appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) az external
auditors of the Trust for the 3 year peniod commencing 1 October 20186, with the
opfion fo extend for a further two years commencing 1 April 20158, The contract has
been extended per this option for 2015/20. The audit fee for the statutory audit iz
included in note 5.1.

2019/20 201819

£000 £000
Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:
Audit-related assurance services 5 1k
Total 5 10

Mote 5.3 Limitation on auditor's liability

The Imision an audiors Bbilty for exiernal okt work = S 1000k (18159 £ 1000K).

Hote & Impairment of assets

In 201815 and X157 the Rotherham NHS Foundation Tresl reviewed iz property
axssix aqaira the relevant m yesr indexaton o eeaeas that the valuation undertaken
&% 8t 1=t March AB sl epreseniz 8 far vwew of the value of the agzels. This
exacxe demansirated that, had mdexatkon been appied ta apening values, the
clozing vaues gl 31t Mach 200 would not be materaly diferent iom thozse
reconded in the Trusz book=. Thensione, no revausion sdpsiments are recognsed

in year (M 319 £0).
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Hote T Employee benefits
2019720 201819

£000 £000
Salaries and wages 150,632 145,141
Social security costs 14,6561 14,045
Apprentice Levy [k L G35
Emplover's confributions fo NHS pengions 17,445 16,739
Employer's confributions fo NHS pensgions (Paid by MHSE on
providers behalf (6.3%)) 7,646 -
Penzsion cost - other 83 46
Termination benefits - St
Temporary staff - external bank 3,124 -
Temporary staff - agency/contract 6,706 9076
Total gross staff costs 201,005 185,791
Recowveres in rezpect of seconded staff netted off expenditure - -
Total staff costs Eﬂ'llﬂllﬁ 1EEIT91
Of which
Costs capitalised as part of assats 524 232
Operating expenditure analysed as:
Employee expenzes - staff and executive directors 200,161 185,242
Rezearch and Developmenit 320 259
Redundancy - ad
Total staff costs excluding capitalised costs. 200,481 185,559

Mote 7.1 Retirements due to ill-health

During 211597411 there wene nD early elremants from The Tiest sagreed on the grounds
of il-hesith (2 in the year ended 31 March AF D). The csimaied addidional pension
iabiiies of these dl-hesith retirements B 20K (£1322% in D)1805).

The cost of theze ill-health refirements will be bome by the NHS Business Services
Authority - Pensions Division.

Mote 7.2 Directors’ remuneration and other bencfits

The requirements under section 412 of the Companies Act 2006 to disclose information
on directors’ remuneration are considered to be satizfied by the disclosures made in
the notes to the accounts above and in the Remuneration Report. Directors” other
benefitz, where relevant, are set out here.

In 21971 na advances o oedils wae granted by e Tusl bo any of the dinedors of
the Trst No quamniecs were erriered nla on behsif of the direcionz off The Tnust
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Mote & Pension costs

The default scheme iz the NHS pension scheme, however some employees are not
eligible to join and therefore to meet auto enrolment legislation an alternative pension
scheme must be provided. Like most NHS providers this Trust procured the
government backed, defined contribution, Mational Employment Savings Trust
("MEST") az the alternative pension scheme. Pensgion coszts for defined contribution
schemes are disclosed in Mote 7.
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Note 9 Operating leases

Mote 9.4 The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust as a lessor

Thi=s note dizsclozes income generated in operating leasze agreements where the Trust is
the lessor. The Trust has a lease agreement with Rotherham, Doncaster & South
Humibxer MHS FT for use at Woodiands which expires in 2108. Fuiure iease receipis
due at 31zt March therefore capture this future commitment among others.

2019720 2018M9

£000 £000
Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts L55 680
Total 555 680

31 March 31 March

2020 2015
£000 £000
Future minimum lease receipts due:
- not later than one year,; 481 452
- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,671 1,672
- later than five yvears. 6,140 6,364
Total BIIBE Biﬁ 18

Mote 9.2 The Trust as a lessee

Thiz note dizcloses costz and commitments incurred in operating lease amangements
where the Trust is the lessee.

2019/20 201819
£000 £000
Operating lease expense
Minimum lease payments 2,511 3,752
Total EIEH 3i?32

31 March 31 March

2020 2019
£000 £000
Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year; 2,071 3,651
- later than one year and not later than five years; 6,474 1,116
- later than five years. 123 135

Total 8,668 4,902
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Hote 10 Finance income

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.
2019/20 2018M9

£000 £000
Interest on bank accounts ™ 63
Interest on loans and receivables 1 1
Total 80 64

Hote 11 Finance Expense

Bllmdo o d
TNLFLE 1 1.

e e

I o oo e -~ e ik
LuAars [LER AR b

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing

of monsy.

2019/20 201819
£000 £000

Interest expense:
Loans from the Department of Health 2475 2,100
Finance leases 169 154
Total interest expense 2,644 2,254
Unwinding of dizcount on provisions (5 3
Total 2,639 2257

Hote 11.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998

2019/20 2018M9
£000 £000
Amounts included within interest payable arizing from claims

made under this legislation - -
Hote 12 Discontinued Operations
Mo services were dizcontinued im 2015/20.

The Rotherham Equipment and Wheelchair Service was transfemred to a new
provider on 12t February 2019, The Dental Access Service was similarly transferred
to a new provider with effect from 1st April 2015 and both are therefore classified as
dizcontinued operations at 31st March 2019, This note discloses the total income
and expenditure attributable to these services in 2018M19.

2019720 201819

£000 £000
Operating income of discontinued operations - 3,662
Operating expenses of discontinued operations - (3,.437)

Total - 225
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Mote 13 Intangible Assets

Mote 13.1 Intangible assets - 201920

Valuation/Gross cost at 1 April 2019 -
brought forward

Additions

Reclassifications

Dispo=als [ derecognition
Gross cost at 31 March 2020

Amortization at 1 April 2019 - brought
forward

Provided during the year

Dispo=als [ derecognition
Amortizsation at 31 March 2020

Met book value at 31 March 2020
Met book value at 1 April 2019

MNote 13.2 Intangible assets - 2018/19

YValuation/gross cost at 1 April 2018 - as
previousiy stated

Additions

Dispo=als [ derecognition
Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2019

Amortization at 1 April 2018 - as
previoushy stated
Provided during the year
Disposals / derecognition
Amortization at 31 March 2015

Met book value at 31 March 2015
Met book value at 1 April 2018

Intangible
Software assets under

licences construction Total
£000D E£0DD £000
17,769 318 18,087
928 - 928

318 {318} -

(25) - (25)

18,990

: - 1 ﬂiﬂﬂﬂ

8,754 - 8,754
1,334 - 1,334
(23] - (23]
10,063 - 10,063
8,927 - 8,927
9,015 Jis 9,333
Intangible
Software assets under
licences construction Total
£000 £000 E000
20,160 318 20,478
7r2 - Fi
(3.163) — 3,163
17,7649 318 18,087
10,732 - 10,732
1,184 - 1,184
(3,162) - (3,162}
EI 754 - Eiii"ﬂ-l
9,015 318 3,333
9,428 318 9,746
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Hofe 14.1 Property, plant and equipmant - 204920

305 §88 o vB £ E"’:
iy 52'5/537/? F

E000 EDDD E000 £nnn £000 EDO0 000

aluationigross cost af 1 April

20113 - brought forward 6,450 109,367 - 18,58 216 4373 &2 140,286
AddRlons - 1,654 4,556 1,646 1 520 21 8428
Revalustions - (108} - - - - - {108)
Dispaeals | derecogrition - - - (479 - - - i473)

Valustionigross cost at 31

March 2020 6,450 110,343 4,555  20,DES 217 5,433 A3 148127

Accumulated dapreciation af 1

April 2015 - brought forwand - 4,050 - 12,584 2 2,138 54 20,107
Provided during the year - 4,438 - 1,088 <] To3 x5 6287
Revalustions - {113} - - - - - (113
Dispasals! derecogniion - - - [448) - - - {448)

Accumulated depraciafion at

3 March 2020 - 9,349 - 13,535 209 2,841 33 25,827

Mt ook value at 31 March

2020 6,450 101,534 4,558 5,730 ] 2,52 o 122,300

Mt ook valwe at 1 Aprll 2013 6,450 104,337 - 6,214 13 2,835 328 120173

‘Conirachual caphal commiiments not oinerwise dsclosed In the Accounts are disciosed In Mate 32,
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Hiofe 14.2 Property, plant and equipmant - 201815

. - - = % i
Eggﬁg‘; wé/ﬁf z

€000  £000  £DO0 0 £000
Valuationigross cost at 1 Aprl
2018 - 35 previously stabed 6450 105476 - 25805 296 5028 160 143255
AddElng - 3,691 - 1Em - 1T M3 7440
! derecogriton - - - (BE34) - {1775 - (1D.40D)
valuationigross cosf at 31 March =
2013 EAS0 109,357 - 13,538 216 4073 3|2 140286

Accumulated depreciation ak 1

Aprll 2018 - a5 previously stabed - Tal - A6 167 3,258 36 24,530
Provided during the year - 4,280 - 1,084 12 o2T 18 o493
Dispasals | d ridon - - - (EST) - (1,775} - ii0,354)

Accumulated d on at 31

March 2012 - 5,050 - 12634 201 2138 54 20,107

ket book walue at 31 March 2012 6,450 104,237 - 4,214 15 2,635 228 120,179

et book value at 1 April 2018 5,430 104,726 - 3,738 29 1,60 144 118,725

Conirachual caphal commiments not oinerwise dsclosed Inthe Accounts are disciosed In Maole 32,
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Mofe 143 Property, plant and aquipment financing - 201520

£000 E£000 £000  £000 E00D  EODD  £000 E0G0

Cramed 6,500 58,596 44556 5,202 g 2652 210 117,626
Finance leazed 150 2304 - 1477 - - - 3,51
Donated - B - =1 - - - T43
HEV fotal at 31 March 2020 6450  101.534 44556 6,730 & 2652 10 122,300

Hofe 14.4 Property, plant and squipment financing - 201&M13

b 55-?7/;;55 ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ/i I

i
£000  £000 £0

£000 £000 €000 £000
Cuned 6300  101.208 - 5232 15 2,835 328 115918
Finance leased 150 2,408 - 513 - - - 3477
Donated - 721 - £3 - - - 784
NBV total at 31 March 2013 B450 104337 - 621 15 2835 326120173
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MNote 15 Donations of property, plant and equipment

The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust has received no new donations of
property, plant and equipment in the financial year.

MNote 16 Revaluations and impairments of property, plant and
equipment

During 2017718 and in line with 14516, the Trust's land and buildings were
revalued as at 21st March 2018 by an independent valuer. Between

valuationz, management review and azset verification exercises are

undertaken to assess the need for mpaiments.

The last valuation was carried out primarily on the basis of depreciated
replacement cost for specialised operational property and existing use value
for non-specialized operational property. Non operational property,
including land was valued fo market value.

In order to meet the underlying ohjectives established by International
Financial Reporting Standards and the application of LAS 16 changes, thoze
buildings which qualify as specialized operational assets and therefore, fall
to be assessed using the depreciated replacement cost approach have
been valued on a modem substitute basis i.e. the valuation approach
azsumed that the exizting aszet will be replaced by an asset of modem
design and =zize which is suitable for delivering those services currently
being provided where appropriate. Therefore, we have continued fo
assume that the modern equivalent asset does not require a site as
extensive as the actual Rotherham Hospital zite. We have recognized that
an 8 hectare site iz sufficient and the modern equivalent development iz in a
more appropriate location closer fo the M1 and M18 motoraay inferchange.

T . . [ — e e

T MR UK Illll.'-lﬂ.l TERCL FECES B USE T MR Z1L00 B BRCGT IR

T e iplal value of assetz on pur Stslement of Finencial Posidion makemby
refiecied changez i the market sance the lasl valuation. We concliuded thal
there was materially na difference, and thensione no valugion changes were

e mlles ek 1 ek LErwerweles “REHY
I .~ —§ |EFyF 10 | J Ll dr
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In making these pdgementz, the Tnust B aware thal The Royal Instiuke of
Chartered Surveps [HEKCS) has isaed 8 valualion pradice nolive which
gives quidance o valuers whene 8 valuer declaes 8 malexial uncertminty
aitached to a valusbion n ight of the mpad af COVID-19 on merkeis As
exqisined sbove, The Tiuat has nol aolained 2 valusiion repart for 119740
butl = should be ncied thal There may now be grestor uncerininly n markeis

o R O T T e T g o e A T o Ay o L b R P o . e,
DN TR W W LA § L P T IRl S 1k B TR B U Rae

Tnancal sislements i bexed. Gren the pd gemes s explained abowe n
preparing these NH 32X financial statermans, the Tust has not devialed
from iz exsting accounting palicy by pbianing an addiional valuation o

mdyinds o ool s rboeed s el bas ol el

THIIMEaE | DN BN NS O LN BN s B -., IIEII. I O B Rl Pl -

The valusion of Rotherham Hospital sie, an 8 modan equivalent asset
approach, mvalves the valuer bezing therr axsesament on the cost o the
Tzt of replacng the service polental of the ssseis. The unceriainty
exqisined sbove relaies io the extimaied cosl of replacing the gsenvice
polarial, ther than the esdeant of the 2emvice polential la be replsced.

it = pozsible that the COVID-19 pandemic may afied the Tiust's fubare
axzessmant of what would be required in 8 modem equivalent aesset, but s
yet there 8 maulficent evidence o affect the sssumplions used in the last
valusiion
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Hote 17 Investment Property

The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust holds assets which are rented to other
organigations and are not held for primary healthcare provision purposes. These were
however deemed fo support service provision and as such have not been categorised
as Investment Property. They are the Lodge, the Creche and the former staff

Sidencies.

MHote 18 Investments in associates and joint ventures

In 2019720 The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust have no investments in associates
and joint venfures.

MHote 19 Other investments / financial assets (non-current)

In 20159720 The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust has no other investments or
financial assets.

161 Annual Report and Accounts 201920



Mote 20 Disclosure of interests in other entities

The Rotherham Hospital & Community Charity

The Trust haz congidered the need to congolidate Charitable Funds (The Rotherham
Hospital & Community Charity) within the main Trust accounts and concluded, although
the Trust continues to meet the criteria within the accounting standard, the value of the
Charitable Funds is not material and will not therefore be conzsolidated within the Trust's
main accounts.

The table below summanses the Charitable Funds Statement of Financial Activities and

Balance shest.
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
Total incoming resources 137 164
Resources expended (183) {140)
(Losses)Gaing on revaluation and disposals [26) 2
Net movement in funds i”l 6
|
Total Assefs M9 294
Total Liabilities (3) ()
Total Charitable Funds K[ g8
Total funds made up of-
- Restricted /fendowment funds 258 222
- Unregtricted funds L 166

The 201%/20 Charitable Funds accounts have not yet been subject to independent
review. The 201819 Charitable Funds accounts were audited and finalised in Dec 19.

Note 21 Inventories

Drugs Consumables Energy Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Carrying value at 1 April
2019 861 2,667 49 3577
Additions 15,683 11,543 23 27,249
Consumed (15,493) (11,258) (26) (26,817)
Write-downs (17) - - {17}
Carrying value at 31
March 2020 1 Iﬂﬂ-!l 5912 46 BIH‘BE
Carrying value at 1 Apnil
2018 8x2 2,720 110 3,652
Additions 14,353 12,153 42 26,548
Consumed (14,299) (12,206) (103) (26,608)
Write-downs {15) - - (15)

Carrying value at 31
March 2019 861 2,667 49 3,977
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Mote 22.1 Trade and other receivables

Current

Contract receivables due from NHS bodies {invoiced)

Confract receivabies due from reiated WGA parties (invoiced)
Conftract receivables due from non-WGA bodies (invoiced)

Contract receivables (IFRS15) not yet invoiced

Allowance for impaired contract receivables [ azsets

Allowance for impaired other receivables
Deposits and Advances
Prepayments (non-PFI)
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables
Total current trade and other receivables

MNon-current
Other recenvables
Total non-current trade and other receivables

163

31 March 31 March

2020 2019
£000 £000
3,440 2 862
1,372 414
2,144 2,253
16,021 5 441
(498) (B73)
(19) (23)
95 48
2,71 2,851
168 -
460 403
87 514

Iﬁﬂﬂ?_ 13iﬂﬂﬂ

54 17
54 17
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Mote 22.2 Allowances for credit logses (doubtful debis)

5 & . o
£ 3 5
E S 5 g
3§ 3
2019720 & o2 Total
£000 £000 £000
Allowances for credit logses at 1 April -
brought forward (before IFRS 9 and IFRS 15
implementation) ar3 29 898
Mew allowances ansing 171 3 174
Changes in calculation of existing allowances (353) - (393)
Reverzalzs of allowances (where receivable is
collected in-year) (150) (4) (154)
Utilization of allowances (where receivable is
written off) (3} (2} {8)
At 31 March 2020 458 19 517
I N
Lozs/[{gain) recognised in expenditure (372) (1) [373)
201819

Allowances for credit logses at 1 April -
brought forward (before IFRS 9 and IFRS 15

implementation) 613 613
Impact of IFR59 and IFR515 implementation 5493 (593) -
Mew allowances ansing 230 13 o43
Changes in calculation of existing allowances (18] 2 (14)
Reversals of allowances (where receivable is

collected in-year) (234) (10} (244)
At 31 March 2019 873 25 898
Logsg/{gain) recognised in expenditure 280 2 285

The level of allowance for credit losses (doubiful debts) iz bazed upon analysis of the

type of debtors, the age of the debt and any specific intelligence relevant to individual
debtors.
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HNote 23 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprize cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents are readily convertible investments of known value which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2019720 2018M19

£000 £000
At 1 April 1,461 1,400
Met change in year (94) &1
At 31 March 1,367 1,461
Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 160 136
Cash with the Government Banking Service 1,207 1,325
Total cazh and cash equivalents as in SoCF 1,367 1,461

*—

The Trust's cash balances are largely held in the Government Banking Service
Royal Bank of Scofland account and also a HSBC acoount, both of which are
congidered low rigk institutions.

Note 23.1 Third party assets held by the Trust
At 31st March the Trust held less than £1k cash or cash equivalents which relate to
monies held on behalf of patients or other parties.

165 Annual Report and Accounts 201920



Hote 24 Trade and other payables
3 March 31 March

2020 2019
£000 £000
Current
MHS Trade payables 1,734 2963
Amounts due to other related pariies 1,108 (16)
Diher trade payables 10,973 7,305
Receipts in advance* - 935
Capital payables 1,856 659
Social security costs 2,025 1,975
VAT payable 73 92
Other taxes payable 1,587 1,533
Diher payables 161 -
Accruals 8,394 8,195
PDC dividend payable - 47
Total current frade and other payables 27,911 23,696

The Trust held no non-current frade and other payables at the period end.

" Wheve incime s Dee reciived in siliancs of Senaoe Drowsion, e negative receivable & reciassiie
&5 & papable al the 1 March. b 207872 these nslafed ip sachily with CCGa and NHSE

Mote 25 Other financial liabilities
The Trust holds no other financial liabilities.
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Mote 26 Other liabilities

31 March 31 March

2020 2019
£000 £000

Curremt
Deferred income 1,425 1,353
Total other current liabilities ‘1I425 1|353

The Trust held no non-current other liabilities at the period end.

e

sl [ ]
TLFEG £F LFLUAE AP IS

31 March 31 March

2020 2019
£000 £000
Current
Loans from the Department of Health* 59,202 5,585
Obligations under finance leases 253 148
Total current borrowings 59,45? 0,743
Hon-current
Loans from the Department of Health*® 25,250 72,368
Dbligations under finance leases 3,765 3412
Total non-current borrowings 29,015 ?EITEJI]

* O 2 April AN, the Depariment of Heslth and Social Care [DHSC) and NHS
England and NHS Improvement announced reforms o the NHS cazh regame for
the AWATH fmandal year. During A exaxing DHSC nleim reverue and
capiinl Ioare aa at 31 arch AN will be exdinguizhed amd repiaced with the maue
f Puldlic Dividend Capital {PDC) Lo sllow the repayment. Given s edales o
liabiilies that exdsied st 31 Barch ALNY, DHSE hes updaied il Group Accounting
Manusl o advise this & considened an adusling event siter bhe eporing penod
orprwiders. Ouiztandng nterim loans aling £31_206m ax at 21 Mach Ao
in these nancial sleiements have been dessilied as oarent 83 they will be
repaysble within 12 monthz
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Mote 28 Finance Leazes

The Trust does not have any finance lease receivables. This disclosure presents
obligations under finance leases where the Trust is the lessee. Finance lease payables
appear within Borrowings in the Staterment of Financial Pogition.

In year rentals associated with a long term leaze for Park Rehabilitation Centre and six
equipment leaszes are categorized as finance lease obligations. The assets are held on
the Trust's balance shest (SOFP).

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000
Gross lease liabilities 8,244 7,897
of which liabilities are due:
- not later than one year; 421 305
- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,684 1,221
- later than five years. 6,139 6,371
Finance charges allocated to future pericds {4,226) (4 337)
Met leasze liabilities 4,018 3,960

. —— E———
of which payable:

- not later than one year; 253 148
- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,100 651
- later than five years. 2 665 2,761

Mo minimum sublease payments are to be received at the reporting date.
Mo contingent rent was recognised as an expense in the period.

Mote 29 Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

Loans Finance
from DHSC Leases Total
£000 £000 £000

Carrying value at 1 April 2019 77,963 3,560 81,523
Cazh movements:
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts
of principal 6,497 (281) 6,216
Financing cash flows - payments of interest {2,484) (169) [2,653)
Hon-cash movements:
Additions - 739 739
Interest charge arsing in year (application of
effective interest rate) 2476 169 2,645
Carrying value at 31 March 2020 84,452 018 88,470
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MNote 30 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

HNote 30.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis

$ 5
‘ 1 g
55l 551 5
. " E,
a T
/ g l' £ l i Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2019 530 457 109 - a4 1,480
Change in dizcount rate 20 19 - - - 39
Arizsing during the year 449 46 70 52 33 250
Utilised during the year (45) (32) (TS) - (277) (4.29)
Reversed unused (30} - (16) - {(107) (153)
Urnwinding of discount (3] {2) - - - (5)
At 31 March 2020 51 488 88 52 33 1I1 82
Expected timing of
cash flows:
- not later than one year; 44 3 fatal - 33 196
- later than one year and
not later than five years; 176 128 - - - 304
- later than five years. 3_[!1 32;9 - 5_2 _- Eﬂi_
Total 5M 488 88 52 33 1,182

The Pengions (eary departure) provision relates to the ongoing costs of making early
payment of pensions. Legal claims relate to liakilities to third parties (administered by
NHS Resolution). The main uncertainty in terms of the timing of the cash flows relates
to the pensions provigion as assumptions need to be made (in accordance with
guidance) as to the estimated length of life of the pensioners and the conseguent cost
to the Trust. These are discounted per the guidance along with Injury Benefits
provigions. At present there is no expectation that the Trust will receive amy
reimbursement in respect of these provigions.

Clinicians who are members of the NHS Pension Scheme and face an annual
allowance tax charge for work undertaken in 201920 can elect to have this charge
paid by the NHS Pension Scheme. The employing trust makes a confractually binding
commitment to pay a corresponding compensated amount on refirement, therefore
there is a future obligation upon retirement. This payment is nationally funded,
therefore any provision recognised here is matched with a non-current receivable from
MHS England.

No provision has been made o addiional holcey pay thel may be paysile 83 8 result
of the Flowers case, on the basis that auch 3 lishily g unlkddy o arse.
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Hote 30.2 Clinical negligence liabilities

At 31 March 2020, £69, 524K iz included in the provisions of NHS Resolution in
respect of clinical negligence liabilities of The Rotherham MHS Foundation Trust (31
March 2019 £68,042k).

Hote 31 Contingent assets and liabilities
31 March 31 March

2020 2019
£000 £000

Value of contingent liabilities
MHS Resolution legal claims (26) 4
Het value of contingent liabilities PEI !4£]T

The Trust held no contingent azsets at the peried end.

Mote 32 Contractual capital commitments
31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 1,732 803
Intangible assets - 14
Total 1,732 817 _

*—

Capital commitments as at 31 March 2020 include Measzured Term Condract order
commitments, new leases for medical equipment (£917k) and small capital
schemes where costs are committed under contract, but which are not included
elzewhere in the accounts.
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Hote 33 Financial instruments

Hote 33.1 Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial
inztruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in
undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the
Trust has with Clinical Commissioning Groups and the way those Clinical Commizsioning
Groups are financed, the Trust iz not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
buginess entiies. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or
changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporiing
standards mainky apply. The Trust has imited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds
and financial agsetz and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities
rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking itz activities.
The Trust's freasury management operations are carmied out by the finance department,
within parameaters defined formally within the Trust's standing financial instructions and
policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Trust treasury activity is subject to review by
the Trust's internal auditors.

Currency risk

The Truzt is principally a domestic organization with the great majority of tramzactions,
aszefz and liabilitiez being in the UK and steding baged. The Trust has no overseas
operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure fo currency rate fluctuations.

Interest rate risk
The Truzst has low exposure fo interest rate fluctuations as it has borrowings only from

the Department of Health at fixed rates of interest.

Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trust's income comes from confracts with other public sector
bodies, the Trust has low exposure fo credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31

Elemrnl e rerem s o Frevmes o s mn Al sl e b Tremedes s sl s e bl
Iigl LA & o III ISFLAAYAaRISD AN WUEDAST D, a2 WRLIUSTU [E L § Taac ang oInci Neteivamnca
Ligquidity risk

The Trust's operating costs are incurred under annual service agreements with Clinicai
Commisgioning Groups and Local Authorities, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Parliament. The Trust finances its capital expenditure from funds obtained
within its prudential borrowing limit. The Trust is not, therefore, exposged to significant
liquidity risks.

Foreign currency risk
The Trust has negligible foreign currency income or expendifure.
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Hote 33.2 Financial azsets

Fair value is considered to equate to camying value in the note below unless otherwise

dizclosed.
m e
= W £ R
=8 e
T3 £ 2 =8
£ 5 % & -
Carrying values of financial }_? -4 k= E
assets as at 31 March 2020 T ::fu f [y
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other receivables
excluding non financial assets 22514 22,514
Cash and cash equivalents at bank
and in hand 1,367 1,367
Total at 31 March 2020 23,831 - - 23,881
] & §r 2 & § S
“'i* o @ s ey et
=] o -]
538 & [ of
a —
Assets as per SoFP as T s £ £33 )
at 31 March 2019 < = 3 L
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other receivables 10,603 10,603
1,461 1,461

Cash and cash equivalents at bank
Tetal at 31 March 2019
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Hote 33.3 Financial liabilities

Fair value is congidered to equate to camying value in the note below unless otherwise

dizclosed.
Held at fair
Held at value
™ armrine walnoo of fimanacial iahilitico oo af arvrurtio o Hhriwn ks
l.rllllJ'lllH FUITA o WA IR PEN D FREARFERILE O T CEL EARNESRFE LD lllluuull
3 March 2020 under IFRS 9 cost the I&E Total
£000 £000 £000
Loans from the Department of Health and
Social Care 84 452 84,453
Obligations under finance leases 4018 4,018
Trade and other payables excluding non
financial liabilties 24 226 24,226
Total at 31 March 2020 11%&96 - 11EIEHE
Liakilities
Held at at fair value
amortized through the
Liakilities as per SoFFP as at 31 March 2019 cost I&E Total
£000 £000 £000
Loans from the Department of Health and
Social Care 77,963 77,963
Obligations under finance leases 3,560 3,560
Trade and other payables excluding non 19,110 19,110
Total at 31 March 2018 100 633 - 100,633
Mote 33.4 Maturity of financial liabilities
3 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
In one year or less 83,681 24 853
In more than one year but not more than two years 11,512 26,989
In more than two years but not more than five years 4 588 34,520
In more than five years 12,915 14 261
Total 112,696 100,633
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Hote 34 Losses and special payments

201920 201818
Total Total Total Total
number of walue of numberof  wvalue of
Cases Cases CasEes CASES
Number £000D Mumber £000
Losses
Cash losses 1 - 1 2
Bad debts and claims abandoned 21 8 =T T
Stores losses and damage to
property 12 18 13 66
Total losses 34 26 71 T
Special payments
Compensation payments 14 104 15 58
Ex-gratia payments 18 6 17 T
Total special paymentis 32 110 32 65
Total losses and special payments 66 136 103 140

There were no compensation payments received in recovery of losses above.

Note 35 Events after the reporting period

See reie 2T regating conmversinn of kaanz la Public Capial Dividemnd.

There have been na cther sknikcant events afier the reporting penod deie.
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Note 36 Related parties
MNote 36.1 Register of Interests

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust is conporate body establizshed by order of the
Secretary of State for Health.

The Trust iz required, under International Accounting Standard 24 "Related Pariy
Dizclosures', to discloze any related party transactions. The objective of 1AS 24 is to
draw attention fo the possibility that the reported financial position and results may
have been affected by the existence of related parties and by materal franzactions
with them. In the cazes reported as related parties in year, all payments shown have
been made by the Trust to the organizations concerned and not to the individual
officers.

Dwuring the year the Trust has had fransactions with a number of organisations with
which key emplovees/directors of the Trust have some form of relationship. Only
those bodies, outside the Department of Health & Social Care parent body, are
detailed below and are not considered material. See Note 37.2 in respect of the
Department of Health & Social Care.

31 March 31 KMarch 31 March 31 March

2020 2019 2020 2015
Receipts Receipiz

from from Payments Payments

Related Related to Related fo Related

Party Party Party Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Magna Enterprizes Ltd 0 0 8 10
Total related party

transactions 0 0 8 10

There was £nil owed, or due at the 31st March in rezpect of theze fransactions.

The relationships are:

- A non-executive member of the Board is also a Director Trustees with Magna
Enterprizes Ltd.
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Mote 36.2 Other Related Parties

Faragraph 25 of lAS 24 allows entities which are related pariies because they are
under the zame government control io reduce the volume of the detailed disclosures.
The Government Accounting Manual interprets thiz such that Depardment of Health
and Social Care group bodies must disclose the Department of Health and Social Care

ac tha marant oonarbrnao i rrmvsida o nnba Af thia ain antibioe aethiem tha mnnkdie

nt =
25w paEFEN GEDENnEN 8N0 provins a8 NS 47 INE Mailn SNINES WInin WS puUdais

sector with which the body has had dealings. During the year, the Trust has had a
significant number of material transactions with other entities within the public sector.
The=e entities are listed below:

- Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

- Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (HMEC)
- MHS Pension Scheme
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Independenit auditors’ report to the Council of Governors
of The Rotherham NHS Foumdahion Trust

Report om the andit of the financial statements

—
In por opinice . The Eotherhom MRE Fosslsbios Trests fihe “Toost ™) sasrial shalrssenis fihe " foncial stabenesia)

& e tree el v viewr of the ctate of The Trost s affair < at p Mok snon el of te Tress o o
mxpenditwr and rash Aows G the v thes made]; aml

= havebes propedy rrepaed in acvod aece with the Departwent of Bealth and Social Cae Growp ATt
Mamal xngfoo.

We kaove audiien] the Svowrial saiernewis irhoded wihon the Asvwal Report el Accossis 2o /20 fihe ~ Aol Tepert™),
which riywise the Siatement of Pinancial Pratan 2= it 1 Marh 2o20; e Statewsst of Coanpredwsaree T oy the
vy Ve eeided ; the Salievseni of Cash Flows o e pray then emied ; the Salsvsent of Chaspes 0 Taxpepe s Equity Bx

The yeay then eaded - and fhe ol 0 e iawrial soenewis which rlode 2 deorriptemn of thee speifrost accoending
polices

Basis for opimsion

"We condorted oer sodit n arcondawre with the Mool Health Sevvice Art 2onk, the Cods of Aodi Bracters and reevant
pridance i=oaed by the Katonal Andit Ofice on belclf of the Compimiler vl Asditesr General (Ve “Dode of Andit
Fractire”), lniereatonal Siasdands on Asditiep (OK] (CI5A5 (OE)7) anl apphcahile aw. Oor rsporrsibilities ondey BEAS
] e fxthey described in the Andices" resposhibities G the aadit of the inawria] saterwsts sertion of oo eEst We
Telor that 1 audit svidonre we o ohtained = saffrient aed approgriale tn previde 2 ha e o oor opision

Indrprrrdeere

W renaine] indeywsdrwt of the Trost n armd aece with the sfhical reqoinessents Het e elevant o o aditt of the
mawrial salevsenis in the OE, nhirh cloies the FRC's Elhiral Sandad. and we heve inlilled ouo ot eflical
repnrEhiities in acceniare with these reqoinesents

Tn Ewrwning or opimies o e eoeeial colsrsenic wiich i= ok resdified | e haor coscionesd tie adepoory of the
frdrurs nade in anir 1 o the o] Selivwesis oerereing e Toe=s arlily o onbioee 35 3 Eoing comremn

The Tras mnbavoes o Gor finawrial dhallrspes and s oorestly peeratisg ssdey nbeim el aaepesswis A ths
stape it s wrlear what will lapyes aler thic iwital pernd of sopport 2wl whethes e e ol e prsenis
il comtiwoe ke than ariginally alved = explained in 2ol 1 1 > in the inanrial Stalermenls

T comulitures, Ziong; with the ofleer matters exyiained i note 1 to the fianca) sbarnests, ndicaty e erienoe of 3
maievial mwertainty which oy cast spmifrast doobt shoot the Toost's ahiity to cnlivse 25 2 going coneen The faorial
strierrysyic do ot inclode the adioctwwssis thot weald recoll if the Trect were oxahibe 0 comhieoe 35 3 ST T

Erplrmation of muterim sorertmmy

Im the year, e Trast delivered 2 £4 o defirit agzinst a phisned hmk-eem positicon B 2oigfoo. However, 352 =alt of
The Spoth Finkshire & Bt Intesraied Care System being in apyresate bolance, the Toust willl recetve aldiional mom-
el Fiaerial Preesery Fond meesie: tn dear the defieit reoalting w2 sorplos of Polc 4« 3 corecaepoeare fhe Tost will
achieve it sl coniml Hota] ad serore] s Qoarier 4 Fovaker Sestamabhility Fonl/Pisawrial Prcoeery Fond meomies of
E5xmwkich is aleady orbaded within the dehcit position referme] in aeme

Dor o 1eoenk evenls cnceraiage SOVID-n, U el plassisg proeess o oo o has been spcpended natiosaly awl
mberim ieaecial eyl pol in plare imitially corsinge the prnod foom Ageil o Jely 2o Al this stape i isonckear
wihat will lappen afier fins mital peviod

Hhmﬂﬁmtum

mmmmmﬂuﬂhm:ﬂ_

- compared the avamptions within the Trost's el plan st assanplions provided by Mosiicon ] HEAS and oux
expience i the health secion;

= mmlevshe] the Trads neceevee o the Covil-vo possdenir and e e poidasee sl swocoe: in plare s KEHE
Enplan] and NHE Inprowemesis

177 Annual Report and Accounts 201920



= Fmpoed the rerawablener, of the plaw asoammption= and roried oot 2 secliviy by ovey Uhis plan: and
= cemvderer ] Yhe rrliance that the Toest has on rxiea] seppot o delver s oo/ pla

O et aprproacdh

Comiret

O it fow Ve year enaled 311 Manch anon wes planed and execwies] daving repand o the Gt thal the Tiast's operaliarns
i ivenrial sabiny were lopely onchanped in xature fom the previoos pec gkt of this, cer appmach tnthe amditin
s of sy and Ty aadit saiters as Eapely enchonyps] aypantt foemn 1 ooy aadit maiter that waes new s prar in
respect of the Trost's e o Covid-1g.

O it 2t avvnbved aming 3 conclessmn on the ey wests o serocing cromamy, ihnewy and sifectveness in the
e of resomnres, fihe " E57), i arred awee with the Code of Andit o

- mmzswtmg: Eq.ﬂf,qnﬂﬂlﬂlm:ﬁduﬂ
mpeating o from continsing opevalioe

i "‘:" - Mmmillnjmnﬂiﬂ!nﬂ;nmnr“mﬂmm
Et-r . ﬁ the Trosts ] periwrsasee sl chinical pefirscnce in identily the aras of
e }I'"I et visk B the aodil paoree;.

Lol
ér a Rk of el n revesor 2] sxpenditere reromnition anl nanapeesent oveide of
Amaltl eonpa:
motmls
a A sshmabihity and proy o
a Vakation of PFropecty, Pant il Erprprmest
a Dovd-ig
a Demcalovatios of Arvroals sl Brosicimes

Ky azidaE

e e

The srope of our meadit

As gt of desiping ooy okt e deimmined maleriality and sseeroed the rhs of et eria] sisciatrraent in the ancial
strierryeyic. Tn partfiabr, we locked af where the direriveres sl cebserties jadreasonts B ceawple s ecpeet of syvibeant
acroanting slimales that venived making asssmphion= and roradeiap aioe seats that e inkeratly oocertan.

A5 m all of por andite we also adireeoed the risk of marnaerrrest orerde of inbenal ohols. inceding calabing wiet e
Thew was reidenew of hies by the divecia= thal vepresnied 2 rick of malieria] srcchalsrs st doe to ool

K coulit mudiers

Xey auki matieys are thooe matiss that | in the sodihe" prole=swal jods-nest | wee-of most sprabcance mthe andit of
the himancial =Aahvssents of The oot period aad the roriesion o the aoeyersents iy seoaring eooecny, sy, and
eliiectvrmes iw the v of Tesoonres aad rkede the st syeifrast 3o vidk: of sabial misstalvewst (et or
oot dur o fand) slestibed by the et rdnding those wiich had the preatet offect o the overall audit shraliesy: the
allocatmn of ey o the aabt asd derting: the sifts of the ooppperest tramn. Thes matters, sl sy o enis e
make s The nesolts of o proosdores; Besvrn, were ad doese] in e cowiest of oo sodit of e owrial staies el o a

wihnle avel in Srmieg our opiwion fhereon aed e do aot e 3 Separalie npisies o theeoe matters Ths is ot a
raapiete Est of 3l richs identifie] by oo andit

Xy sl vroriter Hom oasr st caldvessed e ke st et fer
Rk of fread ia reovsae end expesdsiare Temprition Rewemie
ad st ooerride of ool
For I and expenditu e v rtion s chivoe to the v
e woir 1 i e fvascial shoovoswls for e deedrs” d wetesied | on 2 sanple hasr. that the tansrtios ad

ariosres of e Teieivd soroaxtiony polices, the sxpriaind incomne Tl expentiore kad ben posied o
Jpiperwrxts ewd ol relotag i T ey the conrect hnancial pray end by traring o o Srecres o
of Teweroe oxd evpeaditare ol anies 7 0 5 A ot dorewwiary evidence Dor iesting il sot identity
Jrther mforortiee amy badances which had Tees revaded in the eeareet

Peind
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We forwsrd oo this e beranor e is 2 heipiened
ik toe i

e I the v the Trost defieered a
£ defrit apzinst 2 plaoned Terals v
ot v smgfan  Eowessr, 25 2 Tesalt of
T South Yorkshine: & Baostirr inteyalicd
Care Sy=iemn heiny: 0 aprrepate balawre, the
Tt receivm] alditioes] sos- et
Fresrial Proexry Fond meosie: tn dear the
defirit ety in a sapiesal Fok
A 2 cemorpeenre the Trost st iis aewoal
il otal and serored = ke 4

.3 imabaili ]
Prcovey Fonl mowics of £5 vw whirk
eiyed tn abowe
Given the continued financial sapport
required by the Trast, there remains an
mereased incentive to misreport the Trsts
position.

Given theoe Twreatives we rvclered e ey avas of
Bres o be:

Preeprition of oo aad sxywesditae
Manipulatios throoph jowsa] postings - aml
e of incoees n Fxpenditure whons valae
= deywnd rwt vywmn aotiale;

For & samnyple o ———— NHZ Expland and

Chnical ConmEciomin gy Grewps (OO ), we nbbrined awl
aprred fhe ncorss rereved. deving the e to 2 spoed.
roivact with mo Feepluwe nobe]

Fox a samnple of incone Teropeiaed in relation to oee
perErnawrs st comivart {i & the e rae wp” scosd)
e preed o yeay end seifiewwnis wikth m exrephioss anivd

Erproinwre

Por iwenires; received fiolawees: poid fora pevind afier the
veur-enad we sl o 2 snple basi s, thal the st
and the avawiated represcor Toul been posted tn the nooert
ameial yeor by tracin e then in other dorom setary evileaee
Terrder

W trsied 3 swyple of opevalivg: srperves from ordey
Throopeh in voire ioersare that this had heen ety
amneradrest within the o] salrnels
Infre- NS Dok

(debiy ryeshise, v o expendibore halawres) that e
difleyent with e rionlieypariy.

W rheie] Vit ooy raent had iweestiyaied all
difereres oy E3nol (haoe] on the Matioeal ssdit Offee's
if g, hat the rrecininge dicpaier] asouni= rreoold e om
the Trost's el shrisvsenis Oor Beshing dentified 2
by of oo with the Trast's reatwent of balances, and
e aaewied Foin the anca] sl The balare
That remaised oxaljosied do oot loree 2 malerial impact tn
the yeor-med Anawrial sioterenis of the Trast
Maxipmictira ok peraal pectiags

We seliecied 3 nple of maavaal and asicenaied ool
tamartioms that had been recopyios] n both veee and
expnditerr frocny s partrelar on theeee with oreseal
oot bt

We traces] thewr areal reivies o seppeting docsrsenialion
and paymesis) to cerk that Ve taesacton ras valid adl
had Twen eorertly acroonted o withon the el

Lo it

Euhng

Mowegereen] sl

W prakaie] and tecivd Teaeareet’s Ao
stimates, wrosing oa; acreals, provesos s, aorreed anl
delerred incomes and Propesiy, Mt and Eqnipssent
Walation {=ee specific anmas nf foos below).

We rrakain] and dallaped the ey arroonting =hmaies
of thew ralmlaton on 2 sevple oo by oeeparey the
samptins wsed by sarayyrywnt in the raleo atmn of teeic
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amy difrrmce
within the hranrial statemests of the Trost

COVIE-39

During the rvorse of e andit. bot'h syt aed
'ﬂ:emﬂ e cowssiiored the ieport that fhe
OOV pndemic has had om the actvities,
sqﬂmnlmhe_;tiﬂ!m:ﬂﬂs
amcial Stahvmenis

In respoe o the corest s, NAS Enplaoe] (RHEE)
and MHE Inpuoerewswl (HARY) have imiveduce]
imbrim powlaere and eeaoees that wene potlise] in
Their joink letter date] rrth Marh e Borees, 3t
This shape it 5 wnrdeay vt will happen aftvr this il
pevind of sgyewt and whethey thear imteyire inancial
arampreents mi rontivos kg fhae arprally
adwises] Drisrossicon s e anpeng ety aoond
propasals Iy ety to aormnal Jevd s of dertive
activity and Tewrds of o fonding

As 2 el af thi=, we delreine] thal the impart of
COVIDH-35 shoold he 2 oy anukit mmaltier

W pecirme ] the illowing preedwes in addoess the
ik that COVID-1g has om the inaweial stab et

« Evalnaivd the proceoces:; yesl raedels ooed by
manapement in ils st of Cowid-1q
+ Evalaied whether thr ascouptions e mealist 2w

mesmes putbned i the ety foen MHE Exglind
and MELS Inpeoerewsal

= P hove ravidee] the ol the
dischroore: mads by masarevwest s Ve o] of
the potenital impact of Cowid -1

We mnchaled that masaprwwnl's asrsasent of the Inpact
af COVID-3g oo the ol chairserals i rracsahls

Vakatim of Property, Fast ol Eqeprest
SErenate 1 o the inansial statessents for the divectas”
dischroones of the relatvd accossting ok
ndprmeni= and etimales telating o Properiy, Mast
ind Expaipement and note 14 for ot imbarnation
W forwsed o this avm beamse Fropesty, Flank and
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the Trost's Siatvwwsst nf Fiancal Pooton

Al MPE sty ave s sored avitialy ot oot Tand awd
Buiktew are saboerpeenthy meacone] at Givvalne
Throph foll valkeatons every 5 vears and b
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g i theve i= au indicalion of DeperETeent

Wr eraluaied and challenqed the assomptaes and
Mnnﬂmmtﬂkﬁﬂﬂ

wr h‘!ih]w.ﬂﬂlﬂﬁ] ecomomir Fves of the
rd ool

Wr alsa chrrierd and Fowow] that the valuation of Las] awl
Buiktryrhad e acroraieky refleried in the oncal
e aledy veflocte] within Y Stalvewet nf
Comngrdwreciop Tarese aa Beomoes

We physiraly wrilisl 2 sple of sogels arvooes bawd |
aikdirys anad nfher calepories o check exsiesre and | in
doing 50, Frssid whether fhee was sy nteaton of
phrical cheoleryace whirh would isslicale pivwtial
i

Comsaieration of acyesls and provisons

of the Tt 1t 31 Mach moen n wlaton o the
merrreabkty of arrroed ccese. 2l oty
ndprsenial e s inrieding povisions.

The rervcleratios coct doubt mn thee yecreeralnilivy of
i oy of Talawes with COGs and ofter bades
inrinden] within acrree] ncoens aud other e i
e have discuosed o challengos ] the §

made anl pore with manaprwest that ¥ is
g in mrindr a0 ten helow our v of
malerabiy within fhe sy of sxadyosted
missiatrwenic

eviluaird masaprment’s aesorest of accyae] e
iﬂdﬂhgd'ﬂﬂrm:ﬂﬂm
We selecien] 2 sple of iwvnices ot yeay ead and apyeed o
syt veoirs aad peveipt of poysent
We selecien] 2 sple of arcroed ineee e Sassactees and
apeery] fhe peevind thes incvse wers muved aud apyeed o
Thid panity onirealion
W jound that oo maieiag] adestwent = g a5 2 el
of thils reveavwideration

i s toriforen fhe aulit seope

W ikwer] ther srope of oux aodit ioarear thalt we perbaned reoush wanh o be abibe to pore an o on e nancal
staierrwic o 2 whnlks Glvinp nio arooet the shoachone of the Tood | the aceosshiag: procssos; yud contmls, ol the
ot 0 which the Toosk operakes
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In establicdringy o ovevall audkt appecach we F=eard the reles of malerial misciaisrsent. talins oo arvoont the satae,
Trhkood and polreticl manminds of aey misiatewent Poliorming: thi= earent, e apphed pofesiosal adpemest o
Dol ine the exivet of Bty rEpeied o sch lalare in the inancia] staleais

Mrzterialitn
The srope of oax aadit was inflecred by our application of materialiy. YW 5ot reviain oeaslitaivee threchelds G
maieriahiy. Thes topether with qalitative rossdeatons, helped »s o delersine the srope of ooy st o Ve nabhore

Tming and exient of our aati poredwors aed o evaloate e mfiect of misstaivnsnis both nlvidoally and o the ixamcial
strierryests o 2 whnks

Easad o our professoea] fadeemest. e detmmined materality i the nancial statweni= 25 2 whole 25 ollows:
Ooernll seateviclity ER780,000 (3040 ELET?400)
o o dlelevraied o 355 of ot cpeealieg iacres froen contisoing oyl

Hoticwale Corsisieut whi st havws appillend This bonelrn®, swtnpiod worifiug poection, in
imii:mﬁu umumﬁﬂ'ﬁmm w

W apyeesd wilh the Axslit Cornreiier that we woukd report to teen mistahvssents seatifed dorieg oy ol abore

Exfty s (xmy Foxll 870) as well s mictatemests b ow that awoont that, n our vew, wanrawied reparting for
T

Reporting om other Daformmatios
The ot infewvnativon cossparice: all nf the sfrwative i the Arvwea] Beyeet ofber than the frowrial soteve et aad oor
ity Tepont Ve The dertns are respemshle i the ottey issaben Der o on the aaca] staleeeis

din= not rovey the ofley inksnation aad . arroedinply, we do =0t Fxpess an aadit opinin o, exwpt iothe exient ofherwrse
explicitty stated 1 this repet, sy m of ascarance theeeos

In oomertiom with oux sadit of the anrial saierests, oo bty i to reed the other infoom st and, o doinye so,
oo gy wiheithey the offtes et is malerally ncossisheat with the inancia) sStatvnents or oo eesied e oblained
i the aulit, or otherwise appears 0 be nalerially svicciaiesd 1F e dlewtify an apparest matericl iscosgc ey or mateyial
misstalvesrrt we are regquived o perieres precesors:; i ooaciade whether therr ica material reicctrtensst of the isoesial
shienewis o 2 material kbt of the othey mfnsation IF, eeed o the vk we loe pecirses]. we roarbode that
Thew is 2 sabial eicrivaysst of thic piher nlivTeaten we ae vegoired o eport that Bt We o sntfhing: o et
T mn s reopres bl it

With r=pect 1o the Ferinmanoe Fepuat and the Arroaniahiity Eeport, we also romsid o] whether the dsriosans requined
Baspd o thee recponcihi Bties; decoribed Shevee aus mor wes'k o taleen in O sorse of fe aefit, A (D) aad e Code
of Axntil Practive reguine us ks o reEet reyian opinions and mallers 25 described below.

Performoece Repori ond Arroseivebility Repors

In o opimicn . bavae] om the vk wederizion in the comrse of the aadit, the inBamation Fiven in e PFecbrmasre Beport
amad Accivewtability Fepeet i the pear aaied 1 Mok 2050 is rescicient with the ioweia] soisrsenis aad hos b
el i arrd aeee with the HE Fousdlation Trost Asnoal Reporting: Maws] sedg/ 20

Im bkt of Yhe nowded e and snderstanding of e Trosk aml @ revioesent chtaived in the rosre-of the aadit, we disd aot
idenivly awy material oyl s the Perfrmas e Bepet o Acroantabe ity Rrport

In addition_ the pants of the Renoneration aad Saif s o be satied have ben propely prepaned im arroedance with
The KHS Fomslatios Trostk Awnoal Erpoting Masal 20050,

Respomclinhities for the fnoscial statements and the andin

As meplaived o folly in fhe Arroontal ity Beport seit out oo pape 72 e diverhes are respos shie oy the preparation of
The hnawcial statewents 0 arcordawrre with e Deparheent of Hralth aud Zorial Caor Groop Accoasting: Masal 2oinf 20,
i o by st ot they proe a trae el v view. The diveciors are also regeevble o cack etvnal sonival o they
delrneine is ecesany ioemahbe the preparation of eawial Siemewts that oe e s maera] nechaieaent whethsr
e tn iraod or v

In preparing the iaericl saiemewts the drerthere are respossihle i asseccing the Toets alnlity o oonbeee 25 3 Eoing
wern, dedncy acapplirable motters elaivd to peingy soncers aad woing the i oncers hac of ancesonbng ol
The divertas sither inbesd 1o Equidate the Trost or in e opeatas, o kave oo realislie aliers atvee Dol 1o do so.

The Trnst is ako rrsposible on puiting in plare propey saryorwesls in secne eronony, cicency sl st e in s
o of TreoaTras

181 Annual Report and Accounts 201920



O phjectiee e to chizin easonahile 3 avawrs oot whethey the fanrial slaesents 7= 2 whoke e fee s sateral
misstairment, whether dor in frand or s, aad inicoee i sakios” report that inciade nor opisics Rersomble
e ¥ a gk bevsl of aeeranoe ot = not 2 pearantee thal 2n st rondwebe] 0 arcobaere with TRAS (DX} wall
dlways detect 2 malerial mshalsnent when it exiss Mehabemests ran arise o ool or e aed are comderesd
maierial if individoaly o i the apaerair | they roold rascsahly be repecied In nflorsre e coososi devisions of wsers
el on the basis of theee iawcial stalvrwnis

A Fovther decrription of our Tecpescivibitioe o the aadit of the o] oty i« wated on the FIC's webits o
wwr e op ok ek tsrepoesinbities This description s part of oo andies" Teport.

mnmﬂ.ﬂuaﬂﬁmﬂdﬁ:mmﬁmumﬁm sty cursslves; that te Toest has mosle
oy el i sceving roomcny, cifrscy el sffrivesec: s ose of e yad o ceport 0 pos wlere e
have 1t heen ahile to sty ool that & los done 5o Weare 2ot respoines to consie, e have we comad ] whether

il asperts of the Trost s aranpemests B seroring erosyy, sihciory and sliectirenes i s e of s ae
opevating cffertively_ ¥We haowe ouieialen ooy vk in acoandares with e Crade of Andit Practior. having repamd o the
e detvmnited by Uhe Conphroller and Asditor General 25 to whether the Trost ke propes aranpemnests o eesme it
1ol properly inkarned decions aud dephivped s o achiere plaaned aed sosizinshle oolcosnss o papers and
Tocl prople W plawsed owx vk in acconiawre with the Cole of Andit Prartioe Baoed o oo 1k asescrent we

onder tnalk cach wer'k 25 we e dered seceocey

e of Hes report

This repoat, inrinding e oqunaws has bees preyaned b and ooly i the Cowmri] of Goreraors of The Eotheham KEHE
Foundaten Trosl 25 2 body in arrondasce with paragraph .4 of Scheiole 7 of the Mational Fealth Servire Act ook and o
o ot prorpece Wi g o, i piving S apiwione: accent or oo Teguac bty for ey otfhes prorpevoe or o aey ot
per=m o whoen this repant &5 shire o imin whiee hamds § ey come sree e sxprescly apreed by oo price consent in
Wiy

Arrangrs et e seonriep soonomy, slhcescy anil sffectvesecs e the woe of Teorees

1imler fhe Code of Andit Fractioe we e oined in 7epont, by exceplion, ¥ e conciade e aoe not sati<hed that the Trost

has polt in plare pEoper syt e serarieg ooy, siicisery aad sfectroenes in it ooe of oo o the year
ended g1 Marh 2re.

T seope off owr aoork & Tespect off orromgesvenis Jor secwring erowoasy, sffereorn aod sfferrienes e The e

of resTTEs

The srope of oux vk i= detvrmnived by the reguiremesits oailised in Andioy Gidasoe Mobe-3, " Anditrs” Wik on Valos B

Momey Arranpreenis (A oF ) iaed Ty the Kot Asdit Diliee 0 Moeemieer oory W taikerd the soope of our ik
g 1] iﬂlﬁﬂn!ﬂhﬂnuﬂmﬂ secifie] i AR o, that n Ell matvia] regeects, the Trest had propss anas el to
ensme it ook properly inksmed decision s and deployed reavarces; o achieee plned and sashrinahie poivomes T

g and eral preopls
Adoerse opimon

A5 3 realt of the maiters note] belor, v have conclades] Yhalt e Trast has ot pal in plare ropsr araszessenis ko
seraviny eronceny, eibriency il cfiertiveeses i e ose of i esowres by the pear anied 1 Maxch oo

Linder AN oy v are reapared tn et theves mtiers; that im U auditee” profecc red] jodysrent. were of xurt
sipmificance n Jooeing fee conclesion on whethes the Toest had s place [ropsr ananpesents o seroe ooy sihciesry
i effertivesress i is o of rsomres and inclade 1he mst Spnificast aoered ddke of Eiling o pat in place proper
siraiepy; thealration of Tecowrce= in the aadit and divecting the offewts of the remapement e Thee matiers and awy
el we ake o the resolts of our proredanes thereos, were addressed i the oonlext of o vk on arasprmenls o
seraye valee B oy 2 2 whols el 0 Somning owr comcecin Beereon, ad we do ol peroride 2 Srparaie DRI o
Thes matte= Thic & nol 3 comaplete Tt of S vicks Slestifed relating o thic wek

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk 182



L Candik
O g Apll 2en3 =l subsequently anended in o 31y September 27wl Jowe a5, Mosibor isoeesd eefocoment
achiom st the Trnst

Thi= el o racke: coryoes ding: onc] pesngy poversasce aasd e Elevivomie Paliond 2 ecirds Sysiomn
Compliawre covtiliralies, n elatos o Elechemic Pationt Bemads and poremars hvaches. were sabepoenthy =] by
Mo in-Joly 2o and Tammary s respectieely

A5 ot 3 Mach oo fee Toest sl reseives sobiject oo eiinressent artion s et 0 el phasing eackes

The abwrew oo i eviiesre of 2 weakeec: i proper arasgersees by plraing o sfiectionly o caprawt the
srsiainahie dedwery of shralere priorities o naintan Stalohey erticoes

We rmied e inte Moivr [reiegs on the NES oeleits roafrmieg arinet the Ureocke vebotv i awd Hhe Siolas of
ke

Fimanrial pedormance and fimamcial specific measomes

T the yeay the Trost deleee ] 3 £y g dehclt apaivedt 2 plarsed break-eoes preation B soanfon. Howerer, 25 2 mesult of
mmmummmmmmmmﬂEmmmm
el Fiamrial Procosery Fond meosie tn cear the dehclt re-alting i a soplos of Egk. As 3 conseopoesce the Tiosh mest

its anal comim] toial aed serore s Quarter 4 Fovider Sashraahihity Fosl/Fisaerial Peoorey Fond sosics of F5 o
which is already inrladed within the defiet pocition reisre] toaboee

The deficit apainst plan noled above = evidescr of 2 weakeess in rops; aoaepeenis by plaaning ixancoes sfiectieely o
Rafier in the varivriol sarevioisty & relviae (o goiey coacera paroiprapl for e detols of G coxdié soork per o aed =
relota i s Eey onki oredier.

OQC imspection r=alix

Damimg 2aalifig the Boad of Diveciors rommi =awned an et “Wel- el ceview snderialen and comgleies] io-year
This review identified some avas that nesded o be foroeeed o

The Tras verereed an ispection foom e Care Qeality Commeieion (COC) dorimg 2mif fan YWithin that the ol
sessament v TegRiTes Inpnovessents and the COC asesorwsl 10 spert of "Wl ed” renained 3 “Tegmines
nporerwst” A -rorent COC incpertios ¥ awaiting St all O0QC sepection s ave coyestly panos ] dee o COFID-1q
ol at Lok Anposh e,

We hoar comfiroee] O insperiaers o curreslily pewsed dwe o SOV o awd cpreed Tinet dhe ket O report shiwowd
et il YT oo rasr i et of el -led™ remaoin © of ‘e eprroeneent”

Oriver snatiers om wikich we report Ty excepisom

W & reprael n report ey i
=  the salsvsent Fives by the direciors on papee 17, e acvondance with provision C 1 1 -of the MAS Possdation
Trost Dol of Gooersases that they cowoiior fhe Awwoa] Repart taken a5 2 whnle i be Gir, alanced ol
mnder=tandahle aud prowide: the niivsation necesany o patinis, vepalaiors and niher stalehaldes to
sy The Toasl's perirsence, becines modd | sl shaiepy is maleraly o<t with oar knowdedper of
the Trost arvporaes] 30 B roorse of perinmisg osr wabit

=  the oo of the Anweal rrport ey 71 25 regoived by provicemn © 3 o of the MEHE Pooslabos Tost Code

of GCormanre describing the vk of the Andt Commitiee dors not apEriaiely aidnes naltes
e by os to te Aodit Creresities

= fthe Anmal GCormramre Sttt dors nol et e derdosere requivessents St oud i e NEHE Foaniaion
Trost Amvoal Beporting Mawoal 2oan, 0 or i mi ety or inccsoecient with o nneded e acouire] n the
e of perineing our et We e ot asid o] whethes Ve Anea] Govemance Shaierest addreoses
all rsles amd ronbhmls o Vel risks ae stshriocdy akdoesoed by ntersal oontols

= e hoee refred 2 maltier o Mo ondey Srhweduls 30 (R) of tee Matioeal Health Sevvice Art 200k beranae
wr had et helkiepe that e Trest, o 2 divecior or offrer of the Trast, wes slwol ool o el soede 2
decision which mnived o woold areclee the inraming of expesdiione ot s salawdal, o was shout o ake,
mx had akew 2 rowre of achun which, if ellowed o it roacieson would be oalawial 2l Eedy tn mose alos
 deiriery.

=  wrhove isend 2 vyt in the poblic vl oedes Srhedole 10 (3) of the Mabional Realth Servioe Art k.

= e hove ot Tecetee] Al B firsalion sl cxplosalivwe: e regeive for oor aadit

W lave oo excephion s o report arEngy fiom theae e lites

183 Annual Report and Accounts 201920



Certificate

W cextify that we hove rompleied the aati of the inawrial salrsenls 0 v with the romirrests of Chapler 5 of
Paxt 7 o the Maticeal Heslth Zevvics Art 2onk and the Dode of saxtit Prarfive

2 JTune HEK]

www.therotherhamft.nhs.uk 184



Acknowledgements

TheRotherhamNHSFoundationTrustwouldliketothankeveryone
whoprovidedtheinformationforthisreport,whogavetheirconsent
tobephotographed,whogavepermissionfortheircommentstobe
included,andtoeveryonewhoassistedinensuringclaritythroughout
this publication.

185

Annual Report and Accounts 201920






187 Annual Report and Accounts 201920






189 Annual Report and Accounts 201920









P
‘nFlre il 1 S -
3 "\H,,Lf Crian | OS2/ R



